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RAERZRIWT 2006 F£8 A 29 HEIGEY T A7 2006 FHFEREY IEXK
WE. WNEESE 16 B, LHRIEF 16 B 16 BITERRN, 27 5 BEES
BT ARREW.

A 2006 FEFPEIHENMERY S REENSITHRREEEEKERRSI

IHEE55 BT & B R RGKE = 1M EE 55 P2 AR 48 E A0 E B e 5 AR U =R 5]

FERITRDERARDEES

KNBAEBERKHEW. TKEE. TESU LERITRKEAEFLSTTBARAT AT, R

EFFEREPUSHRENESL. TE.



M%Mg AR e B il 2 THE D B2 (et THI ) 2 Bk g D

L [T AR

2006 4 2005 4 2004 % 20064 6 H 30 HEL4E
6 H30H 12 A31H 12H31H IR
BE 5,226,933 4,742,806 4,270,443 10.21%
Hep: 655088 2,317,408 2,151,893 2,071,693 7.69%
BAR 4,840,480 4,480,186 4,037,705 8.04%
Hep: BREX 4,053,024 3,703,777 3,342,477 9.43%
FTRANZFERESH 357,641 233,842 205,351 52.94%
BRFE™(T) 1.41 1.12 1.10 25.89%
BREERE AT 1.40 1.11 1.09 26.13%
2006 4 2005 4 20054 2006 £ 1-6 ALk R
1-6 H 1-6 H 1-12H [F 07184
E LA 38,422 33,009 64,744 16.40%
FI5H S5 34,013 29,578 55,140 14.99%
) 19,024 16,434 27,492 15.76%
HBRIER B IR R 2 FE 18,314 NA 26,174 NA
SRR (SERET) 0.07 0.09 0.13 (22.22%)
S * (N, T) 0.09 0.09 0.15 0.00%
BEENPEAENRS TS (117,991) 21,615 13,883 (645.88%)
2006 4 2005 4 2004 4 200&2%@;; H
6 330H 12A331H 12A331H Ffr: EAE)
BB EIRE(FER) 0.87% 0.72% 0.61% 0.15
A ERE (ER, FEORRANGE) 12.87% 12.52% 10.23% 0.35
RAFOIRE (FX, FOBRENE) 13.34% 13.16% 10.92% 0.18
R R (R, S T ) 10.64% 11.76% 10.19% (1.12)
R PRI R A, ALY 14.99% 12.62% 10.04% 2.37
BERA (FX) 0.44% 0.50% 1.06% (0.06)
TREFREE 4.19% 4.62% 5.12% (0.43)
BAEAFEE 12. 40% 10.42% 10.04% 1.98
REBEX 87.44% 80.55% 68.02% 6.89
2006 4 2005 4 2005 4 2006 & 1-6 A
1-6H 1-6H 1-12 thj:fﬁlﬂ%ﬁi%fﬁ
(BAL: B R)
B AT EE 35.90% 37.05% 39.30% (1.15)
FEFBBALL 15.67% 14.15% 13.46% 1.52
IEISES 2.26% 2.31% 2.32% (0.05)

TR CATFRATUE SR A T R 0 A e RUE S 35— P4 BER A5 1 2 5 6 50(2003 4EET)) IEH A7)

7 [2003] 25 5) HIHLE 5L

2R S B A U B A (A TFRATIFSR 2 w5 BRSO (35 9 %) — ™ I 3k R R IR e 25

SRR I TS

S RAHI R (KA SELST F 42 ki 77 25
SO CEA AT A R VA AR S AR S GRIKR[2008]22 5 [HRLE .
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2006 FAKEHRERTHE EREBEEN—IPRE. £AX—F, PERITRIE R
EEFFEARATIZRINEZT ETRRT, PERRAEFR—RARITHNLAREFEET
IRSLHVERL. fEitL, MIFRTHMEERERITHES KR KIREERE4IT 2006
FLFFRMMENELE NS, #HZE 2006 F6 F 30 H, PEIRITEIEFIE 384.22 {2
TART, #FE 190.24 ZT AR, BEEESHIEK 16.40%F 15.76%. SHEFFER
&K (ROAA) e R 0.87%, IrA# MR (ROAE) e 12.87%, 535kt 2005
TR 0.15 F1 0.35 MEHH AL

RIFMELE VSRR ATIEFERSIHAR . SEFTHMR. 2004 £, RITEHETHK
MEEA,; 2005 F, RIISIHEMKIREE. 2006 F6 A1 HM7 A5 H, RTRERE
AEEBBREILS RSN 8IS 7 ERRZ S, R ERITLHPERRS T EEFRM
EARATIZENLZITEHHRRI. £1THREITEERE 860 28T, €T 2RER

VB R2FFRIT (IPO) EREMMRILR, MAIE 6 FRERFANBRIER. AREK

N

TEERSE 200 ZART, BESHIEARTIGRANERAFALTT (IPO) IH. L3
HE—LSY KT AMTEEFRTZMERATZNEEA, APERTHEFRERERNK.
BINET LM EPERITHRELRHEPFNERMFNNS, AFRITHTRFELR
R{ETHEMNE, TETEFESHNLEAFEG. EHRETEAINNMELTEER, &
FTHRERITHRENENTSEE, BN TH-PRUERE. TEBRLFRE. EHd
BRENMEW S ZRER. BRARE. WEFRE. ATRR. EETASHEHEREXRT

RANZ, EHAITHEEEHMREE, ARERESEENG, RELEEEKTF.
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R, BOVRZIARE, EHERERTEERBIAIAGHIENEER. RNBEZ
ZHENTHEE, 8RRTUMESVHNERE, BEXEFBATHAR,; EES
MM EER. Mit, ATREFEREREETOEE. AAMNAENHL), BRESHREN
HX. fEfE. TE. RN, ERERE, BEMEERORSN, SHLIANERKL.

2006 FTHF, MELFFITFREFRFERRNBRERSE, RIBEHERAR
KE—FRH. RERTHBVREEZNEFES, MENE, RELR, EIXK, €
EESR. B RRTEQRGENF, WEFREURFAF O T SE NES,
IR RIERRM BN ZE RIFEIEKEN, FEMARKREENE RIPFHARELZAR
AW SE. PAEBLASWE AT SFRT, MRV FSHNFLEE, BLEIER
URIBITEBRAMERLEERE . ghEdnt IT BESCHE, RRSEIMIFRIENEBE
1, F—EERESRIENTE, RBEPHRENEERE, MEmERRFRENMETIGE
A EERAABERSEH K EHEBANESEMTG. MaREIUER, FiEHN
KRS GREME. UARAR. RIARTT. BREENITIERE, BEABNNER ST
AERREHERATNERENE, FHERITHLZRREHIFANBHEIN.

RlE, RERPRXOMFHERITHIEAIN REA. RE. BUMHSEFRBE,
HHRERRBEEIARNKT. RERGPERITEFS. BFLEEEMAHA,
BIFRMME WMNER. HERRPWHERITEEAT, BRI —MEENRR TIEM

FEEHR.

A

HHK



T REG

2006 5, WITEEFRERNRATIZRINLT LT, PERTEFREEETHIAE,
i, BREEEERORHREENMESEANEESSH!

2006 F F3¥ 4, HHREFMAELFIREE K. FERITSEFEABL—EHIZEER
FRKHEROI TR SRR, i)+ EERERT 7K EIEES R
Heik, ENKRERE, ®RIFLVSHFSBRELRE.

AEENAST, BEERNERYSRARLR, STITEHRING, 2EIVHRR
5. BPESIHEMNITE, 2006 F6 AR, KEK~EH 52,269.33 {ZTARM, A&
%1 48,404.80 Z T AR™, FrEEMNE 3,576.41 {ZT AR, 93t EEREK 10.21%.
8.04%%0 52.94% . SLIBLRIFIE 340.13 {ZTT AR #F/E 190.24 {ZTT AR, L EEF
EHA 3 B34 14.99%F0 15.76%

EHFEFFEREZRHNERZFFEWATIEFSWAEM, FEREAEIENAE
SREREE

SHEZPEREE EFREK 9.4%, GERIEK 7.7%, IEFREEK 19.1%. 252U
AE LK 12.0%.

FER SRR ETFER EEE 10.5%, HEEABRIFENTIBAER 2005 FERM
59.4%iR S %] 2006 F EHFR 63.1%; RHERIT. KW FFZTEEWRIRNBIRTF
JEE EEIEIK 145.7%, TIRAEEE 2005 SE62RM 3.2% R 5 %) 2006 F £ 6.6%; Bl
RITUSF MRS, HRFEEKIAT 10.8%.

FEFRESRAGEWBANLLER EFEHIN 14.2%RE2] 15.7%, 1K 26.2%, HH
FFEBNAESWAEK 51.4%.

BB S TRIEK, RIS 7.7%, Heh, SNSRI SR 9.6%, ARTH



AW FIBRK 11.2%. NGEBFEIZTRYT, EREFRERS, XELEMEERR 12.7%
BEIEE] 10.9%, BUELERL R A FERA 4.90%(EE] 4.40%, HEBEZXRMH 80.6%IES
% 87.4%.

BEVHANEREES TSEVEANBRKIEE, KAKRALR 37.05% TREE
35.9%. F5XFZEH 36.7%M/K %] 36.3%.

EEERMN, W LEHEWEFERITHLEF, BREFR. BITEHBREREFLEHN
B, BEREEZENGE, RBRARLS. HIVEMREH, FHRERSRE, B8
BORESE T BOVEHRENBXESEMATRS, RUEFIRA, L EREMEL.
RAVG SRR AU ERARIRES, MRS T BEE, 25591k, £hEiEE.
BAVR SRR AN TRERENE, TEHRING, EHFLURE. F8. [E g £

AR OMERN eI E#EER, mEEll, RARIRR.



BB i 5 AT
G, SRNKTHSE

2006 4F F4F, #HREFIEKEAY, EFFETHESEL FIF 2006 FLHREKTHE
49%, HRELE 4 FHFE 4% L. MEZFSSRIEFIAPEB KNSR, £¥
FEANEFERE?1.4331ZTART, BLEEK 10.9%. N ERERE, 1-6 BERBEERMN

BIKEEEE LFK 1.3%; #REME O ERS, HENRSERDPEH. LFFHE
B OSEIEK 23.4%, LERIEEFREMR 0.2 MESR, LIMAHINE 614 12%7T.
RMBEZEAEMNK, EFHIREARBEETBL. L HEMTERHE LEK 13.3%,
FOBRMNMIE AR, LFRGK 12.4%, HREEXFEIMR 0.4 MEHSR. FEEF ‘SiEK.
RIERK” RIS RS REF.

2006 £ L F, HESMTIASITER, KMERENES, SRR FENR, €
ROIFTERR, ARTHHFIRER, LTREHFRE. &2 6 AR, ARTNETRITE
0.94%; 2RI MAINDEFRRIMA 22.79 FIZT ART, BLEBK 14.34%, FFR
FE LE1E K 17.19%.

2006 FRAEMAMHRRZGEANERLF, FREMKFEIT2EXTIMNTRAIAE,
E RSN RN TR B BT

2006 FE¥F, HERTIEEEEZRS (R “RER") HET—RIFHK
BESR, BEE—HVRITHETR. BIQFREMNE X0IH. MEFHMMRERINEY
W& msasSCRKEEMGRFREESES, WRITIYNEFMRLEEBER=4EETE
=AU

2% SMMEETRENZUNEHVRITHNEEEERE TESEK.



BANBRR 2006 FrfERITREMMEHFRU S TE, ERIERBELFIGKE RN
KENBNERN, YIKPSERFETHRBERFEARESI KN SRXEE; INRXEEEM

WNIZERER, BAEER

i

Mk Fmie, MREBRRERER, EHRALEEEK
o ERBEEEFTRES, MR RIS CIH, EHRAZRLESN; REEE.

. IRELRE, STRAER. RIT. BERPARINMNMERTT.
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WA % 1 K AT
iz

2006 F 6 AR, RERITRODBRAE (LTER “KT7) REFAE (UTEWR ‘&
H”) BR8N 52,269 33{ZTTARM, R EFARIGK 4.841.27 LT AR, g 10.21%;
MRS HE 48,404.80 LT AR, B EFAKRIEK 3,602.94 {Z7T AR, 3R 8.04%; RZ&R
N B8 (R OBRANE) 7 3.576.41 LT ART, BEFREK 1,237.99 LT AR

m, 1E0g 52.94%.

2006 F £ 5, REASKIAFIE 190.24 LT ART, BEEK 25.9 LT ART, EiE

15.76%. SREREMFIZITIRARL .

AR HE 7 #r

A FIC AR

HHE 2006 4£ 1-6 A 2005 4 1-6 2005 4 1-12 A
EZSIISUION 54,476 48,658 100,405
HEFE A 10,126 8,021 15,623
b 55 K PR 2 (23,193) (21,000) (45,604)
A 4 S (2,987) (2,670) (5,680)
EOLA 38,422 33,009 64,744
2O RE 467 1,145 1,381
FHERTE 7 I A A3 2R A S A0 38,889 34,154 66,125
We VR IRAE AR (4,876) (4,576) (10,985)
g I NERSEl 34,013 29,578 55,140
W DL (12,362) (10,860) (22,543)
Wil ADBUBIR N AR (2,627) (2,284) (5,105)
2 Al 19,024 16,434 27,492

11



FBPEIERSRAK (ATFRATIESR AR E BEERIRAN) 5 9 SHERT
B B R KR

. (% T
T H e iy s
v Fy buidL Fy
FE 5l 38,422 21.49% 30.27% 0.15 0.18
B A 38,422 21.49% 30.27% 0.15 0.18
A 19,024 10.64% 14.99% 0.07 0.09
R ARG PR 25 )5 A 18,314 10.24% 14.43% 0.07 0.08
[ A Ah e v R I S R R E SR
A H I AR
e T #RNE
2006 4 2005 4 2006 2005 4E
6130 H| 12 /1311 1-6 JJ 1-6 J]
o T 2 UV ) 2 4 357,641 233,842 19,024 16,434
SV ZE e I H
— B VA 3G (2 SLAH DG T IH 2 (7,794) (7,999) 205 133
— BN LA R 3,199 2,816 438 1,059
— B PERBRE 53 28 ATt tH AR IR IR DA et (ot 3,566 1,775 - -
— VIR PYIR 53 T AR A R AR A S5 (4,911) (5,097) 186 (1,749)
— X G S m iR AT (757) (637) (120) (83)
— IBIEFTAEL R 4,222 992 (97) (97)
— DL B in] Dl AR 5% S A 581 727 (159) (516)
it (1,894) (7,423) 453 (1,253)
2 1] o 0 251 5 4 J0) 52 4 355,747 226,419 19,477 15,181

ST HEDN 2 5 U W P L2 VAR R B A B E 4 rp o T T U 5 [ 55 0 o ME DU e v iR 2 5 U .

L H MRz I E
LT T C AR
mH KE
Ak A SRR AR % i 2 141
N2 N 1,111
EAN (644)
DURIAE FE 28 T 5 TR ME 4% [ 7 o] 451
A 38 1 (349)
&t 710

12
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2006 £E 1-6 4

2005 ££ 1-6 A4

RN (RO ARATE

itk 2388

PRI (PRI ATIRA A BRI A A, Hob s 28w [
WAT (W) AMAE (R PRER") BT Al Gt

AT T o< 4l IR 45
NG RE N E IR E i S (U kY =D) 457012 NIRRT 39.93{Z 7t AR T
N R eI o o
b L AR R L E (%) 24.02% 24.30%

R R A

2006 fF £ 5, EESSIAF BN 544.76 LT AR, BLEIEK 58.18 {ZTT AR, 118 11.96%.
SRERREM NEAMRAFRE ° FFFIZE CBRMTRATA:

L FIC AR

2006 |34 2005 k34 2005 &4F
HH IR FME | P IR FME | P PR FE S35
Sm || B2 | ME [ em [ mw | B | R e | mw| BT | MIE
aY=Y du
he 2,291,998 48%| 60,360 5.27%|2,196,061 52%| 51,971 4.73%|2,192,058 51%| 109,711 5.00%
e e a4 1,837,222] 38%| 30,6520 3.34%|1,383,481 33%| 19,908| 2.88%|1,475,673| 34%| 44,938 3.05%
Eﬁfﬁijﬁg% 694,824 14%| 8,765 2.52%| 639,077 15%| 5,587] 1.75%| 655,359 15%| 12,696] 1.94%
N 4,824,044 100%| 99,777 4.14%|4,218,619 100%| 77,466 3.67%|4,323,0900 100%| 167,345 3.87%
13 B AR
ERNEE e 4,001,322 89%| 38,887 1.94%|3,471,702] 88%| 23,815 1.37%|3,560,014] 88%| 55,914 1.57%
giﬁgﬁ?f{j” 371,143 8%| 4,122 2.22%| 336,394 9% 2,827 1.68% 355,856 9% 6,512 1.83%
, AN
O\ I
;ﬁé_ﬁé;}ﬁ 112,108  3%| 2,292 4.09% 113,672 3% 2,166] 3.81% 115,843 3% 4,514 3.90%
D1
N 4,484,573 100%| 45,301 2.02%| 3,921,768 100%| 28,808 1.47%|4,031,713 100%| 66,940 1.66%|
EIISE PN 54,476 48,658 100,405
WA ZE (%) ° 2.12% 2.20% 2.21%
Rz )’ 2.26% 2.31% 2.32%

S AR ARG RBUR A A AT K H H PR
O SPRPRIFR R, AR (D BRUCFRBT . 2006 4F L =4ERT 2005 4R L RAEFI AR O AR
T AHEA T T B HA A AR B A B RS IR G $ 5E «
& R 2E=E B IR R R ST AR

MG =S ) N NN T P

13



LA RATAEAUER B o

SESF SMAZRERNF XA RERMS AT MR “WTRTR. Hf, ERERR
TR REAREE = ERNZIT)IE A FIRERED.

L FIC AR

2006 £ 5 b 2005 £ Eg4F

| mmmz | mxmEz | A
FEHA
Bk 2,269 6,120 8,389
et 6,534 4,210 10,744
LA IBO AR RV RT3 JEARAT 488 2,690 3,178
N 9,291 13,020 22,311
F B3 H
B PAER (3,628) (11,444) (15,072)
[V AE N B 35 N0} Fh R AR AT A7 £5 (292) (1,003) (1,295)
185N T TS 4 FN R AT 5157 30 (156) (126)
N (3,890) (12,603) (16,493)
HRE N 5,401 417 5,818

FIEUWA

2006 £ L34, REASSIMABUYA 997.77 2T ART, BB 22311 ZT AR,
g 28.80%. FIBWABRKA(ERE FERSRFMENY K, EZRETERSRFIIFH
MIE . £ BRI REM 2005 F £ FHY 42,186.19 LT ARTHIEE 2006 5 £ 4
f 48,240.44 LT AR, 1B1E 14.35%. SRELEEHEF=FHFHRM 2005 F L F/ 3.67%

2= R 2006 F FHER 4.14%, K 47 NEA,

S Eh
JTA

L-\

2006 F F¥F, EHAKFEWA 603.60 ZTTART, FLLEK 83.879 ZT AR,

K08 16.14%, EEMTEERTIREERM 2005 F EHFH 4.73%RE 5 2006 F L E

1O VRS DR 34 A ke AR LTS i B A2 45 3T A 2 R A R G P B R A AR s TS 3 DR 38 Ak A L
SR PR R A5 3T P9 2R S B AT B B S R AR A LA IR 3R (A2 3
14



5.27%, K S4APER, YIKFIREM 2005 F EFF/ 21,960.61 {ZTT ARTIEE 2006
FEFFHN 2291998 LT ART. RRAMSTRIEFIRRE, BARKRRIEK, F1
REULHES 4.37%. FIIWHRWIRSEEZAT() IHEFTHFRPFE LT (2) AR

IR1TTE 2006 FF 4 BARIRE T ARTEFNELEFEX; (3) AITHERALBNERESNE. SEN

ARMETHZFHRBABETHEMN, BANKRRZR—EE, 20T HEBARRE
i-KO
USR5

2006 F L5, ERIPHREFNBUA 306.52 ZTTART, BELIEK 107.44 ZTAR
M, 18 53.97%. EEHTIESFFIIREM 2005 F LFF/ 13,834.81 LT ARTIEME]
2006 F EH 5 18,372.22 {ZTT AR, #1 32.80%, LAKRIES FHHEEZEM 2005 & £
FHY 2.88%iREF| 2006 F EHFH 3.34%, K 46 MER. IEFREBFHROVIEKTE
BF (1EPESFSILEK, KERARERTEFIRBAIR R R SR G bR R E W
FRHRRBITRERESNILSRE; (2) KEARKSMACEFHE, BREERRIEMNER
RFHEVRESERHEFNEE. FHRGERRSTEA I HRFUERZI TR

MEFFE T, FroRHh T RN ARMETMIHF RERMRFZT.

FIEARIE W AN F R R RIT

2006 F E¥F, SEFRAFRELMERHPRIBITFEWALN 87.65 LT ART, B
EEIEK 31.78 LT AR, 1818 56.88%. K EZRHTINTE TN mBNFFEETT, &
SNFEY R M 2005 F L FH 1.75%REF] 2006 F EFF/ 2.52%, K77 PER;
HR, BRFHFRBITHERETERTAEERMEN, EREAES T B RRIEHN

TR R, FEHREM 2005 F EFF7) 6,390.77 LT ARTIEINE] 2006 F L

15



MR 6,948.24 (LT AR, 18K 8.72%,

2006 F £ 5, KEIF S 453.01 LT AR, B LI 164.93 127T, 1818 57.25%.
FEXHERARET N EARMENILK, EZRETFNEARFEIREN L. R
AR FEIREM 2005 F L FH 39,217.68 (LT AR T E 2006 F L3 FHY 44,845.73
LT AR, I8 14.35%; NEAFRFIMAM 2005 F EFF1) 1.47%R5E] 2006 F L

MR 2.02%, WK 55 PR

& PR

2006 4 L4, BAFHRFIERY 388.87 ZTAR, BLLEK 150.72 25T, 1
63.29%, HKEBHTEAFHNERM 2005 £ FREH 1.37%2HE 2006 £ F¥EH
1.94% , 184 57 DNE A, AR FREM 2005 F F3F/9 34,717.02 12 c AR T EEMNE] 2006
¥ 40013.22 ZTEART, HK 5296.20 25T, HiE 15.26%. &FAEHRTEEN
BKFERT (1) MUINTERNRRLERARES; (2) ST HFRN SRS
FHAFOEKTEATREEFRELRE, ARFLERER KRN T HEATMARS

FHEMSEIRNSNH LS TR

B Wb 77 A B e AFOXS AR ORER T fA i

2006 F ¥ 5F, BIHFARFAFNYFRRBITARHESZ L 41.22ZTART, BEEEE
KI1295{Z T AR, g 45.81%. EKIBEHTINMRERA LT, FEERM 2005 F
EHER 1.68%I2EE] 2006 £ EHFMH 2.22%, 1K 54 NEA. REFYERFM 2005 £
EHEFR 3,363.94 (ZTT AR TIEINE] 2006 & EHF/ 3,711.43 {ZT AR, #17 10.33%,

16



BERM R ESEINEEAENEAGRPIELEM 2005 F EFF1 9% TREZE 2006 F EF

FHY 8%

BATMEEMELITHRS

2006 ¥4, EREATHASHRTHREFBIS 2292 ZTART, BHEK
1.26 ZEART, HIE 5.82%, WKIBATASHAN LI, [HERM 2005 F EEFH

3.81%t % 2006 F EHF 1 4.09%, K 28 PER.

FREMSRRE

2006 FF E¥ 5, KRSFERN 2.12%, FHBESMER, BTFXFREFERRZM,

TEREMTIREF 3 MRS, BEERN 2.26%, FLLKE 5 MES. EETHREIEHT (1)
RERELEL, EEERFHEPNLEER ELFFEHRLT S MESR, BEXARTE
WiIHFRWIKXAZE, HETHRREM LT (2) SEBRFREZKMERFEERS NG
T 2 BN, SRRELESRFNIEERRM TR, EZRESRARSETE; (3) 4
mHREMAE LT,

2006 F E¥F, BTN IUMARE=RRELFLZRMTE, KEMATRIEA
REEZNAE, SHRAFSRERFAREND, STULFSRELR, 7T EEREN
e, A B UM 2005 £ £ 5/ 486.58 (2T AR THIEINE] 2006 £ E35/ 544.76 (25T

AR, B8 11.96%.

FEFR A

2006 4 L6 SR GKA 101.26 ZE AR, FLEEK 21.05 ZTA R,

HaiE 26.24%.
17



AL FIC AR

2006 4 2005 4 2005 4

1-6 8 1-6 H 1-12 A
T2 B AN A 35 6,841 4,518 9,247
EETIUN (193) 2,993 4,482
BBk 1681 149 (248)
FEAtA Y 55 W S 34+ 1,797 361 2,142
it 10,126 8,021 15,623

FHEH KA S WS
AL HIJTART

2006 £ 2005 4 2005 £

1-6 H 1-6 H 1-12 4
S SHERS B 1,794 1,287 2,941
ARENE 5N 2,201 1,235 2,735
15 P A v 22 2 RN 1,438 1,308 2,693
BT RSN 1,365 1,049 2,340
IR 2 ON 248 235 483
FoAt 1,120 801 1,506
T A 8,166 5,915 12,698
TFal o K43 (1,325) (1,397) (3,451)
T4 AN s 6,841 4,518 9,247

2006 F ¥ 5F, KHESSIMFEHF LA UWSIFE 68.41 (LT ART, BEEHEK 23.2312
TARMT, 188 51.42%. BRKEBZHTEREANDEZRFELS, KBS FHRS5ERLSE

MRIT R FRBESFTEE KA.

EFARBU S 2201 ZTEART, BELIEK 9.66 ZTART, 818 78.22%. #K

ITEHTEMR. E2MRREMERSHNHEELEK,

EFEEEEEFEBIRAN 179412t AR, B K 5.07 {ZT ART, 1815 39.39%.

BEKFERTFERIISEE S E U RRE S M FARFL R TR PEREK.

KERITRFEBBA 1365 ZTART, FEEEK 316 {ZTART, 18 30.12%.

18



BREIZHTREARETHEANZAFTR, FEHMRRITREHNE, RITFLAFE. X

58 ATM 2P FRIFEHK,

HAZ WA
WA, HU AR
2006 £ 2005 4 2005 4
1-6 A 1-6 A 1-12 A
TS B I R 1,302 3,322 2,518
FIR =g (B e (1,495) (329) 1,964
&t (193) 2,993 4,482

2006 FF L5, EHBFZHMK 1.93ZTART, BEETRE 31.86{ZTART, KiE

106.45%

2006 F 5  BHITINCESZMMZWA 27.28 27T, B LEIEK 8.04 27T, 3818 41.79%.
BREZHPLREHUAE D A CFEMAMENEERF, RETIHIAGELXZEN L
Tte B, ZHHFRRHEZE, KAFMRTAFRREBEISIR 1495127, BEEETRE 11.66

27T, FEME 354.41%.

HFPEARRIT (B “R177) B 2005 F£7 8 21 RN ARTERITHEEERREED
LRFIE, S ARMIHERM, 2006 F EFFRAZRFIMNINCEAMINE TINCE A ~4E
RUIESNCIRALN S LT AR, AN KE S P RICERABAFRIFELTEZZNIITHNEGE

MfEERZE N SIZTART. MAEELRERR, KREFRZXZHWARELEK 1,400 77T,
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L [HC AR

2006 £F 2005 £E 2005 4E

1-6 A 1-6 H 1-12 8
JREAL BT 2 1,587 125 678
o BERIBEE s 339 48 166
JCAh BB % i 26 1,248 77 512
B (BR) M 94 24 (926)
Hit 1,681 149 (248)

2006 F L34,
1028.19%, #BKEZEBT (1) &KHET 2005 F 9 AEFEEEFEADFL AT SHHIRNE
20%, FExSEEEPMRECE R RANGEZE, S HRNIRB R ITARBES RS

s (2) KERFEENPREE(ER)BERABDEE T PREAAFRELARLEHIR

SR A A

35 (3) HIREFRR AT E EEIEN.

1681 LT AR™, BEELEK 1532 {27T, HEiE

HoAth b 45 W37 v
Bl TG ARI
2006 4 2005 4£ 2005 4
1-6 8 1-6 H 1-12 B
HAb BN 5,366 2,767 6,617
Horp: SRE RSN 4,286 2,624 5,237
At 1,080 143 1,380
AL ST H (3,569) (2,406) (4,475)
o ORI BEIE: 2 (3,423) (2,168) (3,861)
oAt (1486) (238) (614)
ot 1,797 361 2,142

2006 F 5, KHESSIAEM FWSIFE 17.97 LT AR™T, BEEEK 1436 {ZTA

R, g 397.78%, BKEIEATRARKLFWAFTEMTLABBANFTE L.



M55 R B B B

Ffr: [C AR

2006 4F 2005 4F 2005 4E

1-6 8 1-6 4 1-12 B
AT M 13,278 11,654 23,979
NE 34| 7,174 6,208 15,742
SIE! 2,741 3,138 5,883
&k 23,193 21,000 45,604

2006 F E¥F, KRN FRERSE 231.93 LT ART, BEHEK 21.93ZTART,
1EiE 10.44%. IBRKOERETESRE: (1) #ETERTHMNEURFRACLTENT S
71; (2) EHHERITEVFESITR; 3) AT USHET AMTiZESFREEMN, KHX
FUFLRNBABZERK, (4) IUIFELENAEEER~FRRLW, E3FFHH

|A 32 H B B 4K 52 T B o

HrE AR R R
Bl AR
2006 £ 2005 4 2005 4
1-6 A 1-6 H 1-12 B
& LEEEN 5,062 4,718 10,888
EiIN DA RN (131) 96 133
AR IR R (R (55) 206 498
fi] 5 B S HARTE =yl el Mk - (444) (534)
it 4,876 4,576 10,985

2006 F E¥F, KERMBERKBLEK SIZTART, HEiE 6.56%.

IR S B HAth B O PR i 7 28 B 7SR AR O

REV B EmEV2TTHEY BXME, ‘SRt ¥ HHERRIHT R DU BRI (&
FHEAS. NBRRES, BAERBREHHNEFE) WTKENY, FIitar g4 Rk
Ko WU ARERERIAMIRKR, THIRIAMCOER" . SN A B BE I N A ET5R A S8 1
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90 Rfa, MWFEFEARI, REHFEAKNFSBRAFRBEFEFLUPH. MG

HIMKiE 97 90 RIAR.

(=W

WEMA, SEANCOES

BT

L VANNE WP W NI

2006 €€ 6 H 30 H 20054 12 A 31 H HINER
LAt W ek 17,538 14,275 3,263
IR A AR 3,874 3,878 4)
RS i

2006 F E¥F, KERSHREAN 123.62{LT ART, BELHIEK 15.021ZTART,

1iE 13.83%. SEEIBBFIEA 36.34%,

PR H i

FEE TR 0.38 MRS R

L [T C AR

2006 £ 2005 £ 2004 £

6 30 A 12 A31H 12831 H

fitde e 1,988,271 1,669,591 1,309,479
AET B AT M R AE TS Y ARAT 640,765 661,478 631,727
ghe SEiE] 2,317,408 2,151,893 2,071,693
li] 5 Wt 7 B AR LR 75,148 76,320 79,302
Bt 5,226,933 4,742,806 4,270,443
[V AE N B 35 N0} Fh R AR AT A7 £5 388,844 375,288 318,443
%K 4,053,024 3,703,777 3,342,477
fENL I SR AT S5 109,799 112,343 95,802
ffsifr it 4,840,480 4,480,186 4,037,705
DR AL 28,812 28,778 27,387
B G vk 357,641 233,842 205,351
il &y & ¥s e 5,226,933 4,742,806 4,270,443

YRR AT AR IE S . R R B A B DY NGEHORI S8 S B A 2 Fe (B AR E T R 2 K 5 -

FE



iEZF

AL IC AR

2006 £ 2005 4£ 2004 £
6 430 H 12A31H 12A31H
TG E B A o A BT AR 26 95 110,602 107,271 91,012
Al g 919,175 593,010 346,532
A 2 200 iR e 569,126 607,459 457,994
NN VST C NI e E 389,368 361,851 413,941
&b 1,988,271 1,669,591 1,309,479

B E 2006 F 6 AR, KHEUESFHEM 19.882.71 {ZTARM, BEFRIEK 3,186.801Z
TART, g 19.09%. HERAHfEERSFIEK 3.261.65ZTART, FIEHEFEKHN

5;

s

B E 2006 FF 6 B, EFHRREEN N 24,055.36 {ZTT AR™, B EFRIEM 1,704.9 12
TEART, 118 7.6%. Hb, BERNGERATN 1972631 ZTARS, B EEREM
1,727.08 {ZE AR, 1 9.6% BRHIMEHIEKERNMRZERBK, SRRTE -

FRIEM 938.1 ZTT ARM, 15818 13.1%.

AT X S B
B | AR
2006 4£ 6 A 30 A 2005412 A 31 H 20044 12 A 31 A
RER b KE b KB s
B A AL 1,972,631 82.00% 1,799,923 80.53% 1,734,302 80.80%
ALY 432,905 18.00% 435,123 19.47% 412,160 19.20%
Hit 2,405,536 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100.00%
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g LR DY X 25

L [T C AR

2006 £ 6 71 30 H 2005412 431 H 2004412 431 H
KRB it R it KRB =]=4
L 353,477 17.92% 322,451 17.91% 313,843 18.10%
ARAEHsIX 135,087 6.85% 131,430 7.30% 128,374 7.40%
AR HIX 813,572 41.24% 719,759 39.99% 679,773 39.20%
TR A X 470,372 23.85% 444,869 24.72% 433,860 25.02%
VX 200,123 10.14% 181,414 10.08% 178,452 10.28%
il 1,972,631 100.00% 1,799,923 100.00% 1,734,302 100.00%
pEEE A BRI RHE b b S BOBAT A
ZRAEH X AR PR RTT . AR T
RERMCRE B VOO WL, 2B M. v KL%k,
gD TR G TR RS IR TP S
VMBI ARG DI eI mmds BRVE. HOl . TR 5. PERAOH

EHEFTUEE

= 2006 F 6 AR, REQARRZKREA 18,640.81 LT AR, BFVIIEM 1,520.38

LT AR, 818N 8.9%. ARREBRERTHIEN . B RS WFITI S, %P

BB 2B 31.75% % 17.35%, HAPMERITILEN S KES AR 810

e

A ATy

LR VPN E DD W NE T

2006 4£ 6 A 30 H 20054 12 A 31 A 20044 12 A 31 A

RER g i R b RER Lk
il 591,909 31.75% 531,191 31.03% 523,506 31.70%
(R4 323,348 17.35% 301,863 17.63% 348,432 21.10%
[ M= 201,585 10.82% 190,297 1.11% 187,110 11.40%
REUE . KA Al 252,415 13.54% 230,854 13.48% 203,544 12.30%
g%l 200,503 10.76% 193,428 11.30% 184,449 11.10%
AVLE 4 104,827 5.62% 91,924 5.37% 87,731 5.30%
A 38,304 2.05% 36,050 2.1% 36,059 2.20%
Sxill 112,153 6.02% 96,245 5.62% 46,518 2.80%
oAt 39,037 2.09% 40,191 2.35% 35,072 2.10%
AT SRR 1,864,081 100.00% 1,712,043 100.00% 1,652,421 100.00%
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BEPHLIG A R BERAT IS5 1
R I E AR

2006 4 6 30 H 20054 12 A 31 H 2004412 A 31 H
RE b REN b RE ik
Ml 543,831 34.68% 490,898 34.57% 497,317 36.10%
(RN -E 276,491 17.64% 255,460 17.99% 284,772 20.60%
3 M= 104,121 6.64% 96,390 6.79% 100,932 7.30%
REVE . SRA AL 233,357 14.88% 210,281 14.81% 186,942 13.50%
X TNIA 173,417 11.06% 165,396 11.65% 157,762 11.40%
VAEE A2 104,827 6.69% 91,924 6.47% 87,731 6.30%
HA 32,940 2.10% 30,089 2.12% 27,938 2.00%
il 96,440 6.15% 77,237 5.44% 32,079 2.30%
oAt 2,512 0.16% 2,290 0.16% 7,484 0.50%
AT SR 1,567,936 100.00% 1,419,965 100.00% 1,382,957 100.00%

RHEHEEPE

HE 2006 F 6 AR, KRR QAR A 18,6408 {ZTT AR B EFRIEM 1,520.38
LT AR , BIEH 8.9%, ARG A 2B EFMILLRN 77.5%; P ALK KEA 5,414.55
LR AR , B EFFRIEGM 184.52 LT ART, HEEA 3.5%, PAFTREEHMERAAIEL
RN 22.5%. FANEAB R LFARIGM 1.479.71 (LT AR, #EiEH 10.4%; 1

NG REER EFERIEM 247.37 2t AR ™, 1EIEA 6.5%.

ST IR % o2
LAY WN T

2006 4£ 6 A 30 H 20054 12 A 31 B 20044E 12 A 31 H

R dr b RER dr b KE e
AT LK 1,864,081 77.49% 1,712,043 76.60% 1,652,421 76.98%

fdf: o2 269,713 11.21% 225,026 10.07% 177,738 8.28%
N 541,455 22.51% 523,003 23.40% 494,041 23.02%
it 2,405,536 100.00% | 2,235,046 | 100.00% | 2,146,462 100.00%
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S ASDIR A SHE /S IRFIES

Hf7: HIJU AR
2006 #£ 6 H 30 H 2005412 A 31 H 2004412 H 31 H
KRB e d REA e d RER A Eb
AT G 1,567,936 79.48% 1,419,965 78.89% 1,382,957 79.74%
s WY 240,826 12.21% 195,311 10.85% 148,832 8.58%
NS 404,695 20.52% 379,958 21.11% 351,345 20.26%
it 1,972,631 100.00% | 1,799,923 100.00% 1,734,302 100.00%
55 WAL N DS A% 7 i 43 2
AL B AR
20064E6 H30H 2005412 H31H 20044E12 F31H
REA A Eb REA iy b REN At
Ei7g o) 308,387 76.20% 286,829 75.49% 240,640 68.49%
fEHF 2,212 0.55% 1,929 0.51% 1,441 0.41%
At 94,096 23.25% 91,200 24.00% 109,264 31.10%
& 404,695 100.00% 379,958 100.00% 351,345 100.00%
e () HAb E AR EW IR MBI LE PHHA N AN 2E 8%,
SLHARZK I

BE 2006 & 6 AFK, RHARTERETY 1643896 {258, BETEM

1,660.37 {z7T, #igA 11.2%, SEFHNZER 68.3%.

BT A 2k
FR: T TC AR
2006 £ 6 A 30 H 2005412 A 31 H 2004412 A 31 H
R b K50 =4 K50 dr bk
AR 1,643,896 68.34% 1,477,859 66.12% 1,378,760 64.23%
i 761,640 31.66% 757,187 33.88% 767,702 35.77%
Hit 2,405,536 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100.00%
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5 LR ST T Al 4
L FICART

200646 4 30 H 2005412 H 31 H 20044 12 A 31 H
R =g RN i kb R =]
YNEAOF 1,641,482 83.21% 1,475,821 82.00% 1,378,343 79.50%
HhTh 331,149 16.79% 324,102 18.00% 355,959 20.50%
it 1,972,631 100.00% 1,799,923 100.00% 1,734,302 100.00%
L RFERE

#ZE 2006 F 6 AR, SHEGFIBERITIGRM. FORERALRA, & 4585 %, EH

BERE e 24.1 %o

SRR 7

R PANEDIBTWNE

2006 4£ 6 H 30 H 2005412 H 31 H 2004412 A 31 H

RE b RE b RE b
5 bR 578,987 24.08% 475,764 21.29% 447,800 20.86%
TRAUF 5K 723,502 30.07% 684,824 30.64% 650,905 30.32%
IS LN E LA /e 1,103,047 45.85% 1,074,458 48.07% 1,047,757 48.82%
it 2,405,536 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 |  100.00%

R E

B E 2006 F 6 AR, KERERRSHN 1059.44 ZTART, ®REFARRED 33.67
ZTEART, BEKRKLEER 4.4% BEFRTE 049 MESR. BERVMBERSRESEN
99543 LT AR™, WEFRRED 25.97 LT ART, BELFKEEER 5.05%, B EFRTRE
0.62 NE D A SR EREEN 6401 ZTTART. BREERMD 7.70 ZT AR,

BELFREER 1.48%, B EFRTEO.17 MEDR.
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KHEBERRX SR

L FC AR

2006426 H30H 20054£12/J31H 2004412 A31H
R | WERE | R fHe | BEEE R G| R
BEA LY 99,543 | 93.96% | 5.05% | 102,140 | 93.44% | 567% 104,327 |88.3% | 6.02%
BeAMLAY 6,401 6.04% | 1.48% 7,171 6.56% 1.65% 13,830 | 11.7% | 3.36%
it 105,944 | 100.00% | 4.40% | 109,311 |100.00% | 4.89% 118,157 [100.0%| 5.50%

T (1) 35 %0 0B UEAE T B B A U0 A SR Bt i gl Hod D Rl LR, MIAAT AR P STk CddE, JF

VNP

(2) PEAR BRI L A HA R DA B < R LLZ A R S R A 57

S5 A LR DR DY b DX 454

L [ C AR

20064E6 H30H 2005412 H31H 20044E12H31H
RE ik WAELER R &b WAL R &b WA L2
b X 18,457 18.54% 5.22% 17,699 17.30% 5.50% 22,600 21.70% 7.20%
AAbHX 11,968 12.03% 8.84% 12,363 12.10% 9.40% 13,170 12.60% | 10.26%
R X 25,962 26.08% 3.19% 27,811 27.20% 3.90% 28,595 27.40% 4.21%
Hh g S b X 30,071 30.21% 6.39% 30,611 30.00% 6.90% 26,611 25.50% 6.13%
PEHBH X 13,085 13.14% 6.54% 13,656 13.40% 7.50% 13,351 12.80% 7.48%
&it 99,543 100.00% | 5.05% 102,140 | 100.00% 5.70% 104,327 | 100.00% | 6.02%
BE A B 2w kA DA T S50
. HH AR
200646 A30H 20054E12H31H 20044E12H31H
KE | WRIEEER | RE Hr b WA e R b WA e
il Ml 34,856 | 38.86% | 6.41% | 32,969 | 35.58% 6.76% 32,218 33.37% 6.48%
(R -E 23,162 | 25.83% | 8.38% | 25,443 | 27.46% 9.96% 26,344 27.29% 9.25%
53 M= 11,596 | 12.93% | 11.14% | 12,763 | 13.77% | 13.24% 13,453 13.93% 13.33%
REIE . R Al 6,624 7.39% | 2.84% 6,665 7.19% 3.17% 6,588 6.82% 3.52%
S INIA 7,176 8.00% | 4.14% 7,759 8.37% 4.69% 9,729 10.08% 6.17%
2 4,312 481% | 4.11% 4,627 | 4.99% 5.03% 5,564 5.76% 6.34%
HH, 1,717 1.91% | 521% 2,226 2.40% 7.40% 2,569 2.66% 9.20%
il 235 0.26% | 0.24% 215 0.24% 0.28% 72 0.08% 0.22%
oAt 6 0.01% 0.26% 0 0.00% 0.00% 6 0.01% 0.08%
AT AT | 89,684 | 100.00% | 5.72% | 92,667 | 100.00% | 6.54% 96,543 100.00% 6.98%
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KERERRE RE8

A HATRARMD
200656 H30H 20054E12 H31H 20044E12H31H
R a7 e JRAE LhER R a7 e WA L2 R a7 e WRAE R ER
NGIRAG 95,120 89.78% 5.10% 98,669 90.26% 5.76% 108,005 91.41% 6.54%
A NGERK 10,824 10.22% 2.00% 10,642 9.74% 2.03% 10,152 8.59% 2.05%
&t 105,944 100.00% 4.40% 109,311 100.00% 4.89% 118,157 100.00% 5.50%
55 LA IR DYk & 7 451
Hh: BAJCART
20064E6 30H 20054E12 31 H 20044E12 31 H
R e Iz S RE At TRAE LR R At TRAE LR
NGIN & 89,684 90.10% 5.72% 92,667 90.73% 6.53% 96,543 92.55% 6.99%
NS 9,859 9.90% 2.44% 9,473 9.27% 2.49% 7,784 7.45% 2.22%
aiF 99,543 100.00% 5.05% 102,140 | 100.00% 5.67% 104,327 | 100.00% 6.02%
55 A AURIAS N A B3k - A
WAL, HAGARM
200656 H30H 20054E12 H31H 20044E12H31H
R a7 b AR R a7 b AR KM >4 JAE R
1548 3,930 39.87% 1.27% 3,837 40.50% 1.34% 3,608 46.35% 1.50%
fFH+% 267 2.71% 12.08% 228 2.41% 11.82% 218 2.80% 15.13%
HiAb 5,662 57.42% 6.02% 5,408 57.09% 5.93% 3,958 50.85% 3.62%
& 9,859 100.00% 2.44% 9,473 100.00% 2.49% 7,784 100.00% 2.22%
BRARDEER
#1E 2006 F£ 6 AR, EHZB R E D XIRERIANT REHEE 1,007.88{Z T AR,

REFARBD 2438 TART, TREALEEX 4.19%, REFATHEOALBIPESR. BN

T RE

£ p4
TAIG

WA 96519 LT ARM, REFRRED 169 LT ARM, FREFKELEE

4.89%, B EEFRTHE 0.57 NESH. BEXTRNREET 2.617.88 LT ARF, BLEEXK
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D 222.60{ZTT AR, KRR E EMEFLLS 10.88%, B EFR TR 1.83 MET R

SHEAFRERR

R B AR
20064FE6 H30H 20054E12 H31H 20044E12H31H
KRB e RE e K g4
E# 2,042,960 84.93% 1,847,772 82.67% 1,611,936 | 75.10%
K 261,788 10.88% 284,048 12.71% 424,606 19.78%
W 42,082 1.75% 45,573 2.04% 61,289 2.86%
Al 5E 43,479 1.81% 44,550 1.99% 32,931 1.53%
S 15,227 0.63% 13,103 0.59% 15,700 0.73%
Hit 2,405,536 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% | 2,146,462 | 100.00%
AR B 100,788 4.19% 103,226 4.62% 109,920 5.12%
BE AL 8 7= o IR
s HJTTC AR
2006 4 6 J 30 H 2005412 A 31 H 2004 %12 A 31 H
R iy b R g4 RE =4
EH 1,625,776 82.42% 1,430,210 79.46% 1,227,414 70.77%
Kk 250,336 12.69% 271,504 15.08% 408,571 23.56%
/&1 40,917 2.07% 44,056 2.45% 57,656 3.32%
Al e 41,760 2.12% 42,852 2.38% 29,787 1.72%
2k 13,842 0.70% 11,301 0.63% 10,874 0.63%
&t 1,972,631 100.00% 1,799,923 100.00% | 1,734,302 | 100.00%
AR A 96,519 4.89% 98,209 5.46% 98,317 5.67%
5P
i HHICART
2006 4 2005 4 2004 4
6 H30H 12H31H 12H31H
S R AR 1,467,863 1,323,444 1,150,115
(SEGITE iR 2,044,461 1,911,921 1,756,312
K " o A Ak 32,157 26,317 32,743
K& A 339,763 313,703 296,246
1E NI 4 168,780 128,392 107,061
At 4,053,024 3,703,777 3,342,477

2 . AR R LA R
B AELL RS
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#E 2006 F 6 AR, KHZEFHFAX 40,530.24 LT ART, BREFARIEK 3,492.47 12
TART, 88 9.43%. Hf, WRAFR. NRAERDHIEK 1,502.59 {ZTT AR TH 1,586

- ORbEE NIk

#E 2006 % 6 A%, REARTHERRGN 2876575 ZTART, BAEAIHEM

3,446.97 12T, RN 13.6%, SHERZDEN 71%.

EIREES NI ]
L FIC AR

2006 %€ 6 7 30 H 20054£ 12 A 31 H 2004412 A 31 H
KRB dr kb KE s RKRE iy kb
AR 2,876,575 70.97% 2,531,878 68.36% 2,093,272 62.63%
Hh 1,176,449 29.03% 1,171,899 31.64% 1,249,205 37.37%
it 4,053,024 100.00% 3,703,777 100.00% 3,342,477 100.00%
P M am
L XA BTW N AV
2006 4 2005 4£ 2004 £
6 H30H 12H31H 12H31H
DR A R 28,812 28,778 27,387
JBEAA 2 357,641 233,842 205,351
JBEARR G A ih 386,453 262,620 232,738

2006 FF E¥ 5, AMTO2EHREESEEREDGENLITERR, BE, MERIMNR
RERMRATEN EHINER(H R)FIEREARBEEFENLITEBR(A R). 152 M4H—

S IMIRERE= 17(1),
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W R AR 22 B 1R O

AL FTIC AR

AHE

Bk mA  EE Lam mmp SR
Hﬁz: JN I\ &&E N VA %?ﬁg IZI‘[’-I‘
/N A AR [N @ AnME =
Btk

2006 £ 1 A 1 H4&Hi 209,427 3,978 5,987 5109 12,585 (1,380) (1,864) 233,842
AR - - 19,024 19,024
RAT LB 44,412 72,567 - - 116,979
PRI BER AT 2,108 - (2,108)
PR — e 2% SO e it 4% 42 - 4291  (4,291)
AT A il 2 1 B)) - - (10,574) (10,574)
JBe ) 53 i - - (1,375) (1,375)
AR FAT H 25 - - (255) (255)
oAt - (2) 2
2006 £ 6 A 30 H 4% 253,839 76,545 8,095 9,398 23,837 (11,954) (2,119) 357,641

FERIA AR

AR, R T EERINTH SR N R PR

AL IC AR

2006 #£ 6 H 30 H

20054 12 H 31 H

AT 230,434 195,234
TP R B 255,779 212,987
T HIIE 115,686 101,195
AT RS A5 I A v K HAth 422,297 386,346

it 1,024,196 895,762
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AR S IR BT = F IR FE M 51655

BT %
FEREFIR WEkanE | 20064E6 H30H | 20054£12 H 31 H 20044 12 A 31 H
PEARTE LR (%) >8 12.4 10.4 10.0
DR T L (%) 24 10.6 8.1 8.5
A %) AR >25 32.0 48.9 35.3
i >25 458 87.4 78.6
et 5L 1 (%) IN:IT <75 57.2 51.7 59.6
HhT <85 64.7 70.4 67.9
AN RETHE (%) - 4.2 4.6 5.1
R4 7 75 25(%) 260 87.4 80.6 68.0
B R P B LA (%) <10 3.9 47 34
BT R B (%) <50 19.3 25.6 25.4

WA ETER 1A IR T W B R R SAIFIXALE AT E, W FEAER LW LIERR (MLl =T#ED

ERFH. RATHIETEFFIRIERYE = 2006 XN E T H o

RAFTER

].H

RTIREPERES 2004 F 2 F 23 BWmH HURITEARERERMEY (R
RITWRBEERZRRC[2004]5% 2 5) HEMEERARER. B 2005 Fi2, SHZR
RBSMHBN CRERTVEEEEZRSNRTRT TRBIVRITHIHNEEREKITE
= ITEIR AR (RIS%[2004]58 374 5), iFHEMIANEEA. #HE 2006 F 6 AR,
SHEARTRERA 1240%, REFREF 1.98 MESR; LEAFTER 10.63%, KL

FAREF 255 PMETR

#HE 2006 F 6 AR, SKEIRAZFEH 4.520.27 27T, BEFAREM 1.257.90 27T B
B, BOERFE 3.876.98 {27T, B EFRIEM 1,.347.28 {27t SEMINNEE =S
31,636.59 {27t (AREWiHNE), BEFARIEM 3,704.70 {Z7T. KETHIHXEEAZRKA

385.49 27T, NN 4,818.68 {Z7T.
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L FTC AR /%

W H 2006 46 30 H | 20054 12 31 H B %
RO BAEL (@) 387,698 252,970 134,728
VIR (b) 452,027 326,237 125,790
IBUR % 7= () 3,163,659 2,793,189 370,470
MR HEA (d) 38,549 27,025 11,524
AT LR (%) [e=al(c+d*12.5)] 10.63% 8.08% 2.55%
BARFEER (%) [f=b/(c+d*12.5)] 12.40% 10.42% 1.98%
7 SR
Hu X 7> ER R
2006 4F 6 H 30 H LV ANNEY DTN
o P WA Wi 8 fm
HALE A 45,078 8,549 845 4 54,476
SIIISEON 4,371 6,189 152 (586) 10,126
kg5 B L 3k (18,920) (3,618) (687) 32 (23,193)
ENE A 27,584 11,091 297 (550) 38,422
TP PRAE (B 2 ) Bl (5,932) 935 121 - (4,876)
)3 A 21,824 12,284 455 (550) 34,013
P (10,751) (1,672) (142) 203 (12,362)
U IR 2 AR AR 4) (2,623) - - (2,627)
e INE| 11,069 7,989 313 (347) 19,024
Vo3 as 4,268,205 993,715 199,169 (234,156) 5,226,933
53 45 (3,917,105) (897,042) (191,882) 165,549 (4,840,480)
2005 £ 6 H 30 H Hpr: HIJCARD
o WX s o SR
R BN 40,434 7,380 844 - 48,658
SIZANSUION 4,860 2,712 449 - 8,021
Ml 25 R B Bl (17,046) (3,358) (596) - (21,000)
DA 25,612 6,710 687 - 33,009
IR AEIC TSI, 3 (6,591) 1,805 210 - (4,576)
ZINEPSE 19,744 8,882 952 - 29,578
P (9,472) (1,228) (160) - (10,860)
DB AR N AR R 9 (2,293) - - (2,284)
A 10,281 5,361 792 - 16,434
Pan 0 oae 3,803,989 966,225 186,982 (214,390) 4,742,806
an: iy (3,584,086) (871,046) (178,853) 153,799 (4,480,186)




2006 F £, PEARMNDAZTEBRITREZNEEXE, SRAEZNWAMFE

BACRIR, IR AP R A R R R T L 78%, S$FIEA L 57%; MR 2%

HRRR M S — P EREEXE, RMKE~EREAR~SHN 18 %, FFASLER

41%o

Mk 555 4R

2006 &£ 6 H 30 H

L FIC AR

AFRITWE | SNBSS | BES | BERERT TR FHofh A B
HHLE A 26,602 16,881 11,376 19 250 (656) 4 54,476
AEFLEN 5,029 4,147 (1,471) 1,324 198 1,536 (637) 10,126
b 55 KA B (8,588) (11,877) (2,876) (224) (103) (406) 681 (23,193)
EOLFE 21,565 8,892 6,006 1,117 342 452 48 38,422
T PRAE (0 2R Bl 3k (4,202) (720) 1 (5) 6 44 (4,876)
)] S 17,419 8,299 6,052 1,110 388 1,295 (550) 34,013
Viniidas 1,813,042 637,280 2,692,140 | 18,079 17,153 84,279 | (35,040) | 5,226,933
PEAE S 416 782 31 6 2 953 2,190
200546 H 30 H Bhr: AHCART
AFBATWS | AANBTWS | Bk | BBREUT | RRLSE Fotth A Bk
TV ON 25,744 16,021 7,056 63 183 (409) - 48,658
HEFE A 4,135 2,558 746 335 46 243 (42) 8,021
b 55 K PR 2 (7,876) (10,148) (2,680) (195) (88) (301) 288 (21,000)
A 20,548 7,995 4,362 201 140 (483) 246 33,009
T PRAE (0 2R Bl 3k (5,471) 819 19 1 (2) 58 (4,576)
ZEPSY 15,184 9,029 4,452 203 134 576 - 29,578
Pan i e 1,658,718 603,891 2,399,377 15,159 12,398 77,644 (24,381) | 4,742,806
BEAE S 342 665 32 4 25 698 1,766

12006 71 /71 HE, AL A il b6 B2 O BT TIET o FrlI A b # B Mol L ilrbg 7k
PILENFYF Rttty ZHEA 7 iy KRR BEI FE R %o 72006 1 A 1 5], AHEEPRHA]

TS HT VI AT BT T VI FIFA 2 A FEBERE DIl TFAREIE A i AT 2R H o

Z IS ) T RIS 2y T REAF 1Y IR 25 5527 el 48 ML 2 T2 T XS 567 R 1719 5 P i
o LULZ CIRIEFTHI A B IED X 2005 4 6 /1 30 FHIFRZETLH H)7) i 17 ST R s o
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k.55 [B] B
ML ARAT V55

AT SEEBRIRIT RERTANRR =AU, AR 27 PERMBXPEI X
M, 51,400 RESMUEITBITRE 46,900 ROZHBERITF T REBUSZ KR, RIEEKL

M2 R ELRMRS . RN, ERTEEATGREERENESNS.
AN

RANFREATARRAR FRENEEER. K. BoKR. 58, BH. tE8%

e
Bt

N EIME R~ M E. USBREES.

KA BRIFE KNTREMARBEINEHENIE, ARTRARGERESRT ZF
RIS . BZE 2006 F 6 AR, FERTART AT FRRE 11,421 LT AR,
FE EEERIEM 1,467 ZT AR, BKEHR 14.7% £2REmMIE “ hRTHNEHAN 8.2
%; RATRRY REREPH, XXEUNIFEERENMBSER, FLAESSITIERIN
BRBNEHNE, MREARMFASLF. BE 2006 F 6 AXK, BFATARDLEERK
RE12,367 (LT AR, EEEFARIEM 1,409 (ZTARM, HBKEKRA 128%, HEE=HEHM
VPR HZNIMANN 6.7 % ARFARD LB FERREBKNEN, RITMATIHINHR
SRR NE, BHEFRTTHHRE. 8E 2006 F 6 AR, BERTIHINDASFERRT
176.7 2% 7T, LEESFARIEM 12.9 (25T, AEHSRIBHRNTHHIANA 21.1%; KT

ROZIFINCUFZME, RRFRF@REFT, FIMERZABELFSHNTINS, [RE#HIMH R

YO AR GRS, A RARAT . BORMERAT A RARAT . AR RARAT . SRR ARAT . R R ARAT L Sl
AL BRANEERAT KGR W55 an], FEESRAE . MBS AR, MBI,
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ARG K. ARIREHR, BRTINTABERKRE 414.4 {257, tEEFREM 12.8
LET, A2 REMYBWPNTHHHAA 33.5%. BIMIHING LB ERRE 270 {ZETT,

NE) B ER &8 370.4 {2 E T,

LM AR TR G G AT AR

2006 £ 6 H 30 H 20054 12 H 31 H
AR 11,431 9,959
ShTHTANRT 3,569 3,539
mra AR 15,000 13,498

2006 FF E¥ 5, KAMTRAMRMREZPANLS, RRRRARVSELEMEEMNIEE.
BENMBSDTENER/RRZA. ERIBENEKNEH, MRMRES LS, Ma5m= &)
MEE, I R mi R XHE; REAINKEIT S AITHEA HERIT (EE) FRA 8 (F
MOPIREE” ). PIREFRERARAE (B ‘PIREF ). FIREFRZEEGRRE (8

MOHRIRIRER”) . PIREARKRABRXF (B “PREEARRK" ) SVBEHNLSEME, =7

aaaFBETSE ], BNt S mierEmelHE, BRARVENFSERER
B,
LHATLGR DAL A (AR
200646 A 30 H 2005412 A 31 H

AR 12,392 10,979

ShmTE AR 6,249 6,141

EmiTA AR 18,641 17,120
SR A E KITEMVBLEEEUERXSMIBERARSN R, EBREBITH

BHER, URBRGERm A BENMMENES. AfhElSsEl5Esl. SRR,
2006 £ 5-6 A £ RHIMFERIEKER. #Z 2006 £ 6 AR, BRTARMEBVMBERR
A 17233 LT AR™, L EFREM 1827 {ZTT AR ; SMHE&RANEI L ERFR

REA 98.7 (2%, tEEFRED 1.812%7T,
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B 1987 Fig, NMTERBMEANR T ARDT. EZ=ZRmBIERET. BITNKITE
HIRE. EUAETENLRE, ATEELR—IPTEN. &M BEREIEINERER.

HBRSNE PR SN RIE. EFNEERS.

RESEHSMAMHLS ATRELSFLEFEIAESRE. ARlEeRE. &
BRAEMITUEE. 2EHFRESTEE. RREASEE. SREIMIBREE (QF) &#
EHRE. U FSEE. EREASRE. AFLSHESREUAL T LESTEE. aBER
MBREE (QDI) FEIMRRAESFREFHAKEE S M. RIEFREE TIRER. TEHE.

REUEMEAMAESRE, REFESEMITINRE. REESRERRESE M.

2006 F E¥F, FEEMRELSNAEERRSAERLE, RTER, SRR EZEAT
MBAINR, WEeIFRE. S LE, EFFRELITEUSHRT TRERENLR.
#HZE 2006 F 6 AR, ATIEESHEMRE 2100 LT AR , LEFUIEKE 20%, B

G AITRIEEEETE 280 (ZTART, BEEKE 50%.

2006 £ E¥EF, RTESREIMIBREE (QFINERNIEFRERE. RERE. £
F&. AHRESFEEVSHTERHIBE THNRE, RARKHNFE QFI FEEIRIT.

BirEBERAZMBELSE A TEREERRZBEBEVSEE THAOFIZERIL. H
AEMIEIM TR B HHOML. BRE. FAIERAE. ®RE. REF~ M, REXNER
HERLRGMERSEIN, RITHRDEMMIASZRIEIEEK. BRERMNRIFLS, HE

TEPARBERNEELMET K.

2006 F L34, SRHHANEEFERNS 4.204.9 {2555T, BEK 12.6 %, HfiE

NTHBEFRERN S 2,699 {Z%7T, BEIEK 10.7 %; HIMTHERRFREE LS 1,.50512
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X7, FEEEK 16.2%, 2006 £ L35, SERKLFARRESENZM, BRRZRE L
SFEREEEK, EPRERZ I SEIEREE 223%; SEFTZFXREAERENZM,
ErR 7R FEEEE. 2006 F LFF, KEHXRERRFRZMELS 291.7 {2557T
FLEEK 13.3%. HASBARTHEREFRRZEEWLS 131.4{2%x, RIMTHIEERFRR S
w55 1991 2%t JMNITRIEINCIRERW S5 47.7 {25%5T, BELIEK 83.5%; ARMIRE
W55 373127T, BELIEK 109.5%. JNITHRIEEFrRIERL S 25.8 {2£7T, FELIBK 27.4%;

MIEE AR S 127.6 {ZTART, BEEIZK 192.3%.

SRV b 4 S0 55 (CEVR ST
HE 20064£6 /130H 20054£6 130H
b 55 4,204.9 3,733.9

2006 F E¥ 5, RITMATXNRGBE =M ENL S =mleFiEaa M, fEH
BT ‘HOemiE. #OCFE. #ORME. REXENB S—RIEFRBATHRESED

MEm, R THOERRI THEEELSERE~aikS. XEFREFRERITE

n“ﬁ

PrEE LR ZMATBMRFNNY, #H—PHE T ATEFRERE L FREEN T

=i

NN S

PAERLFEZEATHIBRDIAIRERFNEEDATR. PARK. WEEEM
RITFEEANS TSRS .

EEER  EHE 2006 F 6 AR, BERTARMEEFERRIMA 15738127, Lt EF
RIBHN 1,.574.4 {27T; EEBERNETNTIHNENL 10.2%, L EFREFH 01 PED
R WARITIINTEEERN 316.9 2%T, L EFRMD 8.2 2%, AEMERMAE P
WIRHERLY N 49 8% RIMIMEE TN 696.8 (LT (AP ARMEEFR89.7127T),

EE EFARIEM 19.1 2%, A HEEFRTENEZRE N ARTCREZBAHRILE,
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MRT Wi FARTLEBRFHENTY, £ERIINTEEERMEE.

U EFKMAGH CRfL: ACIE NIRRT

2006 % 6 A 30 H 20054 12 H 31 H
AR 15,827 14,254
ShmPTE ART 8,015 8,002
I RE NN 23,842 22,256

PMAGETR BE 2006 F 6 BR, MATPNALTRREN 4,047 Zt AR, L EFR
1N 247 12T, BEREEERREA 3,084 (ZTART, L EFREM 216 ZTTART. 5
SMILE D AR 171 {25 7T, e EFARRED 6.212%5T.

2006 £ EH5F, AITMARN “BEZR AE—mBHNEEA D AEERZRNEHNE,
HEETRAERBETYREFIN ‘GEE —FEEIN ‘REE" “FEEHMRFT~M0;
g T SEEGEEEFFREVHAREE. BE 2006 F 6 AR, BRTEAR ‘BER

L HBEEFULSHNREEBY 7,000 41, SRR 60%0A L.

2006 4 6 H AL NGEH i

EBHK AEHRK ERFREf
2006 £ 6 4 30 H 79.07% 4.50% 16.43%
200512 A 31 H 78.97% 5.35% 15.68%

T (1) Al EEAFEA AR 2E DTN A 22583
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MEEE 2006 £ E¥F, RTEERNEMHOHEET “FREMSKERS AR,
BRI F—RFSFENEM P OBY 250 R, ATEFIREVRER FRH MRS . LT —
RINELER. Gl REERRSSCEVA MR, UERSLR. RSFEIMARTEBIEEY
Frahe AT “HIREN TRMOHE, BHATEIRERMHIZE. PASRBEFERMIT,
RIREE . PIREFR. PIRIESFS 20 RBERAMK, F “FIREY SEETLREAHEF.

IsRIRM MY BAAE R, BADTEMERELBEET 2300 A, HHiUr 900 Agkfs et
WA DTG IE o

RAT Rk 55

R TAZPRHFEENENTHEL R ERIEF. RIEFNREBEIMNZHFRIT IR

3R

2006 F E¥F, RTRPEHSHRZERRITREABRLE (RBS) SEMNFERAFL
FRITAZERIE, MERTRLSEEEENMNEEE, RERITFRERRZEMENE,
RELBESWRITRFUFEA . ERITRITKIRIT R FERERA 2.6 ZTART, BELEEEK
51.4%.

#HE 2006 F 6 AR, HEATRITRITKIBARTEIE R 9463.38 773Kk, RKIHF 703
Bk, PIRIEAFR 109 55K, Al EFEEK 15.2%, 12.5%HM 561%. MBS
LI 104.82 {ZTT AR, BEEEK 16.6%. KIEARMREHGHEI 651 ZTART,
R LbE K 47.7%.

2006 fF 5, ATHREMAIRITRUSZ=mEFE, LTRSS HNKINGERNTT
HEARMEIER-PRETR, FIRAE JCB BXBEAKR. FRILKRERAF. PREEHKZ
&M, ANSREGREVEVEERAHEL T KEZEIESRA R KEPHABRKE RS
B, ZEFREL, BT REFNTHER.
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BENATKIMAR TR ERH B O Lo ARimD

200646 H30H 200546 H30H
B R 650.9 440.8

AL

FTNEEHERESNRENR S, BNARBENARPFREEREMERS . £INC
AeWEHE, AMTEENEILRITRG TR

RTHR RV SHEARINGRS. KHHH. FTAFRNEFEREUE,; X5 ULFHE
SNCER G SNCEIZ S &L SNCEINE G SIMBRSARITAF RS AN
7 RERBRXHF. FMTHEHRERFENIHIARALAENVSHNEEEAR, £EFM
[ B R B 55 & XU AL T RTHESE Bl 2

MmN FRMBNENERTEERSFMNE 2 —- EFKRK, RITHEHEL T AR
TRASE. ISC—RZHE. ANZHHR. ZH. BE. FREH. RITEHARTINCE
M 5EFZUEE, ARTLERERNENTZEHEREMR. tE, PEARRIT. F
ERESMERINCERRXEM T BIRITHA DB RINEY W FERETINE, KT
BAEHFEFDRBFFINEM I ZHRMERANIRT. ATRSFARELSFMNE, B
FREREFMNIRITEN. FrEBIALXLRTAESEFNAEES~RMRZRIIESZH
MBEF. 200 6 FE¥F, MMANNTHRS, ATRBRFHEEmALS. fHH%
FRT7T ARMAREHI S BREELIEE, ANHNERNEMTZNERED, #
ETARMEMMEEM MBS ‘B STEEM M. ‘R’ BUr-miRdl. dxya
AR PNEMER, MMTENHERT ‘OFEa#”. “EHER FEYm. RTHERN OC

BE PAINCEMRI~RESHFREATLMEMNE “MARN %7 ‘ERNRERY
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kg TS
RERGEAMTEEREWFZ— BE2006F 630 H, RMTEEABE—HNEREER

N
SH——LEESZFMNTHHMS 37%, RENELLHLB.
FAREHLSS

RE BN ATEB BRI T AR, ATHERRES 65872, PREEEE
BEBRURTY —REEESREPBITL—. HE 2006 F 6 Ak, MEEBMENT
302 R, HABEBHT 287 R, WHAXT 14K, BT | R; BIMERNLATM%
B 454 81, MESHETHSTHREMEESEE PALLE FRELAN SRS
MR . 2006 F FE, REESKIETRERERIFENTIRERASN SITEN, #—%
5K T RS G TF IR T HA AR, 2006 F F4E, iREESIVSFIETA ART
4570125t (MERDRIBERRRE), FIELEK 14.5%.

2006 4 EHIE, SNEEFIE N IR E SRR B KRN B B R S R 1
K, Bl mmRE. TREASN. BATHER. S5TRIFNSTIRE, PREE %
FERFNERSEK, SEERMILE, SREAKSE A, FHERABRARK, b
RERFIERIARE, BRARA EREETHEL

T SRR, BHBTHIL. BE 6 BK, BAFERREN 6509.94 {2357,
B EER LT 1.9%, SHEEFERRNYN, ERDBERBRIIIG, THSPiH—
BB, MERBERD 0.2%; ENERLELEAFINGE, PRELSENMLEREEAS,
MERREE, PRI RESEK. RESTTHHREINF. EEELRI TR
FHGNEE—S, EEERTERANSTHEEES.

2006 % b4 E BB BBEEHE B AR SNTHASWA, HTEXARTLS

TSRS EENRS. ARTERT 2006 F£ EFFRHIEK 0.1%. ARTEARLZF
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WEREFESHA, WEERK 60.3%. # A 2006 F 6 JK, FAEANRMEBURS 1 E s 5
PLEHI S 236 /5. 2006 £ 3 B, ARBRWARGER L, HARMI SR T — ML
MERES, AATBARMUSHH-—PLREEEM. ARTPMAXZXERSHNEL, 7
ZEPRETEMREERIEETRL. AREBRPFASHTNEEDEREN, MEIE
KEFEMBEB R R REERARAIRAKRNS, BEFLESRRTmE]RSE.

B RAT LSS

PIRERFEFERTETERINEENBEF A, £EIKAE 30 RMENE. FIRE
Pre—RARBRRBFRITEZ WA 7 EPrEEM BN 2 IR BIRIT.

2006 £ £, PIREFRSLIFB ST ART 11.10127T, BEEEK 446 %. 2006
FEFF, PREFURR/BEBEELIENMANAERSS THERITHF 6 4 IPO LHIA,
ERMHEEREAHTIDERERTR 28.5%. HIREFRE 2006 F_EHFHR AT L

SHASEMATHN LETREHESE —%. FREFBIPREFRERBEASEEZGRL
A (R “PIRRIE) REFTZNAFEERS . BE 2006 F 6 AR, PRREETERE
REEENEBRFHAN 268.5 (27T, 1 2005 FERIEGM 15 28T, BRI 5.9%. &
e ETTE, PRERBEAEEY 46 HIHBIEKR, #i-ER 140 28T, NEEE
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PIREFFESBRAR (B “PIREPRESS ) F 2002 £ 3 A, RERKEFA
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S5FRAIFIREBHEFEHEE.

RIREE R X PIREAASFSRERER AT (FR “PIREEAAF") AFAKZELRE
ERY PR A 55 o

2006 F E¥5F, ARARKRIVFIHAEBREBWA 6.48 28T, SHFESTITEAR

M 3.88127T, EIELIEK 189%, WHRKIFETEAFRITREUSFRELREIFFHKRE.

BORPNKIE > H WA TG
2006 4 6 30 H 20054 12 A 31 H 20054 6 30 H
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AT BTN ~mmis, PREERET 2006 FEABRMRESETIEIRKE. £
WARTERSFZWTERE. BNEEEMFREN ‘BEEMN ERESE, S
T—RIMEG EfriRkIT . 2006 F L35, ATHEEIMNS, FIREFRKIIE T BF
FRIEBRNE 32BN, FELPERIIHE, FRF=FRILS. BT H—DRAFIULR
17« RAEIRITRARBE W 55 = W 2B B SR IRIRAI IV S5 BK ), 2006 £F 6 B, HIRKER

e il T ARIREREIARG S1RRNTFHRES, FHREEAF U FSHERERE T HHERR,

& B R

RTRMDINAREIE SRR AL AITARREBROER . 2006 F£ L35, KITEEH
RIEREZEUFFIFRREZEEF ML Bir. i TEREERSE. M LRITHFES.
EFEHELRGBMASPURRFIEXR THMEZR. ANE T HTAERNHNERH LR

UF EBMRESH R ONEMREERIE. T ERNEAFTENAR, BITRRE
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v ZEOMEEANKEEMETE. T BERRNE DEHR, XRFATHRE. ZREM
SIFMER. T BEERSCHER LI AT B & SR IEE B IZBEPULAE, R
RTAREE. NEFEANTEZNENEENE, EATREFEEETE, LIHE
ERESIUE AARO. BEELFURL. T BEENENRSXENEHIERAITRS

BN SERANBERSEEIKFHEBANEEEMTE.
ivy=gd

G NREERATEERMPEENRS, REFNKKEEZATIHRERBERIRE
RMEZERIL. 2006 £ L35, MMTHE—LPRENREESXN, MURERTEH, BHER
ERTRE, RERBEIVSHERRERRLE.

REEHERNE  ATEESRATERRBERZRS, EEETRNABEHZERS
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i XU
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FTEEFANEHREA2A=1"EERT: (1) EREAZIHE; (2) MERAXKE
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FITH R THFHEET PD (BAHR) MZ PERTFRREANIRFHET TIE. #ZE 2006
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2006 F ¥ 5F, KRTEL T RPRERT AXRIFEIEFHITT T EEER, &7 &H
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- 74,437 14,974 5,610 51,950 12,849 2,053 161,873

- 1,894,676 626,541 504,578 971,461 384,430 98,500 4,480,186
40,453  (1,636,947) (11,987) (74,823) 170,479 967,589 807,856 262,620
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Important Notes

The Board of Directors of Bank of China Limited (the “Bank™) and its directors ,the Board of Supervisors and its supervisors, the
senior management of the bank warrant that there are no fraudulent disclosures, misleading statements or material omissions in

this report, and that they will be individually and jointly responsible for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the report.

The Board meeting held on 29 August 2006 reviewed and adopted the text and summary of the 2006 Interim Report. 16 directors
were required to attend the meeting, with 16 present at the meeting. 16 directors exercised the right of voting, and 5 supervisors of

the Bank participated in the meeting without voting right.

The 2006 interim financial statements under PRC Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards have
been reviewed by PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified Public Accountants Limited Company (“PWC”) and

PricewaterhouseCoopers according to the Chinese and international review standards respectively.

Board of Directors of Bank of China Limited

Chairman Xiao Gang, President Li Lihui, Vice President in charge of Accounting Function Zhou Zaiqun and General Manager in
charge of the Accounting Department Liu Yanfen undertake that the financial statements in the interim report are true and

complete.



Financial Highlights (The report is prepared in accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards for Enterprises and the

Accounting Systems for Financial Institutions.)

At 31 December

Increase/decrease from 1 January

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 2004 2006 10 30 June 2006
Total assets 5,226,933 4,742,806 4,270,443 10.21%
Incl.: loans, net 2,317,408 2,151,893 2,071,693 7.69%
Total liabilities 4,840,480 4,480,186 4,037,705 8.04%
Incl.: Customer deposits 4,053,024 3,703,777 3,342,477 9.43%
;(;31 equity attributable to shareholders of the 357,641 233,842 205,351 52.94%
Net assets per share (RMB) 141 1.12 1.10 25.89%
Adjusted net assets per share (RMB)' 1.40 111 1.09 26.13%
Half year ended 30 Half year ended 30 Year ended 31 Increase/decrease from first half
June 2006 June 2005 December 2005  of 2005 to first half of 2006
Operating profit 38,422 33,009 64,744 16.40%
Gross profit 34,013 29,578 55,140 14.99%
Net profit 19,024 16,434 27,492 15.76%
Ig\Taei'; I;J/rl(z)f;lzeasfter deducting Non-recurring 18,314 NA 26.174 NA
- vi -
Eig?gs per share (EPS)” (fully diluted, 0.07 0.09 0.13 (22.22%)
EPS*? (weighted average, RMB) 0.09 0.09 0.15 0.00%
Net cash flow from operating activities (117,991) 21,615 13,883 (645.88%)

' The data are computed according to the Standards Concerning the Contents and Formats of Information Disclosure by

Companies Offering Securities to the Public (No.3) --- Contents and Formats of Interim Report (Revision 2003) (ZJGSZ [2003]

No.25) promulgated by China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC).
EPS is calculated according to the Compiling Rules on Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the Public

(No.9) --- Computation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and EPS promulgated by CSRC.

3 Weighted average share capital and net asset are caculated with the number of days as the weight.
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Increase/Decrease from 1

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004  January 2006 to 30 June
2006 (%)
Return on total assets (annualized) 0.87% 0.72% 0.61% 0.15
11 7 7
Rc.tturr.l on share capital’ (annualized, excluding 12.87% 12.52% 10.23% 0.35
minority interests)
Rgtun} on share capital (annualized, including 13.34% 13.16% 10.92% 0.18
minority interests)
Return on net assets” (annualized, fully diluted) 10.64% 11.76% 10.19% (1.12)
2 . .
Return on net assets” (annualized, weighted 14.99% 12 62% 10.04% 237
average)
Credit cost (annualized) 0.44% 0.50% 1.06% (0.06)
Non-performing loan (NPL) ratio 4.19% 4.62% 5.12% (0.43)
Capital adequacy ratio 12. 40% 10.42% 10.04% 1.98
Provision coverage ratio 87.44% 80.55% 68.02% 6.89
Half year ended Half year ended 30 Year ended 31 LS By it
30 June 2006 June 2005 December 2005 st half of 2005 to first
half of 2006 (%)
Cost to income ratio 35.90% 37.05% 39.30% (1.15)
Proportion of non-interest income 15.67% 14.15% 13.46% 1.52
Net interest margin 2.26% 2.31% 2.32% (0.05)

! The data are caculated according to the Guidelines on the Corporate Governance and Suppervision of State-owned Commercial

Banks (YJF [2006] No.22).
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Chairman’s Statement

Building a Stronger Foundation for Growth

The year 2006 will stand out as an important chapter in the history of Bank of China Limited. We became the first Chinese bank to
be listed in both international and domestic capital markets, which has laid a solid foundation for our vision of becoming a leading
international bank. I am therefore delighted to present to our constituents in the community and the investing public the performance
of the Bank in the first half of the year. For the six months ended 30 June 2006, we recorded an operating profit of RMB38,422
million and net profit of RMB19,024 million, representing a year on year increase of 16.40% and 15.76% respectively. Our ROAA
was 0.87% and ROAE was 12.87%, an increase of 0.15% and 0.35% over the end of 2005.

The satisfactory performance is the result of the Bank’s advance with time and reforms introduced over the last two years. We
completed the financial restructuring in 2004, and the introduction of strategic investors in 2005. On 1 June and 5 July 2006, our
shares were successfully listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the Shanghai Stock Exchange respectively, thus making us
the first Chinese bank to be listed in both international and domestic capital markets. We raised HK$86 billion through issuing H
Shares, a new world record in the amount of equity capital raised in an IPO by a financial institution and also the largest IPO in the
world over the last six years. The issue of A Shares on the other hand raised RMB20 billion, making it the largest IPO ever in the A
Share market to date. The listings have enhanced our influence in both the international and domestic markets, giving added splendor

to our century-old brand.

The successful IPOs have brought our reform to a new starting point and also fueled it with new impetus. They have offered a
historical opportunity for us to achieve sustainable growth and created a platform to take our businesses to new heights. The IPOs
have strengthened the Bank’s capital base, boosted the value of our brand name and market reputation, and will drive us to reform
further and improve our corporate governance. Becoming a listed bank is set to bring profound changes to our corporate value,
development strategy, organization structure, business flow, staff quality and management practices. It will not only sustain but will
also speed up our reforms. Our goal is to completely transform our operational system and substantively enhance our management

capabilities.

However, we are also fully aware that along with the listings will come unprecedented challenges and tests. The Bank will be subject
to both banking and securities regulatory requirements, stringent market discipline and demands to deliver higher returns. We are
committed to abide strictly by all relevant laws and regulations, disclose truthful, accurate and complete information in a timely

manner to assure transparency, and to nurture and strengthen our core competitiveness and create maximum value.

In the second half of 2006, we expect China to maintain a robust yet healthy economic growth. The effects of government
macro-adjustment measures will become more apparent. The Bank will closely monitor the development of the macro-economic
environment and take advantage of opportunities to achieve strong and steady growth while staying alert to the associated risks. We
will continue to improve our corporate governance and adhere to the “client-oriented and market-driven” principle. Our focus is on
enhancing profitability and sustainable growth so as to create maximum value for shareholders. By studying the setting up of
strategic business units along the lines of corporate banking, personal banking and treasury business, we will try to strengthen the
management of business lines so as to gradually establish a matrix management model commonly adopted by international financial
institutions. We will also continue to implement the IT blueprint to achieve centralized processing operations and set up uniform data
standards and operational procedures. The ultimate objective of these endeavors is to centralize transaction data processing and
facilitate the sharing of management information, thereby building a solid platform for improving the Bank’s overall competitiveness
and profitability, and at the same time enhancing internal control. It is also our commitment to build a strong corporate culture with
work ethics that encourages honesty and integrity, the drive for performance, a people oriented spirit, diligence and accountability
and the pursuit of excellence. We will cultivate shared values and common behaviour among our employees so as to pool their
wisdom and ability and provide the Bank with the lasting drive for a sustainable development.
6



To conclude, I wish to thank all our domestic and overseas customers, our shareholders, our peers and the public for your care and
support in the past, and hope to have your continuous support in the years to come. I would also like to thank members of the Board
of Directors, Board of Supervisors and Senior Management for your hard work and shrewd guidance. Last but not the least, my

gratitude goes to our entire staff for its industry and dedication, unswerving as always.

Xiao Gang (Signature)

Chairman

President’s Statement

In 2006, Bank of China Limited was successfully listed in both domestic and international capital markets, which demonstrated the
wide market recognition of our century-old brand name. On behalf of the management, I would like to thank investors and the

different constituents in the community for your confidence and support.

In the first half of 2006, both Chinese economy and the world economy registered rapid growth, which enabled us and our peers in
the domestic as well as international markets to share the opportunity and achievements arising from a booming economy.
Meanwhile, we have been vigilant to the challenges posed by volatility in both markets and the Government’s macroeconomic
adjustment measures in response to which we have taken further measures to improve our risk management to ensure a steady and

sustainable growth.

Led by the Board of Directors, Management diligently implemented the Bank’s strategy, made good progress in diverse areas and
achieved strong financial results. As at the end of June 2006, the Group’s total asset stood at RMBS5,226.933 billion, total liabilities
was RMB4,840.48 billion, and owners’ equity was RMB357.641 billion, representing an increase of 10.21%, 8.04% and 52.94%
respectively from the end of last year. Profit before tax and net profit were RMB34.013 billion and RMB19.024 billion respectively,
14.99% and 15.76% higher than in the same period last year.

The surge in our profit during the period was mainly driven by increase of net interest income and non-interest income, and better

control of credit cost and operating expenses.

Compared with the end of last year, our total customer deposits increased by 9.4% and total loans increased by 7.7%. Amount of

investment securities rose 19.1% and net interest income grew by 12.0%.
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The profit before tax of domestic operations climbed 10.5%, accounting for 63.1% of the Group’s total profit before tax compared
with 59.4% as at the end of 2005. Investment banking and insurance business reported a 145.7% surge in profit before tax and
accounted for 6.6% of the Group’s total profit against 3.2% in last year. Commercial banking, our core business, boasted a 10.8%

growth in profit before tax.

Non-interest income registered a 26.2% growth compared with the same period last year, with its contribution to the Group’s

operating profit rising from 14.2% to 15.7%. Net service fees and commissions rose 51.4%.

Our lending business grew steadily with total loans up 7.7% from the end of last year. Loans made by domestic operations increased
9.6%, and RMB loans grew 11.2%. Our risk management system functioned smoothly with continual improvement in credit asset
quality. Ratio of special mention loan dropped from 12.7% to 10.9% and impaired loan ratio decreased from 4.9% at the end of last

year to 4.4%. Coverage ratio increased from 80.6% to 87.4%.

The Group’s operating profit grew faster than operating expenses. Our cost-to-income ratio was successfully lowered from 37.05% to

35.9%; effective tax rate also decreased from 36.7% to 36.3%.

Management is fully aware that the listings have ushered in a new phase in the century old history of the Bank. We will remain alert
to challenges and operate prudently while actively developing our businesses. We will accelerate product innovation and improve
service quality, with a view to enhance our core competitiveness. Our risk management and internal control will continue to be
enhanced so as to safeguard against cases and incidents of fraud. We will keep a watchful eye on effective cost control and will push
forward with our organizational structure reforms, business processes integration and implementation of the IT Blueprint to achieve
centralization and cost savings in our operation. Human resources reform will also remain our key focus. We are committed to
building an effective incentive system and nurturing a corporate culture that encourages integrity, performance, responsibility,
harmony and excellence. We believe that with these initiatives and by offering more training, we will be able to substantially improve

the overall quality of our workforce.

Li Lihui (Signature)

President



Management Discussion & Analysis
Economic, Financial and Regulatory Environment

In the first half of 2006, the global economy achieved robust growth. The International Monetary Fund raised its global GDP growth
forecast to 4.9% for 2006, which will be the fourth consecutive year with growth rate over 4%. The Chinese economy continued to
maintain its trend of steady expansion, with a year-on-year GDP growth of 10.9% to RMB9,143.3 billion in the first half of 2006.
Commodity price remained stable. During the period, consumer price index rose by 1.3%, investments and exports grew especially
strongly, while consumption steadily increased. Foreign trade climbed 23.4%, 0.2 percentage point higher than the growth rate a year
carlier. Trade surplus reached USD61.4 billion. With strengthened macro-economic adjustment measures, the overheated factors in
the economy have shown signs of cooling down. Total retail sales of consumer goods increased by 13.3%, or 12.4% in real terms, 0.4

percentage points higher than the growth a year earlier. The Chinese economy continued to register fast growth and low inflation.

In the first half of 2006, China's financial market advanced smoothly with financial credits and money supply increased and more
financial innovations introduced. RMB interest rate and exchange rate remained stable. By the end of June, RMB had appreciated
0.94% against USD. The balance of all financial institutions’ RMB and foreign currency loans had increased by 14.34% to
RMB22.79 trillion, and the balance of deposits had surged by 17.19%.

2006 is the fifth year following China's entry to the WTO. With the country fully opening up its financial sector to the world by the

end of the year, competition among domestic and foreign financial institutions has become increasingly fierce.

The China Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC) promulgated a series of regulatory policies in the first half of 2006, covering
such areas as the adoption of unified regulatory rating system for to all commercial banks, promotion of corporate governance and
innovations, approval for banks to offer overseas wealth management services to customers, strengthening regulation of foreign
exchange risk management and guidance on loan issuance. These policies have significant bearing on the banking industry’s

profitability and business management.

The changing economic, financial and regulatory environment has imposed more stringent requirements on the operation and

management of commercial banks.

Our Target This year, the Bank will firmly push forward all its reforms in greater depth. While seizing the opportunities arising
from China's continuous economic growth, it will also vigilantly guard against potential risks for the financial sector caused by
conflicts in the inner working of the economy. It will accelerate the development of its risk management and internal control system,
consolidate management and business processes, speed up the implementation of its IT blueprint, and make efforts to improve
management capabilities. It will expedite product and service innovation to enhance its core competitiveness. Our goal is to ensure
the Bank develops in a comprehensive, coordinated and sustainable manner, thereby create greater value for shareholders, the Bank,

our clients and employees.

Financial Statement Analysis
Overview

As of 30 June 2006, total assets of Bank of China Limited (“the Bank™) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) reached RMBS5,226.933
billion, an increase of RMB484.127 billion or 10.21% over 31 December 2005. Total liabilities stood at RMB4,840.48 billion, an
increase of RMB360.294 billion or 8.04% over 31 December 2005. Owners’ equity (excluding minority interests) totaled
RMB357.641 billion, an increase of RMB123.799 billion or 52.94% over 31 December 2005.

The Group achieved a net profit of RMB19.024 billion in the first half of 2006, a year-on-year increase of RMB2.59 billion or
15.76%. The Group is in a good financial position.

Income Statement Analysis



Unit: RMB million

Ttems Half year ended 30 June| Half year ended 30 June | Year ended 31 December
2006 2005 2005
Net interest income 54,476 48,658 100,405
Non-interest income 10,126 8,021 15,623
Operating and administrative expenses (23,193) (21,000) (45,604)
Business tax and surcharges (2,987) (2,670) (5,680)
Operating profit 38,422 33,009 64,744
Non-operating income, net 467 1,145 1,381
Net profit before impairment losses 38,889 34,154 66,125
Less: impairment losses (4,876) (4,576) (10,985)
Profit before tax 34,013 29,578 55,140
Less: income tax expense (12,362) (10,860) (22,543)
Less: minority interests (2,627) (2,284) (5,105)
Net profit 19,024 16,434 27,492

Return on Net Assets and EPS Calculated in accordance with the Compiling Rules on Information Disclosure by Companies Offering

Securities to the Public (N0.9) Promulgated by CSRC

Unit: RMB million

S Profit in the Return on net assets (%) EPS (RMB)
report period Fully diluted Weighted average | Fully diluted | Weighted average

Profit from main business 38,422 21.49% 30.27% 0.15 0.18

Operating profit 38,422 21.49% 30.27% 0.15 0.18

Net profit 19,024 10.64% 14.99% 0.07 0.09

Net profit after deducting 18,314 10.24% 14.43% 0.07 0.08

non-recurring items
Reconciliation between PRC GAAP and IFRS Unit: RMB million
Financial Information

Net Assets Net profit
At 30 June At 31 December Half year ended | Half year ended 30
2006 2005 30 June 2006 | June 2005

PRC GAAP figures 357,641 233,842 19,024 16,434
Adjustments for accounting standard differences:
--Reversal of revaluation surplus and
corresponding depreciation (7.794) (7,999) 205 133
--Fair value measurement on investment
properties 3,199 2,816 438 1,059
--Equity securities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets at fair value 3,566 L775 ) i
--Early retirement benefit obligation (4,911) (5,097) 186 (1,749)
--Cost method applied on precious metals (757) (637) (120) (83)
--Deferred tax impact 4,222 992 (97) (97)
--Minority interests effect and others 581 727 (159) (516)
Sub-total (1,894) (7,423) 453 (1,253)
IRFS figures 355,747 226,419 19,477 15,181




Please refer to Appendix II iv (Reconciliation between RPRC GAAP and IFRS financial information) for details.

Non-recurring Items

Unit: RMB million

Net gains on disposal of long-term equity investments 141

Non-operating income 1,111
Non-operating expense (644)
Write-back of the impairments recognized in previous 451

years

Income tax impact of Non-recurring items (349)
Total 710

Operation of Major Subsidiary

Name BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
Listing place and code Hong Kong - HK2388
BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited is a holding company; its subsidiary
Scope of business Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (BOC Hong Kong) provides banking and
relevant financial services in Hong Kong.
Net profit (RMB 100million) 45.70 39.93

Proportion of net profit of share
participating company in current period in 24.02 24.30
the net profits of the listed company (%)

Net Interest Income

In the first half of 2006, the Group achieved a net interest income of RMB54.476 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMBS5.818
billion or 11.96%. The average balance' and average interest rate’ of the Group’s interest-carning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities are shown in the table below:

! Average balances of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities are daily average balances derived from the Group’s
management accounts.
% The average interest rate is annualized rate and calculated by dividing interest income/expense by average balance. Average interest
rates in the first half of 2006 and the first half of 2005 are converted into annualized rates.
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Unit: RMB million

Interest-earning

assets
oans 2,291,998 48% 60,3600 5.27%(2,196,061 52% 51,971 4.73%2,192,058 51% 109,711 5.00%
Debt securities' 1,837,222 38% 30,6528 3.34%(1,383,481 33%| 19,908 2.88%1,475,673 34% 44,938 3.05%

Due from and
placements with
banks and other
financial institutions,
land due from central
banks

694,824 14% 8,765 2.52% 639,077 15%| 5,587 1.75% 655,359 15% 12,696 1.94%

Sub-total 4,824,044 100%| 99,777 4.14904,218,619 100%| 77,466 3.67994,323,090 100% 167,345 3.87%

Interest-bearing
liabilities
Eﬁgﬁfrg"m 4,001,322 89% 38,887 1.94%(3,471,702] 88% 23,815 1.37%(3,560,014 88% 55914 1.57%
Due to and
placements from
banks and other
financial institutions,
fand due to central
banks

Special purpose
borrowings and 112,108 3% 2,292 4.09% 113,672 3% 2,166 3.81% 115,843 3% 4,514  3.90%
bonds issued

Sub-total 4,484,573 100%| 45,301 2.029%3,921,768 100% 28,808 1.47994,031,713 100% 66,9400 1.66%)

371,143 8% 4,1220 2.22% 336,394 9% 2,827] 1.68% 355,856 9% 6,512 1.83%

[Net interest income 54,476 48,658 100,405

Net interest spread?
%)

Net interest margin®
o)

2.12% 2.20% 2.21%

2.26% 2.31% 2.32%

* Include the balance of certificates of deposits issued.

The following table illustrates changes in the Group's net interest income arising from changes of volume and interest rate factors®.
Variances caused by changes in both volume and rate are attributed to interest rate factor.

! Includes trading and other debt securities at fair value through profit or loss and debt securities investment.
% Net interest spread=Average yield of interest-earning assets - Average cost of interest-bearing liabilities
® Net interest margin=Net interest income / Average balance of interest-earning assets
* Volume variance is calculated based on movements in average balances of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities in
the report period; and interest rate variance is calculated based on changes in average interest rates on interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities in the report period.
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Half year ended 30 June 2006 VS Half year ended 30 June 2005

Unit: RMB million

Volume Interest rate Total
Interest income
Loans 2,269 6,120 8,389
Debt securities 6,534 4,210 10,744
Due from and placements with banks
and other financial institutions, and due 488 2,690 3,178
from central banks
Sub-total 9,291 13,020 22,311
Interest expense
Deposits from customers (3,628) (11,444) (15,072)
Due to and placements from banks and
other financial institutions, and due to (292) (2,003) (1,295)
central banks
Spec1al purpose borrowings and bonds 30 (156) (126)
issued
Sub-total (3,890) (12,603) (16,493)
Net interest income 5,401 417 5,818

Interest income

The Group’s interest income was RMB99.777 billion in the first half of 2006, a year-on-year increase of RMB22.311 billion or
28.80%. The growth is attributed to the size expansion as well as the increase of average interest rate of interest-earning assets. The
average balance of interest-earning assets increased by 14.35% form RMB4,218.619 billion as at 30 June 2005 to RMB4,824.044
billion as at 30 June 2006. The average interest rate of interest-earning assets climbed by 47 basis points from 3.67% in the first half

of 2005 to 4.14% in the first half of 2006.
Loans

The Group achieved a loan interest income of RMB60.36 billion in the first half of 2006, a year-on-year increase of RMB8.389
billion or 16.14%. The growth is mainly due to a 54 basis points increase in the average yield of loans from 4.73% in the first half of
2005 to 5.27% in the first half of 2006, and a 4.37% increase in the average balance of loans from RMB2,196.061 billion in the first
half of 2005 to RMB2,291.998 billion in the first half of 2006. The Group strictly controlled the loan quality, and achieved a steady
growth of loans to customers. The growth of the average yield of loans is mainly due to the following factors: (1) continuous pickup
of foreign currency interest rates; (2) upward adjustment of the benchmark interest rate of RMB loans by People’s Bank of China;
and (3) continuous improvement in the Bank’s loan quality. Influenced by the low interest rate in RMB money market, the discount

yield was under pressure, thus partly offset the rapid growth of interest income.
Debt Securities

In the first half of 2006, the Group achieved an interest income of RMB30.652 billion from debt securities, a year-on-year increase of
RMB10.744 billion or 53.97%. The main reason is that the average balance of debt securities soared by 32.80% from RMB1,383.481
billion in the first half of 2005 to RMB1,837.222 billion in the first half of 2006, and the average yield of securities increased by 46
basis points from 2.88% in the first half of 2005 to 3.34% in the first half of 2006. The increase in average balance is primarily due to
the following factors: (1) with continuous increase in deposits from customers, the Group invested the funds not used as loans in
securities which have higher yield than due from and placements with banks and other financial institutions and due from central
banks; and (2) the Group continued to optimize the asset portfolio by reducing the proportion of relatively lower yield due from and
placements with banks and other financial institutions in the portfolio. Increase in average yield was attributable to the increased

yield of foreign currency securities, which offset the impacts of lower interest rate in the domestic RMB money market.

Due from and Placements with Banks and other Financial Institutions and Due from Central Banks
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The Group achieved an interest income of RMBS8.765 billion from due from and placements with banks and other financial
institutions and due from central banks in the first half of 2006, a year-on-year increase of RMB3.178 billion or 56.88%. The increase
is mainly due to: (1) 77 basis points increase in the average yield from 1.75% in the first half of 2005 to 2.52% in the first half of
2006 driven by the continuous increase of the average yield of foreign currency assets; and (2) the 8.72% increase in average balance
from RMB639.077 billion in the first half of 2005 to RMB694.824 billion in the first half of 2006 which was attributable to the
growth of deposit reserves placed with central banks as a result of increasing customer deposits, though partly offset by the reduction

of low yield due from and placements with banks and other financial institutions.
Interest Expense

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s interest expense was RMB45.301 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMB16.493 billion or
57.25%. The growth is attributable to the size expansion as well as the increase of the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities. The
average balance of interest-bearing liabilities increased by 14.35% from RMB3,921.768 billion in the first half of 2005 to
RMBA4,484.573 billion in the first half of 2006, and the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities rose by 55 basis points from 1.47%
in the first half of 2005 to 2.02% in the same period of 2006.

Deposits from Customers

In the first half of 2006, the interest expense for deposits from customers was RMB38.887 billion, a year-on-year increase of
RMBI15.072 billion or 63.29%. The increase in interest expense is mainly attributable to a 57 basis points increase in the interest rate
from 1.37% in the first half of 2005 to 1.94% in the same period of 2006, and an RMB529.62 billion or 15.26% increase in the
average balance of deposits from customers from RMB3,471.702 billion in the first half of 2005 to RMB4,001.322 billion in the
same period of 2006. The growth of interest rate of deposits from customers is principally due to: (1) significant increase in the
interest rate of low balance foreign currency deposits ; and (2) continuous growth of the overseas market interest rate. The growth of
the average balance of deposits from customers is largely due to the rapid growth of RMB business with the rapid development of the

Chinese economy, which offset the decline of domestic foreign currency deposits caused by the expectation of RMB appreciation.
Due to and Placements from Banks and other Financial Institutions and Due to Central Banks

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s interest expense for due to and placements from banks and other financial institutions and due to
central banks was RMB4.122 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMB1.295 billion or 45.81%. The growth is primarily attributable to
a rise in the cost of foreign currency funds with a 54 basis points increase in the interest rate from 1.68% in the first half of 2005 to
2.22% in the same period of 2006. Although the average balance increased by 10.33% from RMB336.394 billion in the first half of
2005 to RMB371.143 billion in the same period of 2006, the proportion of due to and placements from banks and other financial
institutions in the interest-bearing liabilities declined from 9% in the first half of 2005 to 8% in the same period of 2006.

Special Purpose Borrowings and Bonds Issued

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s interest expense for the special purpose borrowings and bonds issued was RMB2.292 billion, a
year-on-year increase of RMB126 million or 5.82%. The increase is primarily attributable to the growth of fund cost, with the interest

rate rising by 28 basis points from 3.81% in the first half of 2005 to 4.09% in the same period of 2006.
Net Interest Margin and Net Interest Spread

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s net interest spread declined by 8 basis points to 2.12%. Due to increase in interest rate,
contribution from cost free funds increased by 3 basis points; and net interest margin decreased by 5 basis points to 2.26%. The
decrease in interest margin is mainly attributable to: (1) the proportion of debt securities to interest-earning assets increased by 5
percentage points, yet the increase of yield was offset by the low interest rate in RMB money market; (2) due to rapid increase in
interest-earning assets and the Bank’s prudence in balancing risk and return, the proportion of loans in the interest-earning assets

declined and more funds were invested in the debt market; and (3) the cost of foreign currency fund increased.
In the first half of 2006, based on the market forecast and development needs of assets and liabilities business, the Group intensified
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its efforts to absorb RMB deposits, and optimized asset and liability structure. The robust growth in various business lines mitigated

the negative impact of the decrease in interest spread. The net interest income increased by 11.96% from RMB48.658 billion in the

first half of 2005 to RMBS54.476 billion in the same period of 2006.

Non-interest Income

In the first half of 2006, the Group achieved a net non-interest income of RMB10.126 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMB2.105 billion

or 26.24%.

Unit: RMB million

Half year ended 30 | Half year ended 30 Year ended 31
June 2006 June 2005 December 2005
Net fee and commission income 6,841 4,518 9,247
Net trading income (193) 2,993 4,482
Investment gains/losses 1681 149 (248)
Other operating income, net 1,797 361 2,142
Total 10,126 8,021 15,623
Net Fee and Commission Income
Unit: RMB million
Half year ended 30 |Half year ended 30| Year ended 31 December
June 2006 June 2005 2005
Settlement and clearing fees 1,794 1,287 2,941
Agency commissions 2,201 1,235 2,735
Credit commitment fees and commissions 1,438 1,308 2,693
Bank card fees 1,365 1,049 2,340
Custodian and other fiduciary service fees 248 235 483
Others 1,120 801 1,506
Fee and commission income 8,166 5,915 12,698
Fee and commission expense (1,325) (2,397) (3,451)
Net fee and commission income 6,841 4,518 9,247

In the first half of 2006, the Group achieved a net fee and commission income of RMB6.841 billion, a year-on-year increase of
RMB2.323 billion or 51.42%. The increase was mainly attributed to the Group’s intensified efforts to drive the growth in fee-based

businesses. As a result, significant increase was recorded in agency commissions, settlement and clearing fees, and bank card fees.

Agency commission of the Group reached RMB2.201 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMB966 million or 78.22%. The growth is

mainly attributable to increased sales of products and services such as treasury bonds, investment funds and insurance.

Settlement and clearing fees of the Group stood at RMB1.794 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMB507 million or 39.39%. The
growth is primarily attributable to the rapid growth of businesses such as factoring and L/C settlement and personal electronic

remittance.
Bank card fees of the Group reached RMB1.365 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMB316 million or 30.12%. The growth is
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mainly attributable to the intensified efforts of the Group on promoting bank cards business in line with market changes and customer

demand, which led to continuous increase in new card issuance, transaction volume and frequency of ATM transactions.

Net Trading Income

Unit: RMB million

Half year ended 30 June [ Half year ended 30 | Year ended 31 December
2006 June 2005 2005
Net gains from foreign exchange and foreign exchange 1302 3392 2518
products ' ' ’
Net gains from interest rate products (1,495) (329) 1,964
Total (193) 2,993 4,482

The Group suffered a net trading loss of RMB193 million in the first half of 2006, a year-on-year decline of RMB3.186 billion or
106.45%.

In the first half of 2006, the domestic operations’ spread income from foreign exchange dealings was RMB2.728 billon, a
year-on-year increase of RMB804 million or 41.79%. The increase is mainly attributable to the change in foreign exchange rate and
moderate liberalization of personal limits that spurred the growth of personal foreign exchange transactions. During the same period,
due to interest rate volatility, the Group suffered a loss from interest rate instruments of RMB1.495 billion, a year-on-year decrease of
RMBI1.166 billion or 354.41%.

Starting from 21 July 2005, the People’s Bank of China (the central bank) adopted a managed floating exchange rate regime. As a
result of RMB appreciation, the Group suffered a net loss of RMB3.5 billion on foreign currency exposure under the restricted
foreign exchange capital account in the first half of 2006. At the same time, the foreign exchange option contract entered between the

Group and Central SAFE Investments Limited gave rise to an evaluation gain of RMB300 million. Should the above factors be

excluded, the Bank’s net trading income has increased by RMB14 million year-on-year.
Investment Income

Unit: RMB million

Half year ended 30 June | Half year ended 30 | Year ended 31 December

2006 June 2005 2005
Gains from equity investment 1,587 125 678
Incl.: Net gains from investment in associates 339 48 166
Net gains from other equity investments 1,248 77 512
(Losses)/gains from debt investment 94 24 (926)
Total 1,681 149 (248)

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s investment income rocketed by RMB1.532 billion or 1028.19% to RMB1.681 billion. The
increase is mainly attributable to: (1) the Group acquired an additional 5% stake in September 2005 in Huaneng International Power
Development Corporation and thus held 20% stake in total, investment income from which was accounted for based on equity
method and recognized in net gains from investment in associates; (2) the Group sold shares of BOC Group Life Assurance Limited

to BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited; and (3) the investment income of BOC International increased.



Other Operating Income, Net
Unit: RMB million

Half year ended 30 June | Half year ended 30 | Year ended 31 December

2006 June 2005 2005
Other operating revenues 5,366 2,767 6,617
Insurance premium 4,286 2,624 5,237
Others 1,080 143 1,380
Other operating expense (3,569) (2,406) (4,475)
Insurance claims expense (3,423) (2,168) (3,861)
Others (146) (238) (614)
Total 1,797 361 2,142

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s net income from other operations grew by RMB1.436 billion or 397.78% to RMB1.797 billion,
which was largely due to the continuous increase in the income from the Group’s insurance business and subsidiaries’ other operating
activities.

Operating and Administrative Expense

Unit: RMB million

Half year ended 30 June | Half year ended 30 June | Year ended 31 December
2006 2005 2005
Staff cost 13,278 11,654 23,979
General operating and administrative expense 7,174 6,208 15,742
Depreciation 2,741 3,138 5,883
Total 23,193 21,000 45,604

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s operating and administrative expenses totaled RMB23.193 billion, a year-on-year increase of
RMB2.193 billion or 10.44%. The increase is mainly attributable to the following factors: (1) the Group continued the staff
compensation reform to enhance its competitiveness; (2) the Group implemented the Annuity Plan; (3) expenses for supporting the
Group’s business growth increased with the expansion of business and increasingly fierce market competition; and (4) depreciation

expense continued to decline as a result of factors such as the sale and disposal of fixed assets in previous years.
Impairment Losses

Unit: RMB million

Half year ended 30 | Half year ended 30 June Year ended 31
June 2006 2005 December 2005
Provision for loan losses 5,062 4,718 10,888
(Write-back of)/Provision for impairment of foreclosed
(131) 96 133

assets
(Write-back of)/Provision for impairment of other

) (55) 206 498
receivables
Write-back of impairment of fixed assets and others - (444) (534)
Total 4,876 4,576 10,985

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s asset impairment losses increased by RMB300 million or 6.56%.
Provision for Interest Receivable and Other Bad Debt Receivables

As provided in the Accounting System for Financial Institutions issued by the Ministry of Finance, financial institutions should

analyze the recoverability of receivables (including fund placement and premium receivable, but not including interest receivable),
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forecast bad debt losses, and make provision for bad debt losses that are estimated to occur. When loan interest receivable or
corresponding loan principal is overdue for more than 90 days, the interest receivable should be transferred off balance sheet, and the
interest income and interest receivable that have been recognized should be reversed. The age of interest receivable is within 90 days.

In the report period, the Group’s bad debt provision was detailed as follows:

Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 Increase
Other receivables 17,538 14,275 3,263
Balapqe of bad debt 3.874 3878 )
provision

Income Tax Analysis

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s income tax expense was RMB12.362 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMB1.502 billion or

13.83%. The Group’s effective tax rate was 36.34%, a year-on-year decrease of 0.38 percentage points.

Balance Sheet Analysis

Unit: RMB million

At 31 December At 31 December

At 30 June 2006 2005 2004
Debt securities' 1,988,271 1,669,591 1,309,479
Due from banks, placements with banks and
other financial institutions, and due from 640,765 661,478 631,727
central banks
Net loans 2,317,408 2,151,893 2,071,693
Fixed assets and construction in progress 75,148 76,320 79,302
Total assets 5,226,933 4,742,806 4,270,443
Due to banks, placements from banks and
other financial institutions, and due to 388,844 375,288 318,443
central banks
Deposits from customers 4,053,024 3,703,777 3,342,477
Special purpose borrowings and bonds 109,799 112,343 95,802
issued
Total liabilities 4,840,480 4,480,186 4,037,705
Minority interests 28,812 28,778 27,387
Total equity 357,641 233,842 205,351
Total equity and liabilities 5,226,933 4,742,806 4,270,443

Including securities available-for-sale, securities held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, trading and other debt securities at fair
value through profit or loss.
18



Debt Securities

Unit: RMB million

At 30 June At 31 December At 31 December
2006 2005 2004
Trading and other bonds at fair value through profit or loss 110,602 107,271 91,012
Debt securities available-for-sale 919,175 593,010 346,532
Debt securities held-to-maturity, net 569,126 607,459 457,994
Debt securities classified as loans and receivables, net 389,368 361,851 413,941
Total 1,988,271 1,669,591 1,309,479

As of 30 June 2006, security assets of the Group reached RMB1,988.271 billion, an increase of RMB318.68 billion or 19.09% over

31 December 2005. The increase was mainly attributed to the growth of RMB3,26.165 billion in debt securities available-for-sale.

Loans

As of 30 June 2006, the Group had a total loan portfolio of RMB2,405.536 billion, an increase of RMB170.49 billion or 7.6% over

the previous year-end. Loans by domestic operations were RMB1,972.631 billion, an increase of RMB172.708 billion or 9.6% over

the previous year-end. Loans by domestic operations of Eastern Region grew at the highest rate, with an RMB93.81 billion or 13.1%

increase over the previous year-end.

Loan Portfolio Concentrations by Geographic Region

Loan Portfolio Concentrations of the Group by Region

Unit: RMB million

Domestic operations 1,972,631 82.00% 1,799,923 80.53% 1,734,302 80.80%
Overseas operations 432,905 18.00% 435,123 19.47% 412,160 19.20%
Total 2,405,536 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100.00%
Domestic Loans by Geographic Region

Unit: RMB million
Northern Region 353,477 17.92% 322,451 17.91% 313,843 18.10%
Northeastern Region 135,087 6.85% 131,430 7.30% 128,374 7.40%
Eastern Region 813,572 41.24% 719,759 39.99% 679,773 39.20%
Central &  Southern
Region 470,372 23.85% 444,869 24.72% 433,860 25.02%
Western Region 200,123 10.14% 181,414 10.08% 178,452 10.28%
Total 1,972,631 100.00% 1,799,923 100.00% 1,734,302 100.00%

Note: Northern Region includes Beijing Municipality, Tianjin Municipality, Hebei Province, Shanxi Province, Inner Mongolia Autonomous

Region, and the Head Office of BOC;

Northeastern Region includes Heilongjiang Province, Jilin Province, and Liaoning Province;
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Eastern Region includes Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu Province, Zhejiang Province, Anhui Province, Fujian Province, Jiangxi Province,
and Shandong Province;

Central & Southern Region includes Henan Province, Hubei Province, Hunan Province, Guangdong Province, Shenzhen City, Guangxi
Autonomous Region, and Hainan Province;

Western Region includes Chongqing Municipality, Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province, Shaanxi Province, Gansu

Province, Ningxia Autonomous Region, Qinghai Province, Tibet Autonomous Region, and Xinjiang Uighur Autonomous Region.

Industry Concentration of the Group’s Loans

As of 30 June 2006, the outstanding balance of the Group’s corporate loans was RMB1,864.081 billion, an increase of RMB 152.038
billion or 8.9% from the beginning of the year. These loans were mainly concentrated in the sectors of manufacturing, commerce and
services, accounting for 31.75% and 17.35% of total corporate loans respectively. Industry concentration of corporate loans by

domestic operations was consistent with the overall characteristics of the Group.
Industry Concentration of Corporate Loans by the Group

Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004
Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%)

Manufacturing 591,909 31.75% 531,191 31.03% 523,506 31.70%
Commerce and

services 323,348 17.35% 301,863 17.63% 348,432 21.10%
Real estate 201,585 10.82% 190,297 11.11% 187,110 11.40%
Energy, mining

and agriculture 252,415 13.54% 230,854 13.48% 203,544 12.30%
Transportation 200,503 10.76% 193,428 11.30% 184,449 11.10%
Public utilities 104,827 5.62% 91,924 5.37% 87,731 5.30%
Construction 38,304 2.05% 36,050 2.11% 36,059 2.20%
Financial services 112,153 6.02% 96,245 5.62% 46,518 2.80%
Others 39,037 2.09% 40,191 2.35% 35,072 2.10%
Total 1,864,081 100.00% 1,712,043 100.00% 1,652,421 100.00%

Industry Concentration of Corporate Loans by Domestic Operations
Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004
Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%)

Manufacturing 543,831 34.68% 490,898 34.57% 497,317 36.10%
Commerce and services 276,491 17.64% 255,460 17.99% 284,772 20.60%
Real estate 104,121 6.64% 96,390 6.79% 100,932 7.30%
Energy, mining and

agriculture 233,357 14.88% 210,281 14.81% 186,942 13.50%
Transportation 173,417 11.06% 165,396 11.65% 157,762 11.40%
Public utilities 104,827 6.69% 91,924 6.47% 87,731 6.30%
Construction 32,940 2.10% 30,089 2.12% 27,938 2.00%
Financial services 96,440 6.15% 77,237 5.44% 32,079 2.30%
Others 2,512 0.16% 2,290 0.16% 7,484 0.50%
Total 1,567,936 100.00% 1,419,965 100.00% 1,382,957 100.00%
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Loans of the Group by Customers

As of 30 June 2006, the outstanding balance of the Group’s corporate loans was RMB1,864.081 billion, an increase of RMB152.038

billion or 8.9% from the prior year-end, accounting for 77.5% of the total. The outstanding balance of personal loans was RMB541,

455 million, an increase of RMB18.452 billion or 3.5% from the prior year-end, accounting for 22.5% of the total. The balance of

domestic corporation loans increased by RMB147.971 billion or 10.4% compared with the previous year-end, and the balance of

personal loans increased by 6.5% or RMB 24.737 billion.

Loans of the Group by Customers

Unit: RMB million

Corporate loans 1,864,081 77.49% 1,712,043 76.60% 1,652,421 76.98%
Trade bills 269,713 11.21% 225,026 10.07% 177,738 8.28%
Personal loans 541,455 22.51% 523,003 23.40% 494,041 23.02%
Total 2,405,536 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100.00%
Loans of Domestic Operations by Customers
Unit: RMB million
Corporate loans 1,567,936 79.48% 1,419,965 78.89% 1,382,957 79.74%
Trade bills 240,826 12.21% 195,311 10.85% 148,832 8.58%
Personal loans 404,695 20.52% 379,958 21.11% 351,345 20.26%
Total 1,972,631 100.00% 1,799,923 100.0% 1,734,302 100.00%

Personal Loans of Domestic Operations by Products

Mortgage 308,387 76.20% 286,829 75.49% 240,640 68.49%
Credit cards 2,212 0.55% 1,929 0.51% 1,441 0.41%
Others 94,096 23.25% 91,200 24.00% 109,264 31.10%
Total 404,695 100.00% 379,958 100.00% 351,345 100.00%

Notes: Others mainly include auto loans, personal investment loans and personal education loans.

Loans of the Group by Currencies

As of 30 June 2006, the outstanding balance of the Group’s loans in RMB was RMB1,643.896 billion, an increase of RMB166.037

billion or 11.2% from the beginning of the year. It accounted for 68.3% of the total.

Loans of the Group by Currencies

Unit: RMB million



At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004
Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%)
RMB 1,643,896 68.34% 1,477,859 66.12% 1,378,760 64.23%
Foreign
currencies 761,640 31.66% 757,187 33.88% 767,702 35.77%
Total 2,405,536 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100.00%

Loans of Domestic Operations by Currencies

Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 200630 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004
Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%)
RMB 1,641,482 83.21% 1,475,821 82.00% 1,378,343 79.50%
Foreign
currencies 331,149 16.79% 324,102 18.00% 355,959 20.50%
Total 1,972,631 100.00% 1,799,923 100.00% 1,734,302 100.00%

Loans of the Group by Types of Security

As of 30 June 2006, a large proportion of the Group’s loans were secured, accounting for 45.85% of the total. Unsecured loans

accounted for 24.1%.

Loans of the Group by Types of Security

Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004
Types of security Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%)
Unsecured 578,987 24.08% 475,764 21.29% 447,800 20.86%
Guaranteed 723,502 30.07% 684,824 30.64% 650,905 30.32%
Collateralized and
other secured 1,103,047 45.85% 1,074,458 48.07% 1,047,757 48.82%
Total 2,405,536 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100.00%

Quality of the Group’s Loans

As of 30 June 2006, the Group’s total impaired loans were RMB105.944 billion, a decrease of RMB3.367 billion over the previous

year-end; and the impaired loan ratio was 4.4%, a decrease of 0.49 percentage points. The impaired loans of domestic operations

were RMB99.543 billion, a decrease of RMB2.579 billion over the previous year-end; and the impaired loan ratio was 5.05%, a

decrease of 0.62 percentage points. The impaired loans of overseas operations were RMB6.401 billion, a decrease of RMB770

million over the previous year-end; and the impaired loan ratio was 1.48%, a decrease of 0.17 percentage points.
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Impaired Loan Portfolio Concentrations of the Group by Region

Unit: RMB million

Domestic 99,543 93.96% 5.05% 102,140 93.44% 5.67% 104,327 88.3% 6.02%
operations

Overseas 6,401 6.04% 1.48% 7,171 6.56% 1.65% 13,830 11.7% 3.36%
operations

Total 105,944| 100.00% 4.40% 109,311 100.00% 4.89% 118,157( 100.0% 5.50%
Notes:

1. If objective impairment evidence shows that the future cash flow of loans will decreases and the amount can be estimated, then the

Bank identifies the loan as impaired loan and recognize the losses as well.

2. Impaired loan ratio is calculated by dividing the balance of impairment loans with the balance of total loans.

Impaired Loan Portfolio Concentrations of Domestic Operations by Region

Unit: RMB million

Northern 18,457 18.54% 5.22% 17,699 17.30% 5.50% 22,600 21.70% 7.20%
Region

Northeastern 11,968 12.03% 8.84% 12,363 12.10% 9.40% 13,170 12.60% 10.26%
Region

Eastern 25,962 26.08% 3.19% 27,811 27.20% 3.90% 28,595 27.40% 4.21%
Region

Central & 30,071 30.21% 6.39% 30,611 30.00% 6.90% 26,611 25.50% 6.13%
Southern

Region

Western 13,085 13.14% 6.54% 13,656 13.40% 7.50% 13,351 12.80% 7.48%
Region

Total 99,543 100.00% 5.05%| 102,140 100.00% 5.70% 104,327 100.00% 6.02%

Industry Concentration of Impaired Corporate Loans by Domestic Operations

Unit: RMB million

Manufacturing 34,856 38.86% 6.41% 32,969 35.58% 6.76% 32,218 33.37% 6.48%
Commerce and 23,162 25.83% 8.38% 25,443 27.46% 9.96% 26,344 27.29% 9.25%
services

Real estate 11,596 12.93% 11.14% 12,763 13.77% 13.24% 13,453 13.93% 13.33%




Energy, mining and 6,624 7.39% 2.84% 6,665 7.19% 3.17% 6,588 6.82% 3.52%
agriculture

Transportation 7,176 8.00% 4.14% 7,759 8.37% 4.69% 9,729 10.08% 6.17%
Public utilities 4312 4.81% 4.11% 4,627 4.99% 5.03% 5,564 5.76% 6.34%
Construction 1,717 1.91% 5.21% 2,226 2.40% 7.40% 2,569 2.66% 9.20%
Financial services 235 0.26% 0.24% 215 0.24% 0.28% 72 0.08% 0.22%
Others 6 0.01% 0.26% 0 0.00% 0.00% 6 0.01% 0.08%
Total 89,684| 100.00% 5.72% 92,667| 100.00% 6.54% 96,543 100.00% 6.98%

Impaired Loans of the Group by Customers

Unit: RMB million

Corporate loans 95,120 89.78% 5.10% 98,669 90.26% 5.76% 108,005( 91.41% 6.54%
Personal loans 10,824 10.22% 2.00% 10,642 9.74% 2.03% 10,152 8.59% 2.05%
Total 105,944 100.00% 4.40% 109,311 100.00% 4.89% 118,157 100.00% 5.50%

Impaired Loans of Domestic Operations by Customers

Corporate loans 89,684 90.10% 5.72% 92,667 90.73% 6.53% 96,543 92.55% 6.99%
Personal loans 9,859 9.90% 2.44% 9,473 9.27% 2.49% 7,784 7.45% 2.22%
Total 99,543 100.00% 5.05% 102,140 100.00% 5.67% 104,327 100.00% 6.02%

Impaired Personal Loans of Domestic Operations by Products

Unit: RMB million

Mortgage 3,930 39.87% 1.27% 3,837 40.50% 1.34% 3,608 46.35% 1.50%
Credit cards 267 2.71% 12.08% 228 2.41% 11.82% 218 2.80% 15.13%
Others 5,662 57.42% 6.02% 5,408 57.09% 5.93% 3,958 50.85% 3.62%
Total 9,859 100.00% 2.44% 9,473 100.00% 2.49% 7,784 100.00% 2.22%

5-category Classification of Loans
As of 30 June 2006, the Group’s non-performing loans (NPLs) were RMB100.788 billion in accordance with regulatory

classification standards, a decrease of RMB2.438 billion over the previous year-end; with NPL ratio at 4.19%, a decrease of 0.43

percentage points. NPLs of domestic operations were RMB96.519 billion, a decrease of RMB1.69 billion over the previous year-end,

with NPL ratio at 4.89%, a decrease of 0.57 percentage points. Loans of the Group classified as special mention stood at

RMB261.788 billion, a decrease of RMB22.26 billion over the previous year-end, accounting for 10.88% of total loans, a decrease of
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1.83 percentage points.

Asset Quality of the Group

Unit: RMB million

Pass 2,042,960 84.93% 1,847,772 82.67% 1,611,936 75.10%
Special mention 261,788 10.88% 284,048 12.71% 424,606 19. 78%
Substandard 42,082 1.75% 45,573 2.04% 61,289 2. 86%
Doubtful 43,479 1.81% 44,550 1.99% 32,931 1. 53%
Loss 15,227 0.63% 13,103 0.59% 15,700 0. 73%
Total 2,405,536 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100. 00%
Total NPLs 100,788 4.19% 103,226 4.62% 109,920 5.12%
Asset Quality of Domestic Operations
Unit: RMB million
Pass 1,625,776 82.42% 1,430,210 79.46% 1,227,414 70. 77%
Special mention 250,336 12.69% 271,504 15.08% 408,571 23. 56%
Substandard 40,917 2.07% 44,056 2.45% 57,656 3.32%
Doubtful 41,760 2.12% 42,852 2.38% 29,787 1. 72%
Loss 13,842 0.70% 11,301 0.63% 10,874 0. 63%
Total 1,972,631 100.00% 1,799,923 100.00% 1,734,302 100. 00%
Total NPLs 96,519 4.89% 98,209 5.46% 98,317 5.67%
Deposits from Customers
Unit: RMB million
At 30 June 2006 At 31 zl?)f)(:sember At 31 zl?)ziember
Short-term' corporate deposits 1,467,863 1,323,444 1,150,115
Short-term saving deposits 2,044,461 1,911,921 1,756,312
long-term® corporate deposits 32,157 26,317 32,743
long-term saving deposits 339,763 313,703 296,246
Securities and margin deposits 168,780 128,392 107,061
Total 4,053,024 3,703,777 3,342,477

As of 30 June 2006, the corporate deposits of the Group reached RMB4,053.024 billion, an increase of RMB349.247 billion or

9.43% over the previous year-end. Of them, the corporate and personal deposits increased by RM150.259 billion and 158.6 billion

respectively.

! Include demand deposits and time deposits less than (including) one year.

2 Refer to long-term deposits beyond a year.
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Deposits from Customers by Currencies

As of 30 June 2006, the balance of the Group’s RMB deposits increased by RMB344.697 billion or 13.6% from the beginning of the
year to RMB2,876.575 billion. The balance of RMB deposits accounted for 71% of total deposits.

Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004

Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%)
RMB

2,876,575 70.97% | 2,531,878 68.36% 2,093,272 62.63%
Foreign currencies

1,176,449 29.03% | 1,171,899 31.64% 1,249,205 37.37%
Total

4,053,024 100.00% | 3,703,777 100.00% 3,342,477 100.00%
Equity Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004

Minority interests 28,812 28,778 27,387
Equity 357,641 233,842 205,351
Total equity 386,453 262,620 232,738

In the first half of 2006, the Bank issued, at a premium, ordinary shares to the National Council for Social Security Fund, and then

issued, at a premium, overseas listed shares (H Shares) to overseas investors and ordinary shares (A Shares) to domestic investors.

For details, please refer to Appendix: Note III, 17(1) of the Accountants’ Report.

Changes in Shareholder’s Equity within the Report Period

Unit: RMB million

Share
capital

Capital
reserve

Statutory
reserve

General and
regulatory
reserves

Undistributed
profit

IReserve for fair value
changes of
available-for-sale
securities

Currency
translation
differences

Total

Balance at 1 January
2006

209,427 3,978

5,987

5,109

12,585

(1,380)

(1,864)

233,842

INet profit for the
period

19,024 -

19,024

Issue of ordinary
shares

44,412| 72,567

116,979

IAppropriation to
statutory reserves

2,108

(2,108)

IAppropriation to
lgeneral and
regulatory reserves

4,291

(4,291)

INet change in fair
value of
available-for-sale
securities

(10,574)

(10,574)

IDividends

(1,375)

(1,375)

Currency translation
differences

(255)

(255)

Others

)

IBalance at 30 June
2006

253,839| 76,545

8,095

9,398

23,837

(11,954)

(2,119)

357,641
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Balance of Major Off-balance Sheet Items

The balance of major off-balance sheet items of the Group at the end of the reporting period is as follow.

Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005
Acceptance 230,434 195,234
Letter of guarantee issued 255,779 212,987
Letter of credit issued 115,686 101,195
Irrevocable credit commitment and others 422,297 386,346
Total 1,024,196 895,762

Supplementary Financial Information as of the End of the Last Three Report Periods:

_ - Regulatory At 31 December | At 31 December
Major regulatory indicators . At 30 June 2006
Criteria 2005 2004
Capital adequacy ratio (%) =8 12. 10. 4 10.
Core capital adequacy ratio (%) =4 10. 8.1 8.
RMB =25 32. 48.9 35.
Liquidity ratio (%) Foreign
=25 45. 87.4 78.
currencies
RMB <75 57. 51.7 59.
Loan-deposit ratio (%) Foreign
) <85 64. 70. 4 67.
currencies
NPL ratio (%) - 4.2 1.6
Provision coverage (%) =60 87.4 80. 6 68.
Proportion of single largest
P ¢ & <10 3.9 4.7
customer loans (%)
Proportion of loans to top 10
customers (%) <50 19.3 25.6 25.

The above regulatory indicators are calculated in accordance with relevant provisions of CBRC, and the financial figures are based
on the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and the Accounting Systems for Financial Enterprises. The liquidity ratio is

calculated in accordance with relevant provisions of CBRC in 2006.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

The Bank calculates and discloses the capital adequacy ratio in line with the Management Measures on Capital Adequacy Ratio of
Commercial Banks (CBRC Decree [2004] No.2) promulgated by the China Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC) on 23
February 2004. In 2005, the Group calculated market risk capital in line with the provisions of the Circular of the General Office of
China Banking Regulatory Commission on Issuing Market Risk Capital Calculation Sheet and Explanation for Commercial Banks
(YJF [2004] No.374) promulgated by the CBRC. As of 30 June 2006, the Group’s capital adequacy ratio increased by 1.98
percentage points to 12.40%, while core capital adequacy ratio declined by 2.55 percentage points to 10.63%.

The Group’s net capital amounted to RMB452.027 billion as of 30 June 2006, an increase of RMB125.79 billion. The net core capital
grew by RMB134.728 billion to RMB387.698 billion, and risk-weighted assets (excluding market risk) increased by RMB370.47
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billion to RMB3,163.659 billion. The market risk assets of the Group were RMB38.549 billion, translating into risk assets of
RMB481.868 billion.

Unit: RMB million/%

INet core capital (a) 387, 698 252,970 134, 728
INet capital (b) 450, 027, 326, 237 125, 790
IRisk-weighted assets (c) 3, 163, 659 2,793, 189 370, 470
IMarket risk capital (d) 38, 549 27, 025 11, 524
Core capital adequacy ratio (%) [e=a/(c+d*12.5)] 10. 63% 8. 08% 2. 55%
Capital adequacy ratio (%) [ f=b/(c+d*12.5)] 12. 40% 10. 42% 1. 98%
Reporting by Region
At 30 June 2006 Unit: RMB million
Net interest income 45,078 8,549 845 4 54,476
Non-interest income 4,371 6,189 152 (586) 10,126
Operating and administrative (18,920) (3,618) (687) 32 (23,193)
expenses
Operating profit 27,584 11,091 297 (550) 38,422
(Chafge)/wrlte-back for (5.932) 935 121 ) (4.876)
impairment losses
Gross profit 21,824 12,284 455 (550) 34,013
Income tax (10,751) (1,672) (142) 203 (12,362)
Profit attributable to the
minority 4) (2,623) - - (2,627)
Net profit 11,069 7,989 313 (347) 19,024
Segment assets 4,268,205 993,715 199,169 (234,156) 5,226,933
Segment liabilities (3,917,105) (897,042) (191,882) 165,549 | (4,840,480)
At 30 June 2005 Unit: RMB million
Net interest income 40,434 7,380 844 - 48,658
Non-interest income 4,860 2,712 449 - 8,021
Operating and administrative (17,046) (3,358) (596) . (21,000)
expenses
Operating profit 25,612 6,710 687 - 33,009
(Chafge)/wnte-back for (6,591) 1.805 210 ) (4,576)
impairment losses
Gross profit 19,744 8,882 952 - 29,578
Income tax (9,472) (1,228) (160) - (10,860)
Pr.()ﬁt. attributable to the 9 (2.293) ) ) (2,284)
minority
Net profit 10,281 5,361 792 - 16,434
Segment assets 3,803,989 966,225 186,982 (214,390) 4,742,806
Segment liabilities (3,584,086) (871,046) (178,853) 153,799 | (4,480,186)
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During the first half of 2006, the Chinese Mainland remained to be the primary business region of the Group and the important

sources of income and net profit as well, accounting for 78% of total assets and 57% of total profit of the Group. Hong Kong and

Macau were also key business regions of the Group, accounting for 18% of total assets and 41% of total profit of the Group.

Reporting by Business Line

At 30 June 2006 Unit: RMB million
Corpqrate Persqnal Treasury Investrpent Insu.rance Others Eliminations Total
banking banking services banking business

Net interest income 26,602 16,881 11,376 19 250 (656) 4| 54,476
Non-interest income 5,029 4,147 (1,471) 1,324 198 1,536 (637)] 10,126
Operating and

administrative expenses (8,588) (11,677) (2,876) (224) (103) (406) 681| (23,193)
Operating profit 21,565 8,892 6,006 1,117 342 452 48| 38,422
(Charge)/write-back - for (4.202) (720) 1 ) 6 44 | (4876)
impairment losses

Gross profit 17,419 8,299 6,052 1,110 388 1,295 (550)| 34,013
Segment assets 1,813,042 637,280, 2,692,140 18,079 17,153| 84,279 (35,040)[5,226,933
Capital expenditure 416 782 31 6 2 953 - 2,190

At 30 June 2005 Unit: RMB million
Corpo.rate Persqnal Trea.sury Invesgnent Insu.rance Others Eliminations Total
banking banking services banking business

Net interest income 25,744 16,021 7,056 63 183 (409) -| 48,658
Non-interest income 4,135 2,558 746 335 46 243 (42) 8,021
Operating and

administrative expenses (7,876) (10,148) (2,680) (195) (88) (301) 288| (21,000)
Operating profit 20,548 7,995 4,362 201 140 (483) 246| 33,009
(Charge)/ write-back for (5.471) 819 19 1 @) 58 | (a,576)
impairment losses

Gross profit 15,184 9,029 4,452 203 134 576 -l 29,578
Segment assets 1,658,718 603,891| 2,399,377 15,159 12,398| 77,644 (24,381)4,742,806
Capital expenditure 342 665 32 4 25 698 - 1,766

With effect from 1 January 2006, the internal funding transfer pricing mechanism of the Bank was revised. The new pricing

mechanism is based on the market deposit and lending rates, adjusted for pre-determined margins with reference to the different

products and respective maturities.

Previously, blended mid prices between the Bank’s average cost of funding and average yield

on interest bearing assets were adopted, without taking into consideration the variety of products and respective maturities. The

reason for the change is primarily to better reflect the performance of the individual segments as part of the Bank’s efforts to enhance

its assets and liabilities management capability. Above segment information at 30 June 2006 is based on the new transfer pricing.
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Business Overview
Commercial Banking Business

The Bank operates three principal lines of business — commercial banking, investment banking and insurance. With a global presence
in 27 countries and regions, we maintain correspondent relationships with over 1,400 foreign banks which collectively have 46,900
branches worldwide. Leveraging our global network, quality services, and operational strengths, we enjoy a distinctive competitive

advantage in the domestic banking market.
Corporate Banking

Corporate banking refers to a variety of financial products, credit facilities and financial solutions that we provide to our customers,

including deposit-taking, lending, trade finance, settlement, clearing and custody.

Corporate Deposits and Loans: The Bank continued to strengthen marketing efforts to promote corporate deposits. RMB corporate
deposits maintained its sustainable and rapid growth momentum which has persisted over the years. As at the end of June 2006, the
balance of domestic RMB corporate deposits was RMB 1,142.1 billion, an increase of RMB146.7 billion or 14.7% from the prior
year-end with a market share of 8.2% among all financial institutions'. The Bank actively expanded the key customer segment and
applied differentiation policies in business management and service delivery, leveraged concerted marketing strengths between the
Head Office and Branches in marketing for key projects and speeded up the development of quality asset business. As at the end of
June 2006, the outstanding balance of domestic RMB corporate loans stood at RMB 1,236.7 billion, an increase of RMB 140.9
billion or 12.8% from the prior year-end, representing a market share of 6.7% among all financial institutions. While maintaining the
stable growth of RMB corporate deposits, the Bank also strengthened its efforts in promoting foreign currency corporate deposits in a
bid to sustain its leading position in the market. As at the end of June 2006, the balance of domestic foreign currency corporate
deposits was USD 17.67 billion, an increase of USD1.29 billion from the prior year-end, with a market share among all financial
institutions of 21.1%. Fully leveraging its strength in foreign exchange business, the Bank actively conducted product innovation and
seized opportunities to develop its trade finance business, which promoted the growth in foreign currency corporate deposits. By the
end of the report period, the outstanding balance of domestic foreign currency corporate loans was USD41.44 billion, an increase of
USD1.28 billion, and the market share among all financial institutions was 33.5%. The balance of foreign currency corporate
deposits of overseas operations was USD27 billion, and outstanding balance of foreign currency corporate loans was USD 37.04

billion.

Corporate Deposits of the Group by Currencies (Unit: RMB billion)

30 June 2006 31 December 2005
RMB corporate deposits 1,143.1 995.9
Foreign currency corporate deposits 356.9 353.9
Total corporate deposits 1,500 1,349.8

In the first half of 2006, the Bank devoted great efforts to expand its high-quality customers segment, and forged ahead with

! All financial institutions include: People’s ‘Bank of China, policy banks, state-owned commercial banks, other commercial banks,
urban commercial banks, rural commercial banks, urban credit cooperatives, rural cooperative banks, rural credit
cooperatives, financial companies, trust and investment corporations, leasing companies, and savings and remittance
bureaus.
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reforming the corporate business operation and management model. It continued to strengthen joint marketing between the Head
Office and branches on key projects or to key customers, expanded quality asset business, and enhanced cooperation between product
departments to expand cross selling. It also reinforced collaboration between domestic operations and BOC Hong Kong, BOC
International, BOC Investment, BOC Insurance and other overseas operations to promote the overall competitiveness of its corporate
banking. By launching initiatives such as pilot projects targeting small enterprises and strengthening product innovation, the Bank

seeks to ensure sustainable and healthy development of its corporate business.

Corporate Loans of the Group by Currencies (Unit: RMB billion)

30 June 2006 31 December 2005
RMB corporate loans 1,239.2 1,097.9
Foreign currency 624.9 614.1
corporate loans
Total corporate loans 1,864.1 1,712

Institutional Banking: Institutional banking business of the Bank refers to various asset, liability and fee-based services the Bank is
engaged in by leveraging on its own resources, with a view to serving various financial institutions and generating comprehensive
benefits. Institutional deposits grew rapidly in May-June 2006 as influenced by the stock market. At the end of June 2006, the
balance of RMB deposits from financial institutions for domestic operations was RMB172.33 billion, an increase of RMB18.27
billion from the prior year-end. The balance of current and time foreign currency deposits from financial institutions for domestic

operations was USD9.87 billion, a decrease of USD180 million.

Since 1987, the Bank has sequentially designated its New York, Tokyo and Frankfurt branches as the major clearing channels for US
dollar, yen and euro respectively. Over years’ efforts, the Bank has set up a comprehensive overseas clearing system which covers

different currencies and regions and provides domestic and overseas customers with efficient and convenient clearing services.

Custody and Fund Distribution: The Bank serves as custodian for a diverse range of closed-end funds, open-end funds, brokerage
wealth management programs, Social Security Fund, insurance companies, QFII, annuity funds, trust companies, asset securitization
capitals and emerging products such as industry funds and QDII etc. The funds we distribute as agent cover all types of open-end

funds such as equity, balanced and bond funds, brokerage wealth management program, and investment-linked insurance products.

In the first half of 2006, the environment of custody and distribution operations improved generally. Facing an active stock market,
investors have quickened the pace of investment and more innovations have been introduced. The fund distribution and custody
business thus maintained generally healthy and fast development. As at the end of June 2006, total assets in the Bank’s custody,
leading the market, reached nearly RMB210 billion, an increase of 20% over the year beginning. Total volume of the Bank’s fund

distributions exceeded RMB28 billion, a year-on-year increase of 50%.

In the first half of 2006, the Bank achieved new breakthroughs in custody business for QFII funds, insurance funds, corporate annuity

and local social insurance fund, making it the largest Chinese QFII custodian.

International settlement and trade finance: The Bank’s international settlement and trade finance services include issuance of
import letters of credit, collection and presentation of document under export letter of credit, import bill advance, export bill purchase,
forfeiting, confirmation of letters of credit, letter of guarantee and factoring. In addition to traditional international settlement and
trade finance services, the Bank also exclusively provides such services as processing trade account services, tax payment guarantee

etc, meeting customers’ different settlement and financing needs.

During the first half of 2006, the total volume of international settlements reached USD420.49 billion, an increase of 12.6%
year-on-year. Of the total amount, USD269.9 billion was carried out by the Group’s domestic operations, a year-on-year increase of
10.7%, and USD150.5 billion was by overseas operations, a year-on-year increase of 16.2%. Thanks to the steady growth of domestic
economy, the volume of domestic trade finance surged sharply, with factoring business climbing 223%. The growth of international

trade finance slowed down due to the pickup of interest rate in the international market. In the first half of 2006, the Group undertook
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total volume of international trade finance of USD29.17 billion, a year-on-year increase of 13.3%. Of the total amount, USD13.14
billion was undertaken by domestic operations, and USD19.91 billion was by overseas operations. The volume of letters of guarantee
denominated in foreign currencies issued by domestic operations was USD4.77 billion, a year-on-year increase of 83.5%; and those
denominated in RMB was RMB37.3 billion, a year-on-year increase of 109.5%. The volume of international factoring transactions
undertaken by domestic operations was USD2.58 billion, representing an increase of 27.4% over the same period in last year; and the

volume of domestic factoring transactions was RMB12.76 billion, reflecting a year-on-year increase of 192.3%.

International Settlement Volume of the Group (Unit: USD billion)

Year 30 June 2006 30 June 2005

Business volume 420.49 373.39

The Bank strengthened innovation and improved portfolioed application of trade finance and fee-based products in the first half of
2006. A series of competitive products were launched, including “Export Quan Yi Da, Import Hui Li Da, Import Bao Fu Da, and
E-customs Declaration”. The Bank also developed such new products and services as forfeiting under export credit insurance. These
product innovations highlighted the Bank’s distinctive advantages in its products and services of international settlement and trade

finance, and have helped to consolidate its leadership in this arena.
Personal Banking

Personal banking refers to the financial services provided by the Bank to residents or households, including deposit-taking, lending,

wealth management and bank card services.

Savings Deposits: As at the end of June 2006, the balance of domestic RMB savings deposits was RMB 1,573.8 billion, an increase
of RMB157.44 billion over the prior year-end, representing a market share of 10.2%, an increase of 0.1 percentage point. The
balance of domestic foreign currency savings deposits totaled USD31.69 billion, a decrease of USD820 million from the prior
year-end, representing a market share of 49.8%. Savings deposits at overseas operations amounted to USD69.68 billion (including
RMB8.97 billion of savings deposits), an increase of USD1.91 billion. The decrease of foreign currency savings deposits was mainly
attributable to the reform of the RMB exchange rate regime, which buoyed the market’s expectation of further RMB appreciation and

weakened residents’ desire to hold such deposits.

Group Savings Deposits of the Group by Currencies (Unit: RMB billion)

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005
RMB savings deposits 1,582.7 1,425.4
Foreign currency 801.5 800.2
savings deposits
Total savings deposits 2,384.2 2,225.6

Personal Loans At the end of June 2006, the outstanding balance of domestic personal loans was RMB 404.7 billion, an increase of
RMB 24.7 billion from the prior year-end. Of the total personal loans, the balance of residential mortgage loans was RMB 308.4
billion, an increase of RMB 21.6 billion. The balance of overseas personal loans was USD 17.1 billion, a decrease of USD620

million from the prior year-end.

In the first half of 2006, the Bank strengthened marketing efforts of personal residential mortgage loans through its direct-sale model
under a unified brand, i.e. “Ideal Home”, and launched two competitive new products, namely “Yi Ju Bao” first-hand residential
mortgage loans and “An Ju Bao” second-hand residential mortgage loans. It also promoted strategic cooperation with leading real
estate developers in China. As at end of June 2006, the Bank has a network of over 7,000 domestic outlets offering consumer loans

through direct-sale model, accounting for more than 60% of all its outlets in the country.
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Personal Loans of the Group by Categories as of June 2006

Residential mortgage .
Auto loans Credit cards and others
loans
30 June 2006 79.07% 4.50% 16.43%
31 December 2005 78.97% 5.35% 15.68%

Note: (1) Others include personal investment and operation loan and personal loans to finance education.

Wealth Management In the first half of 2006, the Bank launched “BOC Global Wealth Management Service” in the wealth
management centers of domestic operations. Over 250 wealth management centers are capable of offering services of unified service
standard to the Bank’s VIP customers. During the period, the Bank also launched a series of foreign exchange wealth management
products which are linked to the performance of exchange rate, oil and gold, and RMB structured wealth management products
which are linked to the performance of exchange rate and gold. An advisory team was established comprising over 20 experts from
the Global Markets Department and Personal Banking Department of the Head Office, BOC Hong Kong, BOCI and BOCI China, to
promote the “BOC Wealth Management” brand among customers. The Bank has also built a stronger wealth management team with

over 2, 300 wealth management managers at various domestic branches, of whom nearly 900 are Certified Financial Planner.
Bank Cards

The Bank provides customers with such bank card services as single and dual-currency debit cards, quasi-credit cards, credit cards

and foreign currency card agency transaction services.

In the first half of 2006, the Bank steadily pushed forward the establishment of the credit card business unit in cooperation with the
Royal Bank of Scotland Group. It also strengthened the operation and risk management of bank card business, actively promoted per
card transaction volume and usage frequency and steadily increased bank card business income. The Bank’s domestic operations

realized total bank card fees of RMB960 million, a year-on-year increase of 51.4%.

As at the end of June 2006, the domestic operations of BOC issued a total of 94,633,800 Great Wall RMB Debit Cards, 7.03 million
BOC Great Wall Credit Cards, and 1.09 million BOC Credit Cards, an increase of 15.2%, 12.5% and 561%, respectively, over the
same period of last year. The volume of foreign currency card settlements was RMB 10,482 million, a year-on-year increase of

16.6%. Transaction volume of Great Wall RMB cards reached RMB65.1 billion, an increase of 47.7%.

In the first half of 2006, the Bank continued to enhance bank card product innovation, and launched a variety of bank cards,
including BOC City Card (a standard RMB credit card featured by installment), BOC Jiuguang JCB Co-Branded Credit Card, BOC
Beida Credit Card, and BOC Golden Eagle Co-Branded Card. It also jointly launched the Great Wall Jiashi Fund Co-Branded Card,
Great Wall Zhongsheng Co-Branded Card and some other cards with a number of large enterprises and public institutions. These

products were well accepted by the market.

Goods and Services Purchased with Great Wall RMB Cards of Domestic Operation (Unit: RMB billion)

30 June 2006 30 June 2005

Goods and services purchased with the cards 65.09 44.08

Treasury Business

The Bank is engaged in treasury business including investments and transactions on its own account, and meanwhile provides
treasury products and services for corporate and personal customers. It takes a leading position among domestic commercial banks in

foreign exchange treasury services.
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The Bank’s investment covers fields such as foreign currency bonds, money market, derivatives and asset management; its trading
business includes foreign exchange transactions, foreign exchange swaps, foreign exchange settlement and sale, foreign exchange
options, foreign currency bonds and derivatives, RMB bond and precious metal. The Bank has a league of experienced traders and

risk managers supporting its treasury business, ensuring that it earns profit with risks controlled within acceptable level.

The development and quotation of new products is one of the Bank’s major competitive edges. In recent years, the central bank has
launched a number of new initiatives, including the market maker system, tier-1 foreign exchange trader, OTC, forward, spot, interest
rate swap, and inter-bank RMB foreign exchange swap. These initiatives have seen pace of marketization of RMB exchange rate
regime quickened notably. Subsequently, the People’s Bank of China, CBRC and the State Administration of Foreign Exchange
jointly promulgated the Interim Administrative Measures for Commercial Banks to Provide Overseas Financial Management
Services, and Bank of China became one of the first banks approved to engage in overseas financial management services and
obtained the biggest quota. Leveraging on its treasury business, the Bank gradually promoted the innovation of treasury products and
attracted high-end customers by developing and offering customized products and services. In the first half of 2006, the Bank made
great efforts to exploit treasury products and services in the face of fierce market competition. Apart from RMB interest rate swap
and long-term forward exchange settlement and sales services, it also launched RMB structured wealth management products,
including “Game” retail wealth management products, and “Olympics” wealth management series products. To meet the wealth
management needs of corporate customers, the Bank also launched such products as “Four-Season Forward” and “Credit Garden”.
Its Huijubao personal foreign exchange wealth management series products have been named for the second consecutive year as

“Best Wealth Management Brand in China” by a domestic professional financial and economic website: www.hexun.com.

Gold bullion trading is one of the major treasury businesses of the Bank. As at 30 June 2006, the Bank held a 37% market share and
ranked first on Shanghai Gold Exchange, the sole gold exchange in China.

Operations of BOC Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (“BOC Hong Kong”) is a subsidiary in Hong Kong with 65.87% stake held by the Bank. BOC
Hong Kong is one of the major commercial banks and also one of the three note-issuing banks in Hong Kong. As at the end of June
2006, it had 302 branches, of which 287 operate in Hong Kong, 14 in Mainland and 1 overseas; and 454 ATMs. BOC Hong Kong
provides retail customers and corporate customers with a full range of financial products and services through its wide service
network. In the first half of 2006, BOC Hong Kong acquired 51% stake in BOC Group Life Assurance Limited, thus further
expanded its service scope and income sources. In the first half of 2006, BOC Hong Kong realized net profit of RMB4.57 billion

equivalent (excluding minority interests), a year-on-year increase of 14.5%.

During the period, braced by the strong external economies and robust Chinese economy, the Hong Kong economy continued to
register rapid growth. More employment opportunities were created, citizens’ income was increased, and investment market became
more active. The favorable economic environment has seen BOC Hong Kong’s profit increased steadily with net interest margin
expanded and non-interest income grew markedly compared with the same period of last year. Its investment agency business

achieved remarkable results, and income-cost ratio remained at a low level in the market.

BOC Hong Kong improved the structure of its deposit-taking business while maintaining its edges. As at the end of June 2006, the
balance of deposits from customers amounted to HKD 650,994 million, an increase of 1.9% over the end of last year. Rise in interest
rate, among other factors, suppressed demand for housing mortgage loans and market competition intensified, which led to a slight
decrease of 0.2% in BOC Hong Kong’s loan balance. In face of the adverse environment, BOC Hong Kong devoted great efforts to
optimize credit portfolio and improve process management, and achieved a steady growth of loans to small and medium enterprises.
The Bank also held the lead in the syndicated loan market, ranking second in the Hong Kong and Macau syndicated loan market and

third in the Hong Kong and China syndicated loan market.

In the first half of 2006, BOC Hong Kong continued to lead in Hong Kong’s RMB business market, achieving good performance in
all fields. RMB deposits rose slightly by 0.1%; its RMB credit card business takes a dominant market share, with total business
volume rising 60.3%. As at the end of June, BOC Hong Kong has total 236 ATMs which offer RMB cash withdrawal services. In
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March 2006, BOC Hong Kong formally launched RMB clearing system, providing a superior clearing platform and a strong
foundation for the further development of RMB business in Hong Kong. The launch of RMB-denominated personal checking
services has offered customers a new consumption option with more flexibility and convenience. Leveraging the synergy with the
parent bank, BOC Hong Kong remains driven in developing high-quality products and services with the aim of generating

sustainable superior return on capital and maximum value for shareholders.
Investment Banking

BOC International Holdings Limited (“BOCI”) is a wholly owned subsidiary registered in Hong Kong, and has 30 affiliates and
subsidiaries around the world. It is a full-service investment bank with a full-fledged investment banking team and an independent

international placement network.

In the first half of 2006, BOCI realized total profit of RMB 1.11 billion, an increase of 446% year on year. During the period, it
participated in six IPO projects in the capacity of exclusive/joint lead underwriter, and held a 28.5% share of the stock underwriting
market in Hong Kong in terms of funds raised. It topped the list of IPO underwriters in terms of total funds raised and number of IPO
projects. BOCI provides a wide range of asset management services through BOCI Prudential Asset Management Ltd (“BOCI
Prudential”). At the end of June 2006, total assets under management by BOCI Prudential reached HKD26.85 billion, an increase of
HKD1.5 billion or 5.9% from the prior year-end. In terms of Mandatory Provident Fund business in Hong Kong, BOCI Prudential
has a registered MPF membership of 0.46 million, and total assets under management exceeded HKD14 billion, accounting for

approximately 8% of the market.

BOCI (China) Limited (“BOCI China”), incorporated in March 2002, was the first Sino-foreign joint venture securities company
with comprehensive A-share brokerage license. As at 30 June 2006, BOCI China ranked first among all Chinese securities companies
in terms of total underwriting amounts. It also participated in underwriting the 15" issue of financial bonds of China Development
Bank, and ranked first among all the underwriters in terms of the underwriting amount. In the same period, it claimed second place

among Chinese securities companies in terms of volume of bond delivery.
Insurance Business

The Bank offers insurance services including life insurance and non-life insurance. Non-life insurance business is wholly owned and

operated by the Bank, and life insurance business is owned and operated jointly with the Bank’s subsidiary BOC Hong Kong.

Bank of China Group Insurance Company, Ltd (“BOCG Insurance”) and BOC Group Life Assurance Company, Ltd. (“BOCG Life”)

are responsible for specific operation of the Group’s insurance business.

In the first half of 2006, the insurance business of the Group achieved gross premium income of HKD648 million, translating into
RMB388 million in total profit, increased by 189% year on year. Main resources of insurance businesses include agency banking

business and broker business.

Sources of Gross Premium Income Unit: HKD million
At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 30 June 2005
Gross premium income by banking 293 514 283

agency service

Gross premium income by broker 355 752 402
agency service

Total 648 1,266 685

In 2006, BOCG Insurance penetrated into more specialized liability insurance market, including director liability insurance and
professional liability insurance. At the same time, following the “User-Pay” principle advocated by the government in the medical

system reforms, the Bank launched a series of tailored medical insurance programs. To expand overseas business, BOCG Insurance
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acquired a 32% stake in Luen Fung Hang Insurance Co., Ltd in the first half of 2006. In a move to penetrate into the life insurance
market of Macau and further consolidate the interaction of commercial banking, investment banking and insurance business, BOCG
Insurance transferred a 51% stake in BOCG Life to BOC Hong Kong, which opened a new chapter for the development of life

insurance business of BOCG Life.
Information Technology

The Bank realizes that IT construction is crucial to its future development. In the first half of 2006, the Bank continued to direct IT
efforts with supporting business development and ensuring secure operation. Progress was achieved for significant IT projects
including construction of the management information system, new online banking platform, and centralized international settlement
and trade finance system. Meanwhile, the infrastructure construction of a new information center and a disaster recovery center has
been initiated. The Bank is also systematically implementing the IT Blueprint; fundamental tasks including system training, gap
analysis and stress testing have been launched. Effective implementation of IT Blueprint is critical to the Bank’s reform,
development and innovation. It will help the Bank realize centralized processing of operational information of its branches to
intensify internal control, risk prevention and timely supervision by the internal audit, and formulate a customer-centered

management model based on business lines, thereby creating a powerful IT platform for sharpening the Bank’s competitive edge.
Risk Management

Risk management is an important part of the Bank’s management framework, which is the precondition to its robust, sustainable and
healthy development. In the first half of this year, the Bank further enhanced its risk management capability, improved credit asset

structure, improved credit asset quality to pursue sustainable and healthy development of its credit business.

The risk management framework of the Bank comprises the Board of Directors and the Risk Policy Committee under the Board, the
Internal Control Committee, the Anti-Money Laundering Committee, the Asset-Liability Management Committee and Assets
Disposal Committee under the Management, the Risk Management Department, the Credit Administration Department, the Asset &
Liability Management Department and Legal and Compliance Department. The Bank uses vertical management model to manage the
risks of domestic and overseas branches, and adopts window management model for business departments. It also monitors and

controls the risk management of subsidiaries through participation in their Boards of Directors or Risk Committee.
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty may be unable or unwilling to meet a debt obligation to the Bank when required.

The Bank’s credit risks are mainly from loans, trade finance and treasury business.

The Bank’ credit risk management process can be divided into three major stages: 1) credit origination and assessment; 2) credit

review and approval; and 3) loan granting and post-lending management.

Corporate Loans For corporate credit facilities, we continue to adopt the “three-in-one” credit decision-making mechanism. The
three components of this mechanism are an independent due diligence investigation, an independent risk review, a strict approval

process by authorized approvers and follow-up evaluation.

In the first half of 2006, the Bank continued its reform efforts in establishing centralized credit review and approval mechanism,
which is being implemented step by step. It adjusted the credit approval authority and authorization management model for overseas
operations, and enhanced the risk control over the total credit exposures to customers. To promote the sustainable and healthy

development of credit business to small enterprises, the Bank further clarified customer entry thresholds and launched pilot branches.

The Bank adopts a two-dimensional rating system that relates the customers’ credit rating logically with the classification of credit
asset. The results of customer credit rating are important basis for credit authorization management, customer entry and exit
management, credit approval, credit pricing, and classification of credit asset risks. The Bank plans to start the testing and subsequent
adoption of the probability-of-default-based customer credit rating model in the second half year. As at 30 June 2006, the balance of

domestic loans to A-rating customers accounted for 43.7% of the total, an increase of 1.8% over the end of last year.
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During the first half of 2006, the Bank established customer risk evaluation standards for large-amount credits, and formulated
corresponding management measures to improve the management of credit risks of the Bank. According to China’s
macro-adjustment policies and the development of the real estate market, the Bank strengthened risk supervision over industrial risk

and management of credits to the sector, and achieved steady improvement in the quality of real estate loans.

Five-tier loan classification approach, which was introduced in 1999, is an important part of the Bank’s ongoing credit monitoring. In
the first half year, the Bank continued to manage the special mention loans by subdividing them into high, medium and low risks

categories. The classification results have become more objective, and the balance and proportion of such loans kept decreasing.

Personal Loans In the first half of 2006, the Bank completed the centralization of approval authority for personal loans to tier-1
branches other than personal pledged loans and education loans. Meanwhile, it strengthened risk supervision of personal loans,
including overall monitoring by regions and products, and key monitoring and risk reporting of high-risk real estate projects,

distributors and customers.

The Bank reclaims on the debtors of non-performing loans mainly by means of negotiation, legal proceedings, debt restructuring and
write-off. The foreclosed assets will be disposed of in an open and transparent manner, generally through auction, invitation for bid

and submission of tenders and negotiated transfer.

Market Risk Market risk is the risk of loss to the Bank’s on-balance-sheet and off-balance-sheet operations that may result from
changes in interest rates, exchange rates, stock prices and commodity prices. Market risk exists in both trading and non-trading
business. The Bank manages market risk by setting up risk limits, which are determined by reference to different risk factors, such
as interest rates, exchange rates, commodity and stock prices, etc. A variety of risk measurement techniques, such as sensitivity limits,

were used in formulation of specific management measures.

VAR (Value at risk) is a kind of statistic methodology which is applied in evaluating the potential losses of risk positions caused by
fluctuation of interest rates, exchange rates, commodity and stock prices at designated confidence level during a specific period. The
table below shows the result of VAR analysis for the foreign currency trading portfolios of the Bank’s domestic business (exclusive

of comparative large-amount investment accounts or bank accounts of the Bank) as of 30 June 2006.

Unit: USD million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005
At the . . .
) Average High | Low | Period-end | Average High Low
period-end
Interest rate risk 4.88 8.10 16.25 0.82 4.77 3.27 11.94 0.20
Exchange rate risk 2.64 3.67 14.12 0.78 0.39 2.7 18.69 0.34
Fluctuation risk 0.19 0.68 4.63 0.16 0.36 0.8 2.54 0.04
Total market risk 5.84 8.10 19.15 | 1.84 15.6 51 18.86 0.69

Interest Rate Risk Management Interest rate risk is the risk of loss to interest income or the value of assets due to the volatility of
interest rates. We manage the interest rate risk of the banking book primarily through gap analysis, and use the gap analysis data to
perform stress-testing, on the basis of which we adjust the re-priced period structure of our assets and liability. Meanwhile, we
closely follow the trend of local and foreign currency interest rates, and adjust the interest rates of local and foreign currency deposits

and loans in a timely manner to avoid interest rate risk.

In respect of treasury products, the Bank adopts such indicators as VAR, duration and Price Value of a Basis Point (PVBP) to
measure interest rate risk, and utilizes stress-testing and scenario analysis to monitor risks. The Bank has also set up a series of risk
limits, which are closely monitored and managed. The Bank has established a globalized treasury product internal control platform
with an advanced market risk management infrastructure to effectively monitor the market risk of treasury products offered by its
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main branches.
Exchange Rate Risk Management

The Bank’s management of exchange rate risks covers trading accounts and non-trading accounts. Non-trading exchange rate risk
mainly arises from the currency mismatches in assets and liabilities, foreign exchange capital, investments in overseas subsidiaries,
and foreign currency profit or loss. The Bank seeks to reduce the exchange rate risk arising from currency mismatches in assets and
liabilities by matching the sources and use of our funds on a currency-by-currency basis. In addition, we also manage and control
exchange risk through settlement or hedging transactions.

However, the Group's ability to manage its foreign currency positions in relation to the RMB is limited as RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. According to the current applicable foreign currency policies of the PRC government, the conversion of foreign

currency is subject to application and approval by the relevant PRC government authorities. The Bank has taken following measures
to reduce its foreign exchange exposure:

In 2005, the Bank entered into a foreign currency option agreement with Central SAFE investments Limited having a notional
amount of USD18 billion to economically hedge a portion of its net on-balance sheet foreign currency position.

During the six month period ended 30 June 2006, the Bank executed certain foreign exchange transactions to reduce its net foreign

currency position by USD3.3 billion.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date in August 2006, the Bank further effected certain foreign exchange transactions, further

reducing its net foreign currency position by USD14.2 billion.

The risk of trading accounts mainly comes from the foreign exchange transactions the Bank is engaged in. The Bank took a variety of
measures according to its risk tolerance and operating capability to effectively reduce the possible losses caused by uncertain market

factors, including total exposure control, structural management, quota management, and valuation techniques.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk of funding availability at an appropriate cost when required to meet.

The objective of the Bank’s liquidity management is to ensure that the Bank have adequate liquidity at all times to satisfy payment of
deposits and other debts due and the development of asset-based business; and is able to raise enough funds at reasonable prices

within a certain period in the case of business opportunities or emergencies.

The Bank’s liquidity risk is managed on a consolidated basis at the Head Office. Liquidity management policy and measures are
applied across the Bank from top to down. Liquidity management mainly includes two scenarios, namely normal business
environment and emergent or extreme conditions. Under normal environment, the Bank regularly updates management policies and
guidelines, liquidity indicator management, liquidity gap management, position management, management of fund flow between the
Head Office and Branches, management of liquidity portfolios and financing guidelines, with the view to ensuring the normal
operation of the Bank’s asset and liability business and to adjusting the liquidity of the Bank to a proper level. In addition, the Bank
also monitors warning indicators, set up emergency programs and conduct financing capability testing to discover and prevent risk in

a timely manner.

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s asset and liability business registered healthy and steady development and liquidity was
managed effectively. As at 30 June 2006, all indicators relating the Bank’s liquidity status have met the regulatory requirements as

table below:

30 June 2006 Local Currency Foreign Currencies
Liquidity ratio 32.03% 45.88%
o ) 56.47% 71.95%
Loan-deposit ratio of domestic
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operations

Excess reserve ratio™ 2.58% 17.07%

» Deposit reserve refers to the deposits with the central bank for the purpose of guaranteeing the withdrawal of deposits and fund
clearing of customers, and deposit reserve ratio is the proportion of deposit reserve required by the central bank in total balance of
deposits.

Deposit reserve and deposit reserve ratio are composed of two parts. The deposit reserve ratio stipulated by the central bank is
called statutory deposit reserve ratio, which stands at 7.5% at present, i.e. commercial banks must deposit 7.5% of deposits received
with the central bank; the corresponding deposits is called statutory deposit reserve. The reserve beyond statutory deposit reserve is

called excess reserve, and the proportion of excess reserve in total deposits is the excess reserve ratio.

The above liquidity ratio is calculated in accordance with the relevant provisions of the People’s Bank of China and CBRC, and the

financial data are based on the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises and Financial Enterprise Accounting System.
Internal Control and Operational Risk

Internal Control The Bank is committed to continuously improve its internal control system by establishing three defense lines
composed of function management, compliance control and internal audit. By clarifying the responsibilities of all business units, the

Bank seeks to ensure effective risk prevention and optimum resource allocation from the management framework perspective.

The principal objective of developing internal control function is to establish a compliance culture and construct a comprehensive,
dynamic, proactive and verifiable internal control environment, which is based on a sound internal control infrastructure and rules
and regulations, supported by advanced information technology, guided by an effective incentive and accountability system, provides

checks and balance, and emphasizes refined process control.

As required by the Guidelines on Internal Control of Commercial Banks promulgated by the People’s Bank of China, the Bank
continuously reinforced internal control measures and improved internal control mechanism and environment in different business
and management lines, including corporate banking, treasury services, personal financial business, e-banking, bank card, and human
resources. Meanwhile, it also established key indicator monitoring system for internal control, to conduct key monitoring and

periodic reporting of key internal control indicators, including rotation, function in an acting capacity, and business errors.

Operational Risk Operational risk means the risk of losses caused by substandard or problematic internal procedures, personnel or
system or by external events. In the first half of 2006, the Bank cooperated with RBS in respect of the operational risk management
framework. The two parties carried out a preliminary study of operational risk management framework in line with the Bank’s
conditions. Work processes were developed covering operational risk and control review, key risk indicators, reporting of significant

events, etc. Pilot project relating operational risk and control assessment and key risk indicators was also activated.
Internal Audit

In order to fully realize the function of internal audit in our corporate governance structure, in the first half of 2006, the Bank
appointed an independent external consulting agency to conduct an overall evaluation of its internal controls by referring to
international internal audit industry best practices. Based on the evaluation results and regulatory requirements, the Bank started
improving the organizational structure of internal audits, management techniques, reporting lines and practical standards, and
devoted great efforts to build a new vertical, independent and effective internal audit system steered by the Board of Directors and
the Audit Committee. In the mean time, the Bank continuously improved the depth of its audits, focused on improvement in high-risk
and weak areas and significantly enhanced the effectiveness of internal controls. Under the internal audit plan which mainly
comprises regular audits while supplemented by special audits and individual case investigations, all levels of internal audit
departments, at home and abroad, had deepened the audits while giving consideration to its coverage. In the first half of 2006, the
Bank conducted regular internal audits on 6 overseas institutions, 9 tier-1 branches, 115 tier-2 branches, 689 urban sub-branches and

957 county-level sub-branches, and meanwhile completed 1,172 special internal audits (including 850 economic responsibility
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audits), and 31 case investigations.
Capital Management

The objective of the Bank’s capital management is to effectively plan various types of capital to ensure that its capital is in line with
the requirements of external regulations, credit rating, risk compensation and shareholder’s return. It also endeavors to optimize
financial ratios, improve the equity value and maximize shareholder’s value on a risk-controlled basis by making full use of capital

instruments and management measures. During the report period, the Bank's capital level is in line with all statutory requirements.
Outlook

In the second half of the year, we expect the Chinese economy will maintain its rapid growth momentum, thus providing a
favorable macro environment for the operation of the Bank. Presented with new circumstances and new missions, the Bank will
further study its strategy and strive to maintain stable and rapid growth for its various businesses, so as to ensure that the targets
set at the beginning of the year can be fulfilled. In addition, the Bank will also continue its reforms, bearing in mind the
requirements of the capital market. With respect to business development, the Bank will focus on developing its intermediary
business, speed up development of its personal banking business, and further optimize its business structure and income mix.
The Bank will also steadily develop its asset business with quality customers, control the speed of business development,
proactively manage its liabilities, lower fund costs and improve service quality. In terms of risk management, the Bank will
strengthen comprehensive risk management, refine its internal control systems, and establish three lines of defense comprising
functional management, compliance control and internal audit. The Bank also plans to take its organizational reforms and
process integration to further depth, and also accelerate the implementation of the IT Blueprint. The reforms in HR

management will continue, and more efforts will be devoted to improving management capability and staff quality.
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Fax: 010-66016871
E-mail: bocir@bank-of-china.com
Registered Office: No.1 Fuxingmen Nei Da Jie, Beijing, PRC China
Office Address: No.1 Fuxingmen Nei Da Jie, Beijing, PRC China
Post Code: 100818
Place of Business in Hong Kong: 8" Floor, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong

Credit Ratings (Long Term)
Standard & Poor’s: BBB+ Rating and Investment Information, Inc.: A-
Moody’s Invester Service : A2 Dagong Global Credit Rating Co., Ltd.: AAA

Fitch Ratings: A-

Website: http://www.boc.cn

Selected newspapers for disclosure: China Securities, Shanghai Securities, Securities Times, China Daily

Hong Kong Newspaper: South China Morning Post and Hong Kong Economic Journal

Website designated by CSRC to publish the Interim Report: http://www.sse.com.cn

Website designated by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited to publish the Interim Report: http://www.hkex.com.hk

Places where the Interim Report can be obtained: major business locations

Index Constituent

The Bank is a constituent of the following indices:
MSCI China Index

Shanghai Stock Exchange Index Series
FTSE/Xinhua China 25 Index

FTSE/Xinhua Hong Kong Index

Hang Seng China Enterprise Index (Effective from 11 September 2006)

Stock Codes

H shares:
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Reuters

Bloomberg

A shares:
The Shanghai Stock Exchange
Reuters

Bloomberg

Share Registrar
H shares: Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Hopewell Centre, 46" Floor, 183 Queen's Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
A shares: China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited,

Shanghai Branch

F/36, China Insurance Building, 166 Lujiazui East R.d., Pudong District, Shanghai

Other relevant information

Date of first registration: 31 October 1983

Modified registration date: 26 August 2004
Authority of first registration: State Administration of Industry and Commerce of PRC

Corporate business license serial number: 1000001000134
Financial license institution serial number: B10311000H0001
Tax registration certificate number: JGSXZ 110102100001342

DSJZ 110102100001342000

3988
3988.HK
3988 HK

601988
601988.SS
601988 CH

Appointed domestic auditor: PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified Public Accountants Limited Company

Address of appointed auditor: Floor 11, PWC Center, No.202 Hubin Road, Shanghai

Post Code: 200021

Appointed international auditor: PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong

Address of appointed auditor: 22/F, Prince’s Building Center, Hong Kong

Business scope: RMB deposit-taking; disbursement of short, medium and long-term loans, settlement; discount of bills; issuance of
financial bonds; issuance and redemption as an agency, and underwriting of government bonds; trading of government bonds;
inter-bank lending; provision of credit card services and guarantee; collection and payment and insurance agency services; safe box
services; foreign exchange deposits, loans and remittance; foreign currency exchange; international settlement; inter-bank foreign
exchange lending; acceptance and discount of foreign exchange bills; foreign exchange loans, guarantee, settlement and sales;
issuance and agency of foreign currency marketable securities other than stock for its own accounts or for customers’ accounts;
proprietary foreign exchange trading; foreign exchange trading for customers; issuance of foreign exchange credit cards and foreign
credit card issuance and payment as an agency; credit standing investigation, consultation and witness; organizing of or participation
in syndicated loans; trading of international precious metal; all banking services engaged by overseas operations as approved by local

laws; issuance of local currencies through branches in Hong Kong and Macau according to local laws and decrees or acting as an

4



agency; other services as approved by CBRC and other regulatory authorities.

This Report is prepared in both Chinese and English. Should there be any inconsistency between the Chinese and English

versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Staff

Director, Supervisors and Senior Management

Honorary Directors¥)

Name
CHEN Muhua
CHUANG Shih Ping

Board of Directors

Name

XIAO Gang

LI Lihui
ZHANG Jinghua
YU Erniu

ZHU Yan
ZHANG Xinze
HONG Zhihua
HUANG Haibo

Sir Frederick Anderson

Position
Honorary Chairperson

Honorary Vice Chairman

Position

Chairman

Vice Chairman and President
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

GOODWIN Non-Executive Director

SEAH Lim Huat Peter Non-Executive Director

HUA Qingshan Executive Director; Vice President
LI Zaohang Executive Director; Vice President
Anthony Francis NEOH Independent Non-Executive Director
William

Peter COOKE Independent Non-Executive Director
Patrick de

SAINT-AIGNAN Independent Non-Executive Director
Alberto TOGNI Independent Non-Executive Director

Notes:

1) Under PRC law, the honorary directors are not members of the Board of Directors and do not have any power or right to

vote on any matters considered by our Board under our Articles of Association.

Board of Supervisors

Name

LIU Ziqiang
WANG Xueqiang
LIU Wangming
LI Chunyu

LIU Dun

Senior Management

Name

LI Lihui

HUA Qingshan
LI Zaohang
ZHOU Zaiqun
ZHANG Yanling
ZHANG Lin

Position

Chairman of Board of Supervisors
Supervisor

Supervisor

Employee Supervisor

Employee Supervisor

Position

President

Executive Director; Vice President
Executive Director; Vice President
Vice President

Vice President

Secretary of the Party Discipline Committee
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ZHU Min Assistant President

ZHU Xingiang Assistant President
WANG Yongli Assistant President
Lonnie DOUNN" Chief Credit Officer

(“tendered his resignation in April 2006, effective in September 2006.)
YEUNG Jason Chi Wai Secretary to the Board of Directors

Human Resources and Management

Number of Institutions and Employees As of the end of June 2006, the Bank had 11,543 domestic and overseas branches and
subsidiaries, a reduction of 103 from the beginning of the year. Domestic branches and subsidiaries numbered 10,907, a reduction of
111 from the beginning of the year, and overseas branches and subsidiaries numbered 635, an increase of eight from the beginning of

the year.

As of the end of June 2006, the Bank had 197,636 regular employees, a decrease of 11,629 from the beginning of the year.
Employees of domestic operations numbered 179,453, a decrease of 11,375; and employees of overseas operations totaled 18,183, a

decrease of 254 from the beginning of the year. Besides, the Bank had 28,769 dispatched staff in its domestic operations.

Management of Human Resources In the first half of 2006, the Bank continued to reform its human resources management system.
Intensified efforts were made to adjust and staff the Management team of its branches, subsidiaries and departments of the Head
Office. The Bank launched leadership development model, and consolidated the supporting resources. Through in-depth position
appointment reform, the Bank gradually formed a merit-based recruitment system through fair competition. It also controlled the
headcount, and optimized staff structure constantly. Leveraging diverse channels, including campus recruitment and social
recruitment, it filled up post vacancy to satisfy the needs of business development and management. It also improved an all-round
remuneration system, guided domestic branches to design remuneration reform plans and calculate remuneration level, promoted the
implementation of remuneration reform, started the establishment of the corporate annuity system, and preliminarily set up a
long-term and standardized supplementary retirement insurance mechanism. It also enhanced performance management, set the
performance indicators for branches by virtue of balanced score card, reinforced process management, and guided each branch to

implement the scientific approach to development.

Training and Development of Human Resources The Bank devoted great efforts to the training of management personnel at high
and middle ranks. It developed senior leadership course in cooperation with Peking University and Business School of Harvard

University, and sent senior executives to participate in a senior management course provided by the RBS.

To support and boost business development, training was also provided to professionals in the fields of wealth management planning,
financial service marketing, operational risk, trading and settlement, etc. The Bank also strengthened training for frontline and new

employees. In the first half, the Bank organized 2,441 off-work training courses each over two days, training 95,577 persons.

Process Integration and Organizational Restructuring The Bank continued to promote the business process integration and
organizational restructuring. It conducted an overall investigation on the organizational framework, business process and operational
mechanism of RBS, in an effort to explore and study the direction of its own organizational framework reform in line with its own
conditions. By studying the setting up of strategic business units along the lines of corporate banking, personal banking and treasury
business and adjusting the functions of the branch outlets, the Bank will try to strengthen the management of business lines so as to
gradually establish a matrix management model commonly adopted by international financial institutions. As of the end of June 2006,
organizational resources of the Bank continued to be allocated in favour of key regions to optimize the geographical layout. The
Bank newly established 25 institutions/outlets, upgraded 216 institutions, and closed 192 small institutions/outlets of poor

development potential.
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Corporate Culture
The Bank intends to build a strong corporate culture with work ethics that encourages honesty and integrity, the drive for

performance, a people oriented spirit, diligence and accountability and the pursuit of excellence so as to achieve a seamless
integration of its corporate culture with the operation and management of the Bank. By leveraging on the directional guidance,
incentives and behavioural constraints accompanying the building of the corporate culture, we aim to align the strategic development

goal of the Bank with the career aspirations of our employees.

Corporate Governance

During the report period, the Bank has been in strict compliance with the Company Law and the Law for Commercial Banks as well
as other applicable laws of China. We continued to improve the organizational framework and management processes relevant to
good corporate governance and optimized the functions and responsibilities among the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors and
Senior Management, all in accordance with the rules and regulations enacted by the regulatory authorities but taking into account our
current conditions. All organizations relevant to our corporate governance operated independently according to the law and

performed their respective rights and obligations in accordance with their responsibilities set forth in the Articles of Association.

General Meeting of Shareholders

The Bank convened and held the general meeting of shareholders according to the related laws and regulations and the Articles of
Association of the Bank to ensure that all the shareholders have an equal right to know, participate and vote. During the first half of
2006, the Bank held the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and four interim meetings and reviewed work reports of the Board
of Directors and Board of Supervisors, proposal on business plan and financial budget, and profit distribution plan etc. The
Shareholders’ General Meeting has played a crucial role in promoting the development of the Bank and protecting the interest of the

investors and other stakeholders.

Directors and the Board of Directors

In the first half of 2006, one Independent Non-Executive Director and one Non-Executive Director were appointed to the Board of
the Bank. As of June 30, 2006, the Board consisted of 16 members, including the Chairman, four Independent Non-Executive
Directors, eight Non-Executive Directors and three Executive Directors. Within the report period, the Bank held five board meetings,
adopted resolution through voting by correspondence, and reviewed its development strategies, business plans, profit distribution
plans, the Board’s self-evaluation plans, 2005 Annual Report, objectives of performance management and bonus distribution plan for
senior management, [PO issuance plan, the alteration of articles of association and other proposals. All directors diligently performed
their responsibilities, guaranteed the practicability of the Board’s decisions, and maintained the interests of the Bank and all its

shareholders.

The Board of Directors has set up five special committees, namely Strategic Development Committee, Audit Committee, Risk Policy
Committee, Personnel and Remuneration Committee and Connected Transaction Control Committee. The five committees directly

report to the Board. The work performance of each committee in the first half of 2006 is as follows:
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Committees Work Performance

The committee held four meetings and mainly reviewed proposals such as the
Strategic Development Committee development strategies, business development plan for 2006-2008, and business

plan and financial budget for 2006 of the Bank.

The committee held four meetings and mainly reviewed proposals such as the
financial management measures of Bank of China Limited, improvement of internal
control, business plan and expense budget for 2006, the appointment, audit plan and
Audit Committee ) . .
audit fees of external auditors, profit forecast for 2006, financial report for year
2005 prepared in accordance with PRC GAAP and IFRS, and relevant auditors’

report.

The committee held two meetings and mainly reviewed proposals such as key risk
Risk Policy Committee management work and plan for 2006, report on the management key risk indicators,

and progress on the establishment of market risk management.

The committee held two meetings and mainly reviewed proposals such as the
) ) evaluation guide and self-evaluation plan of the Board of Directors, membership
Personnel and Remuneration Committee ) ) )
changes to special committees under the Board of Directors, and the measures on

performance management of Senior Management of the Bank.

The committee held two meetings and mainly reviewed such proposals as the
) ) management measures on connected transactions of the Bank, and plan on division
Connected Transaction Control Committee o )
of responsibilities for connected transaction control, and the rules of procedures of

the Connected Transaction Control Committee of the Board of Directors of BOC.

Supervisors and the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors of the Bank is composed of five members, including the Chairman of Board of Supervisors, two full-time
supervisors and two staff supervisors. The size and the composition of the Board of Supervisors comply with the supervisory
requirements and the Articles of Association. The Board of Supervisors examines and supervises the operation and the financial
activities of the Bank by holding meetings regularly, reading and checking various documents, debriefing the work report and reports

on certain issues from the management.
Senior Management

The Senior Management is the executive body of the Bank. Headed by the President, the Senior Management is composed of the
Vice Presidents and Assistant Presidents, who assist the President in managing the Bank’s business activities. The Senior
Management of the Bank is assessed and supervised by the Board of Directors. In the first half of 2006, the Objectives for
Performance Management and Scheme for Bonus Allocation of the Senior Management was deliberated and approved by the Board
of Directors of the Bank. In order to incentivize and motivate the Senior Management, the Bank set up scientific assessment and
evaluation standards; established the assessment mechanism in which the compensation of senior management personnel is linked to

his performance, responsibilities and risks while adhering to the principle of balancing incentives and constraints.
Investor Relations and Information Disclosure

The Bank strictly complies with relevant requirements strictly, and discloses all material information promptly, accurately, faithfully

and completely to ensure all shareholders are treated equally.

The Bank is committed to promoting investor relations in the capital market, and places investor relations management as top priority.
During the report period, the Bank faithfully, accurately, promptly and sufficiently fulfilled its responsibilities of information
disclosure and promoted the interests of its investors through meetings with institutional investors, press and analysts, and by

adopting multiple communication channels such as launching an IR page on its website, arranging one-on-one meetings and various
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communication tools such as mail, phone and fax.
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Significant Events

i Profit Distribution during the Report Period

Profit Distribution in 2005 The 2005 profit distribution plan of the Bank was adopted at the 2005 annual general meeting of
shareholders, i.e., to distribute a profit of RMB 1.375 billion to the registered shareholders of the Bank as of 31 December 2005. The

plan has been implemented.

According to the resolutions of the board meeting held on 29 August of 2006, the Bank transferred 10% of the net profit from
January to June 2006 to the statutory surplus reserve, set aside RMB4, 291 million as general reserve fund. The Bank does not

declare any dividend for the first half of 2006.

ii Listing of H-Share and A-Share

The H-Share of the Bank was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) on 1 June
2006. 25,568,590,000 H-Shares were issued on the initial public offering. Following the exercise of the over-allotment option on 9
June, a further 3,835,288,000 H-Shares were issued. The issuance of H-Share accounted for 11.9% of the total enlarged share capital
at an issue price of HK$2.95 per share. With the issuance of the shares, US$11.2 billion was raised. The H-Share IPO was the fourth
largest IPO around the world to date, the largest for the financial sector, the largest in Asia excluding Japan, and the largest global

offering by a Chinese company.

The Bank issued its A-Share in the domestic market from 19 to 23 June. These shares were issued at an issue price of RMB 3.08 per
share and commenced trading on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 5 July 2006. As the largest domestic listing of A-Share on the
domestic market so far, 6,493,506,000 A-Share were offered, representing 2.56% of the fully diluted share capital. A total of RMB
19,999,998,480 was raised, and our IPO is the largest A share offering to date.

The IPOs of H-Share and A-Share account for 14.14% of the total enlarged share capital of the Bank. After the IPOs, the share capital
of the Bank increased to RMB 253,839,162,009 or 253,839,162,009 shares. The two IPOs and successful listing marked a milestone
in the stock reform of the Bank. Since 19 July 2006, the Bank (A share code: 601988) has been included in SSE 180 index and SSE
50 index

iii Changes in Share Capital and Shareholdings of Major Shareholders
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1. Changes in Share Capital:

1 Jan, 2006 30 June 2006
Shares
transferred
Allotment Bonus Increase of share
Number of shares feh from the ol Others Subtotal Number of shares
of shares capita
Shares surplus p
reserve
I. Unlisted shares
i. Shares held by the
state (promoter’s 174,128,718,217 -2,803,313,477 -2,803,313,477 171,325,404,740
shares)
ii. Shares held by the
8,514,415,652  -8,514,415,652 -8,514,415,652

state

iii. Shares held by

domestic legal person

iv. Shares held by

foreign legal person

35,298,644,140

-35,298,644,140

-35,298,644,140

v. Shares of legal

person promoters

vi. Shares held by
staff

vii. Preferred shares

or other shares

6,493,506,000

6,493,506,000

6,493,506,000

Subtotal

209,427,362,357

177,818,910,740

II. Listed shares

i. RMB-denominated

ordinary shares

ii. Domestically listed

foreign shares

iii. Overseas listed

foreign shares

29,403,878,000

46,616,373,269

76,020,251,269

76,020,251,269

iv. Others
Subtotal 0 76,020,251,269
III. Total 209,427,362,357 253,839,162,009
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1. The number of shares in the column of “Preferred Shares or Other Shares” is the amount of the A Share offered by the Bank to the
public from 12 to 29 June, 2006, which were registered with the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation on 29 June 2006, and commenced trading on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 5 July 2006.

2. The Bank invited the National Council for Social Security Fund (SSF) as a strategic investor on 13 March 2006, to which
8,514,415,652 ordinary shares were offered. 25,568,590,000 IPO H-shares were issued in May 2006. 35,298,644,140 non-listed
foreign funded shares previously held by BOC’s foreign strategic investors, 8,514,415,652 ordinary shares by the SSF, and
2,803,313,477 ordinary shares transferred by Central SAFE Investments Limited, sponsor of BOC, to SSF, as required by the State,
were converted to H Shares, and listed at the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 1 June along with the H shares already offered to the
public. The H Share over allotment option was exercised in full, involving 3,835,288,000 H shares on 9 June 2006. In June 2006, 6,
493, 506, 000 A shares were offered to the public. On 29 June, 2006, the A shares offered to the public by BOC and 171,325,404,740
ordinary shares held by Central SAFE Investments Limited, sponsor of the Bank, were registered as A-shares. The A-Shares of the
Bank were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 5 July 2006. As of 5 July 2006, the Bank has issued 177,818,910,740 A shares
and 76,020,251,269 H shares, representing 253,839,162,009 ordinary shares in aggregate.

2. Number of shareholders and shareholdings

Total number of shareholders: As of the end of the reporting period, the Bank’s shareholders (A-Share+ H-Share) numbered
1,060,828, including 457,146 holders of H-Share and 603,682 holders of A-Share. (The Number of shares held by H share

shareholders are those recorded in the Register of Members as kept by the H Share Register of the Bank)
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Top Ten Shareholders

No. Name of Shareholder Type of Type of Share Shareholding at the End Proportion in Total Shares
Shareholder of Report Period (As of Share Capital Pledged or
30 June 2006) (%) Frozen
Shares
1 Central SAFE
State owned A Share 171,325,404,740 67.49%
Investments Limited
P HKSCC Nominees )
Foreign H Share 30,341,965,800 11.95%
Limited
3 RBS China Investments )
Foreign H Share 20,942,736,236 8.25%
S.arl
4 Asia Financial Holdings )
Foreign H Share 10,471,368,118 4.13%
Pte Ltd
5 National Council for
Social Security Fund, State owned H Share 8,377,341,329 3.30%
PRC
6 UBS AG Foreign H Share 3,377,860,684 1.33%
7 Asia Development )
Foreign H Share 506,679,102 0.20%
Bank
8 The Bank of
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Foreign H Share 473,052,000 0.19%
Ltd
9 Wingreat International )
Foreign H Share 420,490,000 0.17%
Limited
10 Best Sense Investments )
o Foreign H Share 236,526,000 0.09%
Limited
10 Turbo Top Limited Foreign H Share 236,526,000 0.09%

among the above shareholders.

52

The Bank is not aware whether the shares of the above shareholders have been pledged or frozen, or the connected relationships




Top Ten Shareholders Whose shares are not subject to Selling Restrictions (as at 5 July 2006, being the date of listing of
A-Share, the shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited is as at 30 June 2006)

No. Name of Shareholder Listed Trading Shares Type of Share
1 HKSCC Nominees Limited 30,341,965,800 H Share
2 ICBC- GF Strategic Selection Balanced Securities | 70,669,000 A Share

Investment Fund

3 Shanghai Huiyin Investment Limited Corporation 70,000,000 A Share

4 ICBC- E Fund Value Selection Stock Securities | 50,397,000 A Share

Investment Fund

5 China Life Insurance (Group) Company - | 38,765,000 A Share

Traditional-General Insurance

6 China Life Insurance Company Limited- Dividend- 29 076. 000 A Share
Personal Divident-005L-FH002 SH

7 China Life Insurance Company Limited- | 23,982,000 A Share
Dividend-Group Divident-005L-FH001 SH

8 China Pacific Life Insurance Co., | 23,357,300 A Share
Ltd-Dividend-Personal Dividend

9 China Life Insurance Company | 23,260,000 A Share
Limited-Traditional-General Insurance-005L-CTO001
SH

10 23,101,000 A Share

Bank of Communications- Hua An Innovation

Explanation of the connected relations and the concerted action | Except that some of the above sharcholders may be under the
among the above shareholders management of the same corporation, the Bank is not aware of
the connected relations and the concerted action among the

above shareholders.
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Substantial Interests in Share Capital

The register maintained by the Bank pursuant to section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) of the laws of Hong
Kong recorded that, as at 30 June 2006, the following corporations had the following interests (as defined in the SFO) in the Bank set

opposite their respective names:

Name of Shareholders Number of shares held | Type of | % of total | % of total | % of total | Capacity
shares issued A | issued H | issued share
shares shares capital
Central SAFE Investments | 171,325,404,740 A 96.35% - 67.49% Beneficial owner
Limited
The Royal Bank of | 20,944,789,236 H - 27.55% 8.25% Attributable
Scotland Group PLC N¢! interests &

beneficial owner

RBS CI Limited No'¢! 20,942,736,236 H - 27.54% 8.25% Attributable
interests &

beneficial owner

RBS China Investments | 20,942,736,236 H - 27.54% 8.25% Beneficial owner
S.arl.

Temasek Holdings | 11,792,559,118 H - 15.51% 4.65% Attributable
(Private) Limited N2 interests
National  Council  for | 11,317,729,129 H - 14.89% 4.46% Beneficial owner
Social Security Fund of

the PRC

UBS AG 3,892,847,114 H - 5.12% 1.53% Attributable

interests, beneficial
132,154,877 (S)* 0.17% 0.05%
owner & person
having a security

interest in shares

*  **S” denotes short positions
Notes:

1. The Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC (“RBS Group”) holds the entire issued share capital of RBS CI
Limited, which in turn holds 51.61% of RBS China Investments S.a.r.l. (“RBS China”). Accordingly, RBS
Group and RBS CI Limited are deemed to have the same interests in the Bank as RBS China for the purpose of
the SFO.

2. Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited (“Temasek”) holds the entire issued share capital of Fullerton
Management Pte Ltd, which in turn holds the entire issued share capital of Asia Financial Holdings Pte Ltd.
Accordingly, for the purpose of the SFO, Temasek and Fullerton Management Pte Ltd are deemed to have the
same interests in the Bank as Asia Financial Holdings Pte Ltd, which has an interest in 11,785,825,118 shares

of the Bank.

All the interests stated above represented long positions except stated otherwise. Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2006, no

other interests or short positions were recorded in the register maintained by the Bank under section 336 of the SFO.
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iv Significant Related Party Transactions (please refer to Article 5 of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statement under

Related Party Transaction)

v Except as stated below, the Bank did not have material merger and acquisition, or sales of assets during the report period.
Followed are highlights of the current report period in purchases & sales of assets and mergers:

On 1 June, 2006, BOCG Insurance, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, sold a 51% stake of BOCG Life to BOC Hong Kong
which the Bank holds a stake of 65.87%, at the purchase price of HKD 900 million by reference to the valuation of BOCG Life as of
31 December 2005. The Group effectively sold a 17.4% stake of BOCG Life to minorities of BOC Hong Kong, and achieved a gain
of RMB 138 million.

Bank of China Group Investment Limited, a Hong Kong subsidiary of the Group, sold loans at a book value of RMB 63 million to an
independent third party in May 2006, giving rise to an income of RMB 723 million, with net income at RMB 660 million.

vi Major Contracts and Performance
During the report period and except as disclosed, the Bank does not have material assets business with other companies to custody,

contract or lease their assets, or entrust other companies to custody, contract or lease the Bank’s assets.

The guarantee business is one of our off-balance items in the ordinary course of our business. We carry out guarantee business in a
prudent manner, and manage risk according to the five-category classification of loans to ensure the asset quality of our guarantee

business.

During the report period, no cash assets of the Bank were entrusted to others for management.

vii Undertakings

During the report period, the Bank or shareholders holding shares of more than 5% (including 5%) have not made undertakings that
might have significant adverse impact on the operational results and financial position of the Bank.

viii Material Litigation and Arbitration

During the report period and except as disclosed herein, there was no material litigation and arbitration that might have significant
adverse impact on the operation of the Bank.

As of 30 June 2006, The Bank has involved in certain litigation and arbitration cases in regular businesses. Consulting professional
legal firms, the Management holds that these litigation and arbitration cases will not have significant adverse impacts on the

operation of the Bank.
iXx Appointment and Dismissal of Auditors

The Bank has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified Public Accountants Limited Company and

PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong as its domestic and international statutory external auditors respectively.
x Punishment and Remedial Actions Required by the Bank, Board of Directors and Directors
During the report period, none of the Bank, the Board of Directors or any Director was subject to any investigation and

administrative punishment from the CSRC, or was the subject of a public reprimand from any stock exchange.
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xi Explanation on the Alteration of Business Plan

During the report period and except as publicly disclosed, there has been no material amendment to the Bank’s business plan.

xii Warnings and Reasons for Predicted Loss or Significant Changes in Net Accumulated Profit from the Beginning of the
Year to the End of Next Report Period

The Bank does not believe that the net accumulative profit earned from the beginning of the year to the end of the next report period

would result in a loss, nor would there be significant changes compared with the same period of last year.
xiii Use of IPO Proceeds
Fund raising in the current report period is as follow:

Pursuant to the Response of CBRC on BOC’s Absorption of Investment and Shareholding by SSF (YJF [2006] No. 49), the Bank
issued to SSF 8,514,415,652 ordinary shares on 13 March 2006, par value RMB 1 for each share at a premium. SSF contributed
RMB 10 billion in cash, with the capital contribution including an equity premium of RMB1, 481 million.

Pursuant to the Response of CBRC on BOC’s Transformation to Overseas Offering and Listing of Shares (YJF [2006] No. 53) and
the Response on Approving BOC’s Issuance of Foreign Capital Stock Listed Abroad (ZJGHZ [2006] No.8), the Bank issued at a
premium to foreign investors 29,403,878,000 foreign capital stocks listed abroad (H Share) on 1 June 2006 and 9 June 2006, par
value of RMB 1 for each share, which were publicly listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange at an issue price of HK$2.95 per

share.

Pursuant to the Response of CBRC on BOC Issuing Stocks and Going Public (YJF [2006] No. 135) and the Circular on Approval of
BOC Initial Public Offering (ZJFXZ [2006] No.20), the Bank issued at a premium to domestic investors 6,493,506,000 ordinary
shares (A Share) on 29 June 2006, par value of RMB 1 for each share, which were publicly listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange at
an issue price of RMB3.08 per share.

Funds raised within the report period are mainly used to strengthen the Bank’s capital base.

xiv The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Bank is composed of non-executive directors, including two non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. Independent non-executive director Patrick de Saint-Aignan is the Chairman; and Zhu Yan,

Huang Haibo, Anthony Francis Neoh and Peter Cooke are members of the Committee.

The Committee assisted the Board of Directors in supervising the Group’s oversight of financial reporting, internal control, internal

audit and external audit etc.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the interim results of the Bank .The Bank’s external auditors have carried out a review of the
interim financial statements in accordance with the Independent Auditing Practice Pronouncement No.10 — Engagements to Review
Financial Statement but not audited in accordance with Chinese Independent Auditing Standards. The Audit Committee has discussed
matters such as the accounting standards and the auditing practice, internal control and financial statements adopted in the interim

report.
xv Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

On 5 July 2002, the following Directors were granted options by BOC Hong Kong (BVI) Limited (“BOC (BVI)”), the immediate
holding company of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited, pursuant to a Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme to purchase from BOC
(BVI) existing issued shares of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited at a price of HK$8.50 per share. BOC Hong Kong (Holdings)

Limited is a subsidiary of the Bank which is also listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. These options have a vesting period of
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four years from 25 July 2002 with a valid exercise period of ten years. Twenty-five percent of the shares subject to such options will

vest at the end of each year.

Particulars of the outstanding options granted to the Directors under the Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme as at 30 June 2006 are set

out below:
Number of share options
Exercise
) Balances as Exercised Surrendered Lapsed Balances as
price . . .
Granted on 5 at 1 January, during the during the during the at 30 June
Date of grant  (HKS) Exercisable Period July, 2002 2006 period period period 2006
HUA Qingshan 5 July 2002 8.50 25 July 2003 to 4 1,446,000 1,446,000 — — - 1,446,000
July 2012
LI Zaohang 5 July 2002 8.50 25 July 2003 to 4 1,446,000 1,446,000 - - - 1,446,000
July 2012

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period under review was the Bank, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors and Supervisors of the Bank and their respective spouses or
children below the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other

body corporate.

Directors and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

Save as disclosed above, as of 30 June 2006, none of the Directors or Supervisors of the Bank had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Bank or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Bank pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Bank and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

xvi Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Bank’s Shares

The Bank issued to SSF 8,514,415,652 ordinary shares on 13 March 2006 at a premium.

The Bank issued 25,568,590,000 IPO H shares in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 1 June 2006, with the over-allotment option
exercised on 9 June 3,835,288,000 H-Shares were issued.

The Bank issued 6,493,506,000 new A shares on 29 June 2006, and the Bank's A shares were listed and commenced trading on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange on 5 July 2006.

Save for the above, neither the Bank nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Bank’s shares.

xvii Compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices of the Listing Rules

The Bank endeavored to establish good corporate governance principles and practices and believed that upholding international
standards of corporate governance is crucial to safeguarding the interests of shareholders. The Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors have been organized in line with relevant laws and regulations. The Board of Directors is accountable to the general
meeting of shareholders and responsible for, among other things, approving the Bank ’s business strategy and operating plans,

appointing senior management and establishing organization structure. With the Board of Directors at the core, the Bank has set up a
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number of Board committees, namely Strategic Development Committee, Audit Committee, Risk Policy Committee, Personnel and
Remuneration Committee and Connected Transaction Control Committee to perform functions designated by the Board of Directors.
The Board of Supervisors is accountable to the general meeting of shareholders and has the responsibility and power to, among other

things, supervise the Board of Directors and senior management, inspect the Bank ’s financial activities and examine decisions made.

The Bank has conducted a gap analysis between the requirements of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the one hand and the Group’s internal
requirements and practices on the other hand. The Bank has been in full compliance with the code provisions and has substantially

complied with the recommended best practices set out in the CG Code.

xviii Compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Bank has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange to govern securities transactions by Directors. The Bank has made specific enquiry
of all Directors of the Bank, and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in the said

Model Code throughout the period under review.

xix Compliance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and Accounting Principles for Financial

Institutions

The Interim report as at the end of the first half of 2006 is in compliance with the requirements of Interim Report, PRC Accounting

Standards for Business Enterprises and Accounting Principles for Financial Enterprise.

xx Interim Report

This Interim Report is available in both English and Chinese. The Chinese and English versions of this Interim Report is available by
writing to the Bank ’s H Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Hopewell Centre, 46™ Floor, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The Chinese and English versions of this Interim Report are available at major business
locations of the Bank. This Interim Report is also available (in both English and Chinese) on the Bank ’s website at www.boc.cn,

www.sse.com.cn, and www.hkex.com.hk.

If you have any queries about how to obtain copies of this Interim Report or how to access those documents on
the Bank ’s website, please call the Bank ’s hotline at (852) 2862 8633 or 8610-66596688.
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REVIEW REPORT

PwC ZT SZ (2006) No. 302
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BANK OF CHINA LIMITED:

We have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of Bank of China Limited (the “Bank”) as of 30
June, 2006, and its profit and loss account and cash flow statement for the period then ended, and
the consolidated balance sheet of Bank of China Group (the “Group” comprising the Bank and its
subsidiaries) as at 30 June 2006 and its consolidated profit and loss account and cash flow
statement for the period then ended. The Bank’s management is responsible for preparing these
condensed financial statements. Our responsibility is to issue a report on these financial statements
based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Independent Auditing Practice Pronouncement
No.10 - Engagements to Review Financial Statements. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of
company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provides less
assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, the Accounting System for Financial Institutions and
other relevant accounting regulations.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian

Certified Public Accountants Limited Company

Shanghai, China
29 August 2006



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 30 JUNE 2006

(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Assets

Cash
Precious metals

Due from central banks
Government certificates of
indebtedness for bank

Trading and other debt
securities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial
instruments

Due from and placements
with banks and other

Debt securities
Loans and advances to
customers

Less: Provision for loan
losses

Interest receivable
Equity investments
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

Total assets

Note

.1

1.2

1.3

.4

H.5; 1IV.1

111.6; IV.2

1.7, 1V.3

111.13

Bank of China Group

Bank of China Limited

30 June 31 December 30June 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
29,811 28.644 26,684 25,144
40,649 30,314 39,003 28,577
340,651 316,941 314,986 284,373
36,094 35,586 1,650 1,641
110,602 107,271 81,224 82,082
21,540 16,808 15,136 11,329
300,114 344 537 223,651 256,786
1,877,669 1,562,320 1,570,481 1,297,990
2,405,536 2,235,046 2,042,201 1,868,105
(88,128) (83,153) (84,753) (79,581)
23,187 20,408 18.726 16.107
14,775 15.393 69.439 66.951
71,208 72,978 52,169 53,392
3,940 3,342 3,933 3,331
17.410 17,561 17.298 17.428
21,875 18,810 11,076 10,384
5,226,933 4,742,806 4,402,904 3,944,039




BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 30 JUNE 2006

(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Liabilities

Due to central banks

Bank notes in circulation

Derivative financial instruments
and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Due to and placements from
banks and other financial

Deposits from customers
Interest payable

Special purpose borrowings
Bonds issued

Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Minority interests

Shareholder’s equity
Share capital
Capital reserve
Surplus reserve

General reserve and statutory
reserve of subsidiary

Undistributed profits
Reserve for fair value changes of
available-for-sale securities

Currency translation differences

Total shareholder’s equity

Total liabilities and shareholder’s
equity

Note

1.8

1.9

111.10; IV.4

.11
111.12
111.13
111.14

111.16

.17
111.18

111.19

111.19
111.19

111.19

Bank of China Group

Bank of China Limited

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30,495 30,055 30.470 30,030
36,151 35,731 1,708 1,786
101,172 91,174 80,777 76,323
358,349 345,233 350,337 343,574
4,053,024 3,703,777 3,356,973 3,009,187
31,485 27,024 29,559 25,291
49,622 52,164 49,622 52,164
60,177 60,179 60,177 60,179
254 184 22 22
119,751 134,665 85,618 111,641
4,840,480 4,480,186 4,045,263 3,710,197
28,812 28,778 - -
253,839 209,427 253,839 209,427
76,545 3,978 75,888 3,978
8,095 5,987 8,095 5,987
9,398 5,109 9,398 5,109
23,837 12,585 24,494 12,585
(11,954) (1,380) (11,954) (1,380)
(2,119) (1,864) (2,119) (1,864)
357,641 233,842 357.641 233,842
5,226,933 4,742,806 4,402,904 3,944,039

The accompanying notes form an intearal part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative and Chairman:

Xiao Gang

Deputy Chairman and President:
Li Lihui

Vice President in charge of accountinag function:
Zhou Zaigun

General Manager in charge of the Accounting
Liu Yanfen



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income
Net trading (expense)/income
Investment income

Other operating income, net

Operating and administrative expenses

Business tax and surcharges

Operating profit

Non-operating income, net
Profit before impairment losses

Impairment losses
Profit before tax
Income tax

Profit after tax
Minority interests
Net profit

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to the shareholders of
the Bank during the
period(expressed in Renminbi per
ordinary share)

- Basic
- Diluted

For the six month period ended 30 June

Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Group

Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
111.20; IV.5 99,777 77,466 79,525 66,038
111.20; IV.5 (45,301) (28,808) (33,197) (24,401)
54,476 48,658 46,328 41,637
111.21; IV.6 6,841 4,518 4,762 3,029
11.22; IV.7 (193) 2,993 (282) 2,250
111.23; IV.8 1,681 149 7,652 4,840
.24 1,797 361 245 12
64,602 56,679 58,705 51,768
111.25; IV.9 (23,193) (21,000) (19,715) (17,744)
11.26 (2,987) (2,670) (2,952) (2,650)
38,422 33,009 36,038 31,374
467 1,145 222 777
38,889 34,154 36,260 32,151
111.27; IV.10 (4,876) (4,576) (5,680) (6,116)
34,013 29,578 30,580 26,035
.28 (12,362) (10,860) (10,937) (9,601)
21,651 18,718 19,643 16,434
(2,627) (2,284) - -
19,024 16,434 19,643 16,434
111.29
0.09 0.09
0.09 0.09

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative and Chairman:
Xiao Gang

Deputy Chairman and President:
Li Lihui

Vice President in charge of accounting function:

Zhou Zaigun

General Manaaer in charge of the Accounting

Liu Yanfen
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'’S EQUITY
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

At 1 January 2006
Net profit for the period
Issue of ordinary shares

Appropriation to statutory reserve

Appropriation to general and
regulatory reserves

Net fair value changes of available-
for-sale securities

Dividend
Currency translation differences
Others

At 30 June 2006

Note

.17;111.18
.19

.19

.19
.19

Unaudited
Bank of China Group

Reserve for fair ~ Currency

General and value changes translation

Share Capital Statutory regulatory Undistributed  of available-for-  difference
capital reserve Reserves reserves profits  sale securities s Total
209,427 3,978 5,987 5,109 12,585 (1,380) (1,864) 233,842
- - - - 19,024 - - 19,024
44,412 72,567 - - - - - 116,979
- - 2,108 - (2,108) - - -
N - - 4,291 (4,291) - - -
- - - - - (10,574) - (10,574)
- - - - (1,375) - - (1,375)
- - - - - - (255) (255)
- - - ) 2 - - -
253,839 76,545 8,095 9,398 23,837 (11,954) (2,119) 357,641

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative and Chairman:

Xiao Gang

Deputy Chairman and President:
Li Lihui

Vice President in charge of accounting function:
Zhou Zaigun

General Manager in charge of the Accounting
Liu Yanfen



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'’S EQUITY
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Unaudited
Bank of China Limited
Reserve for fair ~ Currency
General and o value changes translation
Share Capital Statutory regulatory Undistributed f ayajlable-for- difference
Note capital reserve Reserves reserves profits sale securities s Total
At 1 January 2006 209,427 3,978 5,987 5,109 12,585 (1,380) (1,864) 233,842
Net profit for the period - - - - 19,643 - - 19,643
Issue of ordinary shares 11.17;111.18 44,412 72,219 - - - - 116,631
Appropriation to statutory reserve .19 - - 2,108 - (2,108) - - -
Appropriation to general and
regulatory reserves .19 - - - 4,291 (4,291) - - -
Net fair value changes of available-
for-sale securities .19 - - - - - (10,574) - (10,574)
Dividend .19 - - - - (1,375) - - (1,375)
Currency translation differences - - - - - - (255) (255)
Others .18 - (309) - 2) 40 - - (271)
At 30 June 2006 253,839 75,888 8,095 9,398 24,494 (11,954) (2,119) 357,641
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Legal Representative and Chairman: Vice President in charge of accounting function:
Xiao Gang Zhou Zaigun
Deputy Chairman and President: General Manaager in charge of the Accounting
Li Lihui Liu Yanfen



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'’S EQUITY

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2005
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

At 1 January 2005

Net profit for the year

Additions

Net changes in fair value of
available-for-salesecurities reserve
Currency translation differences

At 30 June 2005

Unaudited
Bank of China Group and Bank of China Limited

General reserve and Reserve for fair value Currency

Share Statutory statutory reserve Undistributed changes of available-  translation
Note capital reserves of subsidiary profits for-sale securities  differences Total
186,390 3,140 419 17,373 (2,315) 344 205,351
- - - 16,434 - - 16,434
- 75 2,480 (2,555) - - -
. . - - 3,349 - 3,349
- - - - - (354) (354)
186,390 3,215 2,899 31,252 1,034 (20) 224,780

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative and Chairman:
Xiao Gang

Deputy Chairman and President:
Li Lihui

Vice President in charge of accounting function:

Zhou Zaigun

General Manager in charge of the Accounting

Liu Yanfen



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'’S EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

At 30 June 2005

Net profit for the year
Issue of ordinary shares
Appropriation

Net fair value changes of available-for-
sale securities

Dividend

Adoption of equity accounting for
investment in an associate

Currency translation differences

Others

At 31 December 2005

Note

.17
.19

111.19
.19

Unaudited
Bank of China Group and Bank of China Limited
General reserve Reserve for fair
and statutory value changes of Currency
Share Capital  statutory reserve of Undistributed available-for-sale translation
capital reserve  reserves subsidiary profits securities differences Total

186,390 - 3,215 2,899 31,252 1,034 (20) 224,780
- - - - 11,058 - - 11,058
23,037 3,964 - - - - - 27,001
- - 2,772 2,210 (4,982) - - -
- - - - - (2,414) - (2,414)
- - - - (26,937) - - (26,937)
- - - - 2,194 - - 2,194
- - - - - - (1.854) (1.854)
- 14 - - - - - 14
209,427 3,978 5,987 5,109 12,585 (1,380) (1,864) 233,842

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative and Chairman:
Xiao Gang

Deputy Chairman and President:
Li Lihui

Zhou Zaigun

Liu Yanfen

Vice President in charge of accounting function:

General Manager in charge of the Accounting



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

For the six month period ended 30 June
Note Bank of China Group  Bank of China Limited
2006 2005 2006 2005
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest received 96,998 75,995 76,906 64,952
Commission received 7,505 5,919 5,218 3,701
Cash received from bad debts written-off

previously 986 1,823 250 607
Net increase in customer deposits (including

structured deposits ) 349,247 246,881 347,786 248,163

Net decrease/(increase) in due from and
placements with banks and other financial

institutions 15,392 58,072 39,448 17,039

Net increase in due to and placements from
banks and other financial institutions 13,116 45,141 6,763 20,378
Net change in other operating items (2,811) 392 (18,114) (10,686)
Cash inflows from operating activities 480,433 434,223 458,257 344,154

Cash paid for interest on customer deposits

and inter-bank balances (39,461) (24,782) (27,550) (20,572)
Commission paid (1,325) (1,397) (460) (673)
Cash paid to and on behalf of the employees (13,670)  (11,289) (11,139) (9,290)
Cash paid for operating expenses and others (7,322) (6,450) (6,399) (5,397)
Income tax paid (15,279)  (13,331) (14,681) (12,859)
Business and other taxes paid (3,421) (2,763) (3,387) (2,738)
Net increase in loans (171,476) (140,154) (175,023) (111,643)
Net increase in debt securities (315,213) (174,485) (269,766) (148,567)
Net increase in statutory deposit reserve with

central banks (18,820) (24,116) (24,531) (24,119)
Net increase in precious metals (10,335) 4,832 (10,426) 4,816
Net decrease in due to central banks 440 (9,777) 440  (9,776)
Net decrease in special purpose borrowings (2,542) (8,896) (2,542) (8,896)
Cash outflows from operating activities (598,424) (412,608) (545,464) (349,714)

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from operating _
activities wva o (117,991) 21,615 (87,207) (5,560)




BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from disposal of fixed assets and

Note Bank of China Group

For the six month period ended 30 June

Bank of China Limited

2006 2005 2006 2005
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

other assets 625 1,651 73 690
Cash received from disposal of equity

investments 609 660 69 267
Dividends received 20 36 3,894 3,340
Cash inflows from investing activities 1,254 2,347 4,036 4,297
Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other

assets (2,190) (1,766) (4,730)  (1,556)
Cash paid for increase of equity investments (270) (1,506) (447) (49)
Cash outflows from investing activities (2,460) (3,272) (2,177)  (1,605)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows from investing
activities (1,206) (925) 1,859 2,692
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from issuance of ordinary shares 117,423 - 116,766 -
Cash received from issuance of subordinated

bonds - 33,930 - 33,930
Cash received from minority shareholders as

additional capital injection to subsidiaries 86 5 - -
Cash inflows from financing activities 117,509 33,935 116,766 33,930
Cash payments for interest on bonds issued (1,379) (15) (1,379) (15)
Dividend payments (3,266) (1,637) (1,375) -
Others (238) - (238) -
Cash outflows from financing activities (4,883) (1,652) (2,992) (15)
Net cash inflows from financing activities 112,626 32,283 113,774 33,915
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (1,068) (4,159) 1 (4,032)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents (7,639) 48,814 28,427 27,015
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 397,112 366,142 275,623 274,215

111.30;

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June Vi1, 389,473 414,956 304,050 301,230

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative and Chairman:

Xiao Gang

Deputy Chairman and President:
Li Lihui

10

Vice President in charge of Accounting Function:
Zhou Zaigun

General Manager in charge of the Accounting
Department:

Liu Yanfen



1)

@)

®)

4

BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION
Basis of preparation

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, the Accounting System for Financial Institutions
and other relevant accounting regulations applicable to the Group. The interim financial statements ,
and should be read in conjunction with the 2005 annual financial statements.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — Interim Reporting issued by MOF and in
accordance with Disclosure — No.3 contents and reporting formats for listed companies (2003
revised) issued by China Securities Regulatory Commission.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statement are consistent with those used in the Group’s accounts for the year
ended 31 December 2005.

In February 2006, the MOF issued 39 new and revised Accounting Standards for Enterprises as part
of the PRC government’s initiative to converge the PRC GAAP with International Financial Reporting
Standards. These new standards, which are mandatory for all listed companies and optional for
others, are effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2007. The Group
plans to implement these standards, effective 1 January 2007 and has commenced an assessment
of their effect on the Group's existing accounting policies. While management’s assessment of the
new standards is not yet completed, principal differences with the Group’s existing accounting
policies include the following:

Except for the equity investments held for trading in overseas operations, the Group currently
accounts for equity investments at cost less impairment. Under the new Standards, equity
investments other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and investments held for trading will
be classified as available-for-sale securities. Management plans to classify and account for other
equity investments as available-for-sale according to the new Standards and those investments with
active market quotation will be recorded at fair value with gains or losses reported in shareholders’
equity.

The Group currently accounts for investment properties at cost less impairment. Under the new
Standards, these assets can either be measured at fair value or at amortised cost less impairment.
The method can not be changed once it is selected by management. Management plans to account
for investment properties using fair value.

The Group currently accounts for the early retirement benefits on a cash basis when paid. Under the
new Standards, a liability is required to be recorded at actuarially determined value of future early
retirement benefits payable to employees who have commenced early retirement, with changes in
the value of this liability reported in the income statement.

The Bank currently accounts for its investment in subsidiaries using equity accounting method in the

Bank’s financial statements. Under the new Standards, these investments are stated at cost in the
Bank’s financial statements.

11



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Bank and its subsidiaries. The
significant subsidiaries of the Bank are presented in Section I, “Subsidiaries”.

The Bank fully consolidates its subsidiaries from the date on which the Bank obtains actual control of
the subsidiaries and the Bank de-consolidates them from the date that control ceases to exist. All
significant intercompany balances, intercompany transactions and intercompany unrealised profits or
losses are eliminated on consolidation. Minority interests represent the interests of minority
shareholders in the operating results and net assets of the Bank’s subsidiaries.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment Reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products and services
that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A
geographical segment is engaged in providing products and services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of segments operating
in other economic environments.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

SUBSIDIARIES

As at 30 June 2006, the principal subsidiaries set out below are consolidated. All holdings are in the
ordinary share capital of the undertaking concerned.

Name

Directly controlled

BOC Hong Kong (Group) Limited

BOC International Holdings Limited

Bank of China Group Insurance
Company Limited

Bank of China Group Investment
Limited

Tai Fung Bank Limited

Indirectly controlled

BOC Hong Kong (Holdings)
Limited(1)

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited

Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited(2)

BOC Credit Card (International)
Limited

BOC Group Trustee Company
Limited (3)

Place of
incorporation /
establishment

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Macau

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Equity
held
(%)

100.00
100.00

100.00

100.00

50.31

65.87

65.87
65.87
46.43

65.87

76.31

Registered
capital/
Paid-in

capital
(in millions)

HKD34,806
HKD3,539

HKD1,269

HKD200

MOP1,000

HKD52,864

HKDA43,043
HKD600
HKD300

HKD480

HKD200

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited holds 70.49% share of this company.

Principal business

Holding company
Investment banking
Insurance services
Holding of industrial
and other

investments

Commercial banking

Holding company

Commercial banking
Commercial banking
Commercial banking
Credit card services

Provision of trustee
services

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited, Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited and BOC International Holdings Limited hold 54%, 6%, 6% and 34% shares of this company

respectively.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Due from central banks

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Settlement account balances with the PBOC 88,305 89,124
Due from overseas central banks 25,763 25,787
Subtotal 114,068 114,911
RMB statutory deposit reserve with the PBOC 203,119 182,825
Foreign currency statutory deposit reserve with the

PBOC 13,549 13,595
Fiscal deposits with the PBOC 7,876 3,355
Statutory deposit reserve with overseas central banks 2,039 2,255
Subtotal 226,583 202,030
Total 340,651 316,941

Domestic Operations are required to place an RMB statutory deposit reserve, a foreign currency
statutory deposit reserve and a fiscal deposit with the PBOC. At 30 June 2006, the required reserve
ratio for customer deposits denominated in RMB was 7.5% (2005: 7.5%); the required reserve ratio
for customer deposits denominated in foreign currencies is 3% (2005: 3%). The fiscal deposit of
Domestic Operations is comprised of funds from government agencies, and proceeds of bonds
issued on behalf of the MOF. The foreign currency deposit reserve and fiscal deposits placed with
the PBOC are non-interest bearing.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Trading and other debt securities at fair value through profit or loss

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Trading
Government bonds 27,761 19,116
Public sector and quasi government bonds 3,088 2,095
Financial institution bonds 23,600 30,599
Corporate bonds 3,794 4,179
Sub-total 58,243 55,989

Other debt securities at fair value through profit or loss
(designated at initial recognition)

Government bonds 9,267 10,704
Public sector and quasi government bonds 11,218 12,974
Financial institution bonds 26,667 19,979
Corporate bonds 5,207 7,625
Sub-total 52,359 51,282
Total 110,602 107,271

Included in other debt securities at fair value through profit or loss are debt securities with respect to
which the Group has established economic hedges using derivative instruments. Gains and losses
arising on the derivatives are intended to substantially offset the gains and losses arising on these
securities, which might have otherwise been classified as “available-for-sale” or “held-to-maturity”
securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into the following foreign exchange rate or interest rate related derivative financial
instruments for trading and risk management purposes:

The contractual/notional amount and fair values of derivative instruments held by the Group are set
out in the following table. The contractual/notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised on the balance sheet but do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The
derivative instruments become favourable assets or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of
fluctuations in market exchange rate, interest rates or equity/commodity prices relative to their terms.
The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from
time to time.

The fair values of derivatives that are not quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques used include discounted cash flows analysis and models. To the
extent practical, models use only observable data, such as interest rate and foreign exchange rates,
however areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty’s), volatilities and correlations require
management to make estimates. Changes in such observable data and assumptions about these
factors could affect reported fair value of financial instruments.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Contractual /
At 30 June 2006 notional amount Fair values

Assets

Foreign exchange derivatives

Liabilities

Currency forwards (1) 800,207 8,412 (5,040)
OTC currency options (2) 268,738 4,348 (708)
Sub-total 12,760 (5,748)
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 402,830 6,194 (7,333)
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 38,209 1,943 (3,980)
OTC interest rate options 149,528 146 (1,058)
Interest rate futures 17,552 21 (3)
Sub-total 8,304 (12,374)
Equity derivatives 11,223 166 (227)
Precious metals derivatives 10,686 310 (412)
Total derivative financial instruments
assets/(liabilities) (Note [11.9) 21,540 (18,761)
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Il NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3 Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
Contractual /
At 31 December 2005 notional amount Fair values
Assets Liabilities
Foreign exchange derivatives
Currency forwards (1) 563,397 6,991 (4,813)
OTC currency options (2) 196,012 3,781 (374)
Sub-total 10,772 (5,187)
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 361,332 3,132 (5,246)
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 39,427 1,735 (4,131)
OTC interest rate options 110,578 148 (215)
Interest rate futures 14,939 28 (34)
Sub-total 5,043 (9,626)
Equity derivatives 15,442 14 (7
Precious metals derivatives 21,008 979 (932)
Total derivative financial instruments
assets/(liabilities) (Note 111.9) 16,808 (15,752)
D Since 2005, the PBOC selected certain domestic banks, including the Bank, to conduct Foreign

Exchange Swap transactions. Under these agreements, the PBOC sold USD to the Bank in spot
transactions for RMB and agreed to buy back the USD after one year at agreed exchange rates,
which reflect the interest rate differentials between USD and RMB at the respective inception date of
the transactions.

(2) On 5 January 2005, the Bank entered into a Foreign Currency Option Agreement with Central SAFE
Investment Limited (“Huijin”) whereby the Bank acquired options to sell Huijin USD, totaling USD 18
billion, of no more than USD 1,500 million at the beginning of each calendar month during the year
ending 31 December 2007 at a fixed exchange rate of USD 1 to RMB 8.2769. The related option
premium amounted to RMB 4,469 million, is payable by the Bank to Huijin in 12 equal monthly
installments at the beginning of each calendar month during the year ending 31 December 2007.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Due from and placements with banks and other financial institutions

30 June 2006

Due from banks

31 December 2005

Due from domestic banks 2,860 4,305
Due from overseas banks 4,114 8,133
Sub-total 6,974 12,438
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Placements with domestic banks 53,862 52,439
Placements with other domestic financial
institutions 50,605 26,302
Placements with overseas banks 189,217 253,904
Sub-total 293,684 332,645
Provision for impairment (544) (546)
Sub-total 293,140 332,099
Total 300,114 344,537

As at 30 June 2006, placements with banks and other financial institutions reported on non-accrual

basis were RMB 544 million (2005: RMB 546 million).

Placements with banks and other financial institutions include balances arising from reverse repo

agreements as follows:

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

Bills discounted under reverse repos 14,007 7,592
Bonds under reverse repos
Government bonds 47,109 41,857
Financial institution bonds 26,476 20,191
Total 87,592 69,640
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Debt securities
30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Debt securities available-for-sale (at fair value):

Government bonds 309,350 229,064
Public sector and quasi government bonds 247,158 106,840
Financial institution bonds 228,024 170,038
Corporate bonds 134,643 87,068
Sub-total 919,175 593,010
Debt securities held-to-maturity (at amortised cost):
Government bonds 224,065 231,156
Public sector and quasi government bonds 119,604 135,002
Financial institution bonds 192,294 203,724
Corporate bonds 33,163 37,577
Sub-total 569,126 607,459

Debt securities classified as loans and receivables (at
amortised cost):

China Orient Bond 160,000 160,000

PBOC Special Bills (1) 91,612 91,530

Special Purpose Treasury Bond 42,500 42,500
Short term bills and notes

- Public sector and quasi government bonds 15,260 6,096

- Financial institution bonds 67,676 49,993

- Corporate bonds 1,825 -

Certificate Treasury Bonds and others 10,647 11,888

389,520 362,007

Provision for impairment (152) (156)

Sub-total 389,368 361,851

Total (2) 1,877,669 1,562,320

On 22 June 2006, the PBOC issued special PBOC Bills amounting to RMB 82 million in exchange for
certain debt for equity swap loans, as previously approved by the State Council. The tenor of the bill
is 5 years, with an interest rate of 1.89% per annum. The bills cannot be circulated, transferred or
pledged as collateral, unless otherwise approved by PBOC.

As at 30 June 2006, debt securities of RMB 76,822 million (2005: RMB 49,658 million) were pledged
as collateral to third parties under agreement to repurchase. Refer to Note IX.2.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Loans and advances to customers

Analysed by security type

Loans and advances to customers are analysed by the form of security as follows:

Unsecured loans
Guaranteed loans

Collateralised and other secured loans

Total
Analysed by industry sector

Corporate Loans
Manufacturing
Commercial and servicing
Real estate
Energy, mining and agriculture
Transportation and logistics
Public services
Financial services
Construction
Others

Sub-total

Consumer loans
Residential mortgages
Vehicle loans
Credit card and others

Sub-total

Total

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

578,987 475,764
723,502 684,824
1,103,047 1,074,458
2,405,536 2,235,046

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

591,908 531,191
323,348 301,863
201,585 190,297
252,416 230,854
200,503 193,428
104,827 91,924
112,153 96,245
38,304 36,050
39,037 40,191
1,864,081 1,712,043
428,119 413,007
24,391 28,005
88,945 81,991
541,455 523,003
2,405,536 2,235,046
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Loans and advances to customers (Continued)
Accrual and non-accrual loans

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

Accrual loans 2,322,496 2,158,232
Non-accrual loans 83,040 76,814
Total 2,405,536 2,235,046

As at 30 June 2006, loans and advances to customers include bills pledged as collateral under
reverse repurchase agreements amounting to RMB 5,569 million (2005: RMB 11,968 million). Refer

to Note IX.2.

Equity investments
30 June 2006

31 December 2005

Investment in associates (1) 5,673 5,100
Other equity investments (2) 6,675 7,043

12,348 12,143
Less: Impairment provision (1,138) (1,243)

11,210 10,900
Equity investments held for trading (at fair value) (3) 3,565 4,493
Total 14,775 15,393
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Equity investments(Continued)

As at 30 June 2006, the principal associates of the Group are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Equity Paid-in
establishment held capital Principal business
(%) (in millions)
Construct and operate
Huaneng International Power electricity factory and
Development Corporation PRC 20 uUsD450 related projects
Securities underwriting,
BOC International (China) Investment advisory, and
Limited PRC 49 RMB1,500 brokerage services
CJM Insurance Brokers
Limited Hong Kong 33 HKD6 Insurance broker
Private inter-bank
Joint Electronic Teller message switching
Services Limited Hong Kong 19.96 HKD10 network and ATM services
Dongfeng Peugeot Citroen . .
Auto Finance Company Car loan and flnancmg
Ltd PRC 50 RMB500 services

Other equity investments mainly include: (i) Equity investments held for investment purpose by the
Bank’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong; and (ii) Certain historical non-banking equity investments held by
domestic operations. In December 2005, the Bank entered into a contract with China Orient and
transfered out most of its historical non-banking equity investments.

Equity investments held for trading principally comprise listed shares held by the Bank’s subsidiaries
in Hong Kong.

Due to central banks
30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Special foreign exchange deposits of government

agencies 30,080 28,873
Borrowings from central banks 33 520
Others 382 662
Total 30,495 30,055

Derivative financial instruments and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Derivative financial instruments liabilities (Note Ill. 3) 18,761 15,752
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Structured deposits 75,092 70,069
Short position in foreign currency debt securities 4,057 3,740
Short position in exchange fund bills 3,262 1,613
Sub-total 82,411 75,422
Total 101,172 91,174
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Deposits from customers

Short-term corporate deposits
Corporate demand deposits
Corporate time deposits less than one year

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

Sub-total

Short-term saving deposits
Demand deposits
Time deposits less than one year

Sub-total
Long-term corporate deposits
Long-term saving deposits

Securities and margin deposits

Total

The securities and margin deposits are analysed as follows:

Security deposits for bank acceptance

Security deposits for letters of credit and letters of
guarantee issued

Margin deposits for foreign exchange transactions

Others

Total

940,638 836,763
527,225 486,681
1,467,863 1,323,444
734,804 667,957
1,309,567 1,243,964
2,044,461 1,911,921
32,157 26,317
339,763 313,703
168,780 128,392
4,053,024 3,703,777
92,106 63,556
29,206 26,785
10,524 8,638
36,944 29,413
168,780 128,392

Special purpose borrowings

Export credit loans
Foreign government loans
Other subsidised loans

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

Total

15,826 17,147
18,076 18,414
15,720 16,603
49,622 52,164

Special purpose borrowings are long-term borrowings from foreign governments and/or banks in the
form of export credit loans, foreign government loans and other subsidised loans. These special
purpose loans are normally used to finance projects with special commercial purposes in PRC and

the Bank is obliged to repay these loans when they fall due.

As at 30 June 2006, the maturity of special purpose borrowings ranges from within 1 month to 37
years, with floating & fixed interest rates range from 0.2% to 9.2%, which are consistent with those

related to similar development loans from these entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1l NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12 Bonds issued
Issue date Maturity date Interest rate 30 June 2006 31 December 2005
Bonds issued (1)
1994 BOC US Dollar
Debt Securities 10 March 1994 15 March 2014 8.25% 177 179
Subordinated bonds issued (2)
2004 BOC RMB Debt Securities
- First Tranche 7 July 2004 20 July 2014 4.87% 14,070 14,070
- Second Tranche 22 October 2004 16 November 2014 4.94% 12,000 12,000
2005 BOC RMB Debt Securities
- First Tranche 18 February 2005 4 March 2015 4.83% 15,930 15,930
- Second Tranche
(fixed rate) 18 February 2005 4 March 2020 5.18% 9,000 9,000
- Second Tranche
(floating rate) 18 February 2005 4 March 2015 floating rate 9,000 9,000
Sub-total 60,000 60,000
Total 60,177 60,179
(8] The Bank and the bond holders are prohibited from redeeming or requesting an early redemption of

these bonds before the maturity dates.
(2) These RMB subordinated bonds are subordinated to all other claims on the assets of the Bank, except

for those of the shareholders. In the calculation of the Group’s capital adequacy ratio, these bonds
qualify for inclusion as supplementary capital.
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FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Deferred income taxes assets/liabilities
Deferred income taxes are calculated on the timing differences under the liability method using the

relevant local tax rates applicable to the Group’s operation. The movement on the deferred income
tax account is as follows:

2006 2005
At 1 January 17,377 18,647
Charge in the income statement (Note [11.28) (226) (1,252)
Exchange differences 5 (18)
At 30 June /31December 17,156 17,377

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority. The table below includes the Group's deferred income tax assets and liabilities after
offsetting qualifying amounts:

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Deferred income tax assets 17,410 17,561
Deferred income tax liabilities (254) (184)
Total 17,156 17,377

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items:

30 June 2006 31 December 2005
Deferred income tax assets
Asset impairment provision 18,012 17,744
Fair value changes of trading and other fair value
through profit or loss securities and derivative

financial instruments 3,902 3,046
Other timing differences 602 696
Sub-total 22,516 21,486

Deferred income tax liabilities
Fair value changes of trading and other fair value
through profit or loss securities and derivative

financial instruments (4,319) (3,643)
Depreciation of fixed assets (445) (424)
Other timing differences(1) (596) (42)
Sub-total (5,360) (4,109)
Total 17,156 17,377

Mainly includes the deferred tax liabilities of RMB 545 million in relation to the supplementary tax on
overseas income generated from the profit of certain overseas subsidiaries owned by the Group for
the six month period ended 30 June 2006.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Deferred income taxes assets/liabilities (Continued)

The deferred tax charge in the profit and loss account comprises the following timing differences:

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

Asset impairment provision 265 1,467
Fair value change of debt securities and derivative

financial instruments 190 (2,338)
Other timing differences (681) (381)
Total (Note 111.28) (226) (1,252)

Other liabilities

Subsidiaries of the Bank undertake insurance bussiness. Included in other liabilities are insurance
liabilities as of 30 June 2006 and 31 December 2005 arising from insurance contracts analysed as

follows:
As at 30 June As at 31 December
2006 2005
Long term insurance contracts 11,093 8,383
General insurance contracts 2,111 2,079
Total insurance liabilities, net 13,204 10,462
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Share appreciation rights plan and share option schemes
Share Appreciation Rights Plan

On 22 November 2005, the Bank’s Board of Directors and shareholders approved and adopted a
Share Appreciation Rights Plan under which eligible participants including directors, supervisors,
management and other personnel designated by the Board, will be granted share appreciation rights,
up to 25% of which will be exercisable each year beginning on the third anniversary date from the
date of the grant. The share appreciation rights will be valid for seven years from the date of grant.
Eligible participants will be entitled to receive an amount equal to the difference, if any, between the
average closing market price of the Bank’s H shares in the ten days prior to the date of grant and the
average closing market price of the Bank’s H shares in the 12 months prior to the date of exercise as
adjusted for any change in the Bank’s equity. The plan provides cash-settled share-based payment
only and accordingly, no share will be issued under the share appreciation rights plan.

No share appreciation rights were granted during the six month period ended 30 June 2006 and no
rights were outstanding with respect to the Share Appreciation Rights Plan as of 30 June 2006 and
31 December 2005.

Share Option Scheme and Sharesave Plan

On 10 July 2002, the shareholders of BOCHK Holdings, approved and adopted two share option
schemes, namely, the Share Option Scheme and the Sharesave Plan.

No options were granted during the six month period ended 30 June 2006 and no options were
outstanding with respect to the Share Option Scheme or the Sharesave Plan as of 30 June 2006 and
31 December 2005.

BOCHK Holdings Pre-listing Share Option Scheme

On 5 July 2002, certain of the Bank's directors, senior management personnel and employees of the
Group were granted options by BOC Hong Kong (BVI) Limited ("BOCHK (BVI)"), the immediate
holding company of BOCHK Holdings, pursuant to a Pre-listing Share Option Scheme to purchase
from BOCHK (BVI) an aggregate of 31,132,600 previously issued and outstanding shares of BOCHK
Holdings for HKD8.50 per share. These options, with a ten-year term, vest ratably over four years
from 25 July 2002. No further offers to grant any options under the Pre-listing Share Option Scheme
will be made. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in
cash.

27



15

®3)

)

16

BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Share appreciation rights plan and share option schemes (continued)

BOCHK Holdings Pre-listing Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details of the movement of share options outstanding are as follows:

Directors Total
and key Other number of
Shares management employees Others (1) shares
At 1 January 2006 6,142,500 10,619,250 1,446,000 18,207,750
Transfer 239,000 (239,000) - -
Less: Share options exercised (1,994,050
during the period - ) - (1,994,050)
At 30 June 2006 6,381,500 8,386,200 1,446,000 16,213,700
At 1 January 2005 6,142,500 12,849,300 1,446,000 20,437,800
Less: Share options exercised (2,121,550
during the year - ) - (2,121,550)
Less: Share options lapsed
during the year - (108,500) - (108,500)
At 31 December 2005 6,142,500 10,619,250 1,446,000 18,207,750

These represent share options held by former directors or former employees of the BOCHK Holdings.

Regarding the share options exercised during the six month period ended 30 June 2006 and year
ended 31 December 2005, the weighted average share price of BOCHK Holdings' shares at the time
of exercise was HKD 15.88 (equivalent to RMB 16.42)and HKD 15.01 (equivalent to RMB 15.61).

Minority interests

At 1 January
Share of current period/year profit
Increase of shares in a subsidiary

Dividends paid to minority shareholders
Net change in fair value of available-for-

sales investments
Currency translation difference

At 30 June / 31 December

2006 2005
28,778 27,387
2,627 5,105
(52) 17
(1,891) (2,954)
(342) (110)
(308) (667)
28,812 28,778
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shares 2006 2005
As at 1 January 209,427 186,390
Issue of ordinary shares(1) 44,412 23,037
As at 30 June /31 December 253,839 209,427
Number of Shares 2006 2005
As at 1 January 209,427,362,357 186,390,352,497
Issue of ordinary shares(1) 44,411,799,652 23,037,009,860
As at 30 June/31 December 253,839,162,009 209,427,362,357

As at 30 June 2006, the Bank’s share capital is as follows:

30 June 2006

Domestic listed A shares(2) 177,818,910,740
Overseas listed H shares(2) 76,020,251,269
Total 253,839,162,009
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Share capital (Continued)

In accordance with to Yinjianhui[2006] No.49 "Approval on the Introduction of Strategic Investor —
National Council for Social Security Fund (“SSF”) into Bank of China Limited ”, on 13 March 2006, the
Bank issued 8,514,415,652 domestic state-owned shares of a par value of Rmb1.00 each to SSF at a
premium. SSF paid Rmb10 billion in cash including share premium of Rmb1.481 billion for
8,514,415,652 domestic state-owned shares issued by the Bank. The payment from SSF was verified
by PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company in its “Verification Report on the
Capital Contributions to Bank of China Limited” (PwC ZT YZ [2006] No. 14) issued on 13 March 2006.

In accordance with to Yinjianhui[2006] No.53 "Approval on the Bank of China Limited converted into a
limited company to issue shares and listed overseas”, and to Zhengjianhui[2006] No.8 "Approval on
the Bank of China Limited to issue Overseas Listed Foreign Shares”, on 1 June 2006 and 9 June
2006, the Bank issued 29,403,878,000 H shares at a price of HK$2.95 per share through a global
offering to Hong Kong and overseas investors (“Global Offering”). The payment from foreign investors
was verified by PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company in its “Verification Report
on Initial Public Offering of Overseas Listed Foreign Shares(H share) to Bank of China Limited” (PwC
ZT YZ [2006] No. 82) issued on 29 June 2006.

In accordance with to Yinjianhui[2006] No.135 "Approval on the Bank of China Limited to issue shares
and be listed domestically”, and to Zhengjianhui[2006] No.20 "Approval on the IPO of Bank of China
Limited”, on 29 June 2006, the Bank issued 6,493,506,000 A shares with at a price of RMB3.08 per
share, with share premium totaling RMB12.96 billion (net of share issuance costs of RMB549 million),
through the A share initial public offering to the domestic investors. The payment from domestic
investors was verified by PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company in its
“Verification Report on Initial Public Offering of A Share to Bank of China Limited” (PwC ZT YZ [2006]
No. 83) issued on 29 June 2006.

All A shares and H shares rank pari passu with same right and benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Capital reserve

During the six month period ended 30 June 2006, the Bank issued ordinary shares at share premiums

(refer to Note 11l 17(1)) as follows:

As at 1 January 2006
Premium (1)
Others (2)

As at 30 June 2006

Total amount of issue ordinary shares

Less: issue of ordinary shares

Share premium before issuance costs
Less: issuance costs (i)

Net share premium

Total amount of issue ordinary shares
Less: issue of ordinary shares

Share premium before issuance costs
Less: issuance costs

Net share premium

As at 30 June 2006

Group Bank
3,978 3,978
72,567 72,219
- (309)
76,545 75,888
As at 30 June 2006
Group Bank
Issued Issue
Issued share H dA
with NSSF share share Total
89,96 20,00 119,96
10,000 7 0 7 119,967
(29,40 (44,412
(8,514) 4) (6,494) ) (44,412)
60,56 13,50
1,486 3 6 75,555 75,555
(5) (2,435) (548) (2,988) (3,336)
58,12 12,95
1,481 8 8 72,567 72,219
2005
Group &
Bank
27,057
(23,037)
4,020
(56)
3,964

The issuance costs mainly include underwriting fees and services fees paid to professional advisors and
financial institutions. BOCI Asia Limited, the subsidiary of the Group was appointed as one of the
underwriters in the Bank’s global offerings and was paid underwriting commission at a rate which was
consistent with that of third parties. This underwriting commission was eliminated on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Capital reserve (continued)

Bank of China Group Insurance Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group disposed
of 51% of its equity interest in BOC Group Life Assurance Company Limted to BOCHK (Holding)
Limited, a 65.87% owned listed subsidiary of the Group for a consideration of HK$900 million in cash.
BOC HK (Holding) Limited had adopted merger accounting for this acquisition in its consolidated
financial statements and had therefore accounted for the amount paid in excess over the carrying
amount of the net assets acquired in the capital reserve. Such premium was eliminated on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Surplus reserves, General reserve and regulatory reserve, Undistributed profits and Reserve
for fair value changes of available-for-sale securities

Surplus reserves

Under relevant PRC Laws, the Bank is required to transfer 10% of its net profit, as determined unde
PRC GAAP, to a non-distributable Statutory surplus reserve. Appropriation to the Statutory surplus
reserve may be ceased when the balance of such reserves has reached 50% of the share capital
Subject to the approval of the shareholders, Statutory surplus reserve can be used for replenishing the
accumulated loss or increasing the Bank’s share capital. The Statutory surplus reserve amount used tc
increase the share capital is limited to a level where the balance of statutory surplus reserve after suct
capitalisation is not less than 25% of the share capital.

In addition, some overseas branches and subsidiaries are required to transfer certain percentage of its
net profit to the statutory surplus reserve as stipulated by local banking authorities.

The Board of Director on 29 August 2006 approved the Bank to appropriate RMB 1,964 million, or 10%
of its net profit of the six month period ended 30 June 2006.

General reserve and regulatory reserve

Pursuant to Cai Jin [2005] No. 49 “Measures on General Provison for Bad and Doubtful Debts for
Financial Institutions" issued by MOF on 17 May 2005, banks and certain other financial institutions
in the PRC, including the Bank, are required to maintain an adequate allowance for impairment
losses against their risk assets as defined. In addition to the specific allowance for impairment
losses, financial institutions are required to establish and maintain a general reserve within
Shareholders’ equity, through the appropriation of income to address unidentified potential
impairment losses. According to Cai Jin [2005] No.49, the general reserve should not be less than
1% of the aggregate amount of risk assets as defined by this policy. The Bank intends to achieve the
required reserve level within 3 years.

The Regulatory reserve mainly refers to the reserve amount set aside by Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited, subsidiary of the Group, for general banking risks, including future losses or other
unforeseeable risks.

The Board of Director on 29 August 2006 approved the Bank to appropriate RMB 4,291 million to the

general reserve. As at 30 June 2006, the amount set aside in the general reserve accounted for 0.25
% of the Bank’s risk assets.

Undistributed profits

Pursuant to the 2005 profit distributionplan approved by the shareholder at a post-adjournment
session of the Annual General Meeting of the Year 2006, the Bank distributed a cash dividend of
RMB1,375 million to its shareholders.

The Board of Directors does not propose to declare any dividend for the first half of 2006.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Surplus reserves, General reserve and regulatory reserve, Undistributed profits and Reserve
for fair value changes of available-for-sale securities (continued)

Reserve for fair value changes of available-for-sale securities

Pursuant to Caikuaihan [2004] No. 61 “Response to Issues Concerning Accounting Treatment of
Debt Securities” issued by the MOF, available-for-sale securities are re-measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-
for-sale securities are recognised in equity. When available-for-sale securities are disposed of or
impaired, the related accumulated fair value adjustments are transferred to the income statement.

As at 30 June 2006, the unrealised losses on available-for-sale securities fair value changes are
arising from the increase in interest rates of RMB and USD. Management has assessed the
unrealized losses position of these securities and is of the view that the unrealised losses were
caused by the increase in interest rates and were not due to deteriations of credit rating of the
issuers.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Net interest income

For the six month period ended

Interest income

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

Loans and advances to customers 60,360 51,971
Debt securities 30,652 19,908
Due from and placements with banks
and other financial institutions 6,315 3,518
Due from central banks 2,450 2,069
Sub-total 99,777 77,466
Interest expense
Deposits from customers (38,887) (23,815)
Due to and placements from banks and other
financial institutions, and due to central
banks (4,122) (2,827)
Special purpose borrowings and bonds
issued (2,292) (2,166)
Sub-total (45,301) (28,808)
Net interest income 54,476 48,658

Net fee and commission income

For the six month period ended

Settlement and clearing fees

Agency commissions

Credit commitment fees and commissions
Bank card fees

Custodian and other fiduciary service fees
Others

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

1,794 1,287
2,201 1,235
1,438 1,308
1,365 1,049

248 235
1,120 801
8,166 5,915
(1,325) (1,397)

6,841 4,518
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Net trading (expense)/income
For the six month period ended

30 June 2006 30 June2005
Net gains from foreign exchange and
foreign exchange products (1) 1,302 3,322
Net losses from interest rate instruments(2) (1,495) (329)
Total (193) 2,993

Refer to Note VIl Assets and Liabilities by currency.

This included unrealised losses relating to the Group’s trading debt securities of RMB 1.755 billion.

Investment income
For the six month period ended

30 June 2006 30 June 2005

Equity investment
Net gains from investment in associates 339 48
Others (1) 1,248 77
Sub-total 1,587 125
Debt investment 94 24
Total 1,681 149

Other equity investment income included gains on disposal of trading portfolio equity investments
held by subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Other operating income, net

Other operating income
Insurance premium

Others(1)

Sub-total

Other operating expense
Insurance claim expense

Others

Sub-total

Other operating income, net

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

4,286 2,624
1,080 143
5,366 2,767
(3,423) (2,168)
(146) (238)
(3,569) (2,406)
1,797 361

Other operating income included gains on disposal of loans to third party held by subsidiaries of the
Group in Hong Kong amounting to RMB 660 million in March 2006.

Operating and administrative expenses

Staff costs

General operating and administrative expenses

Depreciation

Total

Staff costs are analysed as follows:

Salaries and welfare expenses
Defined contribution plans
Housing fund contributions
Other social insurance costs
Defined benefit plans

Others

Total

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

13,278 11,654
7,174 6,208
2,741 3,138

23,193 21,000

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

10,141 9,345
1,495 659
626 427
415 362
139 238
462 623
13,278 11,654

In the second half of 2005, the Group set up a defined contribution plan (“Annuity Plan”). Included in
the defined contribution plans is RMB 478 million contributed by the Bank to the Annuity Plan during

the six month period ended 30 June 2006.

Contributions to defined contribution plans for the period ended 30 June 2006 include the effect of
deductions of forfeited contributions of approximately RMB 12 million (2005: RMB 14 million). The
amounts of unutilized forfeited contributions available for further deduction are not material as at 30

June 2006 and 30 June 2005 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Business tax and surcharges

Business tax

City maintenance and construction tax
Education surcharges

Others

Total

Impairment losses

Provision for loan losses

(Write-back of )/Provision for impairment of
foreclosed assets

(Write-back of )/Provision for impairment of
other receivables

Write-back of impairment of fixed assets
and others

Total

38

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

2,687 2,406
176 158
96 83

28 23
2,987 2,670

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

5,062 4,718
(131) 96
(55) 206

- (444)
4,876 4,576
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Income tax

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006 30 June 2005
Current tax 12,136 10,998
Deferred tax (Note 111.13) 226 (138)
Total 12,362 10,860

The income tax expense on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the amount that would arise
using the basic tax rate of the Group, detailed as follows:

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006 30 June 2005
Profit before tax 34,013 29,578
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 33% 11,224 9,761
Effect of different tax rates in overseas operations (1,927) (1,479)
Supplementary tax on overseas income
paid in the PRC 1,688 865
Prior years tax expenses adjustment (1) (350) 2
Income not subject to tax (1,223) (614)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (2) 2,921 2,452
Others 29 (123)
Total 12,362 10,860

Prior years tax expenses adjustment included the related tax impact of RMB 284 million in relation to
the deductible transfer loss of BOC with the amount of RMB 860 million approved by MOF and SAT
in the first half of 2006. The loss arose from the disposal of certain equity investments in prior years.

Non-deductible expenses primarily include staff salary costs in excess of those permitted to be
deducted under the relevant PRC tax regulations. The Group is currently in the process of applying
for a revision to the statutory salary deductible threshold for its domestic employees from the PRC
State Administration of Taxation("SAT"). In accordance with Guoshuihan[2006] No.484, “Response
Letter on the Bank of China Limited salary deduction matter” issued by SAT on 19 May 2006, it was
agreed in principle that, after the overseas listing of the Bank, the salary costs that are deductible for
income tax purposes will be based on the performance of the Bank. The details related to the
implementation of such deductibility threshold have however not yet been determined and are
subject to further approval of relevant PRC government authorities and as a result, the effect of this
has not been reflected in tax expense. The Group will continue to follow up with the relevant PRC
government authorities regarding the detailed implementation plans of this approval in accordance
with the relevant regulations and guidance.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Earnings per share (Basic & Diluted)

Basic and diluted earnings per share have been computed by dividing the profit for the period by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares issued.

The Bank has no dilutive potential ordinary shares.

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006 30 June 2005
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Bank 19,024 16,434
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue (millions) 218,002 186,390
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Renminbi per
share) 0.09 0.09
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Notes to the cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances, the original maturities of which are less
than three months:

As at 30 June As at 30 June

2006 2005

Cash 29,811 29,486

Balances with central banks 113,039 130,427
Due from and placement with banks and

other financial institutions 215,713 230,894

Short term bills and notes 30,910 24,149

Total 389,473 414,956

Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities
For the six month period ended

30 June 2006 30 June 2005
Net profit 19,024 16,434
Plus/(minus):
Minority interest 2,627 2,284
Asset impairment losses 4,876 4,576
Depreciation of fixed assets 2,741 3,138
Amortisation of intangible assets and long-term
deferred expenses 341 222
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets and other
assets (168) (671)
Equity investments income (1,587) (125)
Interest expenses arising from bonds issued 1,384 1,178
Increase in operating receivables (495,834) (288,793)
Increase in operating payables 348,605 283,372
Net cash inflows from operating activities (117,991) 21,615
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v NOTES TO THE BANK’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Debt securities
As at As at

30 June 2006 31 December 2005
Debt Securities available-for-sale
(at fair value)

Government bonds 296,280 219,566
Public sector and quasi government
bonds 242,068 102,200
Financial institution bonds 193,816 146,373
Corporate bonds 86,487 70,798
Sub-total 818,651 538,937

Debt Securities available-for-sale
(at fair value)

Government bonds 221,541 227,718
Public sector and quasi government
bonds 91,308 103,074
Financial institution bonds 72,118 74,791
Corporate bonds 8,101 9,560
Sub-total 393,068 415,143

Debt securities classified as loans and receivables
(at amortised cost)

China Orient Bond 160,000 160,000

PBOC Special Bills 91,612 91,530

Special Purpose Treasury Bond 42,500 42,500

Short term bills and notes

- Public sector and quasi government 15,260 5,992

- Financial institution 37,070 32,156

- Corporate 1,825 -
Certificate Treasury Bonds and

others 10,647 11,888

358,914 344,066

Provision for impairment (152) (156)

Sub-total 358,762 343,910

Total 1,570,481 1,297,990
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NOTES TO THE BANK'’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Loans and advances to customers
As at
30 June 2006

As at
31 December 2005

Unsecured loans 511,086 401,756
Guaranteed loans 647,205 617,332
Collateralised and other secured loans 883,910 849,017
Total 2,042,201 1,868,105
Equity investments

As at As at

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

Investment in subsidiaries 68,732 66,294
Investment in associates 33 63
Others 847 796
69,612 67,153
Less: Impairment provision (173) (202)
69,439 66,951
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NOTES TO THE BANK'’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Deposits from customers

Short-term corporate deposits
Corporate demand deposits
Corporate time deposits less than one year

As at

30 June 2006

As at
31 December 2005

Sub-total

Short-term saving deposits
Demand deposits
Time deposits less than one year

Sub-total
Long-term corporate deposits
Long-term saving deposits

Securities and margin deposits

Total

The securities and margin deposits are analysed as follows:

Security deposits for bank acceptance
Security deposits for letters of credit and
letters of guarantee issued
Margin deposits for foreign exchange transactions
Others

Total

848,940 747,059
429,253 380,105
1,278,193 1,127,164
539,321 492,876
1,013,449 937,430
1,552,770 1,430,306
31,095 24,395
332,287 305,239
162,628 122,083
3,356,973 3,009,187
92,068 63,522
28,988 26,469
5,767 3,718
35,805 28,374
162,628 122,083
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NOTES TO THE BANK'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Net interest income

Interest income
Loans and advances to customers
Debt securities

Due from and placements with banks and other

financial institutions
Due from central banks

Sub-total

Interest expense
Deposits from customers

Due to and placements from banks and other financial

institutions, due to central banks

Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued

Sub-total

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income

Settlement and clearing fees

Agency commissions

Credit commitment fees and commissions
Bank card fees

Custodian and other fiduciary service fees
Others

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expenses

Net fee and commission income

45

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

50,141 45,875
23,738 15,804

3,457 2,327

2,189 2,032
79,525 66,038
(26,815) (19,427)
(4,090) (2,811)
(2,292) (2,163)
(33,197) (24,401)
46,328 41,637

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

1,374 964
877 385
1,148 996
962 636
113 110
748 611
5,222 3,702
(460) (673)
4,762 3,029
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
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NOTES TO THE BANK'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Net trading (expense)/income

Net gains from foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products
Net losses from interest rate instruments

Total

Investment income

Equity investment
Share of result of subsidiaries
Net gains from investments in associates
Others

Sub-total

Debt investment

Total

Operating and administrative expenses

Staff costs
General operating and administrative expenses
Depreciation

Total

Staff costs are analysed as follows:

Salaries and welfare expenses
Defined contribution plans
Housing fund contributions
Other Social insurance costs
Defined benefit plans

Others

Total

46

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

343 2,655
(625) (405)
(282) 2,250

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

7,521 4,747
5 3

21 85
7,547 4,835
105 5
7,652 4,840

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

11,087 9,602
6,308 5,394
2,320 2,748

19,715 17,744

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

8,159 7,546
1,334 638
611 427
411 339
139 238
433 414
11,087 9,602
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NOTES TO THE BANK'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment losses

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

Provision for loan losses 5,849 6,092
(Write-back of)/Provision for impairment of foreclosed

assets (129) 96
(Write-back of)/Provision for impairment of other

receivables (32) 211
Write-back of impairment of fixed assets and others (8) (283)
Total 5,680 6,116

47



11

@

BANK OF CHINA LIMITED
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FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
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NOTES TO THE BANK'’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Notes to the cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents comprises the following balances, the original maturities of which are

less than three months:
As at 30 June 2006

As at 30 June 2005

Cash 26,684 26,242
Balances with central banks 89,018 103,122
Due from and placement with banks and other

financial institutions 160,662 150,374
Short term bills and notes 27,686 21,492
Total 304,050 301,230

Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

Net profit 19,643 16,434
Plus/(minus):
Asset impairment losses 5,680 6,116
Depreciation of fixed assets 2,320 2,748
Amortisation of intangible assets and long term
deferred expenses 340 221
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets and other
assets 115 (146)
Equity investments income (7,547) (4,835)
Interest expenses arising from bonds issued 1,384 1,178
Increase in operating receivables (433,206) (277,343)
Increase in operating payables 324,064 250,067
Net cash outflows from operating activities (87,207) (5,560)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control. The Group is
controlled by the State Council of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) through Huijin.

Transactions with Huijin

Foreign Currency Option Agreement

On 5 January 2005, the Bank entered into a Foreign Currency Option Agreement with Huijin whereby
the Bank has acquired the option to sell to Huijin USD 18 billion, of no more than USD1,500 million
at the beginning of each calendar month during the year ending 31 December 2007 at the exchange
rate of USD1 to RMB 8.2769. The related option premium amounted to RMB 4,469 million, which is
payable by the Bank to Huijin in 12 equal monthly instalments at the beginning of each calendar
month during the year ending 31 December 2007.

Deposit
2006 2005
At 1 January 38,869 -
Deposits received during the period/year 156,679 42,972
Deposits repaid and other changes during the
period/year (173,709) (4,103)
At 30 June / 31 December 21,839 38,869

The Deposits from Huijin are under commercial terms and at market rates.
Transactions with other companies controlled by Huijin

Huijin also has controlling equity interests in certain other financial institutions in the PRC. The
Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal course of its business under
commercial terms and at market rates. These include trading assets, investment securities and
money market transactions. The Group has no material balance with these entities as of 30 June,
2006.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Transactions with shareholders holding 5% or more ordinary shares

As at 30 June 2006, in addition to Huijin, the shareholder holding 5% or more ordinary shares of the
Bank is RBS China Inverstments S.a.rl. The Bank had no significant transactions with this
shareholder between 1 January 2006 and 30 June 2006 and had no material balances with this
shareholder as of 30 June 2006.

Transactions with associates

In the ordinary course of business, the Group enters into business transactions with its
associates(Note 111.7), including lending, deposit taking, debt securities purchasing and other normal
banking businesses. The transactions with these associates are conducted on the same pricing
principles as for the transactions with any independent third party. The loans and deposits balances
with associates and outstanding debt securities issued by associates at the period end are stated
below. The related interest income and expense are not considered significant.

Loans
2006 2005
At 1 January 7,240 1,246
Loans granted during the period/year 18 8,128
Loan repayments during the period/year (6,095) (989)
Loans written off and other changes during the
period/year - (1,145)
At 30 June/31 December 1,163 7,240
Provisions for loan losses (190) (119)
Deposits
2006 2005
At 1 January 856 1,227
Deposits received during the period/year 3,250 3,879
Deposits repaid and other changes during the
period/year (1,959) (4,250)
At 30 June/31 December 2,147 856
Debt securities issued by associates
2006 2005
At 1 January 188 -
Purchases during the period/year - 1,307
Redemption sales during the period/year (188) (1,123)
Fair value changes and others - 4
At 30 June/31 December - 188
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SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group's businesses operate in three principal geographical areas: the Chinese Mainland, Hong
Kong and Macau, and other overseas locations. Significant other overseas locations include New

York, London, Singapore and Tokyo.

The geographical analysis of revenues, segment results, segment assets, segment liabilities and
capital expenditure reflects the process through which the Group's operating activities are managed.
In accordance with the Group's organisational structure and its internal financial reporting process,
the Group has determined that geographical segments should be presented as its primary segment.

Profit and loss accounts, assets and liabilities, capital expenditure, depreciation and amortization and
credit commitments have generally been based on the country in which the branch or subsidiary is

located.
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
For the six month period ended 30 June 2006

Interest income
Interest expense

Hong Kong & Macau

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income
Net trading (expense)/income
Investment (losses)/ gains
Other operating income, net

Operating and administrative expenses
Business tax and surcharges

Operating profit

Non-operating income, net

Profit before impairment losses

Impairment (losses)/ write-back

Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit after tax

Minority interest

Net profit

Chinese  BOC Hong Kong Other overseas
Mainland Group Others Sub-total operations Elimination Total
76,446 19,997 2,276 22,273 3,426 (2,368) 99,777
(31,368) (12,235) (1,489) (13,724) (2,581) 2,372 (45,301)
45,078 7,762 787 8,549 845 4 54,476
4,225 1,724 989 2,713 388 (485) 6,841
(207) 677 (536) 141 (227) - (193)
124 7 1,634 1,641 (6) (78) 1,681
129 423 1,271 1,694 3) (23) 1,797
49,449 10,593 4,145 14,738 997 (582) 64,602
(18,920) (2,973) (645) (3,618) (687) 32 (23,193)
(2,945) (29) (20) (29) (13) - (2,987)
27,584 7,601 3,490 11,091 297 (550) 38,422
172 201 57 258 37 - 467
27,756 7,802 3,547 11,349 334 (550) 38,889
(5,932) 717 218 935 121 - (4,876)
21,824 8,519 3,765 12,284 455 (550) 34,013
(10,751) (1,430) (242) (1,672) (142) 203 (12,362)
11,073 7,089 3,523 10,612 313 (347) 21,651
(4) (2,519) (104) (2,623) - - (2,627)
11,069 4,570 3,419 7,989 313 (347) 19,024
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Hong Kong & Macau

Chinese  BOC Hong Kong

Other overseas

As at 30 June 2006 Mainland Group Others Sub-total operations Elimination Total
Segment assets 4,268,205 875,352 118,363 993,715 199,169 (234,156) 5,226,933
Segment liabilities (3,917,105) (797,504) (99,538) (897,042) (191,882) 165,549 (4,840,480)
Credit commitments 827,712 173,457 18,334 191,791 57,397 (52,704) 1,024,196
For the six month period ended 30 June 2006

Other segment items:

Capital expenditure 1,800 296 15 311 79 - 2,190
Depreciation and amortisation 2,618 317 92 409 55 - 3,082
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
For the six month period ended 30 June 2005
Hong Kong & Macau

Chinese BOC Hong Kong

Other overseas

Mainland Group Others Sub-total operations Elimination Total

Interest income 63,883 10,976 1,431 12,407 2,429 (1,253) 77,466
Interest expense (23,449) (4,477) (550) (5,027) (1,585) 1,253 (28,808)
Net interest income 40,434 6,499 881 7,380 844 - 48,658
Net fee and commission income 2,529 1,497 99 1,596 393 - 4,518
Net trading income/(expense) 2,241 520 247 767 (15) - 2,993
Investment (losses)/ gains 20 33 27 60 69 - 149
Other operating income, net 70 - 289 289 2 - 361

45,294 8,549 1,543 10,092 1,293 - 56,679
Operating and administrative expenses (17,046) (2,778) (580) (3,358) (596) - (21,000)
Business tax and surcharges (2,636) (15) (9) (24) (10) - (2,670)
Operating profit 25,612 5,756 954 6,710 687 - 33,009
Non-operating income, net 723 251 116 367 55 - 1,145
Profit before impairment losses 26,335 6,007 1,070 7,077 742 - 34,154
Impairment (losses)/ write-back (6,591) 1,383 422 1,805 210 - (4,576)
Profit before tax 19,744 7,390 1,492 8,882 952 - 29,578
Income tax (9,472) (1,223) (5) (1,228) (160) - (10,860)
Profit after tax 10,272 6,167 1,487 7,654 792 - 18,718
Minority interest 9 (2,174) (119) (2,293) - - (2,284)
Net profit 10,281 3,993 1,368 5,361 792 - 16,434
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Hong Kong & Macau

Chinese  BOC Hong Kong

Other overseas

As at 31 December 2005 Mainland Group Others Sub-total operations Elimination Total
Segment assets 3,803,989 845,959 120,266 966,225 186,982 (214,390) 4,742,806
Segment liabilities (3,584,086) (768,215) (102,831)  (871,046) (178,853) 153,799 (4,480,186)
Credit commitments 699,066 168,203 14,131 182,334 52,434 (38,072) 895,762
For the six month period ended 30 June 2005

Other segment items:

Capital expenditure 1,485 176 34 210 71 - 1,766
Depreciation and amortisation 2,947 305 53 358 55 - 3,360
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Business segments are presented as the Group's secondary segment. The Group provides services
through four main business segments: commercial banking, investment banking, insurance and other
operations. Segment revenue, results, assets, liabilities and capital expenditure presented in
business segments include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis.

Corporate banking - providing services to corporate customers including current accounts, deposits,
overdrafts, lending, trade related products and other credit facilities, foreign currency and derivative
products.

Personal banking - providing services to retail customers including current accounts, savings,
deposits, investment savings products, custody, credit and debit cards, consumer loans and
mortgages.

Treasury operations - consisting of foreign exchange transactions, customer-based interest rate and
foreign exchange derivative transactions, money market transactions, proprietary trading and asset-
liability management. The results of this segment include the inter-segment funding income and
expenses and foreign currency translation gains and losses resulting from variations in the growth of
interest bearing assets and liabilities and foreign currency translation gains and losses.

Investment banking - consisting of debt and equity underwriting, asset management services,
brokerage services and loan syndications.

Insurance-underwriting of general and life insurance business and insurance agency services.

Other operations of the Group comprize investment holding and other miscellaneous activities, none
of which constitutes a separately reportable segment or can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the six month period ended 30 June 2006 and as at 30 June 2006

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income
Net trading income/(expense)
Investment (losses)/income
Other operating income, net

Operating and administrative expenses
Business tax and surcharges
Operating profit

Non-operating income, net
Profit before impairment losses
Impairment (losses)/ write-back
Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit after tax

Minority interests

Net profit

Segment assets
Capital expenditure

Corporate Personal  Treasury Investment
banking banking Jperations banking Insurance Others Elimination Total

45,329 42,491 38,551 289 269 191 (27,343) 99,777
(18,727) (25,610) (27,175) (270) (29) (847) 27,347 (45,301)
26,602 16,881 11,376 19 250 (656) 4 54,476
3,141 3,165 357 938 (277) 9 (492) 6,841
1,814 977 (1,910) (640) (428) @) 1 (193)

- - 85 1,026 217 431 (78) 1,681

74 5 3) - 686 1,103 (68) 1,797
31,631 21,028 9,905 1,343 448 880 (633) 64,602
(8,588) (11,677) (2,876) (224) (103) (406) 681 (23,193)
(1,478) (459) (1,023) (2) 3) (22) - (2,987)
21,565 8,892 6,006 1,117 342 452 48 38,422
56 127 45 (2) 40 799 (598) 467

21,621 9,019 6,051 1,115 382 1,251 (550) 38,889
(4,202) (720) 1 (5) 6 44 - (4,876)
17,419 8,299 6,052 1,110 388 1,295 (550) 34,013
(12,362)

21,651
(2,627)

19,024

1,813,042 637,280 2,692,140 18,079 17,153 84,279 (35,040) 5,226,933
416 782 31 6 2 953 - 2,190
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Segment information (continued)

For the six month period ended 30 June 2005 and as at 31 December 2005

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income
Net trading income/(expense)
Investment (losses)/income
Other operating income, net

Operating and administrative expenses

Business tax and surcharges
Operating profit

Non-operating income, net
Profit before impairment losses
Impairment (losses)/ write-back
Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit after tax

Minority interests

Net profit

Segment assets
Capital expenditure

Corporate Personal Treasury Investment

banking banking Operations banking Insurance Others Elimination Total
39,592 31,510 24,679 243 183 128 (18,869) 77,466
(13,848) (15,489) (17,623) (180) - (537) 18,869 (28,808)
25,744 16,021 7,056 63 183 (409) - 48,658
2,522 1,802 215 171 (254) 62 - 4,518
1,584 755 507 203 (48) (8) - 2,993

- 1 24 (39) 17 146 - 149

29 - - - 331 43 (42) 361
29,879 18,579 7,802 398 229 (166) (42) 56,679
(7,876) (10,148) (2,680) (195) (88) (301) 288 (21,000)
(1,455) (436) (760) (2) (1) (16) - (2,670)
20,548 7,995 4,362 201 140 (483) 246 33,009
107 215 71 1 (4) 1,001 (246) 1,145
20,655 8,210 4,433 202 136 518 - 34,154
(5,471) 819 19 1 (2) 58 - (4,576)
15,184 9,029 4,452 203 134 576 - 29,578
(10,860)

18,718
(2,284)

16,434

1,658,718 603,891 2,399,377 15,159 12,398 77,644 (24,381) 4,742,806
342 665 32 4 25 698 - 1,766

58



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Segment information (continued)

With effect from 1 January 2006, the internal funding transfer pricing mechanism of the Bank was revised. The new pricing mechanism is based on the external
market deposit and lending rates, adjusted for pre-determined margins with reference to the different products and respective maturities. Previously, blended
mid prices between the Bank’s average cost of funding and average yield on interest bearing assets were adopted, without taking into consideration the variety
of products and respective maturities. The reason for the change is primarily to better reflect the performance of the individual segments as part of the Bank’s
efforts to enhance its assets and liabilities management capability.

The effect of the change in basis of pricing between business segments for the period ended 30 June 2005 is summarized below:

For the six month period ended 30 June 2005

Corporate Personal Treasury Investment
banking banking Operations banking Insurance Others Elimination Total
Net Interest expense as reported previously 25,253 17,818 5,750 63 183 (409) - 48,658
Effect of change-increase/(decrease) 491 (1,797) 1,306 - - - - -
Net Interest expense as revised 25,744 16,021 7,056 63 183 (409) - 48,658
Operating profits as reported previously 20,057 9,792 3,056 201 140 (483) 246 33,009
Effect of change-increase/(decrease) 491 (1,797) 1,306 - - - - -
Operating profits as revised 20,548 7,995 4,362 201 140 (483) 246 33,009
Porfit before impairment losses as reported
previously 20,164 10,007 3,127 202 136 518 - 34,154
Effect of change-increase/(decrease) 491 (1,797) 1,306 - - - - -
Porfit before impairment losses as revised 20,655 8,210 4,433 202 136 518 - 34,154
Profit before income tax as reported previouly 14,693 10,826 3,146 203 134 576 - 29,578
Effect of change-increase/(decrease) 491 (1,797) 1,306 - - - - -
Profit before income tax as revised 15,184 9,029 4,452 203 134 576 - 29,578
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CURRENCY

The Group’s net foreign currency positions as at 30 June 2006 and 31 December 2005 are analysed
below:

Foreign Currency Position

As at30 June 2006 As at 31 December 2005
In RMB In USD In RMB In USD
billion billion billion billion
equivalent equivalent equivalent equivalent
t on-balance sheet foreign currency position of
the Group 601 75 485 60
Less:
t off-balance sheet foreign currency position of
the Group (232) (29) (171) (21)
t foreign currency position of the Group 369 46 314 39
Less:
reign currency denominated net investments in
foreign operations* (103) (13) (105) (13)
Net position 266 33 209 26

The foreign currency denominated net investments in foreign operations represents the net
assets/liabilities of overseas subsidiaries, branches or associated undertakings, the functional
currencies of which are currencies other than RMB. The results and financial position of these
operations are translated into RMB, for reporting purposes with all exchange differences arising from
the translation recognised under the “Currency Translation Difference” as a separate component of
equity. These exchange differences therefore do not impact the consolidated profit or loss of the
Group.

The Group manages its sources and uses of foreign currencies to minimize potential currency
mismatches. However, the Group's ability to manage its foreign currency position in relation to the
RMB is limited as RMB is not a freely convertible currency. According to the current applicable
foreign currency policies of the PRC government, the conversion of foreign currency is subject to
application and approval by the relevant PRC government authorities. The Bank has significant
foreign currency positions, largely as a result of the foreign currency capital contributions from certain
shareholders, the foreign currency surplus arising from the Bank’s foreign currency operations and
related accumulated profits and losses.

In 2005, the Bank entered into a foreign currency option agreement with Huijin having a notional
amount of USD18 billion to economically hedge a portion of its net on-balance sheet foreign currency
position.

During the six month period ended 30 June 2006, the Bank executed certain foreign exchange
transactions to reduce its net foreign currency position by USD3.3 billion.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date in August 2006, the Bank further effected certain foreign
exchange transactions, further reducing its net foreign currency position by USD14.2 billion.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CURRENCY (CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the potential impact to the income statement for a 1 per cent fluctuation

in the foreign currency exchange rate against RMB based on the net position of the Group excluding
the net structural position in foreign operations as set forth above:

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Profit / (loss) Profit / (loss)
Rmb million Rmb million
1% appreciation/depreciation in foreign currency +/- 2,660 +/- 2,090

exchange rates against RMB

The above sensitivity analysis in response to potential movements in the foreign currency exchange
rates against RMB is for illustrative purposes and only represents simple scenarios applied to the
Bank’s net outstanding foreign currency position as at the respective date. Such analysis does not
taken into account any further actions that may have been or could be taken by management after
the balance sheet date, subject to the approval by the PRC government, to mitigate the effect of
exchange differences, nor for any consequential changes in the foreign currency positions.

Set forth below are assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items by currency. Short-term financial
assets include cash, precious metals, due from central banks and government certificates of
indebtedness for bank notes issued. Debt securities also include trading and other debt securities at
fair value through profit or loss. Other assets primarily include interest receivable, fixed assets and
deferred tax assets. Short-term financial liabilities include due to central banks and bank notes in
circulation. Other liabilities primarily include interest payable. Option products are included in net off-
balance sheet position using notional amounts, including the Foreign Currency Option Agreement
with Huijin whereby the Bank has acquired the option to sell to Huijin USD 18 billion. The intent of the
transaction was to create an effective economic hedge against a portion of the USD position arising
from the USD capital contribution made by Huijin.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CURRENCY (Continued)

As at 30 June 2006

Assets

Short-term financial assets

Derivative financial instruments assets

Due from and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Debt securities

Loans and advances to customers

Less: Provision for loan losses

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Short-term financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Due to and placements from banks and other
financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net on-balance sheet position
Net off-balance sheet position
Credit commitments

RMB usD HKD EURO JPY GBP Other Total
315,390 17,258 43,422 1,943 25,201 445 43,546 447,205

- 14,656 5,632 443 318 233 258 21,540

102,399 76,394 75,885 15,983 3,291 5,310 20,852 300,114
914,491 767,457 177,587 51,526 20,552 6,649 50,009 1,988,271
1,643,896 362,362 315,887 38,557 25,062 4,419 15,353 2,405,536
(72,036) (11,457) (3,456) (531) (367) (40) (241) (88,128)
89,134 20,056 33,558 1,377 1,829 722 5,719 152,395
2,993,274 1,246,726 648,515 109,298 75,886 17,738 135,496 5,226,933
7 25,367 39,182 - - - 2,090 66,646

- 77,290 22,176 1,031 143 263 269 101,172

177,634 120,657 8,354 5,346 9,708 546 36,104 358,349
2,876,575 444,430 529,336 41,220 40,386 25,453 95,624 4,053,024
60,000 26,378 - 16,045 4,440 940 1,996 109,799
93,410 21,889 31,429 1,462 1,082 729 1,489 151,490
3,207,626 716,011 630,477 65,104 55,759 27,931 137,572 4,840,480
(214,352) 530,715 18,038 44,194 20,127 (10,193) (2,076) 386,453
235,530  (264,170) 80,413 (49,256) (31,475) 17,014 15,520 3,576
478,011 325,303 141,771 46,965 19,286 4,101 8,759 1,024,196
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CURRENCY (Continued)

As at 31 December 2005

Assets

Short-term financial assets

Derivative financial instruments assets

Due from and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Debt securities

Loans and advances to customers
Less: Provision for loan losses
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Short-term financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Due to and placements from banks and other
financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net on-balance sheet position
Net off-balance sheet position
Credit commitments

RMB usD HKD EURO JPY GBP Other Total
290,571 17,463 50,536 2,244 17,105 421 33,145 411,485

- 11,493 4,552 149 548 57 9 16,808

72,731 133,179 96,420 13,322 616 5,691 22,578 344,537
834,407 562,128 147,966 50,044 23,072 7,048 44,926 1,669,591
1,477,859 358,289 319,212 34,942 25,418 4,228 15,098 2,235,046
(66,477) (11,779) (3,485) (510) (552) (36) (314) (83,153)
90,733 15,988 34,632 1,172 1,755 727 3,485 148,492
2,699,824 1,086,761 649,833 101,363 67,962 18,136 118,927 4,742,806
1,084 24,162 38,595 29 - 32 1,884 65,786

- 70,625 19,551 418 384 117 79 91,174

209,624 76,205 13,707 4,400 11,538 514 29,245 345,233
2,531,878 440,252 529,827 46,854 37,565 26,634 90,767 3,703,777
60,000 28,549 - 16,251 4,665 1,092 1,786 112,343
119,401 17,220 20,679 1,525 1,138 527 1,383 161,873
2,921,987 657,013 622,359 69,477 55,290 28,916 125,144 4,480,186
(222,163) 429,748 27,474 31,886 12,672 (10,780) (6,217) 262,620
173,666  (229,776) 73,943 (29,586) (16,344) 15,331 15,197 2,431
394,938 295,280 137,425 30,874 21,185 2,049 14,011 895,762
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY MATURITY

Maturity grouping analysis of assets and liabilities items is as follows. Short-term financial assets include cash, precious metals, due from central banks and
government certificates of indebtedness for bank notes issued. Debt securities also include trading and other debt securities at fair value through profit or
loss. Other assets primarily include interest receivable, fixed assets and deferred tax assets. Short-term financial liabilities include due to central banks and
bank notes in circulation. Other liabilities primarily include interest payable.

As at 30 June 2006

Assets

Short-term financial assets

Derivative financial instruments assets

Due from and placements with banks and
other financial institutions

Debt securities

Loans and advances to customers

Less: Provision for loan losses

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Short-term financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

Due to and placements from banks and other
financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

Overdue  Ondemand Upto 1 month 1-3 months  3-12 months 1- 5years Over 5 years Total
- 219,593 226,583 1,029 - - - 447,205

- 5,635 1,761 736 3,420 5,830 4,158 21,540

- 7,014 201,710 65,568 25,668 154 - 300,114

- - 60,840 172,718 364,243 826,955 563,515 1,988,271
82,183 31,539 126,619 275,430 836,140 557,221 496,404 2,405,536
(42,189) (143) (3,565) (5,508) (15,214) (13,191) (8,318) (88,128)
306 8,485 12,282 5,635 16,665 25,223 83,799 152,395
40,300 272,123 626,230 515,608 1,230,922 1,402,192 1,139,558 5,226,933
- 44,056 6 5,036 17,548 - - 66,646

- 2,015 11,363 11,439 38,180 25,798 12,377 101,172

- 172,365 97,796 36,213 32,679 19,296 - 358,349

- 1,722,814 595,693 396,276 1,020,310 316,578 1,353 4,053,024

- - 874 736 5,368 20,088 82,733 109,799

438 52,312 27,872 4,254 51,209 13,740 1,665 151,490
438 1,993,562 733,604 453,954 1,165,294 395,500 98,128 4,840,480
39,862  (1,721,439) (107,374) 61,654 65,628 1,006,692 1,041,430 386,453
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY MATURITY (Continued)

As at 31 December 2005

Assets

Short-term financial assets

Derivative financial instruments assets

Due from and placements with banks and
other financial institutions

Debt securities

Loans and advances to customers

Less: Provision for loan losses

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Short-term financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

Due to and placements from banks and other
financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

Overdue Ondemand Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5years Over5years Total
- 208,416 202,030 1,018 21 - - 411,485

- 3,890 2,042 754 1,583 5,347 3,192 16,808

- 12,438 220,629 92,649 18,707 114 - 344,537

- - 69,577 107,968 315,812 813,060 363,174 1,669,591
77,846 28,662 109,430 224,756 814,571 518,316 461,465 2,235,046
(37,696) (299) (1,881) (4,326) (19,121) (12,058) (7,772) (83,153)
303 4,622 12,727 6,936 10,367 27,240 86,297 148,492
40,453 257,729 614,554 429,755 1,141,940 1,352,019 906,356 4,742,806
- 65,237 529 20 - - - 65,786

- 1,805 9,124 9,300 22,995 38,091 9,859 91,174

- 137,560 79,351 47,365 48,126 32,831 - 345,233

- 1,615,637 521,517 441,467 843,029 279,819 2,308 3,703,777

- - 1,046 816 5,361 20,840 84,280 112,343

- 74,437 14,974 5,610 51,950 12,849 2,053 161,873

- 1,894,676 626,541 504,578 971,461 384,430 98,500 4,480,186
40,453  (1,636,947) (11,987) (74,823) 170,479 967,589 807,856 262,620
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APPENDIX I: NET PROFIT AFTER DEDUCTING NON-ROUTINE ITEMS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, COMMITMENTS AND OTHER OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Legal proceedings

As at 30 June 2006, the Group was the defendant in certain lawsuits arising from its normal business
operations. Management of the Group believes that the outcome of these lawsuits will not have a
material impact on the financial position of the Group after consulting legal counsel.

Assets pledged

Assets pledged as collateral for repurchase, short positions and precious metals swaps agreements
with other banks and financial institutions are set forth in the tables below. As at 30 June 2006, the
Group had repurchase agreements, short positions and precious metals swaps amounting to RMB
78,597 million (2005: RMB 62,108 million). All such agreements mature within twelve months from
inception.

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Precious metals 52 2,617
Bills (Note lll. 6) 5,569 11,968
Debt securities (Note Ill. 5) 76,822 49,658
Total 82,443 64,243

Capital commitments

The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the accounts:

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Authorised and contracted for but not recorded 2,152 1,893
Authorised but not contracted for 2,257 2,687
Total 4,409 4,580

The above capital commitments are related to commitments to purchase building and equipment.
The Group’s management is confident that future revenues and funding available will be sufficient to
meet these capital commitments. However the Group’s management have no obligation to incur the
costs in respect of the balance of the authorised but not contracted for amounts.
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APPENDIX I: NET PROFIT AFTER DEDUCTING NON-ROUTINE ITEMS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, COMMITMENTS AND OTHER OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
(Continued)

Operating leases

Under the Group’s irrevocable operating lease contracts, the minimum rental payments that should
be paid in the future are summarised as:

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Within one year

1,401 1,371
One to two years 1,159 1,085
Two to three years 851 807
Above three years 2,566 2,546
Total 5,977 5,809

Certificate Treasury bond redemption commitments

The Bank is entrusted by the MOF to issue certain Certificate Treasury Bonds. The investors of
Certificate Treasury Bonds have a right to redeem the bonds at par any time prior to maturity and the
Bank is committed to redeem those bonds. The redemption price is the principal value of the
Certificate Treasury Bonds plus unpaid interest. As at 30 June 2006, the Bank’s redemption
commitments, representing the principal value of the bonds underwritten and sold by the Bank,
amounted to RMB 84,056 million (2005: RMB 80,965 million). The original maturities of these bonds
vary from 1 to 5 years. As the deposits base rate established by the PBOC is currently lower than the
yields on all issues of Certificate Treasury Bonds, management expects the amount of redemption
before the maturity dates of those bonds through the Bank will not be material.

Major off-balance sheet exposures
30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Acceptances 230,434 195,234
Letters of guarantee issued 255,779 212,987
Letters of credit issued 115,686 101,195
Irrevocable credit commitments and others 422,297 386,346
Total 1,024,196 895,762
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APPENDIX I: NET PROFIT AFTER DEDUCTING NON-ROUTINE ITEMS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Subsequent to the balance sheet date in August 2006, the Bank entered into certain foreign currency
transactions to reduce its net foreign currency position by USD14.2 billion (Note VII).
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APPENDIX I: NET PROFIT AFTER DEDUCTING NON-ROUTINE ITEMS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

In accordance with the requirements “Question & Answer No.1 Concerning disclosure convention
for companies offering shares to the public—Non-routine profit/loss(revised 2004)”, the Group’s net
profit before and after deducting non-routine items is as follows:

For the six month
period ended
30 June 2006

unaudited
Net profit 19,024
Add / (Less): non-routine items
— Net Gain on disposal of long-term equity investments (142)
— Non-operating income (1) (1,111)
— Non-operating expense (2) 644
— Write-back of the impairments recognised in previous years (3) (451)
Income tax impact of non-routine items 349
Net profit after deducting the non-routine items 18,314

Non-operating income refer to income which are not directly attributable to business operating
activities, including net gains from disposal of fixed assets, gains from fixed assets stocktake,
penalty charge income, gains from closing of dormant accounts and etc.

Non-operating expense refers to expenses which are not directly attributable to business operating
activities, including net losses on disposal of fixed assets, penalty charge expenses, donation, hon-
routine losses and etc.

Write-back of prior year provision for asset impairment mainly consists of write-back of provision for
other receivables and advances.
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APPENDIX Il: RECONCILIATION BETWEEN PRC GAAP AND IFRS FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

The Group’s Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Income Statement prepared under the
International Financial Reporting Standards(“IFRS”) and the reconciliation between PRC GAAP and

IFRS financial information are set out below:

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Net trading income

Net (losses)/gains on investment securities
Other operating income

Impairment losses on loans and advances
Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Share of results of associates
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the period
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank
Minority interest

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the

equity holders of the Bank during the period
(Renminbi per ordinary share)
- Basic and diluted
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For the six month period
ended 30 June

2006 2005
unaudited unaudited
100,124 77.616
(45,301) (28,808)
54,823 48,808
8,166 5,915
(1,325) (1,397)
6,841 4518
557 2,795
64 20
7,218 5,229
(5,479) (4,966)
(29,686) (27,721)
34,338 28,683
371 48
34,709 28,731
(12,458) (10,957)
22,251 17,774
19,477 15,181
2,774 2,593
22,251 17,774
0.09 0.08




BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

APPENDIX II: RECONCILIATION BETWEEN PRC GAAP AND IFRS FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
30 June 2006 31 December 2005

unaudited audited
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks 36.785 41.082
Balances with central banks 340.651 316.941
Placements with banks and other financial
institutions 293,140 332,099
Government certificates of indebtedness for bank
notes issued 36,094 35,586
Precious metals 39 259 26,974
Trading assets and other financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss 114,167 111,782
Derivative financial instruments 21.540 16.808
Loans and advances to customers, net 2.317,625 2,152,112
Investment securities
- available-for-sale 929,894 602,221
- held-to-maturity 569,126 607,459
- loans and receivables 389,368 361,851
Investment in associates 5,675 5,061
Property and equipment 62.238 62,417
Investment property 8612 8,511
Deferred income tax assets 23431 20.504
Other assets 44,030 38,640
Total assets 5,231,635 4,740,048
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APPENDIX Il: RECONCILIATION BETWEEN PRC GAAP AND IFRS FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

LIABILITIES
Due to banks
Due to central banks

Bank notes in circulation

Certificates of deposits and placements from
banks and other financial institutions

Derivative financial instruments and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Due to customers

Bonds issued

Special purpose borrowings
Current tax liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Bank

Share capital

Capital reserve

Statutory reserves

General and regulatory reserves

Undistributed profits
Reserve for fair value changes of available-for-
sale securities

Currency translation differences

Minority interest

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities
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30 June 2006

31 December 2005

unaudited audited
171,422 134,217
30,495 30,055
36,151 35,731
190,880 212,626
101,172 91,174
4,048,438 3,699,464
60,177 60,179
49,622 52,164
20,637 23,459
6,933 7,052
2,053 2,136
128,573 136,272
4,846,553 4,484,529
253,839 209,427
66,613 (5,954)
8,095 5,987
9,398 5,109
21,893 10,188
(3,603) 1,899
(488) (237)
355,747 226,419
29,335 29,100
385,082 255,519
5,231,635 4,740,048
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED
APPENDIX Il: RECONCILIATION BETWEEN PRC GAAP AND IFRS FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation between PRC GAAP and IFRS financial information

Net assets Net profit
for the six month
as at period ended 30 June
30 31

June December

2006 2005 2006 2005
PRC GAAP figures 357,641 233,842 19,024 16,434
Adjustments for accounting standard
differences:
-Reversal of revaluation surplus and
corresponding depreciation (1) (7,794) (7,999) 205 133
-Fair value measurement on investment
properties (2) 3,199 2,816 438 1,059
-Equity securities classified as available-for-
sale financial assets and stated at fair
value(3) 3,566 1,775 - -
- Early retirement benefit obligation (4) (4,911) (5,097) 186 (1,749)
-Cost method applied on precious metals (5) (757) (637) (120) (83)
-Deferred tax impact (6) 4,222 992 (97) (97)
-Minority interests effect and others 581 727 (159) (516)
Sub-total (1,894) (7,423) 453 (1,253)
IFRS figures 355,747 226,419 19,477 15,181

Reversal of revaluation surplus and corresponding depreciation

Under PRC GAAP, the Bank recorded an asset revaluation adjustment of RMB 10,432 million as of
31 December 2003, related principally to property and equipment, in connection with the Joint Stock
Reform Plan. The revalued property and equipment will be amortised over their remaining useful
lives. According to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, once an entity has chosen the cost model
as its accounting policy, it shall apply the policy to an entire class of property, and shall not be
permitted to measure these fixed assets at fair value. Hence, the asset revaluation surplus and
corresponding depreciation recognized under PRC GAAP, should be reversed under IFRS.
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APPENDIX II: RECONCILIATION BETWEEN PRC GAAP AND IFRS FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation between PRC GAAP and IFRS (Continued)

Fair value measurement on investment properties

Under PRC GAAP, investment properties as fixed assets are measured at cost after deducting
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. According to IAS 40 Investment Property,
investment properties are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date by the Group.

Equity securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets and stated at fair value

Under PRC GAAP, equity securities are accounted for at cost after deducting impairment losses.
According to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, these securities have
been classified as available-for-sale and are stated at fair value.

Early retirement benefit obligation

According to MOF requirement, the early retirement benefit expenditures during the early retirement
period (from early retirement date to legal retirement date) to those employees who accepted an
early retirement arrangement is recognized on a cash basis by the Group. According to IAS 19
Employee Benefits, the early retirement benefit at the balance sheet date should be recorded based
on the present value of future payment obligation after adjusting for actuarial gain or loss and past
servicing cost.

Cost method applied on precious metals

According to accounting practice of PRC banking industry, all precious metals are initially
recognized at cost and subsequently re-measured at fair value at the balance sheet date by the
Bank. According to IAS 2 Inventories, precious metals that are not related to the Group’s precious
metals trading activities are carried at cost.

Deffered tax impact

Under IFRS, deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. Under PRC GAAP, deferred income tax is provided using the
liability method, on timing differences between the Group’s taxable profits and its results as stated in
the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in
periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.

The difference between PRC GAAP and IFRS in 2006 mainly represents the deferred income tax

credited or charged directly to equity under IFRS relating to the fair value re-measurement of
available-for-sale investments charged or credited directly to equity.
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Important Notes

The Board of Directors of Bank of China Limited (the “Bank™) and its directors ,the Board of Supervisors and its supervisors, the
senior management of the bank warrant that there are no fraudulent disclosures, misleading statements or material omissions in

this report, and that they will be individually and jointly responsible for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the report.

The Board meeting held on 29 August 2006 reviewed and adopted the text and summary of the 2006 Interim Report. 16 directors
were required to attend the meeting, with 16 present at the meeting. 16 directors exercised the right of voting, and 5 supervisors of

the Bank participated in the meeting without voting right.

The 2006 interim financial statements under PRC Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards have
been reviewed by PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified Public Accountants Limited Company (“PWC”) and

PricewaterhouseCoopers according to the Chinese and international review standards respectively.

Board of Directors of Bank of China Limited

Chairman Xiao Gang, President Li Lihui, Vice President in charge of Accounting Function Zhou Zaiqun and General Manager in
charge of the Accounting Department Liu Yanfen undertake that the financial statements in the interim report are true and

complete.



Financial Highlights (The report is prepared in accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards for Enterprises and the

Accounting Systems for Financial Institutions.)

At 31 December

Increase/decrease from 1 January

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 2004 2006 10 30 June 2006
Total assets 5,226,933 4,742,806 4,270,443 10.21%
Incl.: loans, net 2,317,408 2,151,893 2,071,693 7.69%
Total liabilities 4,840,480 4,480,186 4,037,705 8.04%
Incl.: Customer deposits 4,053,024 3,703,777 3,342,477 9.43%
;(;31 equity attributable to shareholders of the 357,641 233,842 205,351 52.94%
Net assets per share (RMB) 141 1.12 1.10 25.89%
Adjusted net assets per share (RMB)' 1.40 111 1.09 26.13%
Half year ended 30 Half year ended 30 Year ended 31 Increase/decrease from first half
June 2006 June 2005 December 2005  of 2005 to first half of 2006
Operating profit 38,422 33,009 64,744 16.40%
Gross profit 34,013 29,578 55,140 14.99%
Net profit 19,024 16,434 27,492 15.76%
Ig\Taei'; I;J/rl(z)f;lzeasfter deducting Non-recurring 18,314 NA 26.174 NA
- vi -
Eig?gs per share (EPS)” (fully diluted, 0.07 0.09 0.13 (22.22%)
EPS*? (weighted average, RMB) 0.09 0.09 0.15 0.00%
Net cash flow from operating activities (117,991) 21,615 13,883 (645.88%)

' The data are computed according to the Standards Concerning the Contents and Formats of Information Disclosure by

Companies Offering Securities to the Public (No.3) --- Contents and Formats of Interim Report (Revision 2003) (ZJGSZ [2003]

No.25) promulgated by China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC).
EPS is calculated according to the Compiling Rules on Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the Public

(No.9) --- Computation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and EPS promulgated by CSRC.

3 Weighted average share capital and net asset are caculated with the number of days as the weight.
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Increase/Decrease from 1

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004  January 2006 to 30 June
2006 (%)
Return on total assets (annualized) 0.87% 0.72% 0.61% 0.15
11 7 7
Rc.tturr.l on share capital’ (annualized, excluding 12.87% 12.52% 10.23% 0.35
minority interests)
Rgtun} on share capital (annualized, including 13.34% 13.16% 10.92% 0.18
minority interests)
Return on net assets” (annualized, fully diluted) 10.64% 11.76% 10.19% (1.12)
2 . .
Return on net assets” (annualized, weighted 14.99% 12 62% 10.04% 237
average)
Credit cost (annualized) 0.44% 0.50% 1.06% (0.06)
Non-performing loan (NPL) ratio 4.19% 4.62% 5.12% (0.43)
Capital adequacy ratio 12. 40% 10.42% 10.04% 1.98
Provision coverage ratio 87.44% 80.55% 68.02% 6.89
Half year ended Half year ended 30 Year ended 31 LS By it
30 June 2006 June 2005 December 2005 st half of 2005 to first
half of 2006 (%)
Cost to income ratio 35.90% 37.05% 39.30% (1.15)
Proportion of non-interest income 15.67% 14.15% 13.46% 1.52
Net interest margin 2.26% 2.31% 2.32% (0.05)

! The data are caculated according to the Guidelines on the Corporate Governance and Suppervision of State-owned Commercial

Banks (YJF [2006] No.22).

5




Chairman’s Statement

Building a Stronger Foundation for Growth

The year 2006 will stand out as an important chapter in the history of Bank of China Limited. We became the first Chinese bank to
be listed in both international and domestic capital markets, which has laid a solid foundation for our vision of becoming a leading
international bank. I am therefore delighted to present to our constituents in the community and the investing public the performance
of the Bank in the first half of the year. For the six months ended 30 June 2006, we recorded an operating profit of RMB38,422
million and net profit of RMB19,024 million, representing a year on year increase of 16.40% and 15.76% respectively. Our ROAA
was 0.87% and ROAE was 12.87%, an increase of 0.15% and 0.35% over the end of 2005.

The satisfactory performance is the result of the Bank’s advance with time and reforms introduced over the last two years. We
completed the financial restructuring in 2004, and the introduction of strategic investors in 2005. On 1 June and 5 July 2006, our
shares were successfully listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the Shanghai Stock Exchange respectively, thus making us
the first Chinese bank to be listed in both international and domestic capital markets. We raised HK$86 billion through issuing H
Shares, a new world record in the amount of equity capital raised in an IPO by a financial institution and also the largest IPO in the
world over the last six years. The issue of A Shares on the other hand raised RMB20 billion, making it the largest IPO ever in the A
Share market to date. The listings have enhanced our influence in both the international and domestic markets, giving added splendor

to our century-old brand.

The successful IPOs have brought our reform to a new starting point and also fueled it with new impetus. They have offered a
historical opportunity for us to achieve sustainable growth and created a platform to take our businesses to new heights. The IPOs
have strengthened the Bank’s capital base, boosted the value of our brand name and market reputation, and will drive us to reform
further and improve our corporate governance. Becoming a listed bank is set to bring profound changes to our corporate value,
development strategy, organization structure, business flow, staff quality and management practices. It will not only sustain but will
also speed up our reforms. Our goal is to completely transform our operational system and substantively enhance our management

capabilities.

However, we are also fully aware that along with the listings will come unprecedented challenges and tests. The Bank will be subject
to both banking and securities regulatory requirements, stringent market discipline and demands to deliver higher returns. We are
committed to abide strictly by all relevant laws and regulations, disclose truthful, accurate and complete information in a timely

manner to assure transparency, and to nurture and strengthen our core competitiveness and create maximum value.

In the second half of 2006, we expect China to maintain a robust yet healthy economic growth. The effects of government
macro-adjustment measures will become more apparent. The Bank will closely monitor the development of the macro-economic
environment and take advantage of opportunities to achieve strong and steady growth while staying alert to the associated risks. We
will continue to improve our corporate governance and adhere to the “client-oriented and market-driven” principle. Our focus is on
enhancing profitability and sustainable growth so as to create maximum value for shareholders. By studying the setting up of
strategic business units along the lines of corporate banking, personal banking and treasury business, we will try to strengthen the
management of business lines so as to gradually establish a matrix management model commonly adopted by international financial
institutions. We will also continue to implement the IT blueprint to achieve centralized processing operations and set up uniform data
standards and operational procedures. The ultimate objective of these endeavors is to centralize transaction data processing and
facilitate the sharing of management information, thereby building a solid platform for improving the Bank’s overall competitiveness
and profitability, and at the same time enhancing internal control. It is also our commitment to build a strong corporate culture with
work ethics that encourages honesty and integrity, the drive for performance, a people oriented spirit, diligence and accountability
and the pursuit of excellence. We will cultivate shared values and common behaviour among our employees so as to pool their
wisdom and ability and provide the Bank with the lasting drive for a sustainable development.
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To conclude, I wish to thank all our domestic and overseas customers, our shareholders, our peers and the public for your care and
support in the past, and hope to have your continuous support in the years to come. I would also like to thank members of the Board
of Directors, Board of Supervisors and Senior Management for your hard work and shrewd guidance. Last but not the least, my

gratitude goes to our entire staff for its industry and dedication, unswerving as always.

Xiao Gang (Signature)

Chairman

President’s Statement

In 2006, Bank of China Limited was successfully listed in both domestic and international capital markets, which demonstrated the
wide market recognition of our century-old brand name. On behalf of the management, I would like to thank investors and the

different constituents in the community for your confidence and support.

In the first half of 2006, both Chinese economy and the world economy registered rapid growth, which enabled us and our peers in
the domestic as well as international markets to share the opportunity and achievements arising from a booming economy.
Meanwhile, we have been vigilant to the challenges posed by volatility in both markets and the Government’s macroeconomic
adjustment measures in response to which we have taken further measures to improve our risk management to ensure a steady and

sustainable growth.

Led by the Board of Directors, Management diligently implemented the Bank’s strategy, made good progress in diverse areas and
achieved strong financial results. As at the end of June 2006, the Group’s total asset stood at RMBS5,226.933 billion, total liabilities
was RMB4,840.48 billion, and owners’ equity was RMB357.641 billion, representing an increase of 10.21%, 8.04% and 52.94%
respectively from the end of last year. Profit before tax and net profit were RMB34.013 billion and RMB19.024 billion respectively,
14.99% and 15.76% higher than in the same period last year.

The surge in our profit during the period was mainly driven by increase of net interest income and non-interest income, and better

control of credit cost and operating expenses.

Compared with the end of last year, our total customer deposits increased by 9.4% and total loans increased by 7.7%. Amount of

investment securities rose 19.1% and net interest income grew by 12.0%.
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The profit before tax of domestic operations climbed 10.5%, accounting for 63.1% of the Group’s total profit before tax compared
with 59.4% as at the end of 2005. Investment banking and insurance business reported a 145.7% surge in profit before tax and
accounted for 6.6% of the Group’s total profit against 3.2% in last year. Commercial banking, our core business, boasted a 10.8%

growth in profit before tax.

Non-interest income registered a 26.2% growth compared with the same period last year, with its contribution to the Group’s

operating profit rising from 14.2% to 15.7%. Net service fees and commissions rose 51.4%.

Our lending business grew steadily with total loans up 7.7% from the end of last year. Loans made by domestic operations increased
9.6%, and RMB loans grew 11.2%. Our risk management system functioned smoothly with continual improvement in credit asset
quality. Ratio of special mention loan dropped from 12.7% to 10.9% and impaired loan ratio decreased from 4.9% at the end of last

year to 4.4%. Coverage ratio increased from 80.6% to 87.4%.

The Group’s operating profit grew faster than operating expenses. Our cost-to-income ratio was successfully lowered from 37.05% to

35.9%; effective tax rate also decreased from 36.7% to 36.3%.

Management is fully aware that the listings have ushered in a new phase in the century old history of the Bank. We will remain alert
to challenges and operate prudently while actively developing our businesses. We will accelerate product innovation and improve
service quality, with a view to enhance our core competitiveness. Our risk management and internal control will continue to be
enhanced so as to safeguard against cases and incidents of fraud. We will keep a watchful eye on effective cost control and will push
forward with our organizational structure reforms, business processes integration and implementation of the IT Blueprint to achieve
centralization and cost savings in our operation. Human resources reform will also remain our key focus. We are committed to
building an effective incentive system and nurturing a corporate culture that encourages integrity, performance, responsibility,
harmony and excellence. We believe that with these initiatives and by offering more training, we will be able to substantially improve

the overall quality of our workforce.

Li Lihui (Signature)

President



Management Discussion & Analysis
Economic, Financial and Regulatory Environment

In the first half of 2006, the global economy achieved robust growth. The International Monetary Fund raised its global GDP growth
forecast to 4.9% for 2006, which will be the fourth consecutive year with growth rate over 4%. The Chinese economy continued to
maintain its trend of steady expansion, with a year-on-year GDP growth of 10.9% to RMB9,143.3 billion in the first half of 2006.
Commodity price remained stable. During the period, consumer price index rose by 1.3%, investments and exports grew especially
strongly, while consumption steadily increased. Foreign trade climbed 23.4%, 0.2 percentage point higher than the growth rate a year
carlier. Trade surplus reached USD61.4 billion. With strengthened macro-economic adjustment measures, the overheated factors in
the economy have shown signs of cooling down. Total retail sales of consumer goods increased by 13.3%, or 12.4% in real terms, 0.4

percentage points higher than the growth a year earlier. The Chinese economy continued to register fast growth and low inflation.

In the first half of 2006, China's financial market advanced smoothly with financial credits and money supply increased and more
financial innovations introduced. RMB interest rate and exchange rate remained stable. By the end of June, RMB had appreciated
0.94% against USD. The balance of all financial institutions’ RMB and foreign currency loans had increased by 14.34% to
RMB22.79 trillion, and the balance of deposits had surged by 17.19%.

2006 is the fifth year following China's entry to the WTO. With the country fully opening up its financial sector to the world by the

end of the year, competition among domestic and foreign financial institutions has become increasingly fierce.

The China Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC) promulgated a series of regulatory policies in the first half of 2006, covering
such areas as the adoption of unified regulatory rating system for to all commercial banks, promotion of corporate governance and
innovations, approval for banks to offer overseas wealth management services to customers, strengthening regulation of foreign
exchange risk management and guidance on loan issuance. These policies have significant bearing on the banking industry’s

profitability and business management.

The changing economic, financial and regulatory environment has imposed more stringent requirements on the operation and

management of commercial banks.

Our Target This year, the Bank will firmly push forward all its reforms in greater depth. While seizing the opportunities arising
from China's continuous economic growth, it will also vigilantly guard against potential risks for the financial sector caused by
conflicts in the inner working of the economy. It will accelerate the development of its risk management and internal control system,
consolidate management and business processes, speed up the implementation of its IT blueprint, and make efforts to improve
management capabilities. It will expedite product and service innovation to enhance its core competitiveness. Our goal is to ensure
the Bank develops in a comprehensive, coordinated and sustainable manner, thereby create greater value for shareholders, the Bank,

our clients and employees.

Financial Statement Analysis
Overview

As of 30 June 2006, total assets of Bank of China Limited (“the Bank™) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) reached RMBS5,226.933
billion, an increase of RMB484.127 billion or 10.21% over 31 December 2005. Total liabilities stood at RMB4,840.48 billion, an
increase of RMB360.294 billion or 8.04% over 31 December 2005. Owners’ equity (excluding minority interests) totaled
RMB357.641 billion, an increase of RMB123.799 billion or 52.94% over 31 December 2005.

The Group achieved a net profit of RMB19.024 billion in the first half of 2006, a year-on-year increase of RMB2.59 billion or
15.76%. The Group is in a good financial position.

Income Statement Analysis



Unit: RMB million

Ttems Half year ended 30 June| Half year ended 30 June | Year ended 31 December
2006 2005 2005
Net interest income 54,476 48,658 100,405
Non-interest income 10,126 8,021 15,623
Operating and administrative expenses (23,193) (21,000) (45,604)
Business tax and surcharges (2,987) (2,670) (5,680)
Operating profit 38,422 33,009 64,744
Non-operating income, net 467 1,145 1,381
Net profit before impairment losses 38,889 34,154 66,125
Less: impairment losses (4,876) (4,576) (10,985)
Profit before tax 34,013 29,578 55,140
Less: income tax expense (12,362) (10,860) (22,543)
Less: minority interests (2,627) (2,284) (5,105)
Net profit 19,024 16,434 27,492

Return on Net Assets and EPS Calculated in accordance with the Compiling Rules on Information Disclosure by Companies Offering

Securities to the Public (N0.9) Promulgated by CSRC

Unit: RMB million

S Profit in the Return on net assets (%) EPS (RMB)
report period Fully diluted Weighted average | Fully diluted | Weighted average

Profit from main business 38,422 21.49% 30.27% 0.15 0.18

Operating profit 38,422 21.49% 30.27% 0.15 0.18

Net profit 19,024 10.64% 14.99% 0.07 0.09

Net profit after deducting 18,314 10.24% 14.43% 0.07 0.08

non-recurring items
Reconciliation between PRC GAAP and IFRS Unit: RMB million
Financial Information

Net Assets Net profit
At 30 June At 31 December Half year ended | Half year ended 30
2006 2005 30 June 2006 | June 2005

PRC GAAP figures 357,641 233,842 19,024 16,434
Adjustments for accounting standard differences:
--Reversal of revaluation surplus and
corresponding depreciation (7.794) (7,999) 205 133
--Fair value measurement on investment
properties 3,199 2,816 438 1,059
--Equity securities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets at fair value 3,566 L775 ) i
--Early retirement benefit obligation (4,911) (5,097) 186 (1,749)
--Cost method applied on precious metals (757) (637) (120) (83)
--Deferred tax impact 4,222 992 (97) (97)
--Minority interests effect and others 581 727 (159) (516)
Sub-total (1,894) (7,423) 453 (1,253)
IRFS figures 355,747 226,419 19,477 15,181




Please refer to Appendix II iv (Reconciliation between RPRC GAAP and IFRS financial information) for details.

Non-recurring Items

Unit: RMB million

Net gains on disposal of long-term equity investments 141

Non-operating income 1,111
Non-operating expense (644)
Write-back of the impairments recognized in previous 451

years

Income tax impact of Non-recurring items (349)
Total 710

Operation of Major Subsidiary

Name BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
Listing place and code Hong Kong - HK2388
BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited is a holding company; its subsidiary
Scope of business Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (BOC Hong Kong) provides banking and
relevant financial services in Hong Kong.
Net profit (RMB 100million) 45.70 39.93

Proportion of net profit of share
participating company in current period in 24.02 24.30
the net profits of the listed company (%)

Net Interest Income

In the first half of 2006, the Group achieved a net interest income of RMB54.476 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMBS5.818
billion or 11.96%. The average balance' and average interest rate’ of the Group’s interest-carning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities are shown in the table below:

! Average balances of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities are daily average balances derived from the Group’s
management accounts.
% The average interest rate is annualized rate and calculated by dividing interest income/expense by average balance. Average interest
rates in the first half of 2006 and the first half of 2005 are converted into annualized rates.
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Unit: RMB million

Interest-earning

assets
oans 2,291,998 48% 60,3600 5.27%(2,196,061 52% 51,971 4.73%2,192,058 51% 109,711 5.00%
Debt securities' 1,837,222 38% 30,6528 3.34%(1,383,481 33%| 19,908 2.88%1,475,673 34% 44,938 3.05%

Due from and
placements with
banks and other
financial institutions,
land due from central
banks

694,824 14% 8,765 2.52% 639,077 15%| 5,587 1.75% 655,359 15% 12,696 1.94%

Sub-total 4,824,044 100%| 99,777 4.14904,218,619 100%| 77,466 3.67994,323,090 100% 167,345 3.87%

Interest-bearing
liabilities
Eﬁgﬁfrg"m 4,001,322 89% 38,887 1.94%(3,471,702] 88% 23,815 1.37%(3,560,014 88% 55914 1.57%
Due to and
placements from
banks and other
financial institutions,
fand due to central
banks

Special purpose
borrowings and 112,108 3% 2,292 4.09% 113,672 3% 2,166 3.81% 115,843 3% 4,514  3.90%
bonds issued

Sub-total 4,484,573 100%| 45,301 2.029%3,921,768 100% 28,808 1.47994,031,713 100% 66,9400 1.66%)

371,143 8% 4,1220 2.22% 336,394 9% 2,827] 1.68% 355,856 9% 6,512 1.83%

[Net interest income 54,476 48,658 100,405

Net interest spread?
%)

Net interest margin®
o)

2.12% 2.20% 2.21%

2.26% 2.31% 2.32%

* Include the balance of certificates of deposits issued.

The following table illustrates changes in the Group's net interest income arising from changes of volume and interest rate factors®.
Variances caused by changes in both volume and rate are attributed to interest rate factor.

! Includes trading and other debt securities at fair value through profit or loss and debt securities investment.
% Net interest spread=Average yield of interest-earning assets - Average cost of interest-bearing liabilities
® Net interest margin=Net interest income / Average balance of interest-earning assets
* Volume variance is calculated based on movements in average balances of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities in
the report period; and interest rate variance is calculated based on changes in average interest rates on interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities in the report period.
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Half year ended 30 June 2006 VS Half year ended 30 June 2005

Unit: RMB million

Volume Interest rate Total
Interest income
Loans 2,269 6,120 8,389
Debt securities 6,534 4,210 10,744
Due from and placements with banks
and other financial institutions, and due 488 2,690 3,178
from central banks
Sub-total 9,291 13,020 22,311
Interest expense
Deposits from customers (3,628) (11,444) (15,072)
Due to and placements from banks and
other financial institutions, and due to (292) (2,003) (1,295)
central banks
Spec1al purpose borrowings and bonds 30 (156) (126)
issued
Sub-total (3,890) (12,603) (16,493)
Net interest income 5,401 417 5,818

Interest income

The Group’s interest income was RMB99.777 billion in the first half of 2006, a year-on-year increase of RMB22.311 billion or
28.80%. The growth is attributed to the size expansion as well as the increase of average interest rate of interest-earning assets. The
average balance of interest-earning assets increased by 14.35% form RMB4,218.619 billion as at 30 June 2005 to RMB4,824.044
billion as at 30 June 2006. The average interest rate of interest-earning assets climbed by 47 basis points from 3.67% in the first half

of 2005 to 4.14% in the first half of 2006.
Loans

The Group achieved a loan interest income of RMB60.36 billion in the first half of 2006, a year-on-year increase of RMB8.389
billion or 16.14%. The growth is mainly due to a 54 basis points increase in the average yield of loans from 4.73% in the first half of
2005 to 5.27% in the first half of 2006, and a 4.37% increase in the average balance of loans from RMB2,196.061 billion in the first
half of 2005 to RMB2,291.998 billion in the first half of 2006. The Group strictly controlled the loan quality, and achieved a steady
growth of loans to customers. The growth of the average yield of loans is mainly due to the following factors: (1) continuous pickup
of foreign currency interest rates; (2) upward adjustment of the benchmark interest rate of RMB loans by People’s Bank of China;
and (3) continuous improvement in the Bank’s loan quality. Influenced by the low interest rate in RMB money market, the discount

yield was under pressure, thus partly offset the rapid growth of interest income.
Debt Securities

In the first half of 2006, the Group achieved an interest income of RMB30.652 billion from debt securities, a year-on-year increase of
RMB10.744 billion or 53.97%. The main reason is that the average balance of debt securities soared by 32.80% from RMB1,383.481
billion in the first half of 2005 to RMB1,837.222 billion in the first half of 2006, and the average yield of securities increased by 46
basis points from 2.88% in the first half of 2005 to 3.34% in the first half of 2006. The increase in average balance is primarily due to
the following factors: (1) with continuous increase in deposits from customers, the Group invested the funds not used as loans in
securities which have higher yield than due from and placements with banks and other financial institutions and due from central
banks; and (2) the Group continued to optimize the asset portfolio by reducing the proportion of relatively lower yield due from and
placements with banks and other financial institutions in the portfolio. Increase in average yield was attributable to the increased

yield of foreign currency securities, which offset the impacts of lower interest rate in the domestic RMB money market.

Due from and Placements with Banks and other Financial Institutions and Due from Central Banks
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The Group achieved an interest income of RMBS8.765 billion from due from and placements with banks and other financial
institutions and due from central banks in the first half of 2006, a year-on-year increase of RMB3.178 billion or 56.88%. The increase
is mainly due to: (1) 77 basis points increase in the average yield from 1.75% in the first half of 2005 to 2.52% in the first half of
2006 driven by the continuous increase of the average yield of foreign currency assets; and (2) the 8.72% increase in average balance
from RMB639.077 billion in the first half of 2005 to RMB694.824 billion in the first half of 2006 which was attributable to the
growth of deposit reserves placed with central banks as a result of increasing customer deposits, though partly offset by the reduction

of low yield due from and placements with banks and other financial institutions.
Interest Expense

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s interest expense was RMB45.301 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMB16.493 billion or
57.25%. The growth is attributable to the size expansion as well as the increase of the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities. The
average balance of interest-bearing liabilities increased by 14.35% from RMB3,921.768 billion in the first half of 2005 to
RMBA4,484.573 billion in the first half of 2006, and the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities rose by 55 basis points from 1.47%
in the first half of 2005 to 2.02% in the same period of 2006.

Deposits from Customers

In the first half of 2006, the interest expense for deposits from customers was RMB38.887 billion, a year-on-year increase of
RMBI15.072 billion or 63.29%. The increase in interest expense is mainly attributable to a 57 basis points increase in the interest rate
from 1.37% in the first half of 2005 to 1.94% in the same period of 2006, and an RMB529.62 billion or 15.26% increase in the
average balance of deposits from customers from RMB3,471.702 billion in the first half of 2005 to RMB4,001.322 billion in the
same period of 2006. The growth of interest rate of deposits from customers is principally due to: (1) significant increase in the
interest rate of low balance foreign currency deposits ; and (2) continuous growth of the overseas market interest rate. The growth of
the average balance of deposits from customers is largely due to the rapid growth of RMB business with the rapid development of the

Chinese economy, which offset the decline of domestic foreign currency deposits caused by the expectation of RMB appreciation.
Due to and Placements from Banks and other Financial Institutions and Due to Central Banks

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s interest expense for due to and placements from banks and other financial institutions and due to
central banks was RMB4.122 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMB1.295 billion or 45.81%. The growth is primarily attributable to
a rise in the cost of foreign currency funds with a 54 basis points increase in the interest rate from 1.68% in the first half of 2005 to
2.22% in the same period of 2006. Although the average balance increased by 10.33% from RMB336.394 billion in the first half of
2005 to RMB371.143 billion in the same period of 2006, the proportion of due to and placements from banks and other financial
institutions in the interest-bearing liabilities declined from 9% in the first half of 2005 to 8% in the same period of 2006.

Special Purpose Borrowings and Bonds Issued

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s interest expense for the special purpose borrowings and bonds issued was RMB2.292 billion, a
year-on-year increase of RMB126 million or 5.82%. The increase is primarily attributable to the growth of fund cost, with the interest

rate rising by 28 basis points from 3.81% in the first half of 2005 to 4.09% in the same period of 2006.
Net Interest Margin and Net Interest Spread

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s net interest spread declined by 8 basis points to 2.12%. Due to increase in interest rate,
contribution from cost free funds increased by 3 basis points; and net interest margin decreased by 5 basis points to 2.26%. The
decrease in interest margin is mainly attributable to: (1) the proportion of debt securities to interest-earning assets increased by 5
percentage points, yet the increase of yield was offset by the low interest rate in RMB money market; (2) due to rapid increase in
interest-earning assets and the Bank’s prudence in balancing risk and return, the proportion of loans in the interest-earning assets

declined and more funds were invested in the debt market; and (3) the cost of foreign currency fund increased.
In the first half of 2006, based on the market forecast and development needs of assets and liabilities business, the Group intensified
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its efforts to absorb RMB deposits, and optimized asset and liability structure. The robust growth in various business lines mitigated

the negative impact of the decrease in interest spread. The net interest income increased by 11.96% from RMB48.658 billion in the

first half of 2005 to RMBS54.476 billion in the same period of 2006.

Non-interest Income

In the first half of 2006, the Group achieved a net non-interest income of RMB10.126 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMB2.105 billion

or 26.24%.

Unit: RMB million

Half year ended 30 | Half year ended 30 Year ended 31
June 2006 June 2005 December 2005
Net fee and commission income 6,841 4,518 9,247
Net trading income (193) 2,993 4,482
Investment gains/losses 1681 149 (248)
Other operating income, net 1,797 361 2,142
Total 10,126 8,021 15,623
Net Fee and Commission Income
Unit: RMB million
Half year ended 30 |Half year ended 30| Year ended 31 December
June 2006 June 2005 2005
Settlement and clearing fees 1,794 1,287 2,941
Agency commissions 2,201 1,235 2,735
Credit commitment fees and commissions 1,438 1,308 2,693
Bank card fees 1,365 1,049 2,340
Custodian and other fiduciary service fees 248 235 483
Others 1,120 801 1,506
Fee and commission income 8,166 5,915 12,698
Fee and commission expense (1,325) (2,397) (3,451)
Net fee and commission income 6,841 4,518 9,247

In the first half of 2006, the Group achieved a net fee and commission income of RMB6.841 billion, a year-on-year increase of
RMB2.323 billion or 51.42%. The increase was mainly attributed to the Group’s intensified efforts to drive the growth in fee-based

businesses. As a result, significant increase was recorded in agency commissions, settlement and clearing fees, and bank card fees.

Agency commission of the Group reached RMB2.201 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMB966 million or 78.22%. The growth is

mainly attributable to increased sales of products and services such as treasury bonds, investment funds and insurance.

Settlement and clearing fees of the Group stood at RMB1.794 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMB507 million or 39.39%. The
growth is primarily attributable to the rapid growth of businesses such as factoring and L/C settlement and personal electronic

remittance.
Bank card fees of the Group reached RMB1.365 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMB316 million or 30.12%. The growth is
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mainly attributable to the intensified efforts of the Group on promoting bank cards business in line with market changes and customer

demand, which led to continuous increase in new card issuance, transaction volume and frequency of ATM transactions.

Net Trading Income

Unit: RMB million

Half year ended 30 June [ Half year ended 30 | Year ended 31 December
2006 June 2005 2005
Net gains from foreign exchange and foreign exchange 1302 3392 2518
products ' ' ’
Net gains from interest rate products (1,495) (329) 1,964
Total (193) 2,993 4,482

The Group suffered a net trading loss of RMB193 million in the first half of 2006, a year-on-year decline of RMB3.186 billion or
106.45%.

In the first half of 2006, the domestic operations’ spread income from foreign exchange dealings was RMB2.728 billon, a
year-on-year increase of RMB804 million or 41.79%. The increase is mainly attributable to the change in foreign exchange rate and
moderate liberalization of personal limits that spurred the growth of personal foreign exchange transactions. During the same period,
due to interest rate volatility, the Group suffered a loss from interest rate instruments of RMB1.495 billion, a year-on-year decrease of
RMBI1.166 billion or 354.41%.

Starting from 21 July 2005, the People’s Bank of China (the central bank) adopted a managed floating exchange rate regime. As a
result of RMB appreciation, the Group suffered a net loss of RMB3.5 billion on foreign currency exposure under the restricted
foreign exchange capital account in the first half of 2006. At the same time, the foreign exchange option contract entered between the

Group and Central SAFE Investments Limited gave rise to an evaluation gain of RMB300 million. Should the above factors be

excluded, the Bank’s net trading income has increased by RMB14 million year-on-year.
Investment Income

Unit: RMB million

Half year ended 30 June | Half year ended 30 | Year ended 31 December

2006 June 2005 2005
Gains from equity investment 1,587 125 678
Incl.: Net gains from investment in associates 339 48 166
Net gains from other equity investments 1,248 77 512
(Losses)/gains from debt investment 94 24 (926)
Total 1,681 149 (248)

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s investment income rocketed by RMB1.532 billion or 1028.19% to RMB1.681 billion. The
increase is mainly attributable to: (1) the Group acquired an additional 5% stake in September 2005 in Huaneng International Power
Development Corporation and thus held 20% stake in total, investment income from which was accounted for based on equity
method and recognized in net gains from investment in associates; (2) the Group sold shares of BOC Group Life Assurance Limited

to BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited; and (3) the investment income of BOC International increased.



Other Operating Income, Net
Unit: RMB million

Half year ended 30 June | Half year ended 30 | Year ended 31 December

2006 June 2005 2005
Other operating revenues 5,366 2,767 6,617
Insurance premium 4,286 2,624 5,237
Others 1,080 143 1,380
Other operating expense (3,569) (2,406) (4,475)
Insurance claims expense (3,423) (2,168) (3,861)
Others (146) (238) (614)
Total 1,797 361 2,142

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s net income from other operations grew by RMB1.436 billion or 397.78% to RMB1.797 billion,
which was largely due to the continuous increase in the income from the Group’s insurance business and subsidiaries’ other operating
activities.

Operating and Administrative Expense

Unit: RMB million

Half year ended 30 June | Half year ended 30 June | Year ended 31 December
2006 2005 2005
Staff cost 13,278 11,654 23,979
General operating and administrative expense 7,174 6,208 15,742
Depreciation 2,741 3,138 5,883
Total 23,193 21,000 45,604

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s operating and administrative expenses totaled RMB23.193 billion, a year-on-year increase of
RMB2.193 billion or 10.44%. The increase is mainly attributable to the following factors: (1) the Group continued the staff
compensation reform to enhance its competitiveness; (2) the Group implemented the Annuity Plan; (3) expenses for supporting the
Group’s business growth increased with the expansion of business and increasingly fierce market competition; and (4) depreciation

expense continued to decline as a result of factors such as the sale and disposal of fixed assets in previous years.
Impairment Losses

Unit: RMB million

Half year ended 30 | Half year ended 30 June Year ended 31
June 2006 2005 December 2005
Provision for loan losses 5,062 4,718 10,888
(Write-back of)/Provision for impairment of foreclosed
(131) 96 133

assets
(Write-back of)/Provision for impairment of other

) (55) 206 498
receivables
Write-back of impairment of fixed assets and others - (444) (534)
Total 4,876 4,576 10,985

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s asset impairment losses increased by RMB300 million or 6.56%.
Provision for Interest Receivable and Other Bad Debt Receivables

As provided in the Accounting System for Financial Institutions issued by the Ministry of Finance, financial institutions should

analyze the recoverability of receivables (including fund placement and premium receivable, but not including interest receivable),
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forecast bad debt losses, and make provision for bad debt losses that are estimated to occur. When loan interest receivable or
corresponding loan principal is overdue for more than 90 days, the interest receivable should be transferred off balance sheet, and the
interest income and interest receivable that have been recognized should be reversed. The age of interest receivable is within 90 days.

In the report period, the Group’s bad debt provision was detailed as follows:

Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 Increase
Other receivables 17,538 14,275 3,263
Balapqe of bad debt 3.874 3878 )
provision

Income Tax Analysis

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s income tax expense was RMB12.362 billion, a year-on-year increase of RMB1.502 billion or

13.83%. The Group’s effective tax rate was 36.34%, a year-on-year decrease of 0.38 percentage points.

Balance Sheet Analysis

Unit: RMB million

At 31 December At 31 December

At 30 June 2006 2005 2004
Debt securities' 1,988,271 1,669,591 1,309,479
Due from banks, placements with banks and
other financial institutions, and due from 640,765 661,478 631,727
central banks
Net loans 2,317,408 2,151,893 2,071,693
Fixed assets and construction in progress 75,148 76,320 79,302
Total assets 5,226,933 4,742,806 4,270,443
Due to banks, placements from banks and
other financial institutions, and due to 388,844 375,288 318,443
central banks
Deposits from customers 4,053,024 3,703,777 3,342,477
Special purpose borrowings and bonds 109,799 112,343 95,802
issued
Total liabilities 4,840,480 4,480,186 4,037,705
Minority interests 28,812 28,778 27,387
Total equity 357,641 233,842 205,351
Total equity and liabilities 5,226,933 4,742,806 4,270,443

Including securities available-for-sale, securities held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, trading and other debt securities at fair
value through profit or loss.
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Debt Securities

Unit: RMB million

At 30 June At 31 December At 31 December
2006 2005 2004
Trading and other bonds at fair value through profit or loss 110,602 107,271 91,012
Debt securities available-for-sale 919,175 593,010 346,532
Debt securities held-to-maturity, net 569,126 607,459 457,994
Debt securities classified as loans and receivables, net 389,368 361,851 413,941
Total 1,988,271 1,669,591 1,309,479

As of 30 June 2006, security assets of the Group reached RMB1,988.271 billion, an increase of RMB318.68 billion or 19.09% over

31 December 2005. The increase was mainly attributed to the growth of RMB3,26.165 billion in debt securities available-for-sale.

Loans

As of 30 June 2006, the Group had a total loan portfolio of RMB2,405.536 billion, an increase of RMB170.49 billion or 7.6% over

the previous year-end. Loans by domestic operations were RMB1,972.631 billion, an increase of RMB172.708 billion or 9.6% over

the previous year-end. Loans by domestic operations of Eastern Region grew at the highest rate, with an RMB93.81 billion or 13.1%

increase over the previous year-end.

Loan Portfolio Concentrations by Geographic Region

Loan Portfolio Concentrations of the Group by Region

Unit: RMB million

Domestic operations 1,972,631 82.00% 1,799,923 80.53% 1,734,302 80.80%
Overseas operations 432,905 18.00% 435,123 19.47% 412,160 19.20%
Total 2,405,536 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100.00%
Domestic Loans by Geographic Region

Unit: RMB million
Northern Region 353,477 17.92% 322,451 17.91% 313,843 18.10%
Northeastern Region 135,087 6.85% 131,430 7.30% 128,374 7.40%
Eastern Region 813,572 41.24% 719,759 39.99% 679,773 39.20%
Central &  Southern
Region 470,372 23.85% 444,869 24.72% 433,860 25.02%
Western Region 200,123 10.14% 181,414 10.08% 178,452 10.28%
Total 1,972,631 100.00% 1,799,923 100.00% 1,734,302 100.00%

Note: Northern Region includes Beijing Municipality, Tianjin Municipality, Hebei Province, Shanxi Province, Inner Mongolia Autonomous

Region, and the Head Office of BOC;

Northeastern Region includes Heilongjiang Province, Jilin Province, and Liaoning Province;
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Eastern Region includes Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu Province, Zhejiang Province, Anhui Province, Fujian Province, Jiangxi Province,
and Shandong Province;

Central & Southern Region includes Henan Province, Hubei Province, Hunan Province, Guangdong Province, Shenzhen City, Guangxi
Autonomous Region, and Hainan Province;

Western Region includes Chongqing Municipality, Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province, Shaanxi Province, Gansu

Province, Ningxia Autonomous Region, Qinghai Province, Tibet Autonomous Region, and Xinjiang Uighur Autonomous Region.

Industry Concentration of the Group’s Loans

As of 30 June 2006, the outstanding balance of the Group’s corporate loans was RMB1,864.081 billion, an increase of RMB 152.038
billion or 8.9% from the beginning of the year. These loans were mainly concentrated in the sectors of manufacturing, commerce and
services, accounting for 31.75% and 17.35% of total corporate loans respectively. Industry concentration of corporate loans by

domestic operations was consistent with the overall characteristics of the Group.
Industry Concentration of Corporate Loans by the Group

Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004
Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%)

Manufacturing 591,909 31.75% 531,191 31.03% 523,506 31.70%
Commerce and

services 323,348 17.35% 301,863 17.63% 348,432 21.10%
Real estate 201,585 10.82% 190,297 11.11% 187,110 11.40%
Energy, mining

and agriculture 252,415 13.54% 230,854 13.48% 203,544 12.30%
Transportation 200,503 10.76% 193,428 11.30% 184,449 11.10%
Public utilities 104,827 5.62% 91,924 5.37% 87,731 5.30%
Construction 38,304 2.05% 36,050 2.11% 36,059 2.20%
Financial services 112,153 6.02% 96,245 5.62% 46,518 2.80%
Others 39,037 2.09% 40,191 2.35% 35,072 2.10%
Total 1,864,081 100.00% 1,712,043 100.00% 1,652,421 100.00%

Industry Concentration of Corporate Loans by Domestic Operations
Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004
Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%)

Manufacturing 543,831 34.68% 490,898 34.57% 497,317 36.10%
Commerce and services 276,491 17.64% 255,460 17.99% 284,772 20.60%
Real estate 104,121 6.64% 96,390 6.79% 100,932 7.30%
Energy, mining and

agriculture 233,357 14.88% 210,281 14.81% 186,942 13.50%
Transportation 173,417 11.06% 165,396 11.65% 157,762 11.40%
Public utilities 104,827 6.69% 91,924 6.47% 87,731 6.30%
Construction 32,940 2.10% 30,089 2.12% 27,938 2.00%
Financial services 96,440 6.15% 77,237 5.44% 32,079 2.30%
Others 2,512 0.16% 2,290 0.16% 7,484 0.50%
Total 1,567,936 100.00% 1,419,965 100.00% 1,382,957 100.00%
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Loans of the Group by Customers

As of 30 June 2006, the outstanding balance of the Group’s corporate loans was RMB1,864.081 billion, an increase of RMB152.038

billion or 8.9% from the prior year-end, accounting for 77.5% of the total. The outstanding balance of personal loans was RMB541,

455 million, an increase of RMB18.452 billion or 3.5% from the prior year-end, accounting for 22.5% of the total. The balance of

domestic corporation loans increased by RMB147.971 billion or 10.4% compared with the previous year-end, and the balance of

personal loans increased by 6.5% or RMB 24.737 billion.

Loans of the Group by Customers

Unit: RMB million

Corporate loans 1,864,081 77.49% 1,712,043 76.60% 1,652,421 76.98%
Trade bills 269,713 11.21% 225,026 10.07% 177,738 8.28%
Personal loans 541,455 22.51% 523,003 23.40% 494,041 23.02%
Total 2,405,536 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100.00%
Loans of Domestic Operations by Customers
Unit: RMB million
Corporate loans 1,567,936 79.48% 1,419,965 78.89% 1,382,957 79.74%
Trade bills 240,826 12.21% 195,311 10.85% 148,832 8.58%
Personal loans 404,695 20.52% 379,958 21.11% 351,345 20.26%
Total 1,972,631 100.00% 1,799,923 100.0% 1,734,302 100.00%

Personal Loans of Domestic Operations by Products

Mortgage 308,387 76.20% 286,829 75.49% 240,640 68.49%
Credit cards 2,212 0.55% 1,929 0.51% 1,441 0.41%
Others 94,096 23.25% 91,200 24.00% 109,264 31.10%
Total 404,695 100.00% 379,958 100.00% 351,345 100.00%

Notes: Others mainly include auto loans, personal investment loans and personal education loans.

Loans of the Group by Currencies

As of 30 June 2006, the outstanding balance of the Group’s loans in RMB was RMB1,643.896 billion, an increase of RMB166.037

billion or 11.2% from the beginning of the year. It accounted for 68.3% of the total.

Loans of the Group by Currencies

Unit: RMB million



At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004
Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%)
RMB 1,643,896 68.34% 1,477,859 66.12% 1,378,760 64.23%
Foreign
currencies 761,640 31.66% 757,187 33.88% 767,702 35.77%
Total 2,405,536 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100.00%

Loans of Domestic Operations by Currencies

Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 200630 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004
Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%)
RMB 1,641,482 83.21% 1,475,821 82.00% 1,378,343 79.50%
Foreign
currencies 331,149 16.79% 324,102 18.00% 355,959 20.50%
Total 1,972,631 100.00% 1,799,923 100.00% 1,734,302 100.00%

Loans of the Group by Types of Security

As of 30 June 2006, a large proportion of the Group’s loans were secured, accounting for 45.85% of the total. Unsecured loans

accounted for 24.1%.

Loans of the Group by Types of Security

Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004
Types of security Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%)
Unsecured 578,987 24.08% 475,764 21.29% 447,800 20.86%
Guaranteed 723,502 30.07% 684,824 30.64% 650,905 30.32%
Collateralized and
other secured 1,103,047 45.85% 1,074,458 48.07% 1,047,757 48.82%
Total 2,405,536 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100.00%

Quality of the Group’s Loans

As of 30 June 2006, the Group’s total impaired loans were RMB105.944 billion, a decrease of RMB3.367 billion over the previous

year-end; and the impaired loan ratio was 4.4%, a decrease of 0.49 percentage points. The impaired loans of domestic operations

were RMB99.543 billion, a decrease of RMB2.579 billion over the previous year-end; and the impaired loan ratio was 5.05%, a

decrease of 0.62 percentage points. The impaired loans of overseas operations were RMB6.401 billion, a decrease of RMB770

million over the previous year-end; and the impaired loan ratio was 1.48%, a decrease of 0.17 percentage points.
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Impaired Loan Portfolio Concentrations of the Group by Region

Unit: RMB million

Domestic 99,543 93.96% 5.05% 102,140 93.44% 5.67% 104,327 88.3% 6.02%
operations

Overseas 6,401 6.04% 1.48% 7,171 6.56% 1.65% 13,830 11.7% 3.36%
operations

Total 105,944| 100.00% 4.40% 109,311 100.00% 4.89% 118,157( 100.0% 5.50%
Notes:

1. If objective impairment evidence shows that the future cash flow of loans will decreases and the amount can be estimated, then the

Bank identifies the loan as impaired loan and recognize the losses as well.

2. Impaired loan ratio is calculated by dividing the balance of impairment loans with the balance of total loans.

Impaired Loan Portfolio Concentrations of Domestic Operations by Region

Unit: RMB million

Northern 18,457 18.54% 5.22% 17,699 17.30% 5.50% 22,600 21.70% 7.20%
Region

Northeastern 11,968 12.03% 8.84% 12,363 12.10% 9.40% 13,170 12.60% 10.26%
Region

Eastern 25,962 26.08% 3.19% 27,811 27.20% 3.90% 28,595 27.40% 4.21%
Region

Central & 30,071 30.21% 6.39% 30,611 30.00% 6.90% 26,611 25.50% 6.13%
Southern

Region

Western 13,085 13.14% 6.54% 13,656 13.40% 7.50% 13,351 12.80% 7.48%
Region

Total 99,543 100.00% 5.05%| 102,140 100.00% 5.70% 104,327 100.00% 6.02%

Industry Concentration of Impaired Corporate Loans by Domestic Operations

Unit: RMB million

Manufacturing 34,856 38.86% 6.41% 32,969 35.58% 6.76% 32,218 33.37% 6.48%
Commerce and 23,162 25.83% 8.38% 25,443 27.46% 9.96% 26,344 27.29% 9.25%
services

Real estate 11,596 12.93% 11.14% 12,763 13.77% 13.24% 13,453 13.93% 13.33%




Energy, mining and 6,624 7.39% 2.84% 6,665 7.19% 3.17% 6,588 6.82% 3.52%
agriculture

Transportation 7,176 8.00% 4.14% 7,759 8.37% 4.69% 9,729 10.08% 6.17%
Public utilities 4312 4.81% 4.11% 4,627 4.99% 5.03% 5,564 5.76% 6.34%
Construction 1,717 1.91% 5.21% 2,226 2.40% 7.40% 2,569 2.66% 9.20%
Financial services 235 0.26% 0.24% 215 0.24% 0.28% 72 0.08% 0.22%
Others 6 0.01% 0.26% 0 0.00% 0.00% 6 0.01% 0.08%
Total 89,684| 100.00% 5.72% 92,667| 100.00% 6.54% 96,543 100.00% 6.98%

Impaired Loans of the Group by Customers

Unit: RMB million

Corporate loans 95,120 89.78% 5.10% 98,669 90.26% 5.76% 108,005( 91.41% 6.54%
Personal loans 10,824 10.22% 2.00% 10,642 9.74% 2.03% 10,152 8.59% 2.05%
Total 105,944 100.00% 4.40% 109,311 100.00% 4.89% 118,157 100.00% 5.50%

Impaired Loans of Domestic Operations by Customers

Corporate loans 89,684 90.10% 5.72% 92,667 90.73% 6.53% 96,543 92.55% 6.99%
Personal loans 9,859 9.90% 2.44% 9,473 9.27% 2.49% 7,784 7.45% 2.22%
Total 99,543 100.00% 5.05% 102,140 100.00% 5.67% 104,327 100.00% 6.02%

Impaired Personal Loans of Domestic Operations by Products

Unit: RMB million

Mortgage 3,930 39.87% 1.27% 3,837 40.50% 1.34% 3,608 46.35% 1.50%
Credit cards 267 2.71% 12.08% 228 2.41% 11.82% 218 2.80% 15.13%
Others 5,662 57.42% 6.02% 5,408 57.09% 5.93% 3,958 50.85% 3.62%
Total 9,859 100.00% 2.44% 9,473 100.00% 2.49% 7,784 100.00% 2.22%

5-category Classification of Loans
As of 30 June 2006, the Group’s non-performing loans (NPLs) were RMB100.788 billion in accordance with regulatory

classification standards, a decrease of RMB2.438 billion over the previous year-end; with NPL ratio at 4.19%, a decrease of 0.43

percentage points. NPLs of domestic operations were RMB96.519 billion, a decrease of RMB1.69 billion over the previous year-end,

with NPL ratio at 4.89%, a decrease of 0.57 percentage points. Loans of the Group classified as special mention stood at

RMB261.788 billion, a decrease of RMB22.26 billion over the previous year-end, accounting for 10.88% of total loans, a decrease of

24



1.83 percentage points.

Asset Quality of the Group

Unit: RMB million

Pass 2,042,960 84.93% 1,847,772 82.67% 1,611,936 75.10%
Special mention 261,788 10.88% 284,048 12.71% 424,606 19. 78%
Substandard 42,082 1.75% 45,573 2.04% 61,289 2. 86%
Doubtful 43,479 1.81% 44,550 1.99% 32,931 1. 53%
Loss 15,227 0.63% 13,103 0.59% 15,700 0. 73%
Total 2,405,536 100.00% 2,235,046 100.00% 2,146,462 100. 00%
Total NPLs 100,788 4.19% 103,226 4.62% 109,920 5.12%
Asset Quality of Domestic Operations
Unit: RMB million
Pass 1,625,776 82.42% 1,430,210 79.46% 1,227,414 70. 77%
Special mention 250,336 12.69% 271,504 15.08% 408,571 23. 56%
Substandard 40,917 2.07% 44,056 2.45% 57,656 3.32%
Doubtful 41,760 2.12% 42,852 2.38% 29,787 1. 72%
Loss 13,842 0.70% 11,301 0.63% 10,874 0. 63%
Total 1,972,631 100.00% 1,799,923 100.00% 1,734,302 100. 00%
Total NPLs 96,519 4.89% 98,209 5.46% 98,317 5.67%
Deposits from Customers
Unit: RMB million
At 30 June 2006 At 31 zl?)f)(:sember At 31 zl?)ziember
Short-term' corporate deposits 1,467,863 1,323,444 1,150,115
Short-term saving deposits 2,044,461 1,911,921 1,756,312
long-term® corporate deposits 32,157 26,317 32,743
long-term saving deposits 339,763 313,703 296,246
Securities and margin deposits 168,780 128,392 107,061
Total 4,053,024 3,703,777 3,342,477

As of 30 June 2006, the corporate deposits of the Group reached RMB4,053.024 billion, an increase of RMB349.247 billion or

9.43% over the previous year-end. Of them, the corporate and personal deposits increased by RM150.259 billion and 158.6 billion

respectively.

! Include demand deposits and time deposits less than (including) one year.

2 Refer to long-term deposits beyond a year.
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Deposits from Customers by Currencies

As of 30 June 2006, the balance of the Group’s RMB deposits increased by RMB344.697 billion or 13.6% from the beginning of the
year to RMB2,876.575 billion. The balance of RMB deposits accounted for 71% of total deposits.

Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004

Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%) Balance Proportion (%)
RMB

2,876,575 70.97% | 2,531,878 68.36% 2,093,272 62.63%
Foreign currencies

1,176,449 29.03% | 1,171,899 31.64% 1,249,205 37.37%
Total

4,053,024 100.00% | 3,703,777 100.00% 3,342,477 100.00%
Equity Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 31 December 2004

Minority interests 28,812 28,778 27,387
Equity 357,641 233,842 205,351
Total equity 386,453 262,620 232,738

In the first half of 2006, the Bank issued, at a premium, ordinary shares to the National Council for Social Security Fund, and then

issued, at a premium, overseas listed shares (H Shares) to overseas investors and ordinary shares (A Shares) to domestic investors.

For details, please refer to Appendix: Note III, 17(1) of the Accountants’ Report.

Changes in Shareholder’s Equity within the Report Period

Unit: RMB million

Share
capital

Capital
reserve

Statutory
reserve

General and
regulatory
reserves

Undistributed
profit

IReserve for fair value
changes of
available-for-sale
securities

Currency
translation
differences

Total

Balance at 1 January
2006

209,427 3,978

5,987

5,109

12,585

(1,380)

(1,864)

233,842

INet profit for the
period

19,024 -

19,024

Issue of ordinary
shares

44,412| 72,567

116,979

IAppropriation to
statutory reserves

2,108

(2,108)

IAppropriation to
lgeneral and
regulatory reserves

4,291

(4,291)

INet change in fair
value of
available-for-sale
securities

(10,574)

(10,574)

IDividends

(1,375)

(1,375)

Currency translation
differences

(255)

(255)

Others

)

IBalance at 30 June
2006

253,839| 76,545

8,095

9,398

23,837

(11,954)

(2,119)

357,641
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Balance of Major Off-balance Sheet Items

The balance of major off-balance sheet items of the Group at the end of the reporting period is as follow.

Unit: RMB million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005
Acceptance 230,434 195,234
Letter of guarantee issued 255,779 212,987
Letter of credit issued 115,686 101,195
Irrevocable credit commitment and others 422,297 386,346
Total 1,024,196 895,762

Supplementary Financial Information as of the End of the Last Three Report Periods:

_ - Regulatory At 31 December | At 31 December
Major regulatory indicators . At 30 June 2006
Criteria 2005 2004
Capital adequacy ratio (%) =8 12. 10. 4 10.
Core capital adequacy ratio (%) =4 10. 8.1 8.
RMB =25 32. 48.9 35.
Liquidity ratio (%) Foreign
=25 45. 87.4 78.
currencies
RMB <75 57. 51.7 59.
Loan-deposit ratio (%) Foreign
) <85 64. 70. 4 67.
currencies
NPL ratio (%) - 4.2 1.6
Provision coverage (%) =60 87.4 80. 6 68.
Proportion of single largest
P ¢ & <10 3.9 4.7
customer loans (%)
Proportion of loans to top 10
customers (%) <50 19.3 25.6 25.

The above regulatory indicators are calculated in accordance with relevant provisions of CBRC, and the financial figures are based
on the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and the Accounting Systems for Financial Enterprises. The liquidity ratio is

calculated in accordance with relevant provisions of CBRC in 2006.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

The Bank calculates and discloses the capital adequacy ratio in line with the Management Measures on Capital Adequacy Ratio of
Commercial Banks (CBRC Decree [2004] No.2) promulgated by the China Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC) on 23
February 2004. In 2005, the Group calculated market risk capital in line with the provisions of the Circular of the General Office of
China Banking Regulatory Commission on Issuing Market Risk Capital Calculation Sheet and Explanation for Commercial Banks
(YJF [2004] No.374) promulgated by the CBRC. As of 30 June 2006, the Group’s capital adequacy ratio increased by 1.98
percentage points to 12.40%, while core capital adequacy ratio declined by 2.55 percentage points to 10.63%.

The Group’s net capital amounted to RMB452.027 billion as of 30 June 2006, an increase of RMB125.79 billion. The net core capital
grew by RMB134.728 billion to RMB387.698 billion, and risk-weighted assets (excluding market risk) increased by RMB370.47
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billion to RMB3,163.659 billion. The market risk assets of the Group were RMB38.549 billion, translating into risk assets of
RMB481.868 billion.

Unit: RMB million/%

INet core capital (a) 387, 698 252,970 134, 728
INet capital (b) 450, 027, 326, 237 125, 790
IRisk-weighted assets (c) 3, 163, 659 2,793, 189 370, 470
IMarket risk capital (d) 38, 549 27, 025 11, 524
Core capital adequacy ratio (%) [e=a/(c+d*12.5)] 10. 63% 8. 08% 2. 55%
Capital adequacy ratio (%) [ f=b/(c+d*12.5)] 12. 40% 10. 42% 1. 98%
Reporting by Region
At 30 June 2006 Unit: RMB million
Net interest income 45,078 8,549 845 4 54,476
Non-interest income 4,371 6,189 152 (586) 10,126
Operating and administrative (18,920) (3,618) (687) 32 (23,193)
expenses
Operating profit 27,584 11,091 297 (550) 38,422
(Chafge)/wrlte-back for (5.932) 935 121 ) (4.876)
impairment losses
Gross profit 21,824 12,284 455 (550) 34,013
Income tax (10,751) (1,672) (142) 203 (12,362)
Profit attributable to the
minority 4) (2,623) - - (2,627)
Net profit 11,069 7,989 313 (347) 19,024
Segment assets 4,268,205 993,715 199,169 (234,156) 5,226,933
Segment liabilities (3,917,105) (897,042) (191,882) 165,549 | (4,840,480)
At 30 June 2005 Unit: RMB million
Net interest income 40,434 7,380 844 - 48,658
Non-interest income 4,860 2,712 449 - 8,021
Operating and administrative (17,046) (3,358) (596) . (21,000)
expenses
Operating profit 25,612 6,710 687 - 33,009
(Chafge)/wnte-back for (6,591) 1.805 210 ) (4,576)
impairment losses
Gross profit 19,744 8,882 952 - 29,578
Income tax (9,472) (1,228) (160) - (10,860)
Pr.()ﬁt. attributable to the 9 (2.293) ) ) (2,284)
minority
Net profit 10,281 5,361 792 - 16,434
Segment assets 3,803,989 966,225 186,982 (214,390) 4,742,806
Segment liabilities (3,584,086) (871,046) (178,853) 153,799 | (4,480,186)

28



During the first half of 2006, the Chinese Mainland remained to be the primary business region of the Group and the important

sources of income and net profit as well, accounting for 78% of total assets and 57% of total profit of the Group. Hong Kong and

Macau were also key business regions of the Group, accounting for 18% of total assets and 41% of total profit of the Group.

Reporting by Business Line

At 30 June 2006 Unit: RMB million
Corpqrate Persqnal Treasury Investrpent Insu.rance Others Eliminations Total
banking banking services banking business

Net interest income 26,602 16,881 11,376 19 250 (656) 4| 54,476
Non-interest income 5,029 4,147 (1,471) 1,324 198 1,536 (637)] 10,126
Operating and

administrative expenses (8,588) (11,677) (2,876) (224) (103) (406) 681| (23,193)
Operating profit 21,565 8,892 6,006 1,117 342 452 48| 38,422
(Charge)/write-back - for (4.202) (720) 1 ) 6 44 | (4876)
impairment losses

Gross profit 17,419 8,299 6,052 1,110 388 1,295 (550)| 34,013
Segment assets 1,813,042 637,280, 2,692,140 18,079 17,153| 84,279 (35,040)[5,226,933
Capital expenditure 416 782 31 6 2 953 - 2,190

At 30 June 2005 Unit: RMB million
Corpo.rate Persqnal Trea.sury Invesgnent Insu.rance Others Eliminations Total
banking banking services banking business

Net interest income 25,744 16,021 7,056 63 183 (409) -| 48,658
Non-interest income 4,135 2,558 746 335 46 243 (42) 8,021
Operating and

administrative expenses (7,876) (10,148) (2,680) (195) (88) (301) 288| (21,000)
Operating profit 20,548 7,995 4,362 201 140 (483) 246| 33,009
(Charge)/ write-back for (5.471) 819 19 1 @) 58 | (a,576)
impairment losses

Gross profit 15,184 9,029 4,452 203 134 576 -l 29,578
Segment assets 1,658,718 603,891| 2,399,377 15,159 12,398| 77,644 (24,381)4,742,806
Capital expenditure 342 665 32 4 25 698 - 1,766

With effect from 1 January 2006, the internal funding transfer pricing mechanism of the Bank was revised. The new pricing

mechanism is based on the market deposit and lending rates, adjusted for pre-determined margins with reference to the different

products and respective maturities.

Previously, blended mid prices between the Bank’s average cost of funding and average yield

on interest bearing assets were adopted, without taking into consideration the variety of products and respective maturities. The

reason for the change is primarily to better reflect the performance of the individual segments as part of the Bank’s efforts to enhance

its assets and liabilities management capability. Above segment information at 30 June 2006 is based on the new transfer pricing.
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Business Overview
Commercial Banking Business

The Bank operates three principal lines of business — commercial banking, investment banking and insurance. With a global presence
in 27 countries and regions, we maintain correspondent relationships with over 1,400 foreign banks which collectively have 46,900
branches worldwide. Leveraging our global network, quality services, and operational strengths, we enjoy a distinctive competitive

advantage in the domestic banking market.
Corporate Banking

Corporate banking refers to a variety of financial products, credit facilities and financial solutions that we provide to our customers,

including deposit-taking, lending, trade finance, settlement, clearing and custody.

Corporate Deposits and Loans: The Bank continued to strengthen marketing efforts to promote corporate deposits. RMB corporate
deposits maintained its sustainable and rapid growth momentum which has persisted over the years. As at the end of June 2006, the
balance of domestic RMB corporate deposits was RMB 1,142.1 billion, an increase of RMB146.7 billion or 14.7% from the prior
year-end with a market share of 8.2% among all financial institutions'. The Bank actively expanded the key customer segment and
applied differentiation policies in business management and service delivery, leveraged concerted marketing strengths between the
Head Office and Branches in marketing for key projects and speeded up the development of quality asset business. As at the end of
June 2006, the outstanding balance of domestic RMB corporate loans stood at RMB 1,236.7 billion, an increase of RMB 140.9
billion or 12.8% from the prior year-end, representing a market share of 6.7% among all financial institutions. While maintaining the
stable growth of RMB corporate deposits, the Bank also strengthened its efforts in promoting foreign currency corporate deposits in a
bid to sustain its leading position in the market. As at the end of June 2006, the balance of domestic foreign currency corporate
deposits was USD 17.67 billion, an increase of USD1.29 billion from the prior year-end, with a market share among all financial
institutions of 21.1%. Fully leveraging its strength in foreign exchange business, the Bank actively conducted product innovation and
seized opportunities to develop its trade finance business, which promoted the growth in foreign currency corporate deposits. By the
end of the report period, the outstanding balance of domestic foreign currency corporate loans was USD41.44 billion, an increase of
USD1.28 billion, and the market share among all financial institutions was 33.5%. The balance of foreign currency corporate
deposits of overseas operations was USD27 billion, and outstanding balance of foreign currency corporate loans was USD 37.04

billion.

Corporate Deposits of the Group by Currencies (Unit: RMB billion)

30 June 2006 31 December 2005
RMB corporate deposits 1,143.1 995.9
Foreign currency corporate deposits 356.9 353.9
Total corporate deposits 1,500 1,349.8

In the first half of 2006, the Bank devoted great efforts to expand its high-quality customers segment, and forged ahead with

! All financial institutions include: People’s ‘Bank of China, policy banks, state-owned commercial banks, other commercial banks,
urban commercial banks, rural commercial banks, urban credit cooperatives, rural cooperative banks, rural credit
cooperatives, financial companies, trust and investment corporations, leasing companies, and savings and remittance
bureaus.
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reforming the corporate business operation and management model. It continued to strengthen joint marketing between the Head
Office and branches on key projects or to key customers, expanded quality asset business, and enhanced cooperation between product
departments to expand cross selling. It also reinforced collaboration between domestic operations and BOC Hong Kong, BOC
International, BOC Investment, BOC Insurance and other overseas operations to promote the overall competitiveness of its corporate
banking. By launching initiatives such as pilot projects targeting small enterprises and strengthening product innovation, the Bank

seeks to ensure sustainable and healthy development of its corporate business.

Corporate Loans of the Group by Currencies (Unit: RMB billion)

30 June 2006 31 December 2005
RMB corporate loans 1,239.2 1,097.9
Foreign currency 624.9 614.1
corporate loans
Total corporate loans 1,864.1 1,712

Institutional Banking: Institutional banking business of the Bank refers to various asset, liability and fee-based services the Bank is
engaged in by leveraging on its own resources, with a view to serving various financial institutions and generating comprehensive
benefits. Institutional deposits grew rapidly in May-June 2006 as influenced by the stock market. At the end of June 2006, the
balance of RMB deposits from financial institutions for domestic operations was RMB172.33 billion, an increase of RMB18.27
billion from the prior year-end. The balance of current and time foreign currency deposits from financial institutions for domestic

operations was USD9.87 billion, a decrease of USD180 million.

Since 1987, the Bank has sequentially designated its New York, Tokyo and Frankfurt branches as the major clearing channels for US
dollar, yen and euro respectively. Over years’ efforts, the Bank has set up a comprehensive overseas clearing system which covers

different currencies and regions and provides domestic and overseas customers with efficient and convenient clearing services.

Custody and Fund Distribution: The Bank serves as custodian for a diverse range of closed-end funds, open-end funds, brokerage
wealth management programs, Social Security Fund, insurance companies, QFII, annuity funds, trust companies, asset securitization
capitals and emerging products such as industry funds and QDII etc. The funds we distribute as agent cover all types of open-end

funds such as equity, balanced and bond funds, brokerage wealth management program, and investment-linked insurance products.

In the first half of 2006, the environment of custody and distribution operations improved generally. Facing an active stock market,
investors have quickened the pace of investment and more innovations have been introduced. The fund distribution and custody
business thus maintained generally healthy and fast development. As at the end of June 2006, total assets in the Bank’s custody,
leading the market, reached nearly RMB210 billion, an increase of 20% over the year beginning. Total volume of the Bank’s fund

distributions exceeded RMB28 billion, a year-on-year increase of 50%.

In the first half of 2006, the Bank achieved new breakthroughs in custody business for QFII funds, insurance funds, corporate annuity

and local social insurance fund, making it the largest Chinese QFII custodian.

International settlement and trade finance: The Bank’s international settlement and trade finance services include issuance of
import letters of credit, collection and presentation of document under export letter of credit, import bill advance, export bill purchase,
forfeiting, confirmation of letters of credit, letter of guarantee and factoring. In addition to traditional international settlement and
trade finance services, the Bank also exclusively provides such services as processing trade account services, tax payment guarantee

etc, meeting customers’ different settlement and financing needs.

During the first half of 2006, the total volume of international settlements reached USD420.49 billion, an increase of 12.6%
year-on-year. Of the total amount, USD269.9 billion was carried out by the Group’s domestic operations, a year-on-year increase of
10.7%, and USD150.5 billion was by overseas operations, a year-on-year increase of 16.2%. Thanks to the steady growth of domestic
economy, the volume of domestic trade finance surged sharply, with factoring business climbing 223%. The growth of international

trade finance slowed down due to the pickup of interest rate in the international market. In the first half of 2006, the Group undertook
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total volume of international trade finance of USD29.17 billion, a year-on-year increase of 13.3%. Of the total amount, USD13.14
billion was undertaken by domestic operations, and USD19.91 billion was by overseas operations. The volume of letters of guarantee
denominated in foreign currencies issued by domestic operations was USD4.77 billion, a year-on-year increase of 83.5%; and those
denominated in RMB was RMB37.3 billion, a year-on-year increase of 109.5%. The volume of international factoring transactions
undertaken by domestic operations was USD2.58 billion, representing an increase of 27.4% over the same period in last year; and the

volume of domestic factoring transactions was RMB12.76 billion, reflecting a year-on-year increase of 192.3%.

International Settlement Volume of the Group (Unit: USD billion)

Year 30 June 2006 30 June 2005

Business volume 420.49 373.39

The Bank strengthened innovation and improved portfolioed application of trade finance and fee-based products in the first half of
2006. A series of competitive products were launched, including “Export Quan Yi Da, Import Hui Li Da, Import Bao Fu Da, and
E-customs Declaration”. The Bank also developed such new products and services as forfeiting under export credit insurance. These
product innovations highlighted the Bank’s distinctive advantages in its products and services of international settlement and trade

finance, and have helped to consolidate its leadership in this arena.
Personal Banking

Personal banking refers to the financial services provided by the Bank to residents or households, including deposit-taking, lending,

wealth management and bank card services.

Savings Deposits: As at the end of June 2006, the balance of domestic RMB savings deposits was RMB 1,573.8 billion, an increase
of RMB157.44 billion over the prior year-end, representing a market share of 10.2%, an increase of 0.1 percentage point. The
balance of domestic foreign currency savings deposits totaled USD31.69 billion, a decrease of USD820 million from the prior
year-end, representing a market share of 49.8%. Savings deposits at overseas operations amounted to USD69.68 billion (including
RMB8.97 billion of savings deposits), an increase of USD1.91 billion. The decrease of foreign currency savings deposits was mainly
attributable to the reform of the RMB exchange rate regime, which buoyed the market’s expectation of further RMB appreciation and

weakened residents’ desire to hold such deposits.

Group Savings Deposits of the Group by Currencies (Unit: RMB billion)

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005
RMB savings deposits 1,582.7 1,425.4
Foreign currency 801.5 800.2
savings deposits
Total savings deposits 2,384.2 2,225.6

Personal Loans At the end of June 2006, the outstanding balance of domestic personal loans was RMB 404.7 billion, an increase of
RMB 24.7 billion from the prior year-end. Of the total personal loans, the balance of residential mortgage loans was RMB 308.4
billion, an increase of RMB 21.6 billion. The balance of overseas personal loans was USD 17.1 billion, a decrease of USD620

million from the prior year-end.

In the first half of 2006, the Bank strengthened marketing efforts of personal residential mortgage loans through its direct-sale model
under a unified brand, i.e. “Ideal Home”, and launched two competitive new products, namely “Yi Ju Bao” first-hand residential
mortgage loans and “An Ju Bao” second-hand residential mortgage loans. It also promoted strategic cooperation with leading real
estate developers in China. As at end of June 2006, the Bank has a network of over 7,000 domestic outlets offering consumer loans

through direct-sale model, accounting for more than 60% of all its outlets in the country.
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Personal Loans of the Group by Categories as of June 2006

Residential mortgage .
Auto loans Credit cards and others
loans
30 June 2006 79.07% 4.50% 16.43%
31 December 2005 78.97% 5.35% 15.68%

Note: (1) Others include personal investment and operation loan and personal loans to finance education.

Wealth Management In the first half of 2006, the Bank launched “BOC Global Wealth Management Service” in the wealth
management centers of domestic operations. Over 250 wealth management centers are capable of offering services of unified service
standard to the Bank’s VIP customers. During the period, the Bank also launched a series of foreign exchange wealth management
products which are linked to the performance of exchange rate, oil and gold, and RMB structured wealth management products
which are linked to the performance of exchange rate and gold. An advisory team was established comprising over 20 experts from
the Global Markets Department and Personal Banking Department of the Head Office, BOC Hong Kong, BOCI and BOCI China, to
promote the “BOC Wealth Management” brand among customers. The Bank has also built a stronger wealth management team with

over 2, 300 wealth management managers at various domestic branches, of whom nearly 900 are Certified Financial Planner.
Bank Cards

The Bank provides customers with such bank card services as single and dual-currency debit cards, quasi-credit cards, credit cards

and foreign currency card agency transaction services.

In the first half of 2006, the Bank steadily pushed forward the establishment of the credit card business unit in cooperation with the
Royal Bank of Scotland Group. It also strengthened the operation and risk management of bank card business, actively promoted per
card transaction volume and usage frequency and steadily increased bank card business income. The Bank’s domestic operations

realized total bank card fees of RMB960 million, a year-on-year increase of 51.4%.

As at the end of June 2006, the domestic operations of BOC issued a total of 94,633,800 Great Wall RMB Debit Cards, 7.03 million
BOC Great Wall Credit Cards, and 1.09 million BOC Credit Cards, an increase of 15.2%, 12.5% and 561%, respectively, over the
same period of last year. The volume of foreign currency card settlements was RMB 10,482 million, a year-on-year increase of

16.6%. Transaction volume of Great Wall RMB cards reached RMB65.1 billion, an increase of 47.7%.

In the first half of 2006, the Bank continued to enhance bank card product innovation, and launched a variety of bank cards,
including BOC City Card (a standard RMB credit card featured by installment), BOC Jiuguang JCB Co-Branded Credit Card, BOC
Beida Credit Card, and BOC Golden Eagle Co-Branded Card. It also jointly launched the Great Wall Jiashi Fund Co-Branded Card,
Great Wall Zhongsheng Co-Branded Card and some other cards with a number of large enterprises and public institutions. These

products were well accepted by the market.

Goods and Services Purchased with Great Wall RMB Cards of Domestic Operation (Unit: RMB billion)

30 June 2006 30 June 2005

Goods and services purchased with the cards 65.09 44.08

Treasury Business

The Bank is engaged in treasury business including investments and transactions on its own account, and meanwhile provides
treasury products and services for corporate and personal customers. It takes a leading position among domestic commercial banks in

foreign exchange treasury services.
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The Bank’s investment covers fields such as foreign currency bonds, money market, derivatives and asset management; its trading
business includes foreign exchange transactions, foreign exchange swaps, foreign exchange settlement and sale, foreign exchange
options, foreign currency bonds and derivatives, RMB bond and precious metal. The Bank has a league of experienced traders and

risk managers supporting its treasury business, ensuring that it earns profit with risks controlled within acceptable level.

The development and quotation of new products is one of the Bank’s major competitive edges. In recent years, the central bank has
launched a number of new initiatives, including the market maker system, tier-1 foreign exchange trader, OTC, forward, spot, interest
rate swap, and inter-bank RMB foreign exchange swap. These initiatives have seen pace of marketization of RMB exchange rate
regime quickened notably. Subsequently, the People’s Bank of China, CBRC and the State Administration of Foreign Exchange
jointly promulgated the Interim Administrative Measures for Commercial Banks to Provide Overseas Financial Management
Services, and Bank of China became one of the first banks approved to engage in overseas financial management services and
obtained the biggest quota. Leveraging on its treasury business, the Bank gradually promoted the innovation of treasury products and
attracted high-end customers by developing and offering customized products and services. In the first half of 2006, the Bank made
great efforts to exploit treasury products and services in the face of fierce market competition. Apart from RMB interest rate swap
and long-term forward exchange settlement and sales services, it also launched RMB structured wealth management products,
including “Game” retail wealth management products, and “Olympics” wealth management series products. To meet the wealth
management needs of corporate customers, the Bank also launched such products as “Four-Season Forward” and “Credit Garden”.
Its Huijubao personal foreign exchange wealth management series products have been named for the second consecutive year as

“Best Wealth Management Brand in China” by a domestic professional financial and economic website: www.hexun.com.

Gold bullion trading is one of the major treasury businesses of the Bank. As at 30 June 2006, the Bank held a 37% market share and
ranked first on Shanghai Gold Exchange, the sole gold exchange in China.

Operations of BOC Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (“BOC Hong Kong”) is a subsidiary in Hong Kong with 65.87% stake held by the Bank. BOC
Hong Kong is one of the major commercial banks and also one of the three note-issuing banks in Hong Kong. As at the end of June
2006, it had 302 branches, of which 287 operate in Hong Kong, 14 in Mainland and 1 overseas; and 454 ATMs. BOC Hong Kong
provides retail customers and corporate customers with a full range of financial products and services through its wide service
network. In the first half of 2006, BOC Hong Kong acquired 51% stake in BOC Group Life Assurance Limited, thus further
expanded its service scope and income sources. In the first half of 2006, BOC Hong Kong realized net profit of RMB4.57 billion

equivalent (excluding minority interests), a year-on-year increase of 14.5%.

During the period, braced by the strong external economies and robust Chinese economy, the Hong Kong economy continued to
register rapid growth. More employment opportunities were created, citizens’ income was increased, and investment market became
more active. The favorable economic environment has seen BOC Hong Kong’s profit increased steadily with net interest margin
expanded and non-interest income grew markedly compared with the same period of last year. Its investment agency business

achieved remarkable results, and income-cost ratio remained at a low level in the market.

BOC Hong Kong improved the structure of its deposit-taking business while maintaining its edges. As at the end of June 2006, the
balance of deposits from customers amounted to HKD 650,994 million, an increase of 1.9% over the end of last year. Rise in interest
rate, among other factors, suppressed demand for housing mortgage loans and market competition intensified, which led to a slight
decrease of 0.2% in BOC Hong Kong’s loan balance. In face of the adverse environment, BOC Hong Kong devoted great efforts to
optimize credit portfolio and improve process management, and achieved a steady growth of loans to small and medium enterprises.
The Bank also held the lead in the syndicated loan market, ranking second in the Hong Kong and Macau syndicated loan market and

third in the Hong Kong and China syndicated loan market.

In the first half of 2006, BOC Hong Kong continued to lead in Hong Kong’s RMB business market, achieving good performance in
all fields. RMB deposits rose slightly by 0.1%; its RMB credit card business takes a dominant market share, with total business
volume rising 60.3%. As at the end of June, BOC Hong Kong has total 236 ATMs which offer RMB cash withdrawal services. In
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March 2006, BOC Hong Kong formally launched RMB clearing system, providing a superior clearing platform and a strong
foundation for the further development of RMB business in Hong Kong. The launch of RMB-denominated personal checking
services has offered customers a new consumption option with more flexibility and convenience. Leveraging the synergy with the
parent bank, BOC Hong Kong remains driven in developing high-quality products and services with the aim of generating

sustainable superior return on capital and maximum value for shareholders.
Investment Banking

BOC International Holdings Limited (“BOCI”) is a wholly owned subsidiary registered in Hong Kong, and has 30 affiliates and
subsidiaries around the world. It is a full-service investment bank with a full-fledged investment banking team and an independent

international placement network.

In the first half of 2006, BOCI realized total profit of RMB 1.11 billion, an increase of 446% year on year. During the period, it
participated in six IPO projects in the capacity of exclusive/joint lead underwriter, and held a 28.5% share of the stock underwriting
market in Hong Kong in terms of funds raised. It topped the list of IPO underwriters in terms of total funds raised and number of IPO
projects. BOCI provides a wide range of asset management services through BOCI Prudential Asset Management Ltd (“BOCI
Prudential”). At the end of June 2006, total assets under management by BOCI Prudential reached HKD26.85 billion, an increase of
HKD1.5 billion or 5.9% from the prior year-end. In terms of Mandatory Provident Fund business in Hong Kong, BOCI Prudential
has a registered MPF membership of 0.46 million, and total assets under management exceeded HKD14 billion, accounting for

approximately 8% of the market.

BOCI (China) Limited (“BOCI China”), incorporated in March 2002, was the first Sino-foreign joint venture securities company
with comprehensive A-share brokerage license. As at 30 June 2006, BOCI China ranked first among all Chinese securities companies
in terms of total underwriting amounts. It also participated in underwriting the 15" issue of financial bonds of China Development
Bank, and ranked first among all the underwriters in terms of the underwriting amount. In the same period, it claimed second place

among Chinese securities companies in terms of volume of bond delivery.
Insurance Business

The Bank offers insurance services including life insurance and non-life insurance. Non-life insurance business is wholly owned and

operated by the Bank, and life insurance business is owned and operated jointly with the Bank’s subsidiary BOC Hong Kong.

Bank of China Group Insurance Company, Ltd (“BOCG Insurance”) and BOC Group Life Assurance Company, Ltd. (“BOCG Life”)

are responsible for specific operation of the Group’s insurance business.

In the first half of 2006, the insurance business of the Group achieved gross premium income of HKD648 million, translating into
RMB388 million in total profit, increased by 189% year on year. Main resources of insurance businesses include agency banking

business and broker business.

Sources of Gross Premium Income Unit: HKD million
At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005 At 30 June 2005
Gross premium income by banking 293 514 283

agency service

Gross premium income by broker 355 752 402
agency service

Total 648 1,266 685

In 2006, BOCG Insurance penetrated into more specialized liability insurance market, including director liability insurance and
professional liability insurance. At the same time, following the “User-Pay” principle advocated by the government in the medical

system reforms, the Bank launched a series of tailored medical insurance programs. To expand overseas business, BOCG Insurance
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acquired a 32% stake in Luen Fung Hang Insurance Co., Ltd in the first half of 2006. In a move to penetrate into the life insurance
market of Macau and further consolidate the interaction of commercial banking, investment banking and insurance business, BOCG
Insurance transferred a 51% stake in BOCG Life to BOC Hong Kong, which opened a new chapter for the development of life

insurance business of BOCG Life.
Information Technology

The Bank realizes that IT construction is crucial to its future development. In the first half of 2006, the Bank continued to direct IT
efforts with supporting business development and ensuring secure operation. Progress was achieved for significant IT projects
including construction of the management information system, new online banking platform, and centralized international settlement
and trade finance system. Meanwhile, the infrastructure construction of a new information center and a disaster recovery center has
been initiated. The Bank is also systematically implementing the IT Blueprint; fundamental tasks including system training, gap
analysis and stress testing have been launched. Effective implementation of IT Blueprint is critical to the Bank’s reform,
development and innovation. It will help the Bank realize centralized processing of operational information of its branches to
intensify internal control, risk prevention and timely supervision by the internal audit, and formulate a customer-centered

management model based on business lines, thereby creating a powerful IT platform for sharpening the Bank’s competitive edge.
Risk Management

Risk management is an important part of the Bank’s management framework, which is the precondition to its robust, sustainable and
healthy development. In the first half of this year, the Bank further enhanced its risk management capability, improved credit asset

structure, improved credit asset quality to pursue sustainable and healthy development of its credit business.

The risk management framework of the Bank comprises the Board of Directors and the Risk Policy Committee under the Board, the
Internal Control Committee, the Anti-Money Laundering Committee, the Asset-Liability Management Committee and Assets
Disposal Committee under the Management, the Risk Management Department, the Credit Administration Department, the Asset &
Liability Management Department and Legal and Compliance Department. The Bank uses vertical management model to manage the
risks of domestic and overseas branches, and adopts window management model for business departments. It also monitors and

controls the risk management of subsidiaries through participation in their Boards of Directors or Risk Committee.
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty may be unable or unwilling to meet a debt obligation to the Bank when required.

The Bank’s credit risks are mainly from loans, trade finance and treasury business.

The Bank’ credit risk management process can be divided into three major stages: 1) credit origination and assessment; 2) credit

review and approval; and 3) loan granting and post-lending management.

Corporate Loans For corporate credit facilities, we continue to adopt the “three-in-one” credit decision-making mechanism. The
three components of this mechanism are an independent due diligence investigation, an independent risk review, a strict approval

process by authorized approvers and follow-up evaluation.

In the first half of 2006, the Bank continued its reform efforts in establishing centralized credit review and approval mechanism,
which is being implemented step by step. It adjusted the credit approval authority and authorization management model for overseas
operations, and enhanced the risk control over the total credit exposures to customers. To promote the sustainable and healthy

development of credit business to small enterprises, the Bank further clarified customer entry thresholds and launched pilot branches.

The Bank adopts a two-dimensional rating system that relates the customers’ credit rating logically with the classification of credit
asset. The results of customer credit rating are important basis for credit authorization management, customer entry and exit
management, credit approval, credit pricing, and classification of credit asset risks. The Bank plans to start the testing and subsequent
adoption of the probability-of-default-based customer credit rating model in the second half year. As at 30 June 2006, the balance of

domestic loans to A-rating customers accounted for 43.7% of the total, an increase of 1.8% over the end of last year.
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During the first half of 2006, the Bank established customer risk evaluation standards for large-amount credits, and formulated
corresponding management measures to improve the management of credit risks of the Bank. According to China’s
macro-adjustment policies and the development of the real estate market, the Bank strengthened risk supervision over industrial risk

and management of credits to the sector, and achieved steady improvement in the quality of real estate loans.

Five-tier loan classification approach, which was introduced in 1999, is an important part of the Bank’s ongoing credit monitoring. In
the first half year, the Bank continued to manage the special mention loans by subdividing them into high, medium and low risks

categories. The classification results have become more objective, and the balance and proportion of such loans kept decreasing.

Personal Loans In the first half of 2006, the Bank completed the centralization of approval authority for personal loans to tier-1
branches other than personal pledged loans and education loans. Meanwhile, it strengthened risk supervision of personal loans,
including overall monitoring by regions and products, and key monitoring and risk reporting of high-risk real estate projects,

distributors and customers.

The Bank reclaims on the debtors of non-performing loans mainly by means of negotiation, legal proceedings, debt restructuring and
write-off. The foreclosed assets will be disposed of in an open and transparent manner, generally through auction, invitation for bid

and submission of tenders and negotiated transfer.

Market Risk Market risk is the risk of loss to the Bank’s on-balance-sheet and off-balance-sheet operations that may result from
changes in interest rates, exchange rates, stock prices and commodity prices. Market risk exists in both trading and non-trading
business. The Bank manages market risk by setting up risk limits, which are determined by reference to different risk factors, such
as interest rates, exchange rates, commodity and stock prices, etc. A variety of risk measurement techniques, such as sensitivity limits,

were used in formulation of specific management measures.

VAR (Value at risk) is a kind of statistic methodology which is applied in evaluating the potential losses of risk positions caused by
fluctuation of interest rates, exchange rates, commodity and stock prices at designated confidence level during a specific period. The
table below shows the result of VAR analysis for the foreign currency trading portfolios of the Bank’s domestic business (exclusive

of comparative large-amount investment accounts or bank accounts of the Bank) as of 30 June 2006.

Unit: USD million

At 30 June 2006 At 31 December 2005
At the . . .
) Average High | Low | Period-end | Average High Low
period-end
Interest rate risk 4.88 8.10 16.25 0.82 4.77 3.27 11.94 0.20
Exchange rate risk 2.64 3.67 14.12 0.78 0.39 2.7 18.69 0.34
Fluctuation risk 0.19 0.68 4.63 0.16 0.36 0.8 2.54 0.04
Total market risk 5.84 8.10 19.15 | 1.84 15.6 51 18.86 0.69

Interest Rate Risk Management Interest rate risk is the risk of loss to interest income or the value of assets due to the volatility of
interest rates. We manage the interest rate risk of the banking book primarily through gap analysis, and use the gap analysis data to
perform stress-testing, on the basis of which we adjust the re-priced period structure of our assets and liability. Meanwhile, we
closely follow the trend of local and foreign currency interest rates, and adjust the interest rates of local and foreign currency deposits

and loans in a timely manner to avoid interest rate risk.

In respect of treasury products, the Bank adopts such indicators as VAR, duration and Price Value of a Basis Point (PVBP) to
measure interest rate risk, and utilizes stress-testing and scenario analysis to monitor risks. The Bank has also set up a series of risk
limits, which are closely monitored and managed. The Bank has established a globalized treasury product internal control platform
with an advanced market risk management infrastructure to effectively monitor the market risk of treasury products offered by its
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main branches.
Exchange Rate Risk Management

The Bank’s management of exchange rate risks covers trading accounts and non-trading accounts. Non-trading exchange rate risk
mainly arises from the currency mismatches in assets and liabilities, foreign exchange capital, investments in overseas subsidiaries,
and foreign currency profit or loss. The Bank seeks to reduce the exchange rate risk arising from currency mismatches in assets and
liabilities by matching the sources and use of our funds on a currency-by-currency basis. In addition, we also manage and control
exchange risk through settlement or hedging transactions.

However, the Group's ability to manage its foreign currency positions in relation to the RMB is limited as RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. According to the current applicable foreign currency policies of the PRC government, the conversion of foreign

currency is subject to application and approval by the relevant PRC government authorities. The Bank has taken following measures
to reduce its foreign exchange exposure:

In 2005, the Bank entered into a foreign currency option agreement with Central SAFE investments Limited having a notional
amount of USD18 billion to economically hedge a portion of its net on-balance sheet foreign currency position.

During the six month period ended 30 June 2006, the Bank executed certain foreign exchange transactions to reduce its net foreign

currency position by USD3.3 billion.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date in August 2006, the Bank further effected certain foreign exchange transactions, further

reducing its net foreign currency position by USD14.2 billion.

The risk of trading accounts mainly comes from the foreign exchange transactions the Bank is engaged in. The Bank took a variety of
measures according to its risk tolerance and operating capability to effectively reduce the possible losses caused by uncertain market

factors, including total exposure control, structural management, quota management, and valuation techniques.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk of funding availability at an appropriate cost when required to meet.

The objective of the Bank’s liquidity management is to ensure that the Bank have adequate liquidity at all times to satisfy payment of
deposits and other debts due and the development of asset-based business; and is able to raise enough funds at reasonable prices

within a certain period in the case of business opportunities or emergencies.

The Bank’s liquidity risk is managed on a consolidated basis at the Head Office. Liquidity management policy and measures are
applied across the Bank from top to down. Liquidity management mainly includes two scenarios, namely normal business
environment and emergent or extreme conditions. Under normal environment, the Bank regularly updates management policies and
guidelines, liquidity indicator management, liquidity gap management, position management, management of fund flow between the
Head Office and Branches, management of liquidity portfolios and financing guidelines, with the view to ensuring the normal
operation of the Bank’s asset and liability business and to adjusting the liquidity of the Bank to a proper level. In addition, the Bank
also monitors warning indicators, set up emergency programs and conduct financing capability testing to discover and prevent risk in

a timely manner.

In the first half of 2006, the Group’s asset and liability business registered healthy and steady development and liquidity was
managed effectively. As at 30 June 2006, all indicators relating the Bank’s liquidity status have met the regulatory requirements as

table below:

30 June 2006 Local Currency Foreign Currencies
Liquidity ratio 32.03% 45.88%
o ) 56.47% 71.95%
Loan-deposit ratio of domestic
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operations

Excess reserve ratio™ 2.58% 17.07%

» Deposit reserve refers to the deposits with the central bank for the purpose of guaranteeing the withdrawal of deposits and fund
clearing of customers, and deposit reserve ratio is the proportion of deposit reserve required by the central bank in total balance of
deposits.

Deposit reserve and deposit reserve ratio are composed of two parts. The deposit reserve ratio stipulated by the central bank is
called statutory deposit reserve ratio, which stands at 7.5% at present, i.e. commercial banks must deposit 7.5% of deposits received
with the central bank; the corresponding deposits is called statutory deposit reserve. The reserve beyond statutory deposit reserve is

called excess reserve, and the proportion of excess reserve in total deposits is the excess reserve ratio.

The above liquidity ratio is calculated in accordance with the relevant provisions of the People’s Bank of China and CBRC, and the

financial data are based on the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises and Financial Enterprise Accounting System.
Internal Control and Operational Risk

Internal Control The Bank is committed to continuously improve its internal control system by establishing three defense lines
composed of function management, compliance control and internal audit. By clarifying the responsibilities of all business units, the

Bank seeks to ensure effective risk prevention and optimum resource allocation from the management framework perspective.

The principal objective of developing internal control function is to establish a compliance culture and construct a comprehensive,
dynamic, proactive and verifiable internal control environment, which is based on a sound internal control infrastructure and rules
and regulations, supported by advanced information technology, guided by an effective incentive and accountability system, provides

checks and balance, and emphasizes refined process control.

As required by the Guidelines on Internal Control of Commercial Banks promulgated by the People’s Bank of China, the Bank
continuously reinforced internal control measures and improved internal control mechanism and environment in different business
and management lines, including corporate banking, treasury services, personal financial business, e-banking, bank card, and human
resources. Meanwhile, it also established key indicator monitoring system for internal control, to conduct key monitoring and

periodic reporting of key internal control indicators, including rotation, function in an acting capacity, and business errors.

Operational Risk Operational risk means the risk of losses caused by substandard or problematic internal procedures, personnel or
system or by external events. In the first half of 2006, the Bank cooperated with RBS in respect of the operational risk management
framework. The two parties carried out a preliminary study of operational risk management framework in line with the Bank’s
conditions. Work processes were developed covering operational risk and control review, key risk indicators, reporting of significant

events, etc. Pilot project relating operational risk and control assessment and key risk indicators was also activated.
Internal Audit

In order to fully realize the function of internal audit in our corporate governance structure, in the first half of 2006, the Bank
appointed an independent external consulting agency to conduct an overall evaluation of its internal controls by referring to
international internal audit industry best practices. Based on the evaluation results and regulatory requirements, the Bank started
improving the organizational structure of internal audits, management techniques, reporting lines and practical standards, and
devoted great efforts to build a new vertical, independent and effective internal audit system steered by the Board of Directors and
the Audit Committee. In the mean time, the Bank continuously improved the depth of its audits, focused on improvement in high-risk
and weak areas and significantly enhanced the effectiveness of internal controls. Under the internal audit plan which mainly
comprises regular audits while supplemented by special audits and individual case investigations, all levels of internal audit
departments, at home and abroad, had deepened the audits while giving consideration to its coverage. In the first half of 2006, the
Bank conducted regular internal audits on 6 overseas institutions, 9 tier-1 branches, 115 tier-2 branches, 689 urban sub-branches and

957 county-level sub-branches, and meanwhile completed 1,172 special internal audits (including 850 economic responsibility
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audits), and 31 case investigations.
Capital Management

The objective of the Bank’s capital management is to effectively plan various types of capital to ensure that its capital is in line with
the requirements of external regulations, credit rating, risk compensation and shareholder’s return. It also endeavors to optimize
financial ratios, improve the equity value and maximize shareholder’s value on a risk-controlled basis by making full use of capital

instruments and management measures. During the report period, the Bank's capital level is in line with all statutory requirements.
Outlook

In the second half of the year, we expect the Chinese economy will maintain its rapid growth momentum, thus providing a
favorable macro environment for the operation of the Bank. Presented with new circumstances and new missions, the Bank will
further study its strategy and strive to maintain stable and rapid growth for its various businesses, so as to ensure that the targets
set at the beginning of the year can be fulfilled. In addition, the Bank will also continue its reforms, bearing in mind the
requirements of the capital market. With respect to business development, the Bank will focus on developing its intermediary
business, speed up development of its personal banking business, and further optimize its business structure and income mix.
The Bank will also steadily develop its asset business with quality customers, control the speed of business development,
proactively manage its liabilities, lower fund costs and improve service quality. In terms of risk management, the Bank will
strengthen comprehensive risk management, refine its internal control systems, and establish three lines of defense comprising
functional management, compliance control and internal audit. The Bank also plans to take its organizational reforms and
process integration to further depth, and also accelerate the implementation of the IT Blueprint. The reforms in HR

management will continue, and more efforts will be devoted to improving management capability and staff quality.
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Corporate Information

Registered Name in Chinese: H[E AT A R AR (“f E#47)
Registered Name in English: Bank of China Limited (“Bank of China”, hereafter “the Bank”)
Legal Representative: XIAO Gang
Secretary to the Board: YEUNG Jason Chi Wai
Certified Accountant: LEUNG Kim Lan Francis
Authorized Representatives: LI Lihui

YEUNG Jason Chi Wai
Compliance Advisers: Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C.

UBS AG acting through its business group UBS Investment Bank

Address: No.1 Fuxingmen Nei Da Jie, Beijing, PRC China
Telephone: 010-66596688
Fax: 010-66016871
E-mail: bocir@bank-of-china.com
Registered Office: No.1 Fuxingmen Nei Da Jie, Beijing, PRC China
Office Address: No.1 Fuxingmen Nei Da Jie, Beijing, PRC China
Post Code: 100818
Place of Business in Hong Kong: 8" Floor, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong

Credit Ratings (Long Term)
Standard & Poor’s: BBB+ Rating and Investment Information, Inc.: A-
Moody’s Invester Service : A2 Dagong Global Credit Rating Co., Ltd.: AAA

Fitch Ratings: A-

Website: http://www.boc.cn

Selected newspapers for disclosure: China Securities, Shanghai Securities, Securities Times, China Daily

Hong Kong Newspaper: South China Morning Post and Hong Kong Economic Journal

Website designated by CSRC to publish the Interim Report: http://www.sse.com.cn

Website designated by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited to publish the Interim Report: http://www.hkex.com.hk

Places where the Interim Report can be obtained: major business locations

Index Constituent

The Bank is a constituent of the following indices:
MSCI China Index

Shanghai Stock Exchange Index Series
FTSE/Xinhua China 25 Index

FTSE/Xinhua Hong Kong Index

Hang Seng China Enterprise Index (Effective from 11 September 2006)

Stock Codes

H shares:
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Reuters

Bloomberg

A shares:
The Shanghai Stock Exchange
Reuters

Bloomberg

Share Registrar
H shares: Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Hopewell Centre, 46" Floor, 183 Queen's Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
A shares: China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited,

Shanghai Branch

F/36, China Insurance Building, 166 Lujiazui East R.d., Pudong District, Shanghai

Other relevant information

Date of first registration: 31 October 1983

Modified registration date: 26 August 2004
Authority of first registration: State Administration of Industry and Commerce of PRC

Corporate business license serial number: 1000001000134
Financial license institution serial number: B10311000H0001
Tax registration certificate number: JGSXZ 110102100001342

DSJZ 110102100001342000

3988
3988.HK
3988 HK

601988
601988.SS
601988 CH

Appointed domestic auditor: PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified Public Accountants Limited Company

Address of appointed auditor: Floor 11, PWC Center, No.202 Hubin Road, Shanghai

Post Code: 200021

Appointed international auditor: PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong

Address of appointed auditor: 22/F, Prince’s Building Center, Hong Kong

Business scope: RMB deposit-taking; disbursement of short, medium and long-term loans, settlement; discount of bills; issuance of
financial bonds; issuance and redemption as an agency, and underwriting of government bonds; trading of government bonds;
inter-bank lending; provision of credit card services and guarantee; collection and payment and insurance agency services; safe box
services; foreign exchange deposits, loans and remittance; foreign currency exchange; international settlement; inter-bank foreign
exchange lending; acceptance and discount of foreign exchange bills; foreign exchange loans, guarantee, settlement and sales;
issuance and agency of foreign currency marketable securities other than stock for its own accounts or for customers’ accounts;
proprietary foreign exchange trading; foreign exchange trading for customers; issuance of foreign exchange credit cards and foreign
credit card issuance and payment as an agency; credit standing investigation, consultation and witness; organizing of or participation
in syndicated loans; trading of international precious metal; all banking services engaged by overseas operations as approved by local

laws; issuance of local currencies through branches in Hong Kong and Macau according to local laws and decrees or acting as an
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agency; other services as approved by CBRC and other regulatory authorities.

This Report is prepared in both Chinese and English. Should there be any inconsistency between the Chinese and English

versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Staff

Director, Supervisors and Senior Management

Honorary Directors¥)

Name
CHEN Muhua
CHUANG Shih Ping

Board of Directors

Name

XIAO Gang

LI Lihui
ZHANG Jinghua
YU Erniu

ZHU Yan
ZHANG Xinze
HONG Zhihua
HUANG Haibo

Sir Frederick Anderson

Position
Honorary Chairperson

Honorary Vice Chairman

Position

Chairman

Vice Chairman and President
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

GOODWIN Non-Executive Director

SEAH Lim Huat Peter Non-Executive Director

HUA Qingshan Executive Director; Vice President
LI Zaohang Executive Director; Vice President
Anthony Francis NEOH Independent Non-Executive Director
William

Peter COOKE Independent Non-Executive Director
Patrick de

SAINT-AIGNAN Independent Non-Executive Director
Alberto TOGNI Independent Non-Executive Director

Notes:

1) Under PRC law, the honorary directors are not members of the Board of Directors and do not have any power or right to

vote on any matters considered by our Board under our Articles of Association.

Board of Supervisors

Name

LIU Ziqiang
WANG Xueqiang
LIU Wangming
LI Chunyu

LIU Dun

Senior Management

Name

LI Lihui

HUA Qingshan
LI Zaohang
ZHOU Zaiqun
ZHANG Yanling
ZHANG Lin

Position

Chairman of Board of Supervisors
Supervisor

Supervisor

Employee Supervisor

Employee Supervisor

Position

President

Executive Director; Vice President
Executive Director; Vice President
Vice President

Vice President

Secretary of the Party Discipline Committee
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ZHU Min Assistant President

ZHU Xingiang Assistant President
WANG Yongli Assistant President
Lonnie DOUNN" Chief Credit Officer

(“tendered his resignation in April 2006, effective in September 2006.)
YEUNG Jason Chi Wai Secretary to the Board of Directors

Human Resources and Management

Number of Institutions and Employees As of the end of June 2006, the Bank had 11,543 domestic and overseas branches and
subsidiaries, a reduction of 103 from the beginning of the year. Domestic branches and subsidiaries numbered 10,907, a reduction of
111 from the beginning of the year, and overseas branches and subsidiaries numbered 635, an increase of eight from the beginning of

the year.

As of the end of June 2006, the Bank had 197,636 regular employees, a decrease of 11,629 from the beginning of the year.
Employees of domestic operations numbered 179,453, a decrease of 11,375; and employees of overseas operations totaled 18,183, a

decrease of 254 from the beginning of the year. Besides, the Bank had 28,769 dispatched staff in its domestic operations.

Management of Human Resources In the first half of 2006, the Bank continued to reform its human resources management system.
Intensified efforts were made to adjust and staff the Management team of its branches, subsidiaries and departments of the Head
Office. The Bank launched leadership development model, and consolidated the supporting resources. Through in-depth position
appointment reform, the Bank gradually formed a merit-based recruitment system through fair competition. It also controlled the
headcount, and optimized staff structure constantly. Leveraging diverse channels, including campus recruitment and social
recruitment, it filled up post vacancy to satisfy the needs of business development and management. It also improved an all-round
remuneration system, guided domestic branches to design remuneration reform plans and calculate remuneration level, promoted the
implementation of remuneration reform, started the establishment of the corporate annuity system, and preliminarily set up a
long-term and standardized supplementary retirement insurance mechanism. It also enhanced performance management, set the
performance indicators for branches by virtue of balanced score card, reinforced process management, and guided each branch to

implement the scientific approach to development.

Training and Development of Human Resources The Bank devoted great efforts to the training of management personnel at high
and middle ranks. It developed senior leadership course in cooperation with Peking University and Business School of Harvard

University, and sent senior executives to participate in a senior management course provided by the RBS.

To support and boost business development, training was also provided to professionals in the fields of wealth management planning,
financial service marketing, operational risk, trading and settlement, etc. The Bank also strengthened training for frontline and new

employees. In the first half, the Bank organized 2,441 off-work training courses each over two days, training 95,577 persons.

Process Integration and Organizational Restructuring The Bank continued to promote the business process integration and
organizational restructuring. It conducted an overall investigation on the organizational framework, business process and operational
mechanism of RBS, in an effort to explore and study the direction of its own organizational framework reform in line with its own
conditions. By studying the setting up of strategic business units along the lines of corporate banking, personal banking and treasury
business and adjusting the functions of the branch outlets, the Bank will try to strengthen the management of business lines so as to
gradually establish a matrix management model commonly adopted by international financial institutions. As of the end of June 2006,
organizational resources of the Bank continued to be allocated in favour of key regions to optimize the geographical layout. The
Bank newly established 25 institutions/outlets, upgraded 216 institutions, and closed 192 small institutions/outlets of poor

development potential.
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Corporate Culture
The Bank intends to build a strong corporate culture with work ethics that encourages honesty and integrity, the drive for

performance, a people oriented spirit, diligence and accountability and the pursuit of excellence so as to achieve a seamless
integration of its corporate culture with the operation and management of the Bank. By leveraging on the directional guidance,
incentives and behavioural constraints accompanying the building of the corporate culture, we aim to align the strategic development

goal of the Bank with the career aspirations of our employees.

Corporate Governance

During the report period, the Bank has been in strict compliance with the Company Law and the Law for Commercial Banks as well
as other applicable laws of China. We continued to improve the organizational framework and management processes relevant to
good corporate governance and optimized the functions and responsibilities among the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors and
Senior Management, all in accordance with the rules and regulations enacted by the regulatory authorities but taking into account our
current conditions. All organizations relevant to our corporate governance operated independently according to the law and

performed their respective rights and obligations in accordance with their responsibilities set forth in the Articles of Association.

General Meeting of Shareholders

The Bank convened and held the general meeting of shareholders according to the related laws and regulations and the Articles of
Association of the Bank to ensure that all the shareholders have an equal right to know, participate and vote. During the first half of
2006, the Bank held the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and four interim meetings and reviewed work reports of the Board
of Directors and Board of Supervisors, proposal on business plan and financial budget, and profit distribution plan etc. The
Shareholders’ General Meeting has played a crucial role in promoting the development of the Bank and protecting the interest of the

investors and other stakeholders.

Directors and the Board of Directors

In the first half of 2006, one Independent Non-Executive Director and one Non-Executive Director were appointed to the Board of
the Bank. As of June 30, 2006, the Board consisted of 16 members, including the Chairman, four Independent Non-Executive
Directors, eight Non-Executive Directors and three Executive Directors. Within the report period, the Bank held five board meetings,
adopted resolution through voting by correspondence, and reviewed its development strategies, business plans, profit distribution
plans, the Board’s self-evaluation plans, 2005 Annual Report, objectives of performance management and bonus distribution plan for
senior management, [PO issuance plan, the alteration of articles of association and other proposals. All directors diligently performed
their responsibilities, guaranteed the practicability of the Board’s decisions, and maintained the interests of the Bank and all its

shareholders.

The Board of Directors has set up five special committees, namely Strategic Development Committee, Audit Committee, Risk Policy
Committee, Personnel and Remuneration Committee and Connected Transaction Control Committee. The five committees directly

report to the Board. The work performance of each committee in the first half of 2006 is as follows:

46



Committees Work Performance

The committee held four meetings and mainly reviewed proposals such as the
Strategic Development Committee development strategies, business development plan for 2006-2008, and business

plan and financial budget for 2006 of the Bank.

The committee held four meetings and mainly reviewed proposals such as the
financial management measures of Bank of China Limited, improvement of internal
control, business plan and expense budget for 2006, the appointment, audit plan and
Audit Committee ) . .
audit fees of external auditors, profit forecast for 2006, financial report for year
2005 prepared in accordance with PRC GAAP and IFRS, and relevant auditors’

report.

The committee held two meetings and mainly reviewed proposals such as key risk
Risk Policy Committee management work and plan for 2006, report on the management key risk indicators,

and progress on the establishment of market risk management.

The committee held two meetings and mainly reviewed proposals such as the
) ) evaluation guide and self-evaluation plan of the Board of Directors, membership
Personnel and Remuneration Committee ) ) )
changes to special committees under the Board of Directors, and the measures on

performance management of Senior Management of the Bank.

The committee held two meetings and mainly reviewed such proposals as the
) ) management measures on connected transactions of the Bank, and plan on division
Connected Transaction Control Committee o )
of responsibilities for connected transaction control, and the rules of procedures of

the Connected Transaction Control Committee of the Board of Directors of BOC.

Supervisors and the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors of the Bank is composed of five members, including the Chairman of Board of Supervisors, two full-time
supervisors and two staff supervisors. The size and the composition of the Board of Supervisors comply with the supervisory
requirements and the Articles of Association. The Board of Supervisors examines and supervises the operation and the financial
activities of the Bank by holding meetings regularly, reading and checking various documents, debriefing the work report and reports

on certain issues from the management.
Senior Management

The Senior Management is the executive body of the Bank. Headed by the President, the Senior Management is composed of the
Vice Presidents and Assistant Presidents, who assist the President in managing the Bank’s business activities. The Senior
Management of the Bank is assessed and supervised by the Board of Directors. In the first half of 2006, the Objectives for
Performance Management and Scheme for Bonus Allocation of the Senior Management was deliberated and approved by the Board
of Directors of the Bank. In order to incentivize and motivate the Senior Management, the Bank set up scientific assessment and
evaluation standards; established the assessment mechanism in which the compensation of senior management personnel is linked to

his performance, responsibilities and risks while adhering to the principle of balancing incentives and constraints.
Investor Relations and Information Disclosure

The Bank strictly complies with relevant requirements strictly, and discloses all material information promptly, accurately, faithfully

and completely to ensure all shareholders are treated equally.

The Bank is committed to promoting investor relations in the capital market, and places investor relations management as top priority.
During the report period, the Bank faithfully, accurately, promptly and sufficiently fulfilled its responsibilities of information
disclosure and promoted the interests of its investors through meetings with institutional investors, press and analysts, and by

adopting multiple communication channels such as launching an IR page on its website, arranging one-on-one meetings and various
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communication tools such as mail, phone and fax.
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Significant Events

i Profit Distribution during the Report Period

Profit Distribution in 2005 The 2005 profit distribution plan of the Bank was adopted at the 2005 annual general meeting of
shareholders, i.e., to distribute a profit of RMB 1.375 billion to the registered shareholders of the Bank as of 31 December 2005. The

plan has been implemented.

According to the resolutions of the board meeting held on 29 August of 2006, the Bank transferred 10% of the net profit from
January to June 2006 to the statutory surplus reserve, set aside RMB4, 291 million as general reserve fund. The Bank does not

declare any dividend for the first half of 2006.

ii Listing of H-Share and A-Share

The H-Share of the Bank was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) on 1 June
2006. 25,568,590,000 H-Shares were issued on the initial public offering. Following the exercise of the over-allotment option on 9
June, a further 3,835,288,000 H-Shares were issued. The issuance of H-Share accounted for 11.9% of the total enlarged share capital
at an issue price of HK$2.95 per share. With the issuance of the shares, US$11.2 billion was raised. The H-Share IPO was the fourth
largest IPO around the world to date, the largest for the financial sector, the largest in Asia excluding Japan, and the largest global

offering by a Chinese company.

The Bank issued its A-Share in the domestic market from 19 to 23 June. These shares were issued at an issue price of RMB 3.08 per
share and commenced trading on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 5 July 2006. As the largest domestic listing of A-Share on the
domestic market so far, 6,493,506,000 A-Share were offered, representing 2.56% of the fully diluted share capital. A total of RMB
19,999,998,480 was raised, and our IPO is the largest A share offering to date.

The IPOs of H-Share and A-Share account for 14.14% of the total enlarged share capital of the Bank. After the IPOs, the share capital
of the Bank increased to RMB 253,839,162,009 or 253,839,162,009 shares. The two IPOs and successful listing marked a milestone
in the stock reform of the Bank. Since 19 July 2006, the Bank (A share code: 601988) has been included in SSE 180 index and SSE
50 index

iii Changes in Share Capital and Shareholdings of Major Shareholders
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1. Changes in Share Capital:

1 Jan, 2006 30 June 2006
Shares
transferred
Allotment Bonus Increase of share
Number of shares feh from the ol Others Subtotal Number of shares
of shares capita
Shares surplus p
reserve
I. Unlisted shares
i. Shares held by the
state (promoter’s 174,128,718,217 -2,803,313,477 -2,803,313,477 171,325,404,740
shares)
ii. Shares held by the
8,514,415,652  -8,514,415,652 -8,514,415,652

state

iii. Shares held by

domestic legal person

iv. Shares held by

foreign legal person

35,298,644,140

-35,298,644,140

-35,298,644,140

v. Shares of legal

person promoters

vi. Shares held by
staff

vii. Preferred shares

or other shares

6,493,506,000

6,493,506,000

6,493,506,000

Subtotal

209,427,362,357

177,818,910,740

II. Listed shares

i. RMB-denominated

ordinary shares

ii. Domestically listed

foreign shares

iii. Overseas listed

foreign shares

29,403,878,000

46,616,373,269

76,020,251,269

76,020,251,269

iv. Others
Subtotal 0 76,020,251,269
III. Total 209,427,362,357 253,839,162,009
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1. The number of shares in the column of “Preferred Shares or Other Shares” is the amount of the A Share offered by the Bank to the
public from 12 to 29 June, 2006, which were registered with the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation on 29 June 2006, and commenced trading on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 5 July 2006.

2. The Bank invited the National Council for Social Security Fund (SSF) as a strategic investor on 13 March 2006, to which
8,514,415,652 ordinary shares were offered. 25,568,590,000 IPO H-shares were issued in May 2006. 35,298,644,140 non-listed
foreign funded shares previously held by BOC’s foreign strategic investors, 8,514,415,652 ordinary shares by the SSF, and
2,803,313,477 ordinary shares transferred by Central SAFE Investments Limited, sponsor of BOC, to SSF, as required by the State,
were converted to H Shares, and listed at the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 1 June along with the H shares already offered to the
public. The H Share over allotment option was exercised in full, involving 3,835,288,000 H shares on 9 June 2006. In June 2006, 6,
493, 506, 000 A shares were offered to the public. On 29 June, 2006, the A shares offered to the public by BOC and 171,325,404,740
ordinary shares held by Central SAFE Investments Limited, sponsor of the Bank, were registered as A-shares. The A-Shares of the
Bank were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 5 July 2006. As of 5 July 2006, the Bank has issued 177,818,910,740 A shares
and 76,020,251,269 H shares, representing 253,839,162,009 ordinary shares in aggregate.

2. Number of shareholders and shareholdings

Total number of shareholders: As of the end of the reporting period, the Bank’s shareholders (A-Share+ H-Share) numbered
1,060,828, including 457,146 holders of H-Share and 603,682 holders of A-Share. (The Number of shares held by H share

shareholders are those recorded in the Register of Members as kept by the H Share Register of the Bank)
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Top Ten Shareholders

No. Name of Shareholder Type of Type of Share Shareholding at the End Proportion in Total Shares
Shareholder of Report Period (As of Share Capital Pledged or
30 June 2006) (%) Frozen
Shares
1 Central SAFE
State owned A Share 171,325,404,740 67.49%
Investments Limited
P HKSCC Nominees )
Foreign H Share 30,341,965,800 11.95%
Limited
3 RBS China Investments )
Foreign H Share 20,942,736,236 8.25%
S.arl
4 Asia Financial Holdings )
Foreign H Share 10,471,368,118 4.13%
Pte Ltd
5 National Council for
Social Security Fund, State owned H Share 8,377,341,329 3.30%
PRC
6 UBS AG Foreign H Share 3,377,860,684 1.33%
7 Asia Development )
Foreign H Share 506,679,102 0.20%
Bank
8 The Bank of
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Foreign H Share 473,052,000 0.19%
Ltd
9 Wingreat International )
Foreign H Share 420,490,000 0.17%
Limited
10 Best Sense Investments )
o Foreign H Share 236,526,000 0.09%
Limited
10 Turbo Top Limited Foreign H Share 236,526,000 0.09%

among the above shareholders.

52

The Bank is not aware whether the shares of the above shareholders have been pledged or frozen, or the connected relationships




Top Ten Shareholders Whose shares are not subject to Selling Restrictions (as at 5 July 2006, being the date of listing of
A-Share, the shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited is as at 30 June 2006)

No. Name of Shareholder Listed Trading Shares Type of Share
1 HKSCC Nominees Limited 30,341,965,800 H Share
2 ICBC- GF Strategic Selection Balanced Securities | 70,669,000 A Share

Investment Fund

3 Shanghai Huiyin Investment Limited Corporation 70,000,000 A Share

4 ICBC- E Fund Value Selection Stock Securities | 50,397,000 A Share

Investment Fund

5 China Life Insurance (Group) Company - | 38,765,000 A Share

Traditional-General Insurance

6 China Life Insurance Company Limited- Dividend- 29 076. 000 A Share
Personal Divident-005L-FH002 SH

7 China Life Insurance Company Limited- | 23,982,000 A Share
Dividend-Group Divident-005L-FH001 SH

8 China Pacific Life Insurance Co., | 23,357,300 A Share
Ltd-Dividend-Personal Dividend

9 China Life Insurance Company | 23,260,000 A Share
Limited-Traditional-General Insurance-005L-CTO001
SH

10 23,101,000 A Share

Bank of Communications- Hua An Innovation

Explanation of the connected relations and the concerted action | Except that some of the above sharcholders may be under the
among the above shareholders management of the same corporation, the Bank is not aware of
the connected relations and the concerted action among the

above shareholders.
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Substantial Interests in Share Capital

The register maintained by the Bank pursuant to section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) of the laws of Hong
Kong recorded that, as at 30 June 2006, the following corporations had the following interests (as defined in the SFO) in the Bank set

opposite their respective names:

Name of Shareholders Number of shares held | Type of | % of total | % of total | % of total | Capacity
shares issued A | issued H | issued share
shares shares capital
Central SAFE Investments | 171,325,404,740 A 96.35% - 67.49% Beneficial owner
Limited
The Royal Bank of | 20,944,789,236 H - 27.55% 8.25% Attributable
Scotland Group PLC N¢! interests &

beneficial owner

RBS CI Limited No'¢! 20,942,736,236 H - 27.54% 8.25% Attributable
interests &

beneficial owner

RBS China Investments | 20,942,736,236 H - 27.54% 8.25% Beneficial owner
S.arl.

Temasek Holdings | 11,792,559,118 H - 15.51% 4.65% Attributable
(Private) Limited N2 interests
National  Council  for | 11,317,729,129 H - 14.89% 4.46% Beneficial owner
Social Security Fund of

the PRC

UBS AG 3,892,847,114 H - 5.12% 1.53% Attributable

interests, beneficial
132,154,877 (S)* 0.17% 0.05%
owner & person
having a security

interest in shares

*  **S” denotes short positions
Notes:

1. The Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC (“RBS Group”) holds the entire issued share capital of RBS CI
Limited, which in turn holds 51.61% of RBS China Investments S.a.r.l. (“RBS China”). Accordingly, RBS
Group and RBS CI Limited are deemed to have the same interests in the Bank as RBS China for the purpose of
the SFO.

2. Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited (“Temasek”) holds the entire issued share capital of Fullerton
Management Pte Ltd, which in turn holds the entire issued share capital of Asia Financial Holdings Pte Ltd.
Accordingly, for the purpose of the SFO, Temasek and Fullerton Management Pte Ltd are deemed to have the
same interests in the Bank as Asia Financial Holdings Pte Ltd, which has an interest in 11,785,825,118 shares

of the Bank.

All the interests stated above represented long positions except stated otherwise. Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2006, no

other interests or short positions were recorded in the register maintained by the Bank under section 336 of the SFO.
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iv Significant Related Party Transactions (please refer to Article 5 of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statement under

Related Party Transaction)

v Except as stated below, the Bank did not have material merger and acquisition, or sales of assets during the report period.
Followed are highlights of the current report period in purchases & sales of assets and mergers:

On 1 June, 2006, BOCG Insurance, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, sold a 51% stake of BOCG Life to BOC Hong Kong
which the Bank holds a stake of 65.87%, at the purchase price of HKD 900 million by reference to the valuation of BOCG Life as of
31 December 2005. The Group effectively sold a 17.4% stake of BOCG Life to minorities of BOC Hong Kong, and achieved a gain
of RMB 138 million.

Bank of China Group Investment Limited, a Hong Kong subsidiary of the Group, sold loans at a book value of RMB 63 million to an
independent third party in May 2006, giving rise to an income of RMB 723 million, with net income at RMB 660 million.

vi Major Contracts and Performance
During the report period and except as disclosed, the Bank does not have material assets business with other companies to custody,

contract or lease their assets, or entrust other companies to custody, contract or lease the Bank’s assets.

The guarantee business is one of our off-balance items in the ordinary course of our business. We carry out guarantee business in a
prudent manner, and manage risk according to the five-category classification of loans to ensure the asset quality of our guarantee

business.

During the report period, no cash assets of the Bank were entrusted to others for management.

vii Undertakings

During the report period, the Bank or shareholders holding shares of more than 5% (including 5%) have not made undertakings that
might have significant adverse impact on the operational results and financial position of the Bank.

viii Material Litigation and Arbitration

During the report period and except as disclosed herein, there was no material litigation and arbitration that might have significant
adverse impact on the operation of the Bank.

As of 30 June 2006, The Bank has involved in certain litigation and arbitration cases in regular businesses. Consulting professional
legal firms, the Management holds that these litigation and arbitration cases will not have significant adverse impacts on the

operation of the Bank.
iXx Appointment and Dismissal of Auditors

The Bank has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified Public Accountants Limited Company and

PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong as its domestic and international statutory external auditors respectively.
x Punishment and Remedial Actions Required by the Bank, Board of Directors and Directors
During the report period, none of the Bank, the Board of Directors or any Director was subject to any investigation and

administrative punishment from the CSRC, or was the subject of a public reprimand from any stock exchange.
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xi Explanation on the Alteration of Business Plan

During the report period and except as publicly disclosed, there has been no material amendment to the Bank’s business plan.

xii Warnings and Reasons for Predicted Loss or Significant Changes in Net Accumulated Profit from the Beginning of the
Year to the End of Next Report Period

The Bank does not believe that the net accumulative profit earned from the beginning of the year to the end of the next report period

would result in a loss, nor would there be significant changes compared with the same period of last year.
xiii Use of IPO Proceeds
Fund raising in the current report period is as follow:

Pursuant to the Response of CBRC on BOC’s Absorption of Investment and Shareholding by SSF (YJF [2006] No. 49), the Bank
issued to SSF 8,514,415,652 ordinary shares on 13 March 2006, par value RMB 1 for each share at a premium. SSF contributed
RMB 10 billion in cash, with the capital contribution including an equity premium of RMB1, 481 million.

Pursuant to the Response of CBRC on BOC’s Transformation to Overseas Offering and Listing of Shares (YJF [2006] No. 53) and
the Response on Approving BOC’s Issuance of Foreign Capital Stock Listed Abroad (ZJGHZ [2006] No.8), the Bank issued at a
premium to foreign investors 29,403,878,000 foreign capital stocks listed abroad (H Share) on 1 June 2006 and 9 June 2006, par
value of RMB 1 for each share, which were publicly listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange at an issue price of HK$2.95 per

share.

Pursuant to the Response of CBRC on BOC Issuing Stocks and Going Public (YJF [2006] No. 135) and the Circular on Approval of
BOC Initial Public Offering (ZJFXZ [2006] No.20), the Bank issued at a premium to domestic investors 6,493,506,000 ordinary
shares (A Share) on 29 June 2006, par value of RMB 1 for each share, which were publicly listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange at
an issue price of RMB3.08 per share.

Funds raised within the report period are mainly used to strengthen the Bank’s capital base.

xiv The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Bank is composed of non-executive directors, including two non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. Independent non-executive director Patrick de Saint-Aignan is the Chairman; and Zhu Yan,

Huang Haibo, Anthony Francis Neoh and Peter Cooke are members of the Committee.

The Committee assisted the Board of Directors in supervising the Group’s oversight of financial reporting, internal control, internal

audit and external audit etc.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the interim results of the Bank .The Bank’s external auditors have carried out a review of the
interim financial statements in accordance with the Independent Auditing Practice Pronouncement No.10 — Engagements to Review
Financial Statement but not audited in accordance with Chinese Independent Auditing Standards. The Audit Committee has discussed
matters such as the accounting standards and the auditing practice, internal control and financial statements adopted in the interim

report.
xv Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

On 5 July 2002, the following Directors were granted options by BOC Hong Kong (BVI) Limited (“BOC (BVI)”), the immediate
holding company of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited, pursuant to a Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme to purchase from BOC
(BVI) existing issued shares of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited at a price of HK$8.50 per share. BOC Hong Kong (Holdings)

Limited is a subsidiary of the Bank which is also listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. These options have a vesting period of
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four years from 25 July 2002 with a valid exercise period of ten years. Twenty-five percent of the shares subject to such options will

vest at the end of each year.

Particulars of the outstanding options granted to the Directors under the Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme as at 30 June 2006 are set

out below:
Number of share options
Exercise
) Balances as Exercised Surrendered Lapsed Balances as
price . . .
Granted on 5 at 1 January, during the during the during the at 30 June
Date of grant  (HKS) Exercisable Period July, 2002 2006 period period period 2006
HUA Qingshan 5 July 2002 8.50 25 July 2003 to 4 1,446,000 1,446,000 — — - 1,446,000
July 2012
LI Zaohang 5 July 2002 8.50 25 July 2003 to 4 1,446,000 1,446,000 - - - 1,446,000
July 2012

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period under review was the Bank, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors and Supervisors of the Bank and their respective spouses or
children below the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other

body corporate.

Directors and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

Save as disclosed above, as of 30 June 2006, none of the Directors or Supervisors of the Bank had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Bank or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Bank pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Bank and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

xvi Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Bank’s Shares

The Bank issued to SSF 8,514,415,652 ordinary shares on 13 March 2006 at a premium.

The Bank issued 25,568,590,000 IPO H shares in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 1 June 2006, with the over-allotment option
exercised on 9 June 3,835,288,000 H-Shares were issued.

The Bank issued 6,493,506,000 new A shares on 29 June 2006, and the Bank's A shares were listed and commenced trading on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange on 5 July 2006.

Save for the above, neither the Bank nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Bank’s shares.

xvii Compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices of the Listing Rules

The Bank endeavored to establish good corporate governance principles and practices and believed that upholding international
standards of corporate governance is crucial to safeguarding the interests of shareholders. The Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors have been organized in line with relevant laws and regulations. The Board of Directors is accountable to the general
meeting of shareholders and responsible for, among other things, approving the Bank ’s business strategy and operating plans,

appointing senior management and establishing organization structure. With the Board of Directors at the core, the Bank has set up a
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number of Board committees, namely Strategic Development Committee, Audit Committee, Risk Policy Committee, Personnel and
Remuneration Committee and Connected Transaction Control Committee to perform functions designated by the Board of Directors.
The Board of Supervisors is accountable to the general meeting of shareholders and has the responsibility and power to, among other

things, supervise the Board of Directors and senior management, inspect the Bank ’s financial activities and examine decisions made.

The Bank has conducted a gap analysis between the requirements of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the one hand and the Group’s internal
requirements and practices on the other hand. The Bank has been in full compliance with the code provisions and has substantially

complied with the recommended best practices set out in the CG Code.

xviii Compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Bank has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange to govern securities transactions by Directors. The Bank has made specific enquiry
of all Directors of the Bank, and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in the said

Model Code throughout the period under review.

xix Compliance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and Accounting Principles for Financial

Institutions

The Interim report as at the end of the first half of 2006 is in compliance with the requirements of Interim Report, PRC Accounting

Standards for Business Enterprises and Accounting Principles for Financial Enterprise.

xx Interim Report

This Interim Report is available in both English and Chinese. The Chinese and English versions of this Interim Report is available by
writing to the Bank ’s H Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Hopewell Centre, 46™ Floor, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The Chinese and English versions of this Interim Report are available at major business
locations of the Bank. This Interim Report is also available (in both English and Chinese) on the Bank ’s website at www.boc.cn,

www.sse.com.cn, and www.hkex.com.hk.

If you have any queries about how to obtain copies of this Interim Report or how to access those documents on
the Bank ’s website, please call the Bank ’s hotline at (852) 2862 8633 or 8610-66596688.
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Shanghai 200021

People's Republic of China
Telephone +86 (21) 6123 8888
Facsimile +86 (21) 6123 8800

REVIEW REPORT

PwC ZT SZ (2006) No. 302
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BANK OF CHINA LIMITED:

We have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of Bank of China Limited (the “Bank”) as of 30
June, 2006, and its profit and loss account and cash flow statement for the period then ended, and
the consolidated balance sheet of Bank of China Group (the “Group” comprising the Bank and its
subsidiaries) as at 30 June 2006 and its consolidated profit and loss account and cash flow
statement for the period then ended. The Bank’s management is responsible for preparing these
condensed financial statements. Our responsibility is to issue a report on these financial statements
based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Independent Auditing Practice Pronouncement
No.10 - Engagements to Review Financial Statements. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of
company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provides less
assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, the Accounting System for Financial Institutions and
other relevant accounting regulations.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian

Certified Public Accountants Limited Company

Shanghai, China
29 August 2006



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 30 JUNE 2006

(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Assets

Cash
Precious metals

Due from central banks
Government certificates of
indebtedness for bank

Trading and other debt
securities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial
instruments

Due from and placements
with banks and other

Debt securities
Loans and advances to
customers

Less: Provision for loan
losses

Interest receivable
Equity investments
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

Total assets

Note

.1

1.2

1.3

.4

H.5; 1IV.1

111.6; IV.2

1.7, 1V.3

111.13

Bank of China Group

Bank of China Limited

30 June 31 December 30June 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
29,811 28.644 26,684 25,144
40,649 30,314 39,003 28,577
340,651 316,941 314,986 284,373
36,094 35,586 1,650 1,641
110,602 107,271 81,224 82,082
21,540 16,808 15,136 11,329
300,114 344 537 223,651 256,786
1,877,669 1,562,320 1,570,481 1,297,990
2,405,536 2,235,046 2,042,201 1,868,105
(88,128) (83,153) (84,753) (79,581)
23,187 20,408 18.726 16.107
14,775 15.393 69.439 66.951
71,208 72,978 52,169 53,392
3,940 3,342 3,933 3,331
17.410 17,561 17.298 17.428
21,875 18,810 11,076 10,384
5,226,933 4,742,806 4,402,904 3,944,039




BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 30 JUNE 2006

(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Liabilities

Due to central banks

Bank notes in circulation

Derivative financial instruments
and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Due to and placements from
banks and other financial

Deposits from customers
Interest payable

Special purpose borrowings
Bonds issued

Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Minority interests

Shareholder’s equity
Share capital
Capital reserve
Surplus reserve

General reserve and statutory
reserve of subsidiary

Undistributed profits
Reserve for fair value changes of
available-for-sale securities

Currency translation differences

Total shareholder’s equity

Total liabilities and shareholder’s
equity

Note

1.8

1.9

111.10; IV.4

.11
111.12
111.13
111.14

111.16

.17
111.18

111.19

111.19
111.19

111.19

Bank of China Group

Bank of China Limited

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30,495 30,055 30.470 30,030
36,151 35,731 1,708 1,786
101,172 91,174 80,777 76,323
358,349 345,233 350,337 343,574
4,053,024 3,703,777 3,356,973 3,009,187
31,485 27,024 29,559 25,291
49,622 52,164 49,622 52,164
60,177 60,179 60,177 60,179
254 184 22 22
119,751 134,665 85,618 111,641
4,840,480 4,480,186 4,045,263 3,710,197
28,812 28,778 - -
253,839 209,427 253,839 209,427
76,545 3,978 75,888 3,978
8,095 5,987 8,095 5,987
9,398 5,109 9,398 5,109
23,837 12,585 24,494 12,585
(11,954) (1,380) (11,954) (1,380)
(2,119) (1,864) (2,119) (1,864)
357,641 233,842 357.641 233,842
5,226,933 4,742,806 4,402,904 3,944,039

The accompanying notes form an intearal part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative and Chairman:

Xiao Gang

Deputy Chairman and President:
Li Lihui

Vice President in charge of accountinag function:
Zhou Zaigun

General Manager in charge of the Accounting
Liu Yanfen



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income
Net trading (expense)/income
Investment income

Other operating income, net

Operating and administrative expenses

Business tax and surcharges

Operating profit

Non-operating income, net
Profit before impairment losses

Impairment losses
Profit before tax
Income tax

Profit after tax
Minority interests
Net profit

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to the shareholders of
the Bank during the
period(expressed in Renminbi per
ordinary share)

- Basic
- Diluted

For the six month period ended 30 June

Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Group

Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
111.20; IV.5 99,777 77,466 79,525 66,038
111.20; IV.5 (45,301) (28,808) (33,197) (24,401)
54,476 48,658 46,328 41,637
111.21; IV.6 6,841 4,518 4,762 3,029
11.22; IV.7 (193) 2,993 (282) 2,250
111.23; IV.8 1,681 149 7,652 4,840
.24 1,797 361 245 12
64,602 56,679 58,705 51,768
111.25; IV.9 (23,193) (21,000) (19,715) (17,744)
11.26 (2,987) (2,670) (2,952) (2,650)
38,422 33,009 36,038 31,374
467 1,145 222 777
38,889 34,154 36,260 32,151
111.27; IV.10 (4,876) (4,576) (5,680) (6,116)
34,013 29,578 30,580 26,035
.28 (12,362) (10,860) (10,937) (9,601)
21,651 18,718 19,643 16,434
(2,627) (2,284) - -
19,024 16,434 19,643 16,434
111.29
0.09 0.09
0.09 0.09

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative and Chairman:
Xiao Gang

Deputy Chairman and President:
Li Lihui

Vice President in charge of accounting function:

Zhou Zaigun

General Manaaer in charge of the Accounting

Liu Yanfen
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'’S EQUITY
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

At 1 January 2006
Net profit for the period
Issue of ordinary shares

Appropriation to statutory reserve

Appropriation to general and
regulatory reserves

Net fair value changes of available-
for-sale securities

Dividend
Currency translation differences
Others

At 30 June 2006

Note

.17;111.18
.19

.19

.19
.19

Unaudited
Bank of China Group

Reserve for fair ~ Currency

General and value changes translation

Share Capital Statutory regulatory Undistributed  of available-for-  difference
capital reserve Reserves reserves profits  sale securities s Total
209,427 3,978 5,987 5,109 12,585 (1,380) (1,864) 233,842
- - - - 19,024 - - 19,024
44,412 72,567 - - - - - 116,979
- - 2,108 - (2,108) - - -
N - - 4,291 (4,291) - - -
- - - - - (10,574) - (10,574)
- - - - (1,375) - - (1,375)
- - - - - - (255) (255)
- - - ) 2 - - -
253,839 76,545 8,095 9,398 23,837 (11,954) (2,119) 357,641

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative and Chairman:

Xiao Gang

Deputy Chairman and President:
Li Lihui

Vice President in charge of accounting function:
Zhou Zaigun

General Manager in charge of the Accounting
Liu Yanfen



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'’S EQUITY
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Unaudited
Bank of China Limited
Reserve for fair ~ Currency
General and o value changes translation
Share Capital Statutory regulatory Undistributed f ayajlable-for- difference
Note capital reserve Reserves reserves profits sale securities s Total
At 1 January 2006 209,427 3,978 5,987 5,109 12,585 (1,380) (1,864) 233,842
Net profit for the period - - - - 19,643 - - 19,643
Issue of ordinary shares 11.17;111.18 44,412 72,219 - - - - 116,631
Appropriation to statutory reserve .19 - - 2,108 - (2,108) - - -
Appropriation to general and
regulatory reserves .19 - - - 4,291 (4,291) - - -
Net fair value changes of available-
for-sale securities .19 - - - - - (10,574) - (10,574)
Dividend .19 - - - - (1,375) - - (1,375)
Currency translation differences - - - - - - (255) (255)
Others .18 - (309) - 2) 40 - - (271)
At 30 June 2006 253,839 75,888 8,095 9,398 24,494 (11,954) (2,119) 357,641
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Legal Representative and Chairman: Vice President in charge of accounting function:
Xiao Gang Zhou Zaigun
Deputy Chairman and President: General Manaager in charge of the Accounting
Li Lihui Liu Yanfen



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'’S EQUITY

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2005
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

At 1 January 2005

Net profit for the year

Additions

Net changes in fair value of
available-for-salesecurities reserve
Currency translation differences

At 30 June 2005

Unaudited
Bank of China Group and Bank of China Limited

General reserve and Reserve for fair value Currency

Share Statutory statutory reserve Undistributed changes of available-  translation
Note capital reserves of subsidiary profits for-sale securities  differences Total
186,390 3,140 419 17,373 (2,315) 344 205,351
- - - 16,434 - - 16,434
- 75 2,480 (2,555) - - -
. . - - 3,349 - 3,349
- - - - - (354) (354)
186,390 3,215 2,899 31,252 1,034 (20) 224,780

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative and Chairman:
Xiao Gang

Deputy Chairman and President:
Li Lihui

Vice President in charge of accounting function:

Zhou Zaigun

General Manager in charge of the Accounting

Liu Yanfen



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'’S EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

At 30 June 2005

Net profit for the year
Issue of ordinary shares
Appropriation

Net fair value changes of available-for-
sale securities

Dividend

Adoption of equity accounting for
investment in an associate

Currency translation differences

Others

At 31 December 2005

Note

.17
.19

111.19
.19

Unaudited
Bank of China Group and Bank of China Limited
General reserve Reserve for fair
and statutory value changes of Currency
Share Capital  statutory reserve of Undistributed available-for-sale translation
capital reserve  reserves subsidiary profits securities differences Total

186,390 - 3,215 2,899 31,252 1,034 (20) 224,780
- - - - 11,058 - - 11,058
23,037 3,964 - - - - - 27,001
- - 2,772 2,210 (4,982) - - -
- - - - - (2,414) - (2,414)
- - - - (26,937) - - (26,937)
- - - - 2,194 - - 2,194
- - - - - - (1.854) (1.854)
- 14 - - - - - 14
209,427 3,978 5,987 5,109 12,585 (1,380) (1,864) 233,842

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative and Chairman:
Xiao Gang

Deputy Chairman and President:
Li Lihui

Zhou Zaigun

Liu Yanfen

Vice President in charge of accounting function:

General Manager in charge of the Accounting



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

For the six month period ended 30 June
Note Bank of China Group  Bank of China Limited
2006 2005 2006 2005
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest received 96,998 75,995 76,906 64,952
Commission received 7,505 5,919 5,218 3,701
Cash received from bad debts written-off

previously 986 1,823 250 607
Net increase in customer deposits (including

structured deposits ) 349,247 246,881 347,786 248,163

Net decrease/(increase) in due from and
placements with banks and other financial

institutions 15,392 58,072 39,448 17,039

Net increase in due to and placements from
banks and other financial institutions 13,116 45,141 6,763 20,378
Net change in other operating items (2,811) 392 (18,114) (10,686)
Cash inflows from operating activities 480,433 434,223 458,257 344,154

Cash paid for interest on customer deposits

and inter-bank balances (39,461) (24,782) (27,550) (20,572)
Commission paid (1,325) (1,397) (460) (673)
Cash paid to and on behalf of the employees (13,670)  (11,289) (11,139) (9,290)
Cash paid for operating expenses and others (7,322) (6,450) (6,399) (5,397)
Income tax paid (15,279)  (13,331) (14,681) (12,859)
Business and other taxes paid (3,421) (2,763) (3,387) (2,738)
Net increase in loans (171,476) (140,154) (175,023) (111,643)
Net increase in debt securities (315,213) (174,485) (269,766) (148,567)
Net increase in statutory deposit reserve with

central banks (18,820) (24,116) (24,531) (24,119)
Net increase in precious metals (10,335) 4,832 (10,426) 4,816
Net decrease in due to central banks 440 (9,777) 440  (9,776)
Net decrease in special purpose borrowings (2,542) (8,896) (2,542) (8,896)
Cash outflows from operating activities (598,424) (412,608) (545,464) (349,714)

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from operating _
activities wva o (117,991) 21,615 (87,207) (5,560)




BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from disposal of fixed assets and

Note Bank of China Group

For the six month period ended 30 June

Bank of China Limited

2006 2005 2006 2005
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

other assets 625 1,651 73 690
Cash received from disposal of equity

investments 609 660 69 267
Dividends received 20 36 3,894 3,340
Cash inflows from investing activities 1,254 2,347 4,036 4,297
Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other

assets (2,190) (1,766) (4,730)  (1,556)
Cash paid for increase of equity investments (270) (1,506) (447) (49)
Cash outflows from investing activities (2,460) (3,272) (2,177)  (1,605)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows from investing
activities (1,206) (925) 1,859 2,692
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from issuance of ordinary shares 117,423 - 116,766 -
Cash received from issuance of subordinated

bonds - 33,930 - 33,930
Cash received from minority shareholders as

additional capital injection to subsidiaries 86 5 - -
Cash inflows from financing activities 117,509 33,935 116,766 33,930
Cash payments for interest on bonds issued (1,379) (15) (1,379) (15)
Dividend payments (3,266) (1,637) (1,375) -
Others (238) - (238) -
Cash outflows from financing activities (4,883) (1,652) (2,992) (15)
Net cash inflows from financing activities 112,626 32,283 113,774 33,915
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (1,068) (4,159) 1 (4,032)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents (7,639) 48,814 28,427 27,015
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 397,112 366,142 275,623 274,215

111.30;

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June Vi1, 389,473 414,956 304,050 301,230

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative and Chairman:

Xiao Gang

Deputy Chairman and President:
Li Lihui
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION
Basis of preparation

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, the Accounting System for Financial Institutions
and other relevant accounting regulations applicable to the Group. The interim financial statements ,
and should be read in conjunction with the 2005 annual financial statements.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — Interim Reporting issued by MOF and in
accordance with Disclosure — No.3 contents and reporting formats for listed companies (2003
revised) issued by China Securities Regulatory Commission.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statement are consistent with those used in the Group’s accounts for the year
ended 31 December 2005.

In February 2006, the MOF issued 39 new and revised Accounting Standards for Enterprises as part
of the PRC government’s initiative to converge the PRC GAAP with International Financial Reporting
Standards. These new standards, which are mandatory for all listed companies and optional for
others, are effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2007. The Group
plans to implement these standards, effective 1 January 2007 and has commenced an assessment
of their effect on the Group's existing accounting policies. While management’s assessment of the
new standards is not yet completed, principal differences with the Group’s existing accounting
policies include the following:

Except for the equity investments held for trading in overseas operations, the Group currently
accounts for equity investments at cost less impairment. Under the new Standards, equity
investments other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and investments held for trading will
be classified as available-for-sale securities. Management plans to classify and account for other
equity investments as available-for-sale according to the new Standards and those investments with
active market quotation will be recorded at fair value with gains or losses reported in shareholders’
equity.

The Group currently accounts for investment properties at cost less impairment. Under the new
Standards, these assets can either be measured at fair value or at amortised cost less impairment.
The method can not be changed once it is selected by management. Management plans to account
for investment properties using fair value.

The Group currently accounts for the early retirement benefits on a cash basis when paid. Under the
new Standards, a liability is required to be recorded at actuarially determined value of future early
retirement benefits payable to employees who have commenced early retirement, with changes in
the value of this liability reported in the income statement.

The Bank currently accounts for its investment in subsidiaries using equity accounting method in the

Bank’s financial statements. Under the new Standards, these investments are stated at cost in the
Bank’s financial statements.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Bank and its subsidiaries. The
significant subsidiaries of the Bank are presented in Section I, “Subsidiaries”.

The Bank fully consolidates its subsidiaries from the date on which the Bank obtains actual control of
the subsidiaries and the Bank de-consolidates them from the date that control ceases to exist. All
significant intercompany balances, intercompany transactions and intercompany unrealised profits or
losses are eliminated on consolidation. Minority interests represent the interests of minority
shareholders in the operating results and net assets of the Bank’s subsidiaries.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment Reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products and services
that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A
geographical segment is engaged in providing products and services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of segments operating
in other economic environments.

12
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

SUBSIDIARIES

As at 30 June 2006, the principal subsidiaries set out below are consolidated. All holdings are in the
ordinary share capital of the undertaking concerned.

Name

Directly controlled

BOC Hong Kong (Group) Limited

BOC International Holdings Limited

Bank of China Group Insurance
Company Limited

Bank of China Group Investment
Limited

Tai Fung Bank Limited

Indirectly controlled

BOC Hong Kong (Holdings)
Limited(1)

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited

Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited(2)

BOC Credit Card (International)
Limited

BOC Group Trustee Company
Limited (3)

Place of
incorporation /
establishment

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Macau

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Equity
held
(%)

100.00
100.00

100.00

100.00

50.31

65.87

65.87
65.87
46.43

65.87

76.31

Registered
capital/
Paid-in

capital
(in millions)

HKD34,806
HKD3,539

HKD1,269

HKD200

MOP1,000

HKD52,864

HKDA43,043
HKD600
HKD300

HKD480

HKD200

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited holds 70.49% share of this company.

Principal business

Holding company
Investment banking
Insurance services
Holding of industrial
and other

investments

Commercial banking

Holding company

Commercial banking
Commercial banking
Commercial banking
Credit card services

Provision of trustee
services

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited, Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited and BOC International Holdings Limited hold 54%, 6%, 6% and 34% shares of this company

respectively.

13



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Due from central banks

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Settlement account balances with the PBOC 88,305 89,124
Due from overseas central banks 25,763 25,787
Subtotal 114,068 114,911
RMB statutory deposit reserve with the PBOC 203,119 182,825
Foreign currency statutory deposit reserve with the

PBOC 13,549 13,595
Fiscal deposits with the PBOC 7,876 3,355
Statutory deposit reserve with overseas central banks 2,039 2,255
Subtotal 226,583 202,030
Total 340,651 316,941

Domestic Operations are required to place an RMB statutory deposit reserve, a foreign currency
statutory deposit reserve and a fiscal deposit with the PBOC. At 30 June 2006, the required reserve
ratio for customer deposits denominated in RMB was 7.5% (2005: 7.5%); the required reserve ratio
for customer deposits denominated in foreign currencies is 3% (2005: 3%). The fiscal deposit of
Domestic Operations is comprised of funds from government agencies, and proceeds of bonds
issued on behalf of the MOF. The foreign currency deposit reserve and fiscal deposits placed with
the PBOC are non-interest bearing.

14



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Trading and other debt securities at fair value through profit or loss

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Trading
Government bonds 27,761 19,116
Public sector and quasi government bonds 3,088 2,095
Financial institution bonds 23,600 30,599
Corporate bonds 3,794 4,179
Sub-total 58,243 55,989

Other debt securities at fair value through profit or loss
(designated at initial recognition)

Government bonds 9,267 10,704
Public sector and quasi government bonds 11,218 12,974
Financial institution bonds 26,667 19,979
Corporate bonds 5,207 7,625
Sub-total 52,359 51,282
Total 110,602 107,271

Included in other debt securities at fair value through profit or loss are debt securities with respect to
which the Group has established economic hedges using derivative instruments. Gains and losses
arising on the derivatives are intended to substantially offset the gains and losses arising on these
securities, which might have otherwise been classified as “available-for-sale” or “held-to-maturity”
securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into the following foreign exchange rate or interest rate related derivative financial
instruments for trading and risk management purposes:

The contractual/notional amount and fair values of derivative instruments held by the Group are set
out in the following table. The contractual/notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised on the balance sheet but do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The
derivative instruments become favourable assets or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of
fluctuations in market exchange rate, interest rates or equity/commodity prices relative to their terms.
The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from
time to time.

The fair values of derivatives that are not quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques used include discounted cash flows analysis and models. To the
extent practical, models use only observable data, such as interest rate and foreign exchange rates,
however areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty’s), volatilities and correlations require
management to make estimates. Changes in such observable data and assumptions about these
factors could affect reported fair value of financial instruments.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Contractual /
At 30 June 2006 notional amount Fair values

Assets

Foreign exchange derivatives

Liabilities

Currency forwards (1) 800,207 8,412 (5,040)
OTC currency options (2) 268,738 4,348 (708)
Sub-total 12,760 (5,748)
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 402,830 6,194 (7,333)
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 38,209 1,943 (3,980)
OTC interest rate options 149,528 146 (1,058)
Interest rate futures 17,552 21 (3)
Sub-total 8,304 (12,374)
Equity derivatives 11,223 166 (227)
Precious metals derivatives 10,686 310 (412)
Total derivative financial instruments
assets/(liabilities) (Note [11.9) 21,540 (18,761)
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Il NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3 Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
Contractual /
At 31 December 2005 notional amount Fair values
Assets Liabilities
Foreign exchange derivatives
Currency forwards (1) 563,397 6,991 (4,813)
OTC currency options (2) 196,012 3,781 (374)
Sub-total 10,772 (5,187)
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 361,332 3,132 (5,246)
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 39,427 1,735 (4,131)
OTC interest rate options 110,578 148 (215)
Interest rate futures 14,939 28 (34)
Sub-total 5,043 (9,626)
Equity derivatives 15,442 14 (7
Precious metals derivatives 21,008 979 (932)
Total derivative financial instruments
assets/(liabilities) (Note 111.9) 16,808 (15,752)
D Since 2005, the PBOC selected certain domestic banks, including the Bank, to conduct Foreign

Exchange Swap transactions. Under these agreements, the PBOC sold USD to the Bank in spot
transactions for RMB and agreed to buy back the USD after one year at agreed exchange rates,
which reflect the interest rate differentials between USD and RMB at the respective inception date of
the transactions.

(2) On 5 January 2005, the Bank entered into a Foreign Currency Option Agreement with Central SAFE
Investment Limited (“Huijin”) whereby the Bank acquired options to sell Huijin USD, totaling USD 18
billion, of no more than USD 1,500 million at the beginning of each calendar month during the year
ending 31 December 2007 at a fixed exchange rate of USD 1 to RMB 8.2769. The related option
premium amounted to RMB 4,469 million, is payable by the Bank to Huijin in 12 equal monthly
installments at the beginning of each calendar month during the year ending 31 December 2007.

17



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Due from and placements with banks and other financial institutions

30 June 2006

Due from banks

31 December 2005

Due from domestic banks 2,860 4,305
Due from overseas banks 4,114 8,133
Sub-total 6,974 12,438
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Placements with domestic banks 53,862 52,439
Placements with other domestic financial
institutions 50,605 26,302
Placements with overseas banks 189,217 253,904
Sub-total 293,684 332,645
Provision for impairment (544) (546)
Sub-total 293,140 332,099
Total 300,114 344,537

As at 30 June 2006, placements with banks and other financial institutions reported on non-accrual

basis were RMB 544 million (2005: RMB 546 million).

Placements with banks and other financial institutions include balances arising from reverse repo

agreements as follows:

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

Bills discounted under reverse repos 14,007 7,592
Bonds under reverse repos
Government bonds 47,109 41,857
Financial institution bonds 26,476 20,191
Total 87,592 69,640
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Debt securities
30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Debt securities available-for-sale (at fair value):

Government bonds 309,350 229,064
Public sector and quasi government bonds 247,158 106,840
Financial institution bonds 228,024 170,038
Corporate bonds 134,643 87,068
Sub-total 919,175 593,010
Debt securities held-to-maturity (at amortised cost):
Government bonds 224,065 231,156
Public sector and quasi government bonds 119,604 135,002
Financial institution bonds 192,294 203,724
Corporate bonds 33,163 37,577
Sub-total 569,126 607,459

Debt securities classified as loans and receivables (at
amortised cost):

China Orient Bond 160,000 160,000

PBOC Special Bills (1) 91,612 91,530

Special Purpose Treasury Bond 42,500 42,500
Short term bills and notes

- Public sector and quasi government bonds 15,260 6,096

- Financial institution bonds 67,676 49,993

- Corporate bonds 1,825 -

Certificate Treasury Bonds and others 10,647 11,888

389,520 362,007

Provision for impairment (152) (156)

Sub-total 389,368 361,851

Total (2) 1,877,669 1,562,320

On 22 June 2006, the PBOC issued special PBOC Bills amounting to RMB 82 million in exchange for
certain debt for equity swap loans, as previously approved by the State Council. The tenor of the bill
is 5 years, with an interest rate of 1.89% per annum. The bills cannot be circulated, transferred or
pledged as collateral, unless otherwise approved by PBOC.

As at 30 June 2006, debt securities of RMB 76,822 million (2005: RMB 49,658 million) were pledged
as collateral to third parties under agreement to repurchase. Refer to Note IX.2.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Loans and advances to customers

Analysed by security type

Loans and advances to customers are analysed by the form of security as follows:

Unsecured loans
Guaranteed loans

Collateralised and other secured loans

Total
Analysed by industry sector

Corporate Loans
Manufacturing
Commercial and servicing
Real estate
Energy, mining and agriculture
Transportation and logistics
Public services
Financial services
Construction
Others

Sub-total

Consumer loans
Residential mortgages
Vehicle loans
Credit card and others

Sub-total

Total

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

578,987 475,764
723,502 684,824
1,103,047 1,074,458
2,405,536 2,235,046

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

591,908 531,191
323,348 301,863
201,585 190,297
252,416 230,854
200,503 193,428
104,827 91,924
112,153 96,245
38,304 36,050
39,037 40,191
1,864,081 1,712,043
428,119 413,007
24,391 28,005
88,945 81,991
541,455 523,003
2,405,536 2,235,046
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Loans and advances to customers (Continued)
Accrual and non-accrual loans

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

Accrual loans 2,322,496 2,158,232
Non-accrual loans 83,040 76,814
Total 2,405,536 2,235,046

As at 30 June 2006, loans and advances to customers include bills pledged as collateral under
reverse repurchase agreements amounting to RMB 5,569 million (2005: RMB 11,968 million). Refer

to Note IX.2.

Equity investments
30 June 2006

31 December 2005

Investment in associates (1) 5,673 5,100
Other equity investments (2) 6,675 7,043

12,348 12,143
Less: Impairment provision (1,138) (1,243)

11,210 10,900
Equity investments held for trading (at fair value) (3) 3,565 4,493
Total 14,775 15,393
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Equity investments(Continued)

As at 30 June 2006, the principal associates of the Group are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Equity Paid-in
establishment held capital Principal business
(%) (in millions)
Construct and operate
Huaneng International Power electricity factory and
Development Corporation PRC 20 uUsD450 related projects
Securities underwriting,
BOC International (China) Investment advisory, and
Limited PRC 49 RMB1,500 brokerage services
CJM Insurance Brokers
Limited Hong Kong 33 HKD6 Insurance broker
Private inter-bank
Joint Electronic Teller message switching
Services Limited Hong Kong 19.96 HKD10 network and ATM services
Dongfeng Peugeot Citroen . .
Auto Finance Company Car loan and flnancmg
Ltd PRC 50 RMB500 services

Other equity investments mainly include: (i) Equity investments held for investment purpose by the
Bank’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong; and (ii) Certain historical non-banking equity investments held by
domestic operations. In December 2005, the Bank entered into a contract with China Orient and
transfered out most of its historical non-banking equity investments.

Equity investments held for trading principally comprise listed shares held by the Bank’s subsidiaries
in Hong Kong.

Due to central banks
30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Special foreign exchange deposits of government

agencies 30,080 28,873
Borrowings from central banks 33 520
Others 382 662
Total 30,495 30,055

Derivative financial instruments and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Derivative financial instruments liabilities (Note Ill. 3) 18,761 15,752
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Structured deposits 75,092 70,069
Short position in foreign currency debt securities 4,057 3,740
Short position in exchange fund bills 3,262 1,613
Sub-total 82,411 75,422
Total 101,172 91,174
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Deposits from customers

Short-term corporate deposits
Corporate demand deposits
Corporate time deposits less than one year

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

Sub-total

Short-term saving deposits
Demand deposits
Time deposits less than one year

Sub-total
Long-term corporate deposits
Long-term saving deposits

Securities and margin deposits

Total

The securities and margin deposits are analysed as follows:

Security deposits for bank acceptance

Security deposits for letters of credit and letters of
guarantee issued

Margin deposits for foreign exchange transactions

Others

Total

940,638 836,763
527,225 486,681
1,467,863 1,323,444
734,804 667,957
1,309,567 1,243,964
2,044,461 1,911,921
32,157 26,317
339,763 313,703
168,780 128,392
4,053,024 3,703,777
92,106 63,556
29,206 26,785
10,524 8,638
36,944 29,413
168,780 128,392

Special purpose borrowings

Export credit loans
Foreign government loans
Other subsidised loans

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

Total

15,826 17,147
18,076 18,414
15,720 16,603
49,622 52,164

Special purpose borrowings are long-term borrowings from foreign governments and/or banks in the
form of export credit loans, foreign government loans and other subsidised loans. These special
purpose loans are normally used to finance projects with special commercial purposes in PRC and

the Bank is obliged to repay these loans when they fall due.

As at 30 June 2006, the maturity of special purpose borrowings ranges from within 1 month to 37
years, with floating & fixed interest rates range from 0.2% to 9.2%, which are consistent with those

related to similar development loans from these entities.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1l NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12 Bonds issued
Issue date Maturity date Interest rate 30 June 2006 31 December 2005
Bonds issued (1)
1994 BOC US Dollar
Debt Securities 10 March 1994 15 March 2014 8.25% 177 179
Subordinated bonds issued (2)
2004 BOC RMB Debt Securities
- First Tranche 7 July 2004 20 July 2014 4.87% 14,070 14,070
- Second Tranche 22 October 2004 16 November 2014 4.94% 12,000 12,000
2005 BOC RMB Debt Securities
- First Tranche 18 February 2005 4 March 2015 4.83% 15,930 15,930
- Second Tranche
(fixed rate) 18 February 2005 4 March 2020 5.18% 9,000 9,000
- Second Tranche
(floating rate) 18 February 2005 4 March 2015 floating rate 9,000 9,000
Sub-total 60,000 60,000
Total 60,177 60,179
(8] The Bank and the bond holders are prohibited from redeeming or requesting an early redemption of

these bonds before the maturity dates.
(2) These RMB subordinated bonds are subordinated to all other claims on the assets of the Bank, except

for those of the shareholders. In the calculation of the Group’s capital adequacy ratio, these bonds
qualify for inclusion as supplementary capital.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Deferred income taxes assets/liabilities
Deferred income taxes are calculated on the timing differences under the liability method using the

relevant local tax rates applicable to the Group’s operation. The movement on the deferred income
tax account is as follows:

2006 2005
At 1 January 17,377 18,647
Charge in the income statement (Note [11.28) (226) (1,252)
Exchange differences 5 (18)
At 30 June /31December 17,156 17,377

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority. The table below includes the Group's deferred income tax assets and liabilities after
offsetting qualifying amounts:

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Deferred income tax assets 17,410 17,561
Deferred income tax liabilities (254) (184)
Total 17,156 17,377

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items:

30 June 2006 31 December 2005
Deferred income tax assets
Asset impairment provision 18,012 17,744
Fair value changes of trading and other fair value
through profit or loss securities and derivative

financial instruments 3,902 3,046
Other timing differences 602 696
Sub-total 22,516 21,486

Deferred income tax liabilities
Fair value changes of trading and other fair value
through profit or loss securities and derivative

financial instruments (4,319) (3,643)
Depreciation of fixed assets (445) (424)
Other timing differences(1) (596) (42)
Sub-total (5,360) (4,109)
Total 17,156 17,377

Mainly includes the deferred tax liabilities of RMB 545 million in relation to the supplementary tax on
overseas income generated from the profit of certain overseas subsidiaries owned by the Group for
the six month period ended 30 June 2006.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Deferred income taxes assets/liabilities (Continued)

The deferred tax charge in the profit and loss account comprises the following timing differences:

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

Asset impairment provision 265 1,467
Fair value change of debt securities and derivative

financial instruments 190 (2,338)
Other timing differences (681) (381)
Total (Note 111.28) (226) (1,252)

Other liabilities

Subsidiaries of the Bank undertake insurance bussiness. Included in other liabilities are insurance
liabilities as of 30 June 2006 and 31 December 2005 arising from insurance contracts analysed as

follows:
As at 30 June As at 31 December
2006 2005
Long term insurance contracts 11,093 8,383
General insurance contracts 2,111 2,079
Total insurance liabilities, net 13,204 10,462
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Share appreciation rights plan and share option schemes
Share Appreciation Rights Plan

On 22 November 2005, the Bank’s Board of Directors and shareholders approved and adopted a
Share Appreciation Rights Plan under which eligible participants including directors, supervisors,
management and other personnel designated by the Board, will be granted share appreciation rights,
up to 25% of which will be exercisable each year beginning on the third anniversary date from the
date of the grant. The share appreciation rights will be valid for seven years from the date of grant.
Eligible participants will be entitled to receive an amount equal to the difference, if any, between the
average closing market price of the Bank’s H shares in the ten days prior to the date of grant and the
average closing market price of the Bank’s H shares in the 12 months prior to the date of exercise as
adjusted for any change in the Bank’s equity. The plan provides cash-settled share-based payment
only and accordingly, no share will be issued under the share appreciation rights plan.

No share appreciation rights were granted during the six month period ended 30 June 2006 and no
rights were outstanding with respect to the Share Appreciation Rights Plan as of 30 June 2006 and
31 December 2005.

Share Option Scheme and Sharesave Plan

On 10 July 2002, the shareholders of BOCHK Holdings, approved and adopted two share option
schemes, namely, the Share Option Scheme and the Sharesave Plan.

No options were granted during the six month period ended 30 June 2006 and no options were
outstanding with respect to the Share Option Scheme or the Sharesave Plan as of 30 June 2006 and
31 December 2005.

BOCHK Holdings Pre-listing Share Option Scheme

On 5 July 2002, certain of the Bank's directors, senior management personnel and employees of the
Group were granted options by BOC Hong Kong (BVI) Limited ("BOCHK (BVI)"), the immediate
holding company of BOCHK Holdings, pursuant to a Pre-listing Share Option Scheme to purchase
from BOCHK (BVI) an aggregate of 31,132,600 previously issued and outstanding shares of BOCHK
Holdings for HKD8.50 per share. These options, with a ten-year term, vest ratably over four years
from 25 July 2002. No further offers to grant any options under the Pre-listing Share Option Scheme
will be made. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in
cash.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Share appreciation rights plan and share option schemes (continued)

BOCHK Holdings Pre-listing Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details of the movement of share options outstanding are as follows:

Directors Total
and key Other number of
Shares management employees Others (1) shares
At 1 January 2006 6,142,500 10,619,250 1,446,000 18,207,750
Transfer 239,000 (239,000) - -
Less: Share options exercised (1,994,050
during the period - ) - (1,994,050)
At 30 June 2006 6,381,500 8,386,200 1,446,000 16,213,700
At 1 January 2005 6,142,500 12,849,300 1,446,000 20,437,800
Less: Share options exercised (2,121,550
during the year - ) - (2,121,550)
Less: Share options lapsed
during the year - (108,500) - (108,500)
At 31 December 2005 6,142,500 10,619,250 1,446,000 18,207,750

These represent share options held by former directors or former employees of the BOCHK Holdings.

Regarding the share options exercised during the six month period ended 30 June 2006 and year
ended 31 December 2005, the weighted average share price of BOCHK Holdings' shares at the time
of exercise was HKD 15.88 (equivalent to RMB 16.42)and HKD 15.01 (equivalent to RMB 15.61).

Minority interests

At 1 January
Share of current period/year profit
Increase of shares in a subsidiary

Dividends paid to minority shareholders
Net change in fair value of available-for-

sales investments
Currency translation difference

At 30 June / 31 December

2006 2005
28,778 27,387
2,627 5,105
(52) 17
(1,891) (2,954)
(342) (110)
(308) (667)
28,812 28,778
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shares 2006 2005
As at 1 January 209,427 186,390
Issue of ordinary shares(1) 44,412 23,037
As at 30 June /31 December 253,839 209,427
Number of Shares 2006 2005
As at 1 January 209,427,362,357 186,390,352,497
Issue of ordinary shares(1) 44,411,799,652 23,037,009,860
As at 30 June/31 December 253,839,162,009 209,427,362,357

As at 30 June 2006, the Bank’s share capital is as follows:

30 June 2006

Domestic listed A shares(2) 177,818,910,740
Overseas listed H shares(2) 76,020,251,269
Total 253,839,162,009
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Share capital (Continued)

In accordance with to Yinjianhui[2006] No.49 "Approval on the Introduction of Strategic Investor —
National Council for Social Security Fund (“SSF”) into Bank of China Limited ”, on 13 March 2006, the
Bank issued 8,514,415,652 domestic state-owned shares of a par value of Rmb1.00 each to SSF at a
premium. SSF paid Rmb10 billion in cash including share premium of Rmb1.481 billion for
8,514,415,652 domestic state-owned shares issued by the Bank. The payment from SSF was verified
by PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company in its “Verification Report on the
Capital Contributions to Bank of China Limited” (PwC ZT YZ [2006] No. 14) issued on 13 March 2006.

In accordance with to Yinjianhui[2006] No.53 "Approval on the Bank of China Limited converted into a
limited company to issue shares and listed overseas”, and to Zhengjianhui[2006] No.8 "Approval on
the Bank of China Limited to issue Overseas Listed Foreign Shares”, on 1 June 2006 and 9 June
2006, the Bank issued 29,403,878,000 H shares at a price of HK$2.95 per share through a global
offering to Hong Kong and overseas investors (“Global Offering”). The payment from foreign investors
was verified by PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company in its “Verification Report
on Initial Public Offering of Overseas Listed Foreign Shares(H share) to Bank of China Limited” (PwC
ZT YZ [2006] No. 82) issued on 29 June 2006.

In accordance with to Yinjianhui[2006] No.135 "Approval on the Bank of China Limited to issue shares
and be listed domestically”, and to Zhengjianhui[2006] No.20 "Approval on the IPO of Bank of China
Limited”, on 29 June 2006, the Bank issued 6,493,506,000 A shares with at a price of RMB3.08 per
share, with share premium totaling RMB12.96 billion (net of share issuance costs of RMB549 million),
through the A share initial public offering to the domestic investors. The payment from domestic
investors was verified by PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company in its
“Verification Report on Initial Public Offering of A Share to Bank of China Limited” (PwC ZT YZ [2006]
No. 83) issued on 29 June 2006.

All A shares and H shares rank pari passu with same right and benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Capital reserve

During the six month period ended 30 June 2006, the Bank issued ordinary shares at share premiums

(refer to Note 11l 17(1)) as follows:

As at 1 January 2006
Premium (1)
Others (2)

As at 30 June 2006

Total amount of issue ordinary shares

Less: issue of ordinary shares

Share premium before issuance costs
Less: issuance costs (i)

Net share premium

Total amount of issue ordinary shares
Less: issue of ordinary shares

Share premium before issuance costs
Less: issuance costs

Net share premium

As at 30 June 2006

Group Bank
3,978 3,978
72,567 72,219
- (309)
76,545 75,888
As at 30 June 2006
Group Bank
Issued Issue
Issued share H dA
with NSSF share share Total
89,96 20,00 119,96
10,000 7 0 7 119,967
(29,40 (44,412
(8,514) 4) (6,494) ) (44,412)
60,56 13,50
1,486 3 6 75,555 75,555
(5) (2,435) (548) (2,988) (3,336)
58,12 12,95
1,481 8 8 72,567 72,219
2005
Group &
Bank
27,057
(23,037)
4,020
(56)
3,964

The issuance costs mainly include underwriting fees and services fees paid to professional advisors and
financial institutions. BOCI Asia Limited, the subsidiary of the Group was appointed as one of the
underwriters in the Bank’s global offerings and was paid underwriting commission at a rate which was
consistent with that of third parties. This underwriting commission was eliminated on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Capital reserve (continued)

Bank of China Group Insurance Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group disposed
of 51% of its equity interest in BOC Group Life Assurance Company Limted to BOCHK (Holding)
Limited, a 65.87% owned listed subsidiary of the Group for a consideration of HK$900 million in cash.
BOC HK (Holding) Limited had adopted merger accounting for this acquisition in its consolidated
financial statements and had therefore accounted for the amount paid in excess over the carrying
amount of the net assets acquired in the capital reserve. Such premium was eliminated on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Surplus reserves, General reserve and regulatory reserve, Undistributed profits and Reserve
for fair value changes of available-for-sale securities

Surplus reserves

Under relevant PRC Laws, the Bank is required to transfer 10% of its net profit, as determined unde
PRC GAAP, to a non-distributable Statutory surplus reserve. Appropriation to the Statutory surplus
reserve may be ceased when the balance of such reserves has reached 50% of the share capital
Subject to the approval of the shareholders, Statutory surplus reserve can be used for replenishing the
accumulated loss or increasing the Bank’s share capital. The Statutory surplus reserve amount used tc
increase the share capital is limited to a level where the balance of statutory surplus reserve after suct
capitalisation is not less than 25% of the share capital.

In addition, some overseas branches and subsidiaries are required to transfer certain percentage of its
net profit to the statutory surplus reserve as stipulated by local banking authorities.

The Board of Director on 29 August 2006 approved the Bank to appropriate RMB 1,964 million, or 10%
of its net profit of the six month period ended 30 June 2006.

General reserve and regulatory reserve

Pursuant to Cai Jin [2005] No. 49 “Measures on General Provison for Bad and Doubtful Debts for
Financial Institutions" issued by MOF on 17 May 2005, banks and certain other financial institutions
in the PRC, including the Bank, are required to maintain an adequate allowance for impairment
losses against their risk assets as defined. In addition to the specific allowance for impairment
losses, financial institutions are required to establish and maintain a general reserve within
Shareholders’ equity, through the appropriation of income to address unidentified potential
impairment losses. According to Cai Jin [2005] No.49, the general reserve should not be less than
1% of the aggregate amount of risk assets as defined by this policy. The Bank intends to achieve the
required reserve level within 3 years.

The Regulatory reserve mainly refers to the reserve amount set aside by Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited, subsidiary of the Group, for general banking risks, including future losses or other
unforeseeable risks.

The Board of Director on 29 August 2006 approved the Bank to appropriate RMB 4,291 million to the

general reserve. As at 30 June 2006, the amount set aside in the general reserve accounted for 0.25
% of the Bank’s risk assets.

Undistributed profits

Pursuant to the 2005 profit distributionplan approved by the shareholder at a post-adjournment
session of the Annual General Meeting of the Year 2006, the Bank distributed a cash dividend of
RMB1,375 million to its shareholders.

The Board of Directors does not propose to declare any dividend for the first half of 2006.
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Surplus reserves, General reserve and regulatory reserve, Undistributed profits and Reserve
for fair value changes of available-for-sale securities (continued)

Reserve for fair value changes of available-for-sale securities

Pursuant to Caikuaihan [2004] No. 61 “Response to Issues Concerning Accounting Treatment of
Debt Securities” issued by the MOF, available-for-sale securities are re-measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-
for-sale securities are recognised in equity. When available-for-sale securities are disposed of or
impaired, the related accumulated fair value adjustments are transferred to the income statement.

As at 30 June 2006, the unrealised losses on available-for-sale securities fair value changes are
arising from the increase in interest rates of RMB and USD. Management has assessed the
unrealized losses position of these securities and is of the view that the unrealised losses were
caused by the increase in interest rates and were not due to deteriations of credit rating of the
issuers.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Net interest income

For the six month period ended

Interest income

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

Loans and advances to customers 60,360 51,971
Debt securities 30,652 19,908
Due from and placements with banks
and other financial institutions 6,315 3,518
Due from central banks 2,450 2,069
Sub-total 99,777 77,466
Interest expense
Deposits from customers (38,887) (23,815)
Due to and placements from banks and other
financial institutions, and due to central
banks (4,122) (2,827)
Special purpose borrowings and bonds
issued (2,292) (2,166)
Sub-total (45,301) (28,808)
Net interest income 54,476 48,658

Net fee and commission income

For the six month period ended

Settlement and clearing fees

Agency commissions

Credit commitment fees and commissions
Bank card fees

Custodian and other fiduciary service fees
Others

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

1,794 1,287
2,201 1,235
1,438 1,308
1,365 1,049

248 235
1,120 801
8,166 5,915
(1,325) (1,397)

6,841 4,518
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Net trading (expense)/income
For the six month period ended

30 June 2006 30 June2005
Net gains from foreign exchange and
foreign exchange products (1) 1,302 3,322
Net losses from interest rate instruments(2) (1,495) (329)
Total (193) 2,993

Refer to Note VIl Assets and Liabilities by currency.

This included unrealised losses relating to the Group’s trading debt securities of RMB 1.755 billion.

Investment income
For the six month period ended

30 June 2006 30 June 2005

Equity investment
Net gains from investment in associates 339 48
Others (1) 1,248 77
Sub-total 1,587 125
Debt investment 94 24
Total 1,681 149

Other equity investment income included gains on disposal of trading portfolio equity investments
held by subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Other operating income, net

Other operating income
Insurance premium

Others(1)

Sub-total

Other operating expense
Insurance claim expense

Others

Sub-total

Other operating income, net

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

4,286 2,624
1,080 143
5,366 2,767
(3,423) (2,168)
(146) (238)
(3,569) (2,406)
1,797 361

Other operating income included gains on disposal of loans to third party held by subsidiaries of the
Group in Hong Kong amounting to RMB 660 million in March 2006.

Operating and administrative expenses

Staff costs

General operating and administrative expenses

Depreciation

Total

Staff costs are analysed as follows:

Salaries and welfare expenses
Defined contribution plans
Housing fund contributions
Other social insurance costs
Defined benefit plans

Others

Total

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

13,278 11,654
7,174 6,208
2,741 3,138

23,193 21,000

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

10,141 9,345
1,495 659
626 427
415 362
139 238
462 623
13,278 11,654

In the second half of 2005, the Group set up a defined contribution plan (“Annuity Plan”). Included in
the defined contribution plans is RMB 478 million contributed by the Bank to the Annuity Plan during

the six month period ended 30 June 2006.

Contributions to defined contribution plans for the period ended 30 June 2006 include the effect of
deductions of forfeited contributions of approximately RMB 12 million (2005: RMB 14 million). The
amounts of unutilized forfeited contributions available for further deduction are not material as at 30

June 2006 and 30 June 2005 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Business tax and surcharges

Business tax

City maintenance and construction tax
Education surcharges

Others

Total

Impairment losses

Provision for loan losses

(Write-back of )/Provision for impairment of
foreclosed assets

(Write-back of )/Provision for impairment of
other receivables

Write-back of impairment of fixed assets
and others

Total

38

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

2,687 2,406
176 158
96 83

28 23
2,987 2,670

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

5,062 4,718
(131) 96
(55) 206

- (444)
4,876 4,576




28

1)

2

BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Income tax

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006 30 June 2005
Current tax 12,136 10,998
Deferred tax (Note 111.13) 226 (138)
Total 12,362 10,860

The income tax expense on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the amount that would arise
using the basic tax rate of the Group, detailed as follows:

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006 30 June 2005
Profit before tax 34,013 29,578
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 33% 11,224 9,761
Effect of different tax rates in overseas operations (1,927) (1,479)
Supplementary tax on overseas income
paid in the PRC 1,688 865
Prior years tax expenses adjustment (1) (350) 2
Income not subject to tax (1,223) (614)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (2) 2,921 2,452
Others 29 (123)
Total 12,362 10,860

Prior years tax expenses adjustment included the related tax impact of RMB 284 million in relation to
the deductible transfer loss of BOC with the amount of RMB 860 million approved by MOF and SAT
in the first half of 2006. The loss arose from the disposal of certain equity investments in prior years.

Non-deductible expenses primarily include staff salary costs in excess of those permitted to be
deducted under the relevant PRC tax regulations. The Group is currently in the process of applying
for a revision to the statutory salary deductible threshold for its domestic employees from the PRC
State Administration of Taxation("SAT"). In accordance with Guoshuihan[2006] No.484, “Response
Letter on the Bank of China Limited salary deduction matter” issued by SAT on 19 May 2006, it was
agreed in principle that, after the overseas listing of the Bank, the salary costs that are deductible for
income tax purposes will be based on the performance of the Bank. The details related to the
implementation of such deductibility threshold have however not yet been determined and are
subject to further approval of relevant PRC government authorities and as a result, the effect of this
has not been reflected in tax expense. The Group will continue to follow up with the relevant PRC
government authorities regarding the detailed implementation plans of this approval in accordance
with the relevant regulations and guidance.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Earnings per share (Basic & Diluted)

Basic and diluted earnings per share have been computed by dividing the profit for the period by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares issued.

The Bank has no dilutive potential ordinary shares.

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006 30 June 2005
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Bank 19,024 16,434
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue (millions) 218,002 186,390
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Renminbi per
share) 0.09 0.09
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Notes to the cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances, the original maturities of which are less
than three months:

As at 30 June As at 30 June

2006 2005

Cash 29,811 29,486

Balances with central banks 113,039 130,427
Due from and placement with banks and

other financial institutions 215,713 230,894

Short term bills and notes 30,910 24,149

Total 389,473 414,956

Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities
For the six month period ended

30 June 2006 30 June 2005
Net profit 19,024 16,434
Plus/(minus):
Minority interest 2,627 2,284
Asset impairment losses 4,876 4,576
Depreciation of fixed assets 2,741 3,138
Amortisation of intangible assets and long-term
deferred expenses 341 222
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets and other
assets (168) (671)
Equity investments income (1,587) (125)
Interest expenses arising from bonds issued 1,384 1,178
Increase in operating receivables (495,834) (288,793)
Increase in operating payables 348,605 283,372
Net cash inflows from operating activities (117,991) 21,615
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v NOTES TO THE BANK’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Debt securities
As at As at

30 June 2006 31 December 2005
Debt Securities available-for-sale
(at fair value)

Government bonds 296,280 219,566
Public sector and quasi government
bonds 242,068 102,200
Financial institution bonds 193,816 146,373
Corporate bonds 86,487 70,798
Sub-total 818,651 538,937

Debt Securities available-for-sale
(at fair value)

Government bonds 221,541 227,718
Public sector and quasi government
bonds 91,308 103,074
Financial institution bonds 72,118 74,791
Corporate bonds 8,101 9,560
Sub-total 393,068 415,143

Debt securities classified as loans and receivables
(at amortised cost)

China Orient Bond 160,000 160,000

PBOC Special Bills 91,612 91,530

Special Purpose Treasury Bond 42,500 42,500

Short term bills and notes

- Public sector and quasi government 15,260 5,992

- Financial institution 37,070 32,156

- Corporate 1,825 -
Certificate Treasury Bonds and

others 10,647 11,888

358,914 344,066

Provision for impairment (152) (156)

Sub-total 358,762 343,910

Total 1,570,481 1,297,990

42



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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Loans and advances to customers
As at
30 June 2006

As at
31 December 2005

Unsecured loans 511,086 401,756
Guaranteed loans 647,205 617,332
Collateralised and other secured loans 883,910 849,017
Total 2,042,201 1,868,105
Equity investments

As at As at

30 June 2006

31 December 2005

Investment in subsidiaries 68,732 66,294
Investment in associates 33 63
Others 847 796
69,612 67,153
Less: Impairment provision (173) (202)
69,439 66,951
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NOTES TO THE BANK'’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Deposits from customers

Short-term corporate deposits
Corporate demand deposits
Corporate time deposits less than one year

As at

30 June 2006

As at
31 December 2005

Sub-total

Short-term saving deposits
Demand deposits
Time deposits less than one year

Sub-total
Long-term corporate deposits
Long-term saving deposits

Securities and margin deposits

Total

The securities and margin deposits are analysed as follows:

Security deposits for bank acceptance
Security deposits for letters of credit and
letters of guarantee issued
Margin deposits for foreign exchange transactions
Others

Total

848,940 747,059
429,253 380,105
1,278,193 1,127,164
539,321 492,876
1,013,449 937,430
1,552,770 1,430,306
31,095 24,395
332,287 305,239
162,628 122,083
3,356,973 3,009,187
92,068 63,522
28,988 26,469
5,767 3,718
35,805 28,374
162,628 122,083
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NOTES TO THE BANK'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Net interest income

Interest income
Loans and advances to customers
Debt securities

Due from and placements with banks and other

financial institutions
Due from central banks

Sub-total

Interest expense
Deposits from customers

Due to and placements from banks and other financial

institutions, due to central banks

Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued

Sub-total

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income

Settlement and clearing fees

Agency commissions

Credit commitment fees and commissions
Bank card fees

Custodian and other fiduciary service fees
Others

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expenses

Net fee and commission income
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For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

50,141 45,875
23,738 15,804

3,457 2,327

2,189 2,032
79,525 66,038
(26,815) (19,427)
(4,090) (2,811)
(2,292) (2,163)
(33,197) (24,401)
46,328 41,637

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

1,374 964
877 385
1,148 996
962 636
113 110
748 611
5,222 3,702
(460) (673)
4,762 3,029
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE BANK'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Net trading (expense)/income

Net gains from foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products
Net losses from interest rate instruments

Total

Investment income

Equity investment
Share of result of subsidiaries
Net gains from investments in associates
Others

Sub-total

Debt investment

Total

Operating and administrative expenses

Staff costs
General operating and administrative expenses
Depreciation

Total

Staff costs are analysed as follows:

Salaries and welfare expenses
Defined contribution plans
Housing fund contributions
Other Social insurance costs
Defined benefit plans

Others

Total
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For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

343 2,655
(625) (405)
(282) 2,250

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

7,521 4,747
5 3

21 85
7,547 4,835
105 5
7,652 4,840

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

11,087 9,602
6,308 5,394
2,320 2,748

19,715 17,744

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

8,159 7,546
1,334 638
611 427
411 339
139 238
433 414
11,087 9,602
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE BANK'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment losses

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

Provision for loan losses 5,849 6,092
(Write-back of)/Provision for impairment of foreclosed

assets (129) 96
(Write-back of)/Provision for impairment of other

receivables (32) 211
Write-back of impairment of fixed assets and others (8) (283)
Total 5,680 6,116
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE BANK'’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Notes to the cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents comprises the following balances, the original maturities of which are

less than three months:
As at 30 June 2006

As at 30 June 2005

Cash 26,684 26,242
Balances with central banks 89,018 103,122
Due from and placement with banks and other

financial institutions 160,662 150,374
Short term bills and notes 27,686 21,492
Total 304,050 301,230

Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities

For the six month period ended

30 June 2006

30 June 2005

Net profit 19,643 16,434
Plus/(minus):
Asset impairment losses 5,680 6,116
Depreciation of fixed assets 2,320 2,748
Amortisation of intangible assets and long term
deferred expenses 340 221
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets and other
assets 115 (146)
Equity investments income (7,547) (4,835)
Interest expenses arising from bonds issued 1,384 1,178
Increase in operating receivables (433,206) (277,343)
Increase in operating payables 324,064 250,067
Net cash outflows from operating activities (87,207) (5,560)
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(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control. The Group is
controlled by the State Council of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) through Huijin.

Transactions with Huijin

Foreign Currency Option Agreement

On 5 January 2005, the Bank entered into a Foreign Currency Option Agreement with Huijin whereby
the Bank has acquired the option to sell to Huijin USD 18 billion, of no more than USD1,500 million
at the beginning of each calendar month during the year ending 31 December 2007 at the exchange
rate of USD1 to RMB 8.2769. The related option premium amounted to RMB 4,469 million, which is
payable by the Bank to Huijin in 12 equal monthly instalments at the beginning of each calendar
month during the year ending 31 December 2007.

Deposit
2006 2005
At 1 January 38,869 -
Deposits received during the period/year 156,679 42,972
Deposits repaid and other changes during the
period/year (173,709) (4,103)
At 30 June / 31 December 21,839 38,869

The Deposits from Huijin are under commercial terms and at market rates.
Transactions with other companies controlled by Huijin

Huijin also has controlling equity interests in certain other financial institutions in the PRC. The
Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal course of its business under
commercial terms and at market rates. These include trading assets, investment securities and
money market transactions. The Group has no material balance with these entities as of 30 June,
2006.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Transactions with shareholders holding 5% or more ordinary shares

As at 30 June 2006, in addition to Huijin, the shareholder holding 5% or more ordinary shares of the
Bank is RBS China Inverstments S.a.rl. The Bank had no significant transactions with this
shareholder between 1 January 2006 and 30 June 2006 and had no material balances with this
shareholder as of 30 June 2006.

Transactions with associates

In the ordinary course of business, the Group enters into business transactions with its
associates(Note 111.7), including lending, deposit taking, debt securities purchasing and other normal
banking businesses. The transactions with these associates are conducted on the same pricing
principles as for the transactions with any independent third party. The loans and deposits balances
with associates and outstanding debt securities issued by associates at the period end are stated
below. The related interest income and expense are not considered significant.

Loans
2006 2005
At 1 January 7,240 1,246
Loans granted during the period/year 18 8,128
Loan repayments during the period/year (6,095) (989)
Loans written off and other changes during the
period/year - (1,145)
At 30 June/31 December 1,163 7,240
Provisions for loan losses (190) (119)
Deposits
2006 2005
At 1 January 856 1,227
Deposits received during the period/year 3,250 3,879
Deposits repaid and other changes during the
period/year (1,959) (4,250)
At 30 June/31 December 2,147 856
Debt securities issued by associates
2006 2005
At 1 January 188 -
Purchases during the period/year - 1,307
Redemption sales during the period/year (188) (1,123)
Fair value changes and others - 4
At 30 June/31 December - 188
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SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group's businesses operate in three principal geographical areas: the Chinese Mainland, Hong
Kong and Macau, and other overseas locations. Significant other overseas locations include New

York, London, Singapore and Tokyo.

The geographical analysis of revenues, segment results, segment assets, segment liabilities and
capital expenditure reflects the process through which the Group's operating activities are managed.
In accordance with the Group's organisational structure and its internal financial reporting process,
the Group has determined that geographical segments should be presented as its primary segment.

Profit and loss accounts, assets and liabilities, capital expenditure, depreciation and amortization and
credit commitments have generally been based on the country in which the branch or subsidiary is

located.
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
For the six month period ended 30 June 2006

Interest income
Interest expense

Hong Kong & Macau

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income
Net trading (expense)/income
Investment (losses)/ gains
Other operating income, net

Operating and administrative expenses
Business tax and surcharges

Operating profit

Non-operating income, net

Profit before impairment losses

Impairment (losses)/ write-back

Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit after tax

Minority interest

Net profit

Chinese  BOC Hong Kong Other overseas
Mainland Group Others Sub-total operations Elimination Total
76,446 19,997 2,276 22,273 3,426 (2,368) 99,777
(31,368) (12,235) (1,489) (13,724) (2,581) 2,372 (45,301)
45,078 7,762 787 8,549 845 4 54,476
4,225 1,724 989 2,713 388 (485) 6,841
(207) 677 (536) 141 (227) - (193)
124 7 1,634 1,641 (6) (78) 1,681
129 423 1,271 1,694 3) (23) 1,797
49,449 10,593 4,145 14,738 997 (582) 64,602
(18,920) (2,973) (645) (3,618) (687) 32 (23,193)
(2,945) (29) (20) (29) (13) - (2,987)
27,584 7,601 3,490 11,091 297 (550) 38,422
172 201 57 258 37 - 467
27,756 7,802 3,547 11,349 334 (550) 38,889
(5,932) 717 218 935 121 - (4,876)
21,824 8,519 3,765 12,284 455 (550) 34,013
(10,751) (1,430) (242) (1,672) (142) 203 (12,362)
11,073 7,089 3,523 10,612 313 (347) 21,651
(4) (2,519) (104) (2,623) - - (2,627)
11,069 4,570 3,419 7,989 313 (347) 19,024
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Hong Kong & Macau

Chinese  BOC Hong Kong

Other overseas

As at 30 June 2006 Mainland Group Others Sub-total operations Elimination Total
Segment assets 4,268,205 875,352 118,363 993,715 199,169 (234,156) 5,226,933
Segment liabilities (3,917,105) (797,504) (99,538) (897,042) (191,882) 165,549 (4,840,480)
Credit commitments 827,712 173,457 18,334 191,791 57,397 (52,704) 1,024,196
For the six month period ended 30 June 2006

Other segment items:

Capital expenditure 1,800 296 15 311 79 - 2,190
Depreciation and amortisation 2,618 317 92 409 55 - 3,082
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
For the six month period ended 30 June 2005
Hong Kong & Macau

Chinese BOC Hong Kong

Other overseas

Mainland Group Others Sub-total operations Elimination Total

Interest income 63,883 10,976 1,431 12,407 2,429 (1,253) 77,466
Interest expense (23,449) (4,477) (550) (5,027) (1,585) 1,253 (28,808)
Net interest income 40,434 6,499 881 7,380 844 - 48,658
Net fee and commission income 2,529 1,497 99 1,596 393 - 4,518
Net trading income/(expense) 2,241 520 247 767 (15) - 2,993
Investment (losses)/ gains 20 33 27 60 69 - 149
Other operating income, net 70 - 289 289 2 - 361

45,294 8,549 1,543 10,092 1,293 - 56,679
Operating and administrative expenses (17,046) (2,778) (580) (3,358) (596) - (21,000)
Business tax and surcharges (2,636) (15) (9) (24) (10) - (2,670)
Operating profit 25,612 5,756 954 6,710 687 - 33,009
Non-operating income, net 723 251 116 367 55 - 1,145
Profit before impairment losses 26,335 6,007 1,070 7,077 742 - 34,154
Impairment (losses)/ write-back (6,591) 1,383 422 1,805 210 - (4,576)
Profit before tax 19,744 7,390 1,492 8,882 952 - 29,578
Income tax (9,472) (1,223) (5) (1,228) (160) - (10,860)
Profit after tax 10,272 6,167 1,487 7,654 792 - 18,718
Minority interest 9 (2,174) (119) (2,293) - - (2,284)
Net profit 10,281 3,993 1,368 5,361 792 - 16,434
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Hong Kong & Macau

Chinese  BOC Hong Kong

Other overseas

As at 31 December 2005 Mainland Group Others Sub-total operations Elimination Total
Segment assets 3,803,989 845,959 120,266 966,225 186,982 (214,390) 4,742,806
Segment liabilities (3,584,086) (768,215) (102,831)  (871,046) (178,853) 153,799 (4,480,186)
Credit commitments 699,066 168,203 14,131 182,334 52,434 (38,072) 895,762
For the six month period ended 30 June 2005

Other segment items:

Capital expenditure 1,485 176 34 210 71 - 1,766
Depreciation and amortisation 2,947 305 53 358 55 - 3,360
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Business segments are presented as the Group's secondary segment. The Group provides services
through four main business segments: commercial banking, investment banking, insurance and other
operations. Segment revenue, results, assets, liabilities and capital expenditure presented in
business segments include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis.

Corporate banking - providing services to corporate customers including current accounts, deposits,
overdrafts, lending, trade related products and other credit facilities, foreign currency and derivative
products.

Personal banking - providing services to retail customers including current accounts, savings,
deposits, investment savings products, custody, credit and debit cards, consumer loans and
mortgages.

Treasury operations - consisting of foreign exchange transactions, customer-based interest rate and
foreign exchange derivative transactions, money market transactions, proprietary trading and asset-
liability management. The results of this segment include the inter-segment funding income and
expenses and foreign currency translation gains and losses resulting from variations in the growth of
interest bearing assets and liabilities and foreign currency translation gains and losses.

Investment banking - consisting of debt and equity underwriting, asset management services,
brokerage services and loan syndications.

Insurance-underwriting of general and life insurance business and insurance agency services.

Other operations of the Group comprize investment holding and other miscellaneous activities, none
of which constitutes a separately reportable segment or can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the six month period ended 30 June 2006 and as at 30 June 2006

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income
Net trading income/(expense)
Investment (losses)/income
Other operating income, net

Operating and administrative expenses
Business tax and surcharges
Operating profit

Non-operating income, net
Profit before impairment losses
Impairment (losses)/ write-back
Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit after tax

Minority interests

Net profit

Segment assets
Capital expenditure

Corporate Personal  Treasury Investment
banking banking Jperations banking Insurance Others Elimination Total

45,329 42,491 38,551 289 269 191 (27,343) 99,777
(18,727) (25,610) (27,175) (270) (29) (847) 27,347 (45,301)
26,602 16,881 11,376 19 250 (656) 4 54,476
3,141 3,165 357 938 (277) 9 (492) 6,841
1,814 977 (1,910) (640) (428) @) 1 (193)

- - 85 1,026 217 431 (78) 1,681

74 5 3) - 686 1,103 (68) 1,797
31,631 21,028 9,905 1,343 448 880 (633) 64,602
(8,588) (11,677) (2,876) (224) (103) (406) 681 (23,193)
(1,478) (459) (1,023) (2) 3) (22) - (2,987)
21,565 8,892 6,006 1,117 342 452 48 38,422
56 127 45 (2) 40 799 (598) 467

21,621 9,019 6,051 1,115 382 1,251 (550) 38,889
(4,202) (720) 1 (5) 6 44 - (4,876)
17,419 8,299 6,052 1,110 388 1,295 (550) 34,013
(12,362)

21,651
(2,627)

19,024

1,813,042 637,280 2,692,140 18,079 17,153 84,279 (35,040) 5,226,933
416 782 31 6 2 953 - 2,190
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Segment information (continued)

For the six month period ended 30 June 2005 and as at 31 December 2005

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income
Net trading income/(expense)
Investment (losses)/income
Other operating income, net

Operating and administrative expenses

Business tax and surcharges
Operating profit

Non-operating income, net
Profit before impairment losses
Impairment (losses)/ write-back
Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit after tax

Minority interests

Net profit

Segment assets
Capital expenditure

Corporate Personal Treasury Investment

banking banking Operations banking Insurance Others Elimination Total
39,592 31,510 24,679 243 183 128 (18,869) 77,466
(13,848) (15,489) (17,623) (180) - (537) 18,869 (28,808)
25,744 16,021 7,056 63 183 (409) - 48,658
2,522 1,802 215 171 (254) 62 - 4,518
1,584 755 507 203 (48) (8) - 2,993

- 1 24 (39) 17 146 - 149

29 - - - 331 43 (42) 361
29,879 18,579 7,802 398 229 (166) (42) 56,679
(7,876) (10,148) (2,680) (195) (88) (301) 288 (21,000)
(1,455) (436) (760) (2) (1) (16) - (2,670)
20,548 7,995 4,362 201 140 (483) 246 33,009
107 215 71 1 (4) 1,001 (246) 1,145
20,655 8,210 4,433 202 136 518 - 34,154
(5,471) 819 19 1 (2) 58 - (4,576)
15,184 9,029 4,452 203 134 576 - 29,578
(10,860)

18,718
(2,284)

16,434

1,658,718 603,891 2,399,377 15,159 12,398 77,644 (24,381) 4,742,806
342 665 32 4 25 698 - 1,766
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Segment information (continued)

With effect from 1 January 2006, the internal funding transfer pricing mechanism of the Bank was revised. The new pricing mechanism is based on the external
market deposit and lending rates, adjusted for pre-determined margins with reference to the different products and respective maturities. Previously, blended
mid prices between the Bank’s average cost of funding and average yield on interest bearing assets were adopted, without taking into consideration the variety
of products and respective maturities. The reason for the change is primarily to better reflect the performance of the individual segments as part of the Bank’s
efforts to enhance its assets and liabilities management capability.

The effect of the change in basis of pricing between business segments for the period ended 30 June 2005 is summarized below:

For the six month period ended 30 June 2005

Corporate Personal Treasury Investment
banking banking Operations banking Insurance Others Elimination Total
Net Interest expense as reported previously 25,253 17,818 5,750 63 183 (409) - 48,658
Effect of change-increase/(decrease) 491 (1,797) 1,306 - - - - -
Net Interest expense as revised 25,744 16,021 7,056 63 183 (409) - 48,658
Operating profits as reported previously 20,057 9,792 3,056 201 140 (483) 246 33,009
Effect of change-increase/(decrease) 491 (1,797) 1,306 - - - - -
Operating profits as revised 20,548 7,995 4,362 201 140 (483) 246 33,009
Porfit before impairment losses as reported
previously 20,164 10,007 3,127 202 136 518 - 34,154
Effect of change-increase/(decrease) 491 (1,797) 1,306 - - - - -
Porfit before impairment losses as revised 20,655 8,210 4,433 202 136 518 - 34,154
Profit before income tax as reported previouly 14,693 10,826 3,146 203 134 576 - 29,578
Effect of change-increase/(decrease) 491 (1,797) 1,306 - - - - -
Profit before income tax as revised 15,184 9,029 4,452 203 134 576 - 29,578
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CURRENCY

The Group’s net foreign currency positions as at 30 June 2006 and 31 December 2005 are analysed
below:

Foreign Currency Position

As at30 June 2006 As at 31 December 2005
In RMB In USD In RMB In USD
billion billion billion billion
equivalent equivalent equivalent equivalent
t on-balance sheet foreign currency position of
the Group 601 75 485 60
Less:
t off-balance sheet foreign currency position of
the Group (232) (29) (171) (21)
t foreign currency position of the Group 369 46 314 39
Less:
reign currency denominated net investments in
foreign operations* (103) (13) (105) (13)
Net position 266 33 209 26

The foreign currency denominated net investments in foreign operations represents the net
assets/liabilities of overseas subsidiaries, branches or associated undertakings, the functional
currencies of which are currencies other than RMB. The results and financial position of these
operations are translated into RMB, for reporting purposes with all exchange differences arising from
the translation recognised under the “Currency Translation Difference” as a separate component of
equity. These exchange differences therefore do not impact the consolidated profit or loss of the
Group.

The Group manages its sources and uses of foreign currencies to minimize potential currency
mismatches. However, the Group's ability to manage its foreign currency position in relation to the
RMB is limited as RMB is not a freely convertible currency. According to the current applicable
foreign currency policies of the PRC government, the conversion of foreign currency is subject to
application and approval by the relevant PRC government authorities. The Bank has significant
foreign currency positions, largely as a result of the foreign currency capital contributions from certain
shareholders, the foreign currency surplus arising from the Bank’s foreign currency operations and
related accumulated profits and losses.

In 2005, the Bank entered into a foreign currency option agreement with Huijin having a notional
amount of USD18 billion to economically hedge a portion of its net on-balance sheet foreign currency
position.

During the six month period ended 30 June 2006, the Bank executed certain foreign exchange
transactions to reduce its net foreign currency position by USD3.3 billion.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date in August 2006, the Bank further effected certain foreign
exchange transactions, further reducing its net foreign currency position by USD14.2 billion.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CURRENCY (CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the potential impact to the income statement for a 1 per cent fluctuation

in the foreign currency exchange rate against RMB based on the net position of the Group excluding
the net structural position in foreign operations as set forth above:

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Profit / (loss) Profit / (loss)
Rmb million Rmb million
1% appreciation/depreciation in foreign currency +/- 2,660 +/- 2,090

exchange rates against RMB

The above sensitivity analysis in response to potential movements in the foreign currency exchange
rates against RMB is for illustrative purposes and only represents simple scenarios applied to the
Bank’s net outstanding foreign currency position as at the respective date. Such analysis does not
taken into account any further actions that may have been or could be taken by management after
the balance sheet date, subject to the approval by the PRC government, to mitigate the effect of
exchange differences, nor for any consequential changes in the foreign currency positions.

Set forth below are assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items by currency. Short-term financial
assets include cash, precious metals, due from central banks and government certificates of
indebtedness for bank notes issued. Debt securities also include trading and other debt securities at
fair value through profit or loss. Other assets primarily include interest receivable, fixed assets and
deferred tax assets. Short-term financial liabilities include due to central banks and bank notes in
circulation. Other liabilities primarily include interest payable. Option products are included in net off-
balance sheet position using notional amounts, including the Foreign Currency Option Agreement
with Huijin whereby the Bank has acquired the option to sell to Huijin USD 18 billion. The intent of the
transaction was to create an effective economic hedge against a portion of the USD position arising
from the USD capital contribution made by Huijin.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CURRENCY (Continued)

As at 30 June 2006

Assets

Short-term financial assets

Derivative financial instruments assets

Due from and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Debt securities

Loans and advances to customers

Less: Provision for loan losses

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Short-term financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Due to and placements from banks and other
financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net on-balance sheet position
Net off-balance sheet position
Credit commitments

RMB usD HKD EURO JPY GBP Other Total
315,390 17,258 43,422 1,943 25,201 445 43,546 447,205

- 14,656 5,632 443 318 233 258 21,540

102,399 76,394 75,885 15,983 3,291 5,310 20,852 300,114
914,491 767,457 177,587 51,526 20,552 6,649 50,009 1,988,271
1,643,896 362,362 315,887 38,557 25,062 4,419 15,353 2,405,536
(72,036) (11,457) (3,456) (531) (367) (40) (241) (88,128)
89,134 20,056 33,558 1,377 1,829 722 5,719 152,395
2,993,274 1,246,726 648,515 109,298 75,886 17,738 135,496 5,226,933
7 25,367 39,182 - - - 2,090 66,646

- 77,290 22,176 1,031 143 263 269 101,172

177,634 120,657 8,354 5,346 9,708 546 36,104 358,349
2,876,575 444,430 529,336 41,220 40,386 25,453 95,624 4,053,024
60,000 26,378 - 16,045 4,440 940 1,996 109,799
93,410 21,889 31,429 1,462 1,082 729 1,489 151,490
3,207,626 716,011 630,477 65,104 55,759 27,931 137,572 4,840,480
(214,352) 530,715 18,038 44,194 20,127 (10,193) (2,076) 386,453
235,530  (264,170) 80,413 (49,256) (31,475) 17,014 15,520 3,576
478,011 325,303 141,771 46,965 19,286 4,101 8,759 1,024,196
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(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CURRENCY (Continued)

As at 31 December 2005

Assets

Short-term financial assets

Derivative financial instruments assets

Due from and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Debt securities

Loans and advances to customers
Less: Provision for loan losses
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Short-term financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Due to and placements from banks and other
financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net on-balance sheet position
Net off-balance sheet position
Credit commitments

RMB usD HKD EURO JPY GBP Other Total
290,571 17,463 50,536 2,244 17,105 421 33,145 411,485

- 11,493 4,552 149 548 57 9 16,808

72,731 133,179 96,420 13,322 616 5,691 22,578 344,537
834,407 562,128 147,966 50,044 23,072 7,048 44,926 1,669,591
1,477,859 358,289 319,212 34,942 25,418 4,228 15,098 2,235,046
(66,477) (11,779) (3,485) (510) (552) (36) (314) (83,153)
90,733 15,988 34,632 1,172 1,755 727 3,485 148,492
2,699,824 1,086,761 649,833 101,363 67,962 18,136 118,927 4,742,806
1,084 24,162 38,595 29 - 32 1,884 65,786

- 70,625 19,551 418 384 117 79 91,174

209,624 76,205 13,707 4,400 11,538 514 29,245 345,233
2,531,878 440,252 529,827 46,854 37,565 26,634 90,767 3,703,777
60,000 28,549 - 16,251 4,665 1,092 1,786 112,343
119,401 17,220 20,679 1,525 1,138 527 1,383 161,873
2,921,987 657,013 622,359 69,477 55,290 28,916 125,144 4,480,186
(222,163) 429,748 27,474 31,886 12,672 (10,780) (6,217) 262,620
173,666  (229,776) 73,943 (29,586) (16,344) 15,331 15,197 2,431
394,938 295,280 137,425 30,874 21,185 2,049 14,011 895,762
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY MATURITY

Maturity grouping analysis of assets and liabilities items is as follows. Short-term financial assets include cash, precious metals, due from central banks and
government certificates of indebtedness for bank notes issued. Debt securities also include trading and other debt securities at fair value through profit or
loss. Other assets primarily include interest receivable, fixed assets and deferred tax assets. Short-term financial liabilities include due to central banks and
bank notes in circulation. Other liabilities primarily include interest payable.

As at 30 June 2006

Assets

Short-term financial assets

Derivative financial instruments assets

Due from and placements with banks and
other financial institutions

Debt securities

Loans and advances to customers

Less: Provision for loan losses

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Short-term financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

Due to and placements from banks and other
financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

Overdue  Ondemand Upto 1 month 1-3 months  3-12 months 1- 5years Over 5 years Total
- 219,593 226,583 1,029 - - - 447,205

- 5,635 1,761 736 3,420 5,830 4,158 21,540

- 7,014 201,710 65,568 25,668 154 - 300,114

- - 60,840 172,718 364,243 826,955 563,515 1,988,271
82,183 31,539 126,619 275,430 836,140 557,221 496,404 2,405,536
(42,189) (143) (3,565) (5,508) (15,214) (13,191) (8,318) (88,128)
306 8,485 12,282 5,635 16,665 25,223 83,799 152,395
40,300 272,123 626,230 515,608 1,230,922 1,402,192 1,139,558 5,226,933
- 44,056 6 5,036 17,548 - - 66,646

- 2,015 11,363 11,439 38,180 25,798 12,377 101,172

- 172,365 97,796 36,213 32,679 19,296 - 358,349

- 1,722,814 595,693 396,276 1,020,310 316,578 1,353 4,053,024

- - 874 736 5,368 20,088 82,733 109,799

438 52,312 27,872 4,254 51,209 13,740 1,665 151,490
438 1,993,562 733,604 453,954 1,165,294 395,500 98,128 4,840,480
39,862  (1,721,439) (107,374) 61,654 65,628 1,006,692 1,041,430 386,453
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FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY MATURITY (Continued)

As at 31 December 2005

Assets

Short-term financial assets

Derivative financial instruments assets

Due from and placements with banks and
other financial institutions

Debt securities

Loans and advances to customers

Less: Provision for loan losses

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Short-term financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

Due to and placements from banks and other
financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Special purpose borrowings and bonds issued

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

Overdue Ondemand Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5years Over5years Total
- 208,416 202,030 1,018 21 - - 411,485

- 3,890 2,042 754 1,583 5,347 3,192 16,808

- 12,438 220,629 92,649 18,707 114 - 344,537

- - 69,577 107,968 315,812 813,060 363,174 1,669,591
77,846 28,662 109,430 224,756 814,571 518,316 461,465 2,235,046
(37,696) (299) (1,881) (4,326) (19,121) (12,058) (7,772) (83,153)
303 4,622 12,727 6,936 10,367 27,240 86,297 148,492
40,453 257,729 614,554 429,755 1,141,940 1,352,019 906,356 4,742,806
- 65,237 529 20 - - - 65,786

- 1,805 9,124 9,300 22,995 38,091 9,859 91,174

- 137,560 79,351 47,365 48,126 32,831 - 345,233

- 1,615,637 521,517 441,467 843,029 279,819 2,308 3,703,777

- - 1,046 816 5,361 20,840 84,280 112,343

- 74,437 14,974 5,610 51,950 12,849 2,053 161,873

- 1,894,676 626,541 504,578 971,461 384,430 98,500 4,480,186
40,453  (1,636,947) (11,987) (74,823) 170,479 967,589 807,856 262,620

65



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

APPENDIX I: NET PROFIT AFTER DEDUCTING NON-ROUTINE ITEMS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, COMMITMENTS AND OTHER OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Legal proceedings

As at 30 June 2006, the Group was the defendant in certain lawsuits arising from its normal business
operations. Management of the Group believes that the outcome of these lawsuits will not have a
material impact on the financial position of the Group after consulting legal counsel.

Assets pledged

Assets pledged as collateral for repurchase, short positions and precious metals swaps agreements
with other banks and financial institutions are set forth in the tables below. As at 30 June 2006, the
Group had repurchase agreements, short positions and precious metals swaps amounting to RMB
78,597 million (2005: RMB 62,108 million). All such agreements mature within twelve months from
inception.

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Precious metals 52 2,617
Bills (Note lll. 6) 5,569 11,968
Debt securities (Note Ill. 5) 76,822 49,658
Total 82,443 64,243

Capital commitments

The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the accounts:

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Authorised and contracted for but not recorded 2,152 1,893
Authorised but not contracted for 2,257 2,687
Total 4,409 4,580

The above capital commitments are related to commitments to purchase building and equipment.
The Group’s management is confident that future revenues and funding available will be sufficient to
meet these capital commitments. However the Group’s management have no obligation to incur the
costs in respect of the balance of the authorised but not contracted for amounts.
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APPENDIX I: NET PROFIT AFTER DEDUCTING NON-ROUTINE ITEMS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, COMMITMENTS AND OTHER OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
(Continued)

Operating leases

Under the Group’s irrevocable operating lease contracts, the minimum rental payments that should
be paid in the future are summarised as:

30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Within one year

1,401 1,371
One to two years 1,159 1,085
Two to three years 851 807
Above three years 2,566 2,546
Total 5,977 5,809

Certificate Treasury bond redemption commitments

The Bank is entrusted by the MOF to issue certain Certificate Treasury Bonds. The investors of
Certificate Treasury Bonds have a right to redeem the bonds at par any time prior to maturity and the
Bank is committed to redeem those bonds. The redemption price is the principal value of the
Certificate Treasury Bonds plus unpaid interest. As at 30 June 2006, the Bank’s redemption
commitments, representing the principal value of the bonds underwritten and sold by the Bank,
amounted to RMB 84,056 million (2005: RMB 80,965 million). The original maturities of these bonds
vary from 1 to 5 years. As the deposits base rate established by the PBOC is currently lower than the
yields on all issues of Certificate Treasury Bonds, management expects the amount of redemption
before the maturity dates of those bonds through the Bank will not be material.

Major off-balance sheet exposures
30 June 2006 31 December 2005

Acceptances 230,434 195,234
Letters of guarantee issued 255,779 212,987
Letters of credit issued 115,686 101,195
Irrevocable credit commitments and others 422,297 386,346
Total 1,024,196 895,762
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EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Subsequent to the balance sheet date in August 2006, the Bank entered into certain foreign currency
transactions to reduce its net foreign currency position by USD14.2 billion (Note VII).
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APPENDIX I: NET PROFIT AFTER DEDUCTING NON-ROUTINE ITEMS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

In accordance with the requirements “Question & Answer No.1 Concerning disclosure convention
for companies offering shares to the public—Non-routine profit/loss(revised 2004)”, the Group’s net
profit before and after deducting non-routine items is as follows:

For the six month
period ended
30 June 2006

unaudited
Net profit 19,024
Add / (Less): non-routine items
— Net Gain on disposal of long-term equity investments (142)
— Non-operating income (1) (1,111)
— Non-operating expense (2) 644
— Write-back of the impairments recognised in previous years (3) (451)
Income tax impact of non-routine items 349
Net profit after deducting the non-routine items 18,314

Non-operating income refer to income which are not directly attributable to business operating
activities, including net gains from disposal of fixed assets, gains from fixed assets stocktake,
penalty charge income, gains from closing of dormant accounts and etc.

Non-operating expense refers to expenses which are not directly attributable to business operating
activities, including net losses on disposal of fixed assets, penalty charge expenses, donation, hon-
routine losses and etc.

Write-back of prior year provision for asset impairment mainly consists of write-back of provision for
other receivables and advances.
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The Group’s Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Income Statement prepared under the
International Financial Reporting Standards(“IFRS”) and the reconciliation between PRC GAAP and

IFRS financial information are set out below:

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Net trading income

Net (losses)/gains on investment securities
Other operating income

Impairment losses on loans and advances
Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Share of results of associates
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the period
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank
Minority interest

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the

equity holders of the Bank during the period
(Renminbi per ordinary share)
- Basic and diluted
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For the six month period
ended 30 June

2006 2005
unaudited unaudited
100,124 77.616
(45,301) (28,808)
54,823 48,808
8,166 5,915
(1,325) (1,397)
6,841 4518
557 2,795
64 20
7,218 5,229
(5,479) (4,966)
(29,686) (27,721)
34,338 28,683
371 48
34,709 28,731
(12,458) (10,957)
22,251 17,774
19,477 15,181
2,774 2,593
22,251 17,774
0.09 0.08
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APPENDIX II: RECONCILIATION BETWEEN PRC GAAP AND IFRS FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
30 June 2006 31 December 2005

unaudited audited
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks 36.785 41.082
Balances with central banks 340.651 316.941
Placements with banks and other financial
institutions 293,140 332,099
Government certificates of indebtedness for bank
notes issued 36,094 35,586
Precious metals 39 259 26,974
Trading assets and other financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss 114,167 111,782
Derivative financial instruments 21.540 16.808
Loans and advances to customers, net 2.317,625 2,152,112
Investment securities
- available-for-sale 929,894 602,221
- held-to-maturity 569,126 607,459
- loans and receivables 389,368 361,851
Investment in associates 5,675 5,061
Property and equipment 62.238 62,417
Investment property 8612 8,511
Deferred income tax assets 23431 20.504
Other assets 44,030 38,640
Total assets 5,231,635 4,740,048
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

LIABILITIES
Due to banks
Due to central banks

Bank notes in circulation

Certificates of deposits and placements from
banks and other financial institutions

Derivative financial instruments and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Due to customers

Bonds issued

Special purpose borrowings
Current tax liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Bank

Share capital

Capital reserve

Statutory reserves

General and regulatory reserves

Undistributed profits
Reserve for fair value changes of available-for-
sale securities

Currency translation differences

Minority interest

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities
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30 June 2006

31 December 2005

unaudited audited
171,422 134,217
30,495 30,055
36,151 35,731
190,880 212,626
101,172 91,174
4,048,438 3,699,464
60,177 60,179
49,622 52,164
20,637 23,459
6,933 7,052
2,053 2,136
128,573 136,272
4,846,553 4,484,529
253,839 209,427
66,613 (5,954)
8,095 5,987
9,398 5,109
21,893 10,188
(3,603) 1,899
(488) (237)
355,747 226,419
29,335 29,100
385,082 255,519
5,231,635 4,740,048
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED
APPENDIX Il: RECONCILIATION BETWEEN PRC GAAP AND IFRS FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation between PRC GAAP and IFRS financial information

Net assets Net profit
for the six month
as at period ended 30 June
30 31

June December

2006 2005 2006 2005
PRC GAAP figures 357,641 233,842 19,024 16,434
Adjustments for accounting standard
differences:
-Reversal of revaluation surplus and
corresponding depreciation (1) (7,794) (7,999) 205 133
-Fair value measurement on investment
properties (2) 3,199 2,816 438 1,059
-Equity securities classified as available-for-
sale financial assets and stated at fair
value(3) 3,566 1,775 - -
- Early retirement benefit obligation (4) (4,911) (5,097) 186 (1,749)
-Cost method applied on precious metals (5) (757) (637) (120) (83)
-Deferred tax impact (6) 4,222 992 (97) (97)
-Minority interests effect and others 581 727 (159) (516)
Sub-total (1,894) (7,423) 453 (1,253)
IFRS figures 355,747 226,419 19,477 15,181

Reversal of revaluation surplus and corresponding depreciation

Under PRC GAAP, the Bank recorded an asset revaluation adjustment of RMB 10,432 million as of
31 December 2003, related principally to property and equipment, in connection with the Joint Stock
Reform Plan. The revalued property and equipment will be amortised over their remaining useful
lives. According to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, once an entity has chosen the cost model
as its accounting policy, it shall apply the policy to an entire class of property, and shall not be
permitted to measure these fixed assets at fair value. Hence, the asset revaluation surplus and
corresponding depreciation recognized under PRC GAAP, should be reversed under IFRS.
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(Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation between PRC GAAP and IFRS (Continued)

Fair value measurement on investment properties

Under PRC GAAP, investment properties as fixed assets are measured at cost after deducting
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. According to IAS 40 Investment Property,
investment properties are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date by the Group.

Equity securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets and stated at fair value

Under PRC GAAP, equity securities are accounted for at cost after deducting impairment losses.
According to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, these securities have
been classified as available-for-sale and are stated at fair value.

Early retirement benefit obligation

According to MOF requirement, the early retirement benefit expenditures during the early retirement
period (from early retirement date to legal retirement date) to those employees who accepted an
early retirement arrangement is recognized on a cash basis by the Group. According to IAS 19
Employee Benefits, the early retirement benefit at the balance sheet date should be recorded based
on the present value of future payment obligation after adjusting for actuarial gain or loss and past
servicing cost.

Cost method applied on precious metals

According to accounting practice of PRC banking industry, all precious metals are initially
recognized at cost and subsequently re-measured at fair value at the balance sheet date by the
Bank. According to IAS 2 Inventories, precious metals that are not related to the Group’s precious
metals trading activities are carried at cost.

Deffered tax impact

Under IFRS, deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. Under PRC GAAP, deferred income tax is provided using the
liability method, on timing differences between the Group’s taxable profits and its results as stated in
the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in
periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.

The difference between PRC GAAP and IFRS in 2006 mainly represents the deferred income tax

credited or charged directly to equity under IFRS relating to the fair value re-measurement of
available-for-sale investments charged or credited directly to equity.
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